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Vision, Mission and Objecti

Vision
a) Tobe the global market leaderin e-commerce domain.

b) To emerge as a dominant player in secured and
transparent trading.

c) Creating value from waste resources through sustainable
and eco-friendly recycling.

Mission
a) Toensure transparency and better price discovery through
extensive use of e-commerce.

b) To ensure hassle-free and fair e-commerce enabled
trading.

c) Topromote sustainable and eco-friendly recycling.

d) To strive for continuous innovation to deliver desired value
to our stakeholders.

e) To penetrate and expand the markets we handle and
enhance the value of services we render on sustained
basis.

Objectives

a) To increase India’s share in global cross border trade by
facilitating reliable e-commerce enabled trading.

b) To improve customer experience and make a significant
positive impact on customers' satisfaction by providing
prompt and efficient services to business associates,
driving improved loyalty to its business.

c) To provide a secure and transparent e-commerce platform
enabling better price discovery and meet the transactional
requirements of Indian and cross border public and private
sector enterprises.

d) To develop and maintain a competent, dedicated and
motivated workforce.

e) To, enter into joint ventures with enterprises offering
synergy in the area of metal and e-waste recycling,
prospective business on e-commerce platform.

f) To undertake these activities so as to ensure an optimum
return on capital employed and to attain a return of 15% on
the net worth.

g) To build demand and increase supply of recycled metal
and e-waste commodities in the country by investing in
recycling capacity building and providing a transparent
platform for organized disposal of scrap.
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MSTC at Present

MSTC has successfully completed 53 years of its existence on
9th September 2018 and is moving on its way to 54th year of a
long journey of growth. From being a small canalized agency,
it has transformed itself into e-commerce giant in B2B sector
and has the distinction of being only such company in public
sector.

MSTC today is rendering its services to steel and
petrochemical sectors for raw material support and seamless
e-commerce services with innovative approach to various
PSUs, Central Government/State Government and private
sector companies. Successful e-auction of coal blocks is yet
another feather in MSTC’s cap and MSTC today stands taller
than yesterday. It is the most preferred service provider and
various Central PSUs, State Governments are engaging
MSTC on nomination basis based on its strong credentials.

MSTC today is category-l Mini Ratna Public Sector schedule
‘B’ company under the administrative control at Ministry of
Steel, Govt. of India.

Incorporated in 1964 as a small trading company with a
meagre capital of X 6 lakhs, in last 53 years it has grown into a
large multi-product diversified company. MSTC has issued
bonus shares four times and the shareholders’ value has
substantially being enhanced and one original share is now
thirty-two shares. It has paid substantial dividends to the
Government exchequer apart from direct and indirect tax.

MSTC facilitates in recycling of scrap forindustrial use in terms
of raw materials and thereby reduces input cost, conserve
energy & natural resources and ultimately protects the
environment. Thus it contributes significantly to “Swachh
Bharat” Mission of the Government.

MSTC is committed to protection of environment, natural
resources, uplift of the poor and under privileged class under
its CSR initiatives.

Recently, MSTC has set up an auto- shredding plant through a
JV company with Mahindra Group. This is one of its own kind
in India and will go a long way in recycling special grade steels
besides substituting imports for such materials.

MSTC today on its 54th year of glorious existence expresses
its gratitude to the people of the country, the Government, the
stakeholders for reposing faith in the company. We reiterate
our commitment to ethical business principles, desirable
governance, management capabilities, social cause,
transparency and fairness in all its business activities.
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Chairman’s Statement

Ladies and Gentlemen,

| heartily welcome you all to this 54th Annual General
Meeting of the Company. | am privileged to share my thoughts
with you through this forum. Since, the requisite quorum is
present | hereby declare the meeting as open.

Necessary documents/ registers in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are lying open at the
meeting venue and shall remain open and accessible during
the continuance of the meeting.

The Annual Financial Statement and the Board’s Report
have been sent along with the notice of the meeting and |
presume that you have spared some part of your valued time
toreadit.

Performance Highlights

Though the physical performance in terms value was
encouraging,the revenue generated was not proportionate
due to various reasons. One of the reasons was pressure for
reduction of service charges by our clients.In spite of the same
the Company ended the financial year with PBT of ¥ 111.59
Crore compared to% 96.61 Crore during the previous year.

MSTC Advantage

MSTC plays a very important role as a service provider in
e-commerce and is a market leader in this sector. It has the
distinction of serving majority of Central/PSUs/State Govt.
Departments and Private Institutions for providing
transparent, fair & seamless e-Commerce services to its
clients.

Joint Venture for Shredding Plant

During the year MSTC has formed a Joint Venture
Company “Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd.” with
Mahindra Intertrade Ltd., to set up the first Auto Shredding
Plant in India for which input raw materials like condemned
automobiles, white goods, etc. are required. A collection and
dismantling centre with state-of-the-art technology has been
setup in Greater Noida as a supply feedstock for i
Shredding Plant. Foundation work for
the plantis completed. Hydrauli
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Friends, your continued trust, encouragement and
support drive us to improve our performance. We are
committed to participate in improving the livelihood of
communities and societies at large. We take up various kinds
of social development projects, mostly in rural areas. Your
company has given special thrust in health care, cleanliness,
and primary education and will continue to work for the
upliftment of society atlarge in future.

Operational Excellence

As you know your company is a major standalone e-
commerce Company in the country. The area includes selling
agency business, e-sales of scrap and other commaodities, e-
procurement etc. Customized e-commerce solutions have
emerged as major innovative business models of MSTC. Here
we have developed Exim Portal for Petroleum Industry, Online
Draw System for selection of LPG dealership, e-RaKAM (e-
Rashtriya Kishan Agri Mandi) Portal etc., to name a few.

E-auction of sand Mining blocks in UP and exim-
products of IOCL have been the signature events in the recent
past.

The trading business, which comprise of import and
import financing through BG backed model, contributed to
35% of the total operational income. MSTC also supplied
imported coal worth ¥ 272 Crore to power generating
companies.

Ladies & Gentlemen, we all know that North East Region
is rich in forest wealth constituting 22.21 percent of total forest
area in the country. Agro Climatic condition favors growth of
niche variety of fruits, vegetables, timber, spices and other
products.In line with the “Look East” and “Act East” policies of
the Government of India, MSTC has taken many steps with a
view to benefit the farmers which will subsequently benefit the
entire North East Region. MSTC and other stakeholders
including NABARD, NERAMAC, CRWC, FPOs, etc. are
working together for overall development of the Agri-horti Eco-
System in the North East Region. | am delighted to inform you
that MSTC plans to enter into umbrella agreement with the
State Government of the North East States for providing
complete e-commerce solutions with a focus on Agri-horti
products.

The recent initiative of the Government for sale of
mineral blocks, both major and minor, through e-auction has
also opened window of opportunity for MSTC and it has signed
agreement with most of the State Governments, which may
yield positive results to the exchequer of the states and fetch
revenue to MSTC.

MSTC has signed an agreement with NAFED to sell the
food grain lying with various godowns in the country through e-
auction. Procurement of the same is also within the ambit of
agreement through e-reverse auction. This offers a huge
opportunity for MSTC for e-Commerce business.

E-procurement is another potential area in which MSTC
is making a rapid stride to grab the business. MSTC has
introduced multi browser facility to make much deeper dent in
the e-procurement domain of business.
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Economic and Bu
Dear Friends, MSTC’s business is havi
opportunities and threats:

Opportunities

i) E-Commerce: MSTC has emerged as
standalone e-commerce service provider in the co
With its foray into new and diverse business vertica
including the flagship projects of the Govt. of India, it has
animmense potential to grow multifold in this arena.

i) Recycling Sector: MSTC is spearheading the initiatives
of framing a recycling policy, its pivotal role in setting up
recycling plant in the automobile sector and e-waste
throws open many opportunities for MSTC to be the front
runner holding the torch for growth.

iii) Foreign Footprints — Exim of petroleum products: MSTC
has added one more feather to its cap by developing an
exclusive portal for the import and export tenders for IOCL
for its petroleum products digitizing the entire process with
its complexities. The portals services are to be extended
to its overseas Joint Venture units empowering MSTC to
make its footprints overseas in the days to come.

iv) Listing-MSTC is slated to be listed in this fiscal year which
willincrease its visibility and thereby its business.

Threats

i) GeM portal —reducing opportunity in exposure:

With the Govt.’s directive to use the GeM Portal for
purchases, the business in e-procurement of goods will
take a hit. The scope of work in e-procurement gets a bit
downsized, as a major percentage of any Corporation’s
business is spent on procurement of goods.

ii) Trading business: As a policy matter, MSTC has decided
to go safe in the traditional trading business due to the
extent of risk involved. Though it is making efforts to
resurrect the same, the slowness of the economic growth
and the exponential increase in NPAs etc has destabilized
the credit system and it poses a difficult scenario.

Investor Services

| am glad to inform you that this year, with continuous
follow up, we have collected the bank accounts of
shareholders and for the first time, dividend shall be credited to
bank accounts. Out of 544 shareholders, around 400 have
given bank details and we will issue dividend to their Bank
Accounts, for the rest, we will issue dividend warrants.

The Company’s shares have been dematerialised in
both the depositories, i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 335 shareholders
out of 544 are holding shares in demat mode. | would like to
request all the shareholders to get their shares
dematerialized. Shareholders are also requested to update
their bank account with the company so that dividend can be
transferred to their account directly. We do not have any record
of a single shareholder grievance in the last decade.

As mentioned earlier, the Government of India has
decided to disinvest around 25% of their holding in the
Company through IPO. The Lead Manager & Le i
have already been appointed. We
shareholders value in the comi
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Corporate Governance

Your Company is an ethical and properly governed
company. All actions are transparent and taken with reasons
keeping in view the interest of the stakeholders. We follow all
guidelines of the Government and also the law. We have been
rated as “excellent” in the CG rating done by DPE every year.
We have not received any notice of non-compliance from any
authority in last 10 years.

Your Board has nine Directors, comprising of two Govt.
Nominee and four Independent Directors, which makes the
Board decision making process more analytical, reasonable
and logical.

Human Resources

Your company is pro-employee company and has
bagged award for “great place to work”. The industrial
relations have remained cordial and participative all along. We
have opened offices in many cities in India so that we can
reach out to our principals and customers easily and generate
more business. Therefore we have recruited officers for
expansion of business.

| can assure you, on behalf of the management that with
prudent and experienced Board members, an efficient and
loyal manpower and sound financial resources, we are
managing the affairs in the most reasonable way keeping in
view the interest of the stakeholders.
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Best wishes for Durga Puja and Diwali.

e

Thanking you,
JaiHind! %
Kolkata B. B. Singh

26th September, 2018 Chairman-cum-Managing

Director
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BOARD’S REPORT

To

The Shareholders
MSTC Limited

The Directors are pleased to present the 53 Annual Report
on the business and operation of the Company together with
the Audited Accounts and the Auditor’'s Report for the year
ended 315tMarch, 2018.

A) Agency Business
This year the total volume of Agency Business stands at
< 36,39,015 lakh, against ¥ 32,71,682 lakh in 2016-17.

Break-up for the year 2017-18 vis-a-vis 2016-17 is as
follows:

=FGIT &F FaGrT F1 7T (R AT H) Business Segment Volume of Business ( ¥ in lakh)
2017-18  2016-17 2017-18  2016-17
©hY faem 4,06,683 3,08,892 Scrap Disposal 4,06,683 3,08,892
ERCER) 15,51,469  14,12,712 e-Sale 15,51,469 14,12,712
I T St 9,95,887  10,16,623 Coal e-auction 9,95,887  10,16,623
g ST i $-+Arerdt 6,84,976  5,33,455 Iron ore e-auction 6,84,976  5,33,455
Fd (F) : 36,39,015 32,71,682 Total (A) : 36,39,015 32,71,682
@) U B) E- Procurement
T 87 e %1 A (X e ) Business Segment Volume of Business ( ¥ in lakh)
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
ARG 36,26,896  14,04,149 e-Procurement 36,26,896  14,04,149
A (F@) : 36,26,896  14,04,149 Total (B) : 36,26,896 14,04,149
T (F+): 72,6591  46,75,831 Total (A+B): 72,6591  46,75,831

»
T TR e e g
- . !;.Jj...-..-.;._- .

ShIcTeRTal # fEAR 08 T 09 21, 2017 i aTftieh e THIA THEICH T STHSH |
Annual Business Review Meeting held on 8th and 9th April, 2017 at Kolkata.
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% 2016-17 # T 4,59,765 TG &I ol H 39 9% AR H4FT
FEE FI FA A 9,35,181 ARG 7 1 99 2016-17 F Wi a6
2017-18 HT 9k T = fea e}

TG &T G F1 & (3 G F)

2017-18 2016-17

renfaa gt 2,25300  1,92,243

TRl Tt 7,09,881 2,67,522

T () : 9,35181  4,59,765

TERNT (FH+G+T) : 82,01,092 51,35,596
Ht &t fasia @ S

forra = % 6,543 @@ ot o | foita o 2017-18 ¥ FIawa
o T 7,663 TG 51 TR T B

¥ 2017-18 T62016-17 % foru st & facdia wRom i feusn @ 8 -

C) Trading

The performance of the Trading Division shows a total volume
of business 0f39,35,181 lakh, against< 4,59,765 lakh in 2016-
17. Break-up for the year 2017-18 vis-a-vis 2016-17 is as
follows:

Business Segment Volume of Business ( T in lakh)

2017-18 2016-17
Imported materials 2,25,300 1,92,243
Indigenous materials 7,09,881 2,67,522
Total (C) : 9,35,181 4,59,765
Grand Total (A+B+C) : 82,01,092 51,35,596

Financial Highlights of the Company

The Profit after Tax stands at ¥ 7,663 lakh in FY 2017-18 as
against ¥ 6,543 lakh last year.

The Financial results of the Company for the year 2017-18 and
2016-17 are given below :-

Rar@d) ( in lakh)
201718 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
ECEREIKIE 82,01,092  51,35,596 Volume of Business 82,01,092 51,35,596
WEGTFH‘H (=If) 11,159 9,661 Profit (Loss) before tax 11,159 9,661
T 3,496 3,118 Tax . 3,496 3,118
e s TS sy el i) som tre
) aid up capital (Equity , )

e o (3fee) 3,520 1,760 Reserves 49,616 46,933
ST 49,616 46,933 Dividend (%) 74% 95 (Interim)
AT (%) 74% 95 (3fafH) 71 (Final)

71 (sifaw) Earnings per share (%)
T IR =T (%) (Face value ¥ 10/-) 22 11
(sifera Te7 T 10/-) 29 11 PBT Per Employee 1" 31
i .?mrﬁerrfr et (T g ) 11 31 Dividend
ATHIRT

ST9eRt ST & RS Hew 3 31 A, 2018 = "Hre fasiig a9 &
few 74% wnier =61 wedE foar 1 S ey, Afe S At
TR0 [T H = foman Sar € ot SReRest i SFTa feman s,
TRt AT STfter TTROT G hi IR ol TEE] o It § wfiaer
BT |

TEerTef o o S SAYehT ShaHT 3 SATeeRiST SIACeh] % ek W@rd shi
T fRaT e | TRl 9 B0 YIEeReh & Sk @rd | oATisr SE ST R |
SRfara fafy

31 17, 2017 i ST AT AR ffa T 46,933 o off |3
% IR T 2,683 @ 14 TS Bl G H T AR @ # Sfaqeor
TR ® 1 319, 2018 i T R T 49,616 Tr@ ® |
AEiv

31 A, 2018 T 3TYeh! o T+ kT 1frehd 915R Gft T 50,00,00,000 F
ST 10 ek o 50000000 et IRt # ferenfora ® | 2maent shoi 4 1:1
ST 372 ek IR oh ST H Tk S W ST fohart & | wherearey,
ST SRt I IR TS R 10 Tk ok 1,76,00,000 et St # farfora
7 17,60,00,000 ¥ 58T T 10 T & 35,20,00,000 it 9=ri &
faenfiiaz 3,52,00,000 TEE T |

The Board of Directors of your Company has recommended a
Dividend of 74% for the financial year ended 315t March, 2018.
The Dividend, if declared by the members in ensuing AGM,
shall be paid to the shareholders whose names will appear in
the Register of Members on the date of AGM.

During the year under review your Company has collected the
bank account of majority of the shareholders. For the first time,
we would directly credit the dividend to the bank account of the
shareholders.

Reserves

The General Reserves of the Company stood at3 46,933 lakh
as on 31t March, 2017. During the year ¥ 2,683 lakh have
been transferred to the General Reserve from the Profit & Loss
Account. The General Reserves stand at 3 49,616 lakh as on
31stMarch 2018.

Share Capital

The authorized share capital of your Company as on 31st
March, 2018 stands at ¥ 50,00,00,000, divided into 50000000
equity shares of ¥ 10 each. Your Company issued bonus
shares in the ratio of 1:1i.e. one bonus share in the ratio of one
share. Consequently, the paid up share capital of the
Company increased from ¥ 17,60,00,000 divided into
1,76,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each to ¥ 35,20,00,000
divided into 3,52,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each.

LLE-L
fafir % LIMITED
W ORI W] TIEE)  paTe 4 Gest of Incka Eriesprien]
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fedier 09.03.2018 w1 T |ita, YT THR & HTHE! T TR |
CMD meeting Chief Secretary, Govt. of Andhra Pradesh on 09.03.2018.

Frareren foram wd gean fafy & sfawor

ST SAffrEm, 2013 i URT 124 =79 I € foh 1S of arerer iy
FTeT AN @ i st fafa @ | auf o faw stem/eEntEd B,
3 5 TN g i ferereh forem wa gean ffy (emddium) #
Sfafa feparsmam |

fog ad 2009-10 & fou Tamfed amaier 22 Faw), 2017 &l
TSI WfeeRTor 1 2iafia ferar mam e

ot sAfafem, 2013 Y ¥R 124(6) TS 36 iid 9 o e
T § T Tefi SR foTreh Heter 8 o A o SE St 9wt & fore
AT BT ST &l fehall 797 © A1 SraRfed @ &, o ot gy frererh
oreq wa gRen fafe & T # siafia frusmdi

STELHU T & STIUTE H, ot UE Teft SaeReht sl AT I
TTAT T o ST o TTe SR T STt 8, Feh ametier e 7
Tt % fery smam 78 fore T ¥/remfed w® ¥, TE T i W, IR
STEETTU TIfereRYor o urg fera fafer ot efafia e fewsmd |

TEHER, TE TR 9o 56 Faer 7 fort = 2009-10 & 2016-17 %
o emerer SaRfEd W 9, 3 faieh 30.11.17 1 LT Wfeshio
fefe @ & siafa &2 fau T & | & 9Ri o faawor st i Jeame
www.mstcindia.co.in TWYeH fru T |

St (T F1aw 2014 % Frw 8 & =y afed st sifafrem, 2013
HT URT 134(3)(TH) F WEHMEl % SFTER ST G, HEfiTeh!
TS T At T 31 Ue o= 39 i o eterah- | # feumu
Trrrfira STfremem wa weivm == o1} fageryor fdid

Frmfaa ST we weie == 3R faweror fdid w gers faawor et
STITH-1| & ¥ § Hord ¢ e fewe Hed it U &1 9w 7
ffa sifemem W soe yHoTs fRee Hed @t Ul #
STeT e o &9 § Ted R e |

ot ferecont =t frreapet

YA (vetEE wd weme) e 2014 % e 12(1) qen sttty w6t
HRT 92(3) o AT # fa<ia o 2017-18 & foie ursfiel-9 wew §
afes Rure o1 freendd 3@ fure o wry feifed wrew # semies 1l &
T o fRar T g |

Hedehrd | CMD meeting Hon’ble Chief Minister of Tripura Shri Biplab Kumar Deb,
on 27th March, 2018.

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that any
dividend that has remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of
seven years from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend
account shall be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by Central Government.

Unclaimed dividend for the FY 2009-10 was transferred to the
IEPF authority on 22" November, 2017.

Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
made thereunder provide that all shares in respect of which
dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive
years or more shall be transferred by the Company in the
name of Investor Education and Protection Fund.

In compliance of the IEPF Rules, the Company sends
reminder letter to all such shareholders, whose dividends
have remained unpaid /unclaimed for a consecutive period of
7 years with a request to claim the dividends, failing which the
shares would be transferred to the IEPF Authority on the due
date.

Accordingly, all such shares in respect of which dividends had
remained unclaimed for the FY 2009-10 to 2016-17 were
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF authority on
30.11.17. The details of such shares are hosted on the website
of the company www.mstcindia.co.in

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars relating to
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in Annexure-| to this
Report

Corporate Governance & Management Discussion and
Analysis Report

Separate details on Corporate Governance and Management
Discussion and Analysis Report are attached herewith as
Annexure Il and form part of this Board’s Report. Compliance
Certificate on Corporate Governance is placed as Annexure to
Board’s Report.

Extract of Annual Return

In compliance with Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules
2014, extract of Annual Return in format MGT-9 for the
financial year 2017-18 has been enclosed with this report as
Annexure lllin the prescribed format.
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T TR ST Tfaeiier $-hiAd SHaEr ol Giar S IReel ol
TFHA TR

THTHSET 2T STEST foramT wiferemett sTgeiy urar 9ifest 740 ga &
ST §, I8 31fHsh IR I T i &7l @l ¢ 3T goARl Tad
ST ! e USH HY Thal € | T T Fofl o TR I TR e
B, T STt ot s 2l T A Hell R e Heh! aEer e,
SrcAleraret Te 3T SYANTRdie] sl SFed 91 WeH 3 & fau
T & S STl feeTreet fiehe] U5 fa s M deem H ¥ |
RICTRIAT 12T HX o o1 I THM €9 § Gag fesiret Rehadt drge st
R TE R

THTEE T AT & Tet o U Ted © | ST e e U i &
T wrrer, e fydvm faen (i), fse fefgsges
et & wfe (THEIEisiTd) TS Sl Tt Hhich Y& § hig
FHH T T |

ST G faear Tge g Hifean' s fR-wuemang difear w
TRET-TeT YT R SRR St B, THUHSE ot S-shivd Tgia
EARCIACHERIREIES!

THCHTHA Tfsh

TS (TR Hithe ToR) o Fo Ta SITSe o o< Ueh T[E Ha Yl
TN T & folT U A GeaT T ¢ | 98 fod a9 et ud
SR & &e SACH-TEH & arel it 3Tehel ol sTarastiIeh uad
Tifereh T ot GiAfeeddr UeH it € 1 gHArT 7 S0 oe Te H 256
e TowHTe HEffed frag |

Tl T SUFT HEEH, T3H Ud Wi faEm 9 € o u%
SMETEt6 H S o fau qufa: TaR § | gean @ S19 WA e
LT ST ST od TEAET b Ueh o fAC T T |
fiftatifeser sftersrer farftdt SR wadterpHt, Wt Tl & T
favmT grr Tenfaa fohan ST § | THuEee Tt gRy stfasha,
e qe wesi St & ST wearafy gRa gifeed S 2 |
THTHSH 3O adias aR=ed o g9ifdd 100 THeded
IMETATA & SN it § T f9=7 werar 9 fed o stfafiem
SETATS Hfaefael off ©| TAUHSH! 7 o790+ &3 T wmaned i
AT & ART TS fear | 367 S Aiaiien Wity bt eAfafier
GETHAT UG 1 T, Tk Hefoh GRT TG YRIAT Tk H SHIHTe o T4 |
o7 fore 1 aedl T Td ARy ¥ e UeH w & fau
JHTH T TR TE L |

THCHSE ¥ 3-3=f, §-Rad it ta-1 8 ud o= vgfasi &
Y Teh 3-89 2-Meare faenfaa foran & 1w faxiar frai,
drerer feen-fade, emedt erfufem 2000 wd 3@ a9 2008 +
HMET 39 - RIS Tfetshy # Snfher forg 7T & qer So Jar 61
TEERIH R WHIfoI fhan e g |

TATESH! -hiAd HTHTATE Tad 3 Saaqie ¥ weifad fear T
B | I TATHSTE e 3 W HTHTHSTE weel 5 Wa e % Ty
TRTETdT o =ra o fere fafaer afsman mmfa #

THTEEHET HelT shicTehral | a8 9 3o hrie § | fasesy faum
AT SEdi § gAfsTd 8, i o AR STeIaH iRt %
1707 < W STI ST Rl S7dl i el & |

THUHEH! T Faeed faurT TeeiRE g1 eTEuHel 27001:2013 §
TR |

THTHSE T -hiAd faamr o sTEums 9001:2015 e 4
TR |

Systems

MSTC’s IT infrastructure is by far the most sophisticated and
robust in the country to take up e-commerce services in a
secure and transparent manner for more than 90,000 clients
across the globe.

MSTC’s IT Department is equipped with the powerful IBM
Power Series 740 Servers having robust processing power
and can serve thousands of concurrent hits. The servers are
highly energy efficient leading to saving of power and these
servers are in operation with redundancy & in high availability
disaster recovery mode for providing uninterrupted services to
our stakeholders like Principals, Bidders & other users.

Mumbai Disaster Recovery site is also having a similar set up
asin Kolkata Data Center.

MSTC is concerned with information security issues and has
left no stone unturned to achieve maximum security by
installing Firewall, Intrusion Prevention System (IPS),
Managed Distributed Denial of Service (MDDOS), etc.

The much needed security feature ‘Write Once Media’ which
captures the Audit trails on a non-editable media, has been the
hallmark of MSTC’s e-Commerce system.

SSL Encryption

SSL (Secure Sockets Layer) is the standard security
technology for establishing an encrypted link between a web
server and a browser. This link ensures that all data passed
between the web server and browsers remain private and
integral. We have implemented 256-bit SSLin our web server.

All network equipments like routers, switches are from CISCO
and are totally ready for IPv6 migration. Security Appliances
like Firewalls, IPS are in place to prevent unauthorized
intrusion with latest signatures.

Periodical Application Security Testing is conducted by STQC,
a Govt. of India Department. MSTC ensures security through
periodical penetration, vulnerability & performance testing by
STQC.

MSTC conducts its business through a dedicated 100 Mbps
ILL and has also a standby ILL connectivity taken from a
different provider. MSTC has connected its regions and
branches through VPN which enabled the centralized internal
applications to be used by all in a more secured manner.
Moreover an UTM has been installed for protecting the users
systems from outside spam and viruses.

MSTC has developed an in-house complete e-Procurement
solution with e-tendering, e-reverse auction, e-reverse auction
with L1 matching and many other modes. General Financial
Rules, CVC guidelines, IT Act 2000 and its Amendment of
2008 have been adhered to in this e-Procurement application
and the said service has been certified by STQC.

MSTC e-Commerce has been appraised to CMMI Level-3
Dev. For achieving CMMI Level 5 from existing CMMI Level 3,
tendering for selection of consultantis under process.

MSTC server in Kolkata is manned round-the-clock
throughout the year. The Systems dept. is well equipped with
qualified professionals whose skills are continuously
upgraded with training on latest technology.

MSTC’s System Department is ISO 27001:2013 certified from
STQC.

MSTC e-Commerce division is also 1ISO 9001:2015 Quality
certified.
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10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

THRIHT hIcenRldl 5T Hefard ol TXief o foare & v
F-TTeRIHe arsti I TSRS THTO T 3T o S i, 18
T A B, 399 Tft Wieror S foF swratere qder, Hide e
e ATl U ora WRiel, I STIHANT GRET T,
- TToaTeT UteTor, HogSierar kel Ua He-siierdl g
e @I

SMETTT 27001:2013 FHIVH SHafeerd § e THIAHRE gRI T
THTO T T 3ht Tallent o SURid I FHIford foharm T o vl
g JHTOTIS 12 T4, 2020 Teh 98 T T Telayor orn wiien e¥ 9
FISA R

TR o STIHR SAETHS 9001:2015 FHIVH i i el i
T 3 e I FHTOTTS 30 TE 2020 TR AT |

wuEdEt faeen faum o 2013 4 HuguEetd d9d 3
TR € | 58 27-06-2019 Teh ohi ST o TTe ST <1 o8t oh
for zm o efepa fRan T |

1 37T, 2017 1 AT F5ra Tl ST HH, @ @
<t iz fig T R R # iy seuei w1 S o fer feramt wat
etk fashareit &g 3-wiewhid & ¥9 § T fharm wit get
(3-TohT) HT AR fha |

TTEA/BTG/3. . Te o171 A1 o Teru Taiferss urefiiar ua
TS A % T AT e T oY Wit TS ht At
el G R e |

Sifaeh @M SeeHT ohl STiared o= ¥ $d T URRarTd @re
Icare Frrara faeprer wiftreReor (TiigEin) o fora i ==or siett <1
A ST |

Sfveh et & WY 9g Y1 9g =R i MfarareE) faewted
TEE TS 18 W, 2017 =1 Therdl & 1Y 3T -4 foman
T, ST TATHEE % feT 30.09.2017 o ST Jr9 (THAR)
e Y g Tel QA g B |

sTEeTHTe fraid o fau stigfaa $-ad waree & fome
o e & wd 98 T W Sfvaeh wRet 8 T R foRa |
TEhTH I B ET UUS TeATeh it shigrell (shiel) Sauiet g gfean
(W) & AW ¥ T 5 Aifd &k ¥4 H wA sfean fafes
(FreTEuer) 3 Tads fogd Scargent (STEHT) i hiet fefehst =t
et ¥ T gomedt e w5t T T I e
FouTe &g THTHSER 7 STEvIhar o STIHR Ush WITeadal THIEN
M fohan ® | 39 wereae foehet i 9 47 fafera gfte ufa
o & 2fereh o anfteh Yo e 25 9ot ek ot 1Aty o for ermem
T 125 HUe/AY & Yook H g9 B i STUT I A T
THTEE o T8e RIEhaTd Sl TR e Hare fhal 5id &
TooTdTadt sh1 27 THUHS ShTFe! I STeeA TR TS |

Tttt feed % e ¥ faoiar & =19 &g aa fmfor
Hufat s foh emgeidiue, Sideite Td TedEte & fag
TASTEH HaX § ifere gf faeed o1 Hered R o3 H =19 €9
T frarmar e

o faum & weam 9 fea SiTeesr 4 §RI $9uTd Harerd
feru Serare o foere feman e |

Ffedh o faum & fau sTsfad 3- e diéa 1 faswma &
FrfaEE R TR |

Tl et Taet et % forg syt St dea =i fam
T St R T |

Developments of Information Technology during 2017-18

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

STQC Certification on e-Procurement services was
received which is valid till Apri’ 18 after clearing audit
conducted by STQC Kolkata that included all the testing
like Functional testing, CVC and IT Act compliance Audit,
Web Application Security Testing, Performance Testing,
Vulnerability Assessment & Penetration Testing.

ISO 27001:2013 certification is in place and was re-
certified after clearance of recertification audit by STQC
and this certificate is valid up to 12" June, 2020 and
surveillance auditis carried out every year.

ISO 9001:2015 certification is also maintained as
per standards and this certificate is valid up to 301" May,
2020.

MSTC Systems division is CMMI Level 3 appraised since
2013. The same was renewed this year for another three
years with validity up to 27-06-2019.

On August 1, 2017, Hon’ble Union Minister for Consumer
Affairs, Food and Public Distribution, Shri Ram Vilas
Paswan and Hon’ble Union Steel Minister, Chaudhary
Birender Singh, launched Rashtriya Kisan Agri Mandi (e-
RaKAM), an e-platform for farmers and institutional
sellers to sell agricultural produce on pan India basis.

Online Major & Minor Mineral Block auction for the states
of Rajasthan/Chhattisgarh/UP & other States have been
conducted successfully with utmost transparency and
monetary gain.

Three stages bidding web application for Agricultural and
Processed Food Products Export Development Authority
(APEDA) has been developed for sale of Organic Food
products online.

Multi currency multi stage events with global participation
have been developed and successfully implemented on
18" May, 2017 which is well before the MoU Target of
30.09.2017 for NMDC.

Customized e-Commerce solution for |IOCL Export has
been developed and made live where global participation
is seeninabigway.

10) As a follow up to the new policy called Scheme for

Harnessing and Allocating Koyla (Coal) Transparently in
India (SHAKTI), Coal India Limited (CIL) devised a
mechanism for auction of Coal linkages to Independent
Power Producers (IPPs). MSTC provided a tailor made
software solution for execution of the scheme online. The
exercise is expected to result in an annual generation of
over 47 billion units per annum from the linkage coal and a
savings in tariff of approx. ¥ 125 cr/annum for period up to
25 years. MSTC has successfully conducted the first
eventwhen 27MMT of coal was allotted to the ten winners.

11) Online Draw System at NIC Server for Oil Manufacturing

Companies like I0CL, BPCL & HPCL for selection of
winner in allocation of LPG Distributorship was conducted
far & wide in the country.

12) DASHBOARD for Ministry of Steel was developed by

Retail Software Group with the assistance of System
department.

13) Customized e-Auction portal for Karnataka Forest

Department has been developed & implemented.

14) Customized e-Auction portal for Aamby Valley City

auction has been developed & implemented.




CICEE] A
ﬂ.ﬂ?:r % MSTC

LIMITED

8 iz of Indha Erlssprien]

T R ] T

15) fag@ wee &t IR ¥ TeAEty oUR W faga ) oTqay
(e & foarw TSt et ufshan dida o1 fasra ua st
ERIREIE

16) 1] @ ATeh ohi FaULH ST hl S S vew # foha
T T8 g - rart 37 ot G | T o TTeh! 8 R TTe
STASI 3T |

17) sharefl S8 fF g rafaem Ueteed ot fa, Afes
T foamsfae . fafaes, stifewn urer grafaem swidiem
far. stifewn +ia we R fafies, dueasiserdten snfe =1
SR §- TR FHTH HSH fRu T |

18) &t Toeh AT : Tefter =01 sl 78 STEearshal o SR AN
ormT et o fere 3 ST <At 3T ATfReh (ST i faehre
TS SHETe gUR Tiafies S| gy feman 7 |

19) Sfremdsiesey feeonfadsll & oHUR AR HURe w|Ee st
www.mstcindia.co.in H§ T WeeR omelt (HUHTH)
AT feman T |

20) TSR feenfeei & AquR Tt e T # Siuwed
T 4T R T |

21) STHTEA o AL | Y -alel SUHS! WU, |ishaor Td araet §
eI 95 i YT 7 AR 3T TGid i SR off firser
Td UReY srer © 1 foen i |l wwet ' 27.12.2017
PEICERRCIRIRRI

22) TATEE 7 ot T <7 e, AR e S I HaAl Wi
iR 3ufeufa # qaf &, fosioet Hi- a9 4 Taad
B (fot) o1 sTmaRor fohan |

23) et a% T Tgd H foaR o Td g UeH #RA 'g
THUEHE! 7 3113 T2 Ial et ohi R fopar |

e ware fawm (FrE.fa))

U o ad 2017-18 * IRY B & W HUA F g §

Tecaehiafl fafaefientor foran & | &2 T sraEm & gEe 2- T, T3

(THUESE T we), e St g forg o € | fafaefiemeor

o HIT, FHHATAT o 1Lt [TeRTE oh SRl HESH i 1T, 3TaUd,

Tafir= wfSreror srdesrdi o1 S=rer fomen @) e ¥ 99 % SR

SIS, eTd Ud vl g o Sevd § 19+ et &l fafay

ot o e wd fafa= st ufterr srfsy <M1 o SR g-

RIS, T Te Wl W et 75 FHHnat i ufoferd g |

I

Bl

aTe7e] Tg e Fewreh g feAieh 09.05.2017 1 W= it w3t oft Ten Hied fag =1
sifyares Td AFeE § Ul 9R 1St i S-+AarH i aeqfeafd w1 qedi |
Hon’ble Minister of Agriculture Shri Radha Mohan Singh was greeted by CMD on
09.05.2017 and apprised the status of first ever e-auction of Ginger from
Nagaland.

15) National e-bidding portal for Power Purchase Agreement
(PPA) on Medium term basis on behalf of Ministry of
Power has been developed & implemented.

16) The first ever e-auction of sand mining block was held in
Utter Pradesh which fetched hefty revenue to the
exchequer of the state as compared to the pre-auction
era.

17) Customized e-procurement solution have been provided
to many Buyers like REC Transmission Projects
Company Ltd., Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Limited,
ORISSA POWER TRANSMISSION CORPORATION
LTD, Odisha Coal and Power Limited, TANGEDCO etc.

18) Regional Connectivity Scheme — Ude Desh ka Aam
Naagarik (UDAN) for Ministry of Civil Aviation developed &
implemented by our in-house team as per new
requirement for second tranche.

19) Content Management System was implemented in our
corporate site i.e. www.mstcindia.co.in as per GIGW
guidelines.

20) GST Implementation as per Govt. guideline was
introduced in the all business transactions.

21) Automation in Pre-Bid EMD Collection, activation &
refund through online, making our e-Auction system more
user friendly & transparent. The system was made
operationalon 27.12.2017 in all aspects.

22) MSTC unveiled the MSTC’s vision for North-East
particularly in Agri-host sector in the august presence of
Shri Vishnu Deo Sai, Union Minister of State for Steel.

23) MSTC opened eight new branch offices to increase
outreach and for attainment of customer satisfaction.

Human Resource Development (HRD)
With the onset of the new financial year 2017-18, the
Company has gone for aggressive diversification in business.
Various new business verticals, namely, e-RaKAM, M3
(MSTC Metal Mandi), Retail Software, have been added to the
existing catalogue. Owing to the diversification a need for
development of skills of the employee was felt, therefore,
various training Programmes were conducted. The company
has trained a total of 75 employees on various topics through
both institutional and various customized training programs on
e-procurement, Operations and systems for its employees
with an objective to enhance the knowledge, competencies
and skill during the year.

STy UE WEY TewIeh F 8 ST, 2017 I YA Hiwd, STHH TehR § Jallehld o |
CMD called on Chief Secretary, Govt. of Assam on 8th August, 2017.
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Being in service industry, human resource has been a major
thrust area in the performance of the Company. Various MOU
targets pertaining to the development of the Human
Resources were completed successfully within stipulated time
period. Furthermore, 12(twelve) numbers of one week training
programmes on various topics were conducted in the ace
Institutes of India such as [IM’s and Institute of Indian Industry
for better learning.

Besides this, appraisal process of all the employees, quarterly
updating of their vigilance status on online portal and holding
of Departmental Promotion Committee took place within
specified timeline.

Also MSTC introduced an online recruitment for executives by
a reputed outside agency for a transparent and efficient
selection process.

Welfare of Weaker Sections

25 Management Trainees and 6 Assistant Managers were
recruited during the financial year; 9, 6 and 1 persons
belonged to OBC, SC and ST category respectively; of which
2(two) belong to PWD (VH). The directives in matters
concerning recruitment and promotion regarding the weaker
sections have been duly complied with. Other directives
issued from time to time regarding reservation, relaxation,
concession, etc. for the SC/ST/OBC/PWD candidates
pertaining to the policies and procedures of the Government
were duly observed. All Departmental Promotion Committees
and Selection Committees (in case of recruitment) constituted
during the year had representatives of SC/ST community.
During the year, 9 SC, 5 ST and 23 OBC employees of the
Company, were sponsored for training programs, both In-
house and Institutional training programs, out of which 3
employees were PWDs and 3 belonged to Minority.

All possible cooperation and assistance was provided to the
MSTC SC/ST Employees' Council, which function primarily to
safeguard the interest of the reserved section of employees of
the Company.

Empowerment of Women

MSTC is a Corporate Life Member of Forum of Women in
Public Sector (WIPS) and women employees were nominated
in the programs organized by WIPS. Internal Complaints
Committees constituted in all the offices of MSTC have been
functioning successfully. Periodical meetings and Complaint
redressal, awareness programs, etc. are also duly conducted
by the Committees.

During the year, 16 female employees were sponsored for
training, both external and in-house, to enable them to
undertake higher responsibilities in the Company.

Disclosure under section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

MSTC has in place a mechanism for prevention and redressal
of sexual harassment of women employees at the workplace
in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Complaints Committees (ICCs) have been setupin all
the offices of the Company for rendering necessary
assistance to and dealing with complaints, if any, of all the
women employees of the Company. All employees

(permanent, outsourced, trainees etc.) are covered under this
policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints
received and disposed off during each calendar year.

*No. of complaints received: Nil.
*No. of complaints disposed off: Nil.
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SC/ST/OBC/PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED/EX-SERVICEMEN STATUS AS ON 31-03-2018

e T HHAR] sfa =T T ST
Group Total Employee OBC GENERAL SC ST
g 3/Group A 213 52 (24.41%) 112(52.58%) 35(16.43%) | 14(6.57%)
e /Group B 18 0 (0%) 11(61%) 6(33.33%) 1(5.55%)
e WGroup C 86 18(20.9%) 49(56.97%) 16(18.60%) | 3(3.48%)
e </Group D 9 0(0%) 5(55.55%) 4(44.44%) 0(0%)
Fa Rl Total Employee 326 70(21.47%) 177(54.29%) 61(18.71%) | 18(5.52%)
31-03-2018 ! Jeu/Afgen =t feurfd / MALE/FEMALE AS ON 31-03-2018
TEW/MALE afectl/FEMALE FA/TOTAL
FRER/EX 173 40 213
TR-shrefTersh/N-EX 96 17 113
F/TOTAL 269 57 326
INEARGNEEI T k] Grievance Redressal Mechanism
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The company has an exclusive portal integrated in to the
corporate website www.mstcindia.co.in to register and
monitor the grievances online. The portal provides an unique
system generated code for the complainants to lodge and view
the progress of the grievances registered online. Some
grievances are also received at the CPGRAMS site and by
post.

A Grievance Committee is constituted at Head Office and
Grievance Cells have been constituted at the Regional and
Branch Offices. The grievances are settled/resolved after the
Competent Authority’s approval on the recommendation
made by the Grievance Committee. The Grievance
Committee makes recommendations after examination of the
grievances and obtaining comments of the concerned
department/region/ branch.

The Grievance Committee meets at periodical intervals to
review the cases.

The Centralized Public Grievance Redress and Monitoring
System (CPGRAMS) and Public Grievance site of the
Company are monitored regularly by the Head Office. There
are a Nodal officer and a Public Grievance officer in the Head
Office.
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Total 51 Grievances have been received during 01.4.2017 to
31.3.2018. Out of that 49 grievances have been redressed
and remaining 02 are under process.

Statement of Public Grievances for the period of
01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018

Grievances Grievances  Grievances  Grievances

outstanding registeredin redressedin outstanding
ason01.04.2017  2017-18 201718 ason 31.03.2018
NIL 51 49 2

Right to Information Act 2005

Provisions of RTI Act 2005 were complied with for processing
the RTI applications and appeals received in all offices of
MSTC. There are one Transparency Officer, one First
Appellate Authority, one CPIO, one Nodal Officer in MSTC
Head office and every region/branch has one PIO for
effectively processing the RTI applications received at various
locations of the Company.

All quarterly reports have been submitted on-line and reports
have been uploaded on CIC site. During 01.04.2017 to
31.3.2018, total 106 RTI applications and 30 First Appeals
have been received through online and by post also. Out of
that 102 RTI Applications and 29 Appeals have been disposed
ofand 2 RTl applications were rejected.

Remaining 2 RTl applications and 1 appeal are under process.
RTI applications/appeals can be received and disposed of
through RTI web portal namely https://rtionline.gov.in. RTI
Applications and Appeals are received offline and online which
are processed expeditiously.

Official Language

MSTC arranged National Hindi Seminar on Bhartendu Ki
Prasangikta, Aaj Ki Hindi and Bhavisya Me Hindi on
11.01.2018 at Kolkata. The seminar was inaugurated by
Hon’ble Minister of Steel, Chaudhary Birendra Singh in the
presence of Hon’ble Minister of Steel for State, Shri Vishnu
Deo Sai and other dignitaries. In this occasion, Hon’ble
Minister of Steel, Chaudhary Birendra Singh unveiled MSTC'’s
Hindi magazine “Sangati” along with Hon’ble Minister of Steel
for State, Shri Vishnu Deo Sai and others dignitaries.

Rajbhasha Trimas was inaugurated on 14th September 2017.
During this period, Hindi competitions and workshops were
organized in Head office as well in regional and branch offices.
Total 36 employees were awarded for winning in Hindi
competitions and for passing in Hindi examinations. In this
year, total 37 employees were nominated in Hindi
examinations conducted by Hindi Teaching Scheme,
Department of Official Language, Govt. of India.

The Chairman-cum-Managing Director attended TOLIC

meeting which inspired more and more implementation of
Hindiin the Company.
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Chaudhary Birender Singh, Hon’ble Minister of Steel launched the “M3” MSTC
Metal Mandi Mobile App at Steel Consumers’ Council Meet at Bangalore on 29"
June, 2018 in presence of Hon’ble Minister of State for Steel Shri Vishnu Deo
Sai, CMD, MSTC, senior executives of Ministry of Steel, senior executives of
Steel CPSEs and representatives of Steel Consumers.
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As per provisions of Official Language Rule, inspection of
progressive use of Hindi, submission of online Timahi report,
issuance of appreciation letter in Hindi to the promoted
employees and Hindi versions of different documents were
done.

ISO 9001:2008 certification of Hindi department was
upgraded to ISO 9001:2015. Official Language Act has been
complied with. Ministry of Steel and its Hindi Salahkar Samity
continuously provided their guidance about implementation of
Official Language Act.

On 12.08.2017, CMD MSTC Limited was awarded by the
Governor in the Prize distribution ceremony of TOLIC, Kolkata
for excellent performance in Official language implementation
inthe Company.

THTHET 7 feish 21.06.2018 &1 T, Wifq Te T4 o {41 & Hee W
T S G N SR AT T T AT fepam |

MSTC organised 4" International Yoga Day on 21.06.2018 with thrust on Yoga
for Health, Peace and Harmony.

Vigilance

The Vigilance setup of MSTC being headed by Chief Vigilance
Officer (CVO) is committed to enhancing efficiency and
transparency in the organization primarily through system
improvements, preventive and proactive vigilance.

During the year 2017-18, 9 routine inspections were carried
out in the Regional/Branch/Site offices on the ongoing
procedure/practice of e-auction activities. In addition, 2
surprise checks were carried out. 1 Departmental Inquiry was
disposed of, which resulted in punitive action against 1 official.
Complaints as received from MOS/CVC as well as other
sources were inquired and disposed off in time bound manner.
Such examinations/investigations have resulted in initiation of
various system improvement measures.

As per the directives of Central Vigilance Commission,
Vigilance Awareness Week-2017 has been observed in MSTC
Limited across the country w.e.f. 30.10.2017 to 04.11.2017
emphasizing the theme of “My Vision-Corruption Free
India” . During the week, in order to generate awareness,
educate and discuss transparency among officials/
stakeholders as well as general public to arrest the root cause
& threat of corruption and to promote good governance,
various activities were organized.
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1. Inauguration - The Vigilance Awareness Week
commenced with the administration of Integrity Pledge to
the employees by CMD, MSTC while inaugurating the
week on 30" October 2017.

2. Wide Publicity - =+ 1000 pamphlets distributed to MSTC
Employees, Visitors, Contractual Workers and
customers/principals with information on whistleblower
mechanism and other anti-corruption measures and they
were requested to take e-pledge. * The posters /banners
specially designed for VAW-2017 has been displayed in
prominent places across all offices. * Aspecial brochure on
the theme was unveiled highlighting the tool of preventive
vigilance such as Automation and Leveraging technology,
being envisaged by MSTC to remove the monopoly in
delivery of services and personal discretion. A total of 600
brochures were circulated to Govt. Departments, PSUs,
and Ministries for wider dissemination and awareness.
* Bulk e-mail has been forwarded to the scrap and coal
customers (70000 approx.) for enlisting support and
commitment to take the Integrity Pledge. Also, WhatsApp
and twitter account of MSTC has been extensively
engaged for spreading awareness.

3. Employees Competitions — i. Slogan Competition for
Employees of MSTC on the theme- “MY VISION-
CORRUPTION FREE INDIA”. ii. Essay Competition for
Employees of MSTC on the theme- “MY VISION-
CORRUPTION FREE INDIA”. iii. Quiz Competition for
Employees of MSTC on issues in Vigilance, CVC and
other Anti-corruption Laws, Policies, manuals and
guidelines of MSTC. iv. Elocution Competition for
Employees of MSTC.

4. Competitions in Schools and Colleges — i. Elocution
Competition, Creative writing competition and slogan
writing competition for students of St. James’ School,
Kolkata studying in Class Xl to XlI on topic “My Vision-
Corruption free India”. ii. Elocution Competition for
management students of batch 2015-17 & 2016-18 at
International Management Institute, Kolkata. iii.
Cartoon/Poster competition amongst the students of
Govt. Sarvodaya Bal Vidyalaya, New Delhi and Sri
Visvodaya Education Society, Visakhapatnam.

5. Integrity Club - Integrity Club has been constituted at St.
James’ School, Entally, Kolkata with a novel initiative of
ingraining the ethical values in the minds of school
students.

6. Orientation Program for employees of MSTC - A one day
orientation program for employees of MSTC was
organized in all offices focusing on Vigilance
Administration in PSUs, Conduct, Discipline & Appeal
Rules of MSTC and Common Irregularities.

7. Workshops/ Sensitization programs:

a. Workshop for middle level and senior level managers of
MSTC HQ on Delegation of Powers, Financial Powers and
Project/Contract Management.
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b. Seminar on CVC theme “My Vision-Corruption Free
India”, Concluding Ceremony and Prize distribution to
winners of events organized during the week on
04.11.2017.

8. Organization website has been used to propagate the
messages of CVC and encouraging citizens to take
e-pledge.

9. Stakeholders Meet — 1. Grievance Redressal Camps
organized with customers during the week at MSTC
offices to redress their issue. 2. Customer feedback
survey conducted in the camp.

10. Integrity Pact Meeting - A meeting on integrity pact was
chaired by Shri Asok Kumar Sinha, Independent External
Monitor (IEM), MSTC which was attended by CMD,
Director (Finance), CVO and other senior officials held at
the Head Office, MSTC, Kolkata on 04-11-2017.

4+ Preventive Vigilance/System Improvement

(@) MSTC has started procuring secondary items/materials
such as office stationeries & consumables, computer
peripherals through GEM portal.

(b) Purchases of items not offered through GEM portal are
being procured through e-procurement portal.

(c) Techno-commercial and Price Bids are opened online and
received from the bidders duly signed with digital signature
certificate (DSC). Tender fee and Bid Guarantee/ EMD are
being received through e-payment system.

(d) Bill Tracking System is being utilized for the purpose of
display/status of pending bills of contractors on the portal.

(e) Applications for recruitment are being received online.
Online examination introduced for recruitment to the entry
level.

(f) Pre-bid EMD/EMD are being received online and
subsequent refund of EMD to bidders of coal e-auctions/
scrap e-auctions through direct uploading of files on
bank’s server.
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MSTC organized National Hindi Congregation on 11th January, 2018 in presence of Chaudhary Birender Singh, Hon’ble Minister of Steel and Shri Vishnu Deo Sai, Hon’ble

Minister of State for Steel, CMD, MSTC and other dignitaries.
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Presentation by CMD, MSTC on Auto Shredding Plant at INDIA STEEL 2017.
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(g9) Purchase and Service Contract Manual formulated.

(h) Amendment of CDA Rules by prescribing timelines for

()

submission of written statement of defense by the charged
officer, providing requisitioned documents before the 10 by
the custodian(s) within one month of receipt of such
requisition and also for conducting the inquiry by the 10
within a period of six months from the date of receipt of
appointmentorders, etc.

Privilege given to super admin for changing the status of
the lot at post-bid stage has been reassessed.

System improvement suggestions: System improvement
suggestions were made in varied areas of organizational
activities:

Review of Accounts Manual.

Review of Risk Management Policy at intermittent
intervals.

Regular quantity and quality assessment by independent
third party for pledged materials lying at customer’s
premises.

Physical verification of Bank Guarantees submitted by the
contractors atrandom basis.

Improvement suggested in the operation module in varied
aspects such as registration of bidders, renewal of Selling
Agency Agreements, e-auction catalogue, receipt of EMD,
pre-bid EMD stipulation, monitoring the validity of bids
under Subject to Approval, unambiguous categorization of
lots, Acceptance Letter, Delivery Order, etc.
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4+ System Improvement Studies : Studies were taken in the
following areas:

Sl. Subject of Study
Fixed Asset management of MSTC.

N —~

Examination of Audit Reports for the year 2014-15 and
2015-16.

CSR Policy of MSTC and monitoring of projects.
Promotion & Transfer Policy of MSTC.
Standardization of NITs, Bid Documents etc.
Recruitment process in MSTC.

Monitoring the award of contract for undue delay.

© N o Ok w

Payment to the contractors.

9. Rotational Transfer Policy

10. Purchase & Service Contract Manual.
Directors Responsibility Statement

As required under the provisions of Section 134(5) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, the Board of Directors state that:

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards (INDAS) have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures.

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31.03.2018
and of the profit of the Company for the financial year 2017-18.
The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the year
ended 315t March, 2018 on a going concern basis.

freariaqed # 30 o7, 2017 %1 THUHEE & U Htes IRET 1 g |

Inauguration of new Office premises of MSTC in Thiruvananthapuram on 30th
August, 2017.

HuEet ¥ 9 3T, 2017 I G Wid, oTerd TR § Yehid i |
CMD called on Chief Secretary, Govt. of Meghalaya on 9th August, 2017.
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5. o 3T AR TH (27.07.2018 & Urell) T Afaa

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Shri B.B. Singh, Chairman-cum-Managing Director, Shri A.K.
Basu, Director (Finance) and Smt. Bhanu Kumar, Director
(Commercial) are whole time Directors of the Company. Shri
B.B. Singh is also acting as Chairman of Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited (FSNL) and Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd.
(MMRPL). Shri A. K. Basu is also acting as Director of Ferro
Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL) and Mahindra MSTC Recycling
Pvt. Ltd. (MMRPL).

During the year under review Shri Suraj Bhan and Shri Sunil
Barthwal ceased to be the Directors of the Company. The
Board places on its record their sincere gratitude for the
valuable guidance and support rendered by them during their
tenure.

Smt. Bhanu Kumar, was appointed as Director (Commercial)
w.e.f 10.10.2017.

Dr. Promodita Sathish, Economic Advisor, Ministry of Steel
and Smt. Ruchika Chaudhry Govil, Joint Secretary, Ministry of
Steel, Govt. of India were appointed as Government Nominee
Director w.e.f. 15.06.2017 and 11.10.2017 respectively.

Shri G. R. Aloria, Ex Chief Secretary, State Govt. of Gujarat,
Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan, retired academician were appointed
as Independent Directors on the Board of the Company w.e.f
06.09.2017.

Dr. R. S. Yeli, retired academician and Smt. Pravati Parida,
advocate and social activist were also appointed as
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company w.e.f.
09.03.2018.

The Company has received the necessary declaration from all
the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the
criteria prescribed for Independent Directors under the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

MSTC being a Government Company, the appointment and
evaluation of directors are done by Administrative Ministry.

A brief profile of the Directors proposed to be appointed at the
ensuing AGM is provided in the Corporate Governance report
section.

The details of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
as on the date of this report are as follows;
SI KMP

No.

1. Shri B.B. Singh

Designation

Chairman-cum-
Managing Director

N

Shri A.K. Basu

3. Smt. Bhanu Kumar
(w.e.f. 10.10.2017)

4. Shri S. K. Ray (upto 27.07.2018)

5. Shri Ajay Kumar Rai
(w.e.f. 27.07.2018)

Director (Finance)

Director
(Commercial)

Company Secretary

Company Secretary
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Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during
the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business. Hence, the provision of
section 188 in the Companies Act, 2013, as amended are not
attracted. Thus disclosures in Form AOC-2 are not required.
Further there are no related party transactions with the
directors and KMP or other designated persons, which may
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee for approval.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is seriously committed to social upliftment. In
line with the Companies Act, 2013 and also DPE guidelines,
the Company has a CSR Committee which functions as per
the Govt. guidelines and the Company CSR policy. The CSR
Policy of the Company has been approved by the Board and is
hosted on the website of the Company.

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as required
under Rule 8 Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 is placed as Annexure IV.

Secretarial Audit

In compliance with Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Shri
Saumayo Jyoti Seal, practicing Company Secretary has been
appointed as the Secretarial Auditor for the year 2017-18. The
Report of the Secretarial Auditor as prescribed is enclosed as
Annexure V to this report.

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, has appointed M/s.
D. K. Chhajer & Co, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the year 2017-18. The report of
the Auditors is attached to the Annual Accounts of the
Company. Management replies on the comments/
observations of the Auditors are placed at Annexure VI to the
Board’s Report.

Comments by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India (CAG)

The comments of the CAG on the Annual Accounts of the
Company in terms of Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act,
2013, shall be deemed as part of the Board’s Report.

Number of Meetings of the Board

The Board met five times during the FY 2017-18. The details of
the number of the meetings of the Board of Directors held
during the year 2017-18 form a part of the Corporate
Governance Report.
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Disqualification of Directors

Pursuant to Section 164(2) of the Act and Rule 14(1) of
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, all the Directors have intimated that, they stand
free from any disqualification from being a Director.

Notice of Interest by the Directors

Pursuant to Section 184(1) of the Act and Rule 9(1) of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
all the Directors have given Notice of Interest by the Director.

Committees of the Board

MSTC has constituted four committees of the Board viz., Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and Share
Transfer Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Shri G. R. Aloria,
Independent Director, as Chairman, Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan,
Independent Director and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt.
nominee Director as members.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the Company is supposed to have a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. Being a Govt. of India
Company, the nomination/appointment of Director is made by
the Govt. of India. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee constitutes of Shri G. R. Aloria, Independent
Director, as Chairman, Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan, Independent
Director and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt. nominee Director as
members.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

In compliance of Section 135(1) of the Act, read with Rule 5 of
the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, the Company had
constituted the CSR Committee of the Board with Dr. T. V.
Muralivallabhan, Independent Director as Chairman, Shri A.
K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt.
nominee Director as members.

Share Transfer Committee

Constitution of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee as
provided under Section 178(5) of the Act, do not apply to the
Company as the number of shareholders are below one
thousand. However, the Share Transfer Committee is in place
with Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Smt. Bhanu
Kumar, Director (Commercial) as members.

Details of the above Committees are provided under corporate
governance section forming part of the Board’s Report.
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Subsidiary Company and Joint Venture
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited is the 100% Subsidiary of the
Company. The Operational result of two years is given
below:

(% o= #)
2017-18  2016-17
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(X in lakh)
2017-18 2016-17
Total Revenue 34,030 32,830
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 1,304 3,622
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 807 2,375

The detailed information relating to the subsidiary Company in
form AOC-1 in compliance of Section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules forms
part of Annual Report.

Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd

MSTC had entered into JVA with Mahindra Intertrade Limited
and formed a Joint Venture Company “Mahindra MSTC
Recycling Pvt. Ltd.”.

Consolidated Financial Results

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, your Corporation has
prepared the Consolidated Financial Statement for the group,
including its subsidiary and joint venture and attached with
your Companies report.

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the
Financial Position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company that have occurred between
the close of the financial year ended 315t March 2018 and the
date of Board’s Report.

Details of Significant and material order passed by the
Regulators, Courts and Tribunals

No significant and material orders has been passed by the
Regulators, Courts and Tribunals impacting the going concern
status and the Company’s operation in future.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Details of loan, Guarantees and Investments covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder are given in the notes to the financial
statements.

Public Deposits

Your company has not accepted any deposits under the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2018.

Compliance of DPE Guidelines and Policies

The guidelines and policies issued by the Department of
Public Enterprise from time to time are duly complied with by
the Company.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

Your Corporation complies with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSl).
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Internal Financial Controls

Your Corporation has put in place adequate internal financial
controls for ensuring the efficient conduct of its business in
adherence with laid-down policies; the safeguarding of its
assets; the prevention and detection of frauds and errors; the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records; and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, which is
commensurate with the operations of the Corporation.

M/s. M.C. Bhandari & Co., Chartered Accountants was the
Internal Auditor of the Company for the year and their reports
are put up to the management at regular intervals and
summarized statement of important issues are placed before
the Audit Committee.
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MSTC Limited conferred with the “Ispat Rajbhasa Special Award” for the year
2017-18
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A Swachhata programme held at MSTC during the Swachh Bharat Drive from
15th September to 5th October 2017

Annexure: |

Annexure to Board’s Report

Particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption,
foreign exchange earnings and outgo as per Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, as read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The Company has upgraded its Server to the latest IPV6
which consumes much less electrical power and conserves
energy. Being IT oriented Company technological upgradation
is a continuous process in MSTC and has been fully achieved
by your Company.

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

The total foreign exchange outgo during the year 2017-18 for
import of goods and others was ¥ 2,25,303 lakh as against
T 1,92,251 lakh in the year 2016-17. The Company has
earned ¥ 1.00 lakh in foreign exchange during the year 2017-
18. In the previous year i.e. 2016-17, the foreign exchange
earningwas< 1.00 lakh.

Annexure: Il
Corporate Governance
MSTC’s Policy on Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance practices to provide for an
environment in achieving the objectives of the Company have
been the basic management philosophy of your Company.

All out efforts are made for transparency and integrity at all
levels of management in order to retain confidence reposed in
its management by the stakeholders.
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MSTC aspires to follow high ethical standards, commitment to
values while doing business, maintain transparency, conduct
due diligence in commercial contracts and follows best
governing practices. The guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises as issued
on May 2010, have been complied with in the year 2017-18
and shall be complied with in future also.

Board of Directors
Composition of Board of Directors

The Board of MSTC comprises of combination of Executive
(Whole Time Directors) and Non-Executive Directors (Which
includes Independent Directors and Government Nominee
Directors). Independent Directors are eminent persons having
vast experience in the field of economics, administration etc.

As on 318t March, 2018, the Board of MSTC comprises of 9
Directors which includes 3 Executive Directors (Whole-Time
Directors) and 6 Non—Executive Directors, out of which 4 are
Independent Directors and 2 are Government Nominee
Directors.

The Board of Directors of MSTC Ltd. presently consists of Shri
B. B. Singh, Chairman-cum-Managing Director, Shri A. K.
Basu, Director (Finance) and Smt. Bhanu Kumar, Director
(Commercial), who are whole time Directors. Shri B. B. Singh
is also acting as Chairman of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
(FSNL) and Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd. (MMRPL).
ShriA. K. Basu is also acting as Director of Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited (FSNL) and Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd.
(MMRPL). Smt. Ruchika Chaudhry Govil, Joint Secretary,
Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India and Dr. Promodita Sathish,
Economic Advisor, Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India are
Government nominee Directors. Shri G. R. Aloria, Ex Chief
Secretary, State Govt. of Gujarat, Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan &
Dr. R. S. Yeli, retired academicians and Smt. Pravati Parida,
Advocate and social activist are Independent Directors on the
Boardason 31.3.2018.

Brief information of the newly appointed Directors
Whole time Directors

During the year, Smt. Bhanu Kumar, erstwhile General
Manager, Northern Regional Office, MSTC has been
appointed as Director (Commercial) of the Company w.e.f.
10.10.2017.

Govt. Nominee Directors

During the year, Smt. Ruchika Chaudhry Govil, Joint
Secretary, Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India has been appointed
as Govt. Nominee Director in place of Shri Sunil Barthwal,
erstwhile Joint Secretary, Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India w.e.f.
11.10.2017. Dr. Promodita Sathish, Economic Adviser,
Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India has been appointed as Govt.
Nominee Director in place of Shri Suraj Bhan, erstwhile
Economic Adviser, Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India w.e.f.
15.06.2017.
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Rashtriya Ekta Diwas - National Unity Day celebrated on 31st October, 2017
with the Directors, executives and employees of MSTC at Kolkata Head Office.
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52nd Annual General Meeting of MSTC Limited held at Kolkata on 21.09.2017.

Independent Directors

During the year, Shri G. R. Aloria, Ex Chief Secretary, State
Govt. of Gujarat and Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan, retired
academician, have been appointed as Independent Directors
on the Board w.e.f. 06.09.2017. Dr. R. S. Yeli, retired
academician and Smt. Pravati Parida, Advocate and social
activist have been appointed as Independent Directors on the
Board w.e.f.09.03.2018.

Remuneration to the Directors

CMD, and other whole time Directors, being in whole time
employment, are entitled to remuneration as per the terms of
the appointment issued by the Govt. of India. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee determines the Performance
Related Pay payable to whole time Directors in line with the
Govt. guidelines.

forftarad 2017-18 % SR UlehTfcieh fQeTRT ol SFTaT fohar 7o arfsfies fregan s :

The Remuneration paid to the Whole Time Directors during the financial year 2017-18 is as under:

ELEC Bl qEAH EGERIIERC TSR = ¥
| ™ qeETd H et ey | 2§
SI Name Designation Salaries,Incentive | Post-Employment | Other Long | Amountin
no. & Allowances Benefit term Benefit |  Total
1 ot <. <. fig FAY-He-TaY e
Shri B.B.Singh | Chairman-cum-Managing Director 4200000 1000000 900000 6100000
2. MW F 99 e (fam)
Shri A.K. Basu Director (Finance) 4000000 1000000 400000 5400000
3. Aot 9 FER frewer (anfe)
Smt. Bhanu Kumar Director (Commercial) 1200000 900000 700000 2800000
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The Independent Directors are not entitled to any
remuneration other than sitting fees for attending Board
and Committee Meetings. Sitting fees are not given to
Government nominee Directors

Details of sitting fees paid to Independent Directors
during the financial year 2017-18 are:

SINo. Name Amountin¥
1. ShriG. R. Aloria ** 1,05,000
2 Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan ** 1,65,000

3. Dr.R.S.Yeli* —
4. Smt. Pravati Parida* —
**w.e.f.06.09.2017

*w.e.f.09.03.2018
Board Meetings

During the financial year 2017-18, 5 Board meetings were
held. The dates of Board meeting are fixed well in advance and
intimated to the Board members so as to enable the directors
to plan their schedule accordingly. The Agenda papers are
circulated to the Directors well in advance before the meeting.
However, certain important proposals are also tabled at the
Board meeting with the approval of the Chairman and consent
of Directors. The agenda placed before the Board inter-alia
includes the following;

* Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.
» Capital budgets and any updates.

* Financial results for the Company and its operating
divisions or business segments.

*  Minutes of meetings of Audit committee and other
committees of the Board.

* Theinformation on recruitment and remuneration of senior
officers just below the Board level, including appointment
or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary.

* Show cause, demand prosecution notices and penalty
notices which are materially important.

» Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any
material effluent or pollution problems.

* Any material default in financial obligations to and by the
Company, or substantial non-payment for goods sold by
the Company.

* Any issue, which involves possible public or product
liability claims of substantial nature, including any
judgment or order which, may have passed strictures on
the conduct of the Company or taken an adverse view
regarding other enterprises that can have negative
implications on the Company.
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» Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

» Transactions that involve substantial payment towards
goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property.

« Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions.
Any significant development in Human Resources/
Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement,
implementation of Voluntary Retirement Scheme, etc.

e Sale of material nature, of investments, subsidiaries,
assets, which is notin normal course of business.

» Details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps
taken by management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement, if material.

* Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory requirements
and shareholders service such as non-payment of
dividend, delay in share transfer, etc.

Directors’ Attendance Record

Record of Attendance of the Directors during the Board
Meetings of MSTC Ltd. held inthe F.Y.2017-18.

Board Board Meeting Shri B.B. Shri A.K. Smt. Bhanu

Meeting No. Date Singh Basu Kumar
275 19.05.2017 P P X
276 28.07.2017 P P X
277 08.11.2017 P P P
278 12.12.2017 P A P
279 06.02.2018 P P P

Board Board Smt. Ruchika Dr. Shri G. R.

Meeting Meeting Chaudhry Promodita Aloria

No. Date Govil Sathish
275 19.05.2017 X X
276 28.07.2017 X P X
277 08.11.2017 P P P
278 12.12.2017 P P P
279 06.02.2018 P A P
Board Board Dr.T. V. Dr. R.S. Smt. Pravati
Meeting  Meeting Muralivallabhan  Yeli Parida
No. Date
275 19.05.2017 X X X
276  28.07.2017 X X X
277  08.11.2017 P X X
278 12.12.2017 P X X
279  06.02.2018 P X X
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Board Board Shri Sunil Shri Suraj
Meeting Meeting Barthwal Bhan
No. Date Upto 10.10.17 Upto 14.06.17
275 19.05.2017 P P
276 28.07.2017 P X
277 08.11.2017 X X
278 12.12.2017 X X
279 06.02.2018 X X

P — present, A — absent and X — not in office

Apart from CMD, Director (Finance) and Nominee of President
of India none of the Directors had attended the last AGM held
on 21st September2017.

Directorship held by the Directors

ShriB.B. Singh, CMD, MSTC, is also holding Chairmanship of
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (MMRPL) and
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL). Shri A.K. Basu, Director
(Finance) is also Director in MMRPL and FSNL. Smt. Ruchika
Chaudhry Govil, Govt. nominee Director is also Director in
Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited (RINL) and Delhi Gymkhana
Club Limited. Smt. Pravati Parida, Independent Director is
also Director of Prachurya Infra Projects Pvt. Ltd.

Committees of the Board
MSTC has constituted four committees of the Board viz, Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and Share
Transfer Committee.

LEELS b[ ASTC)

ru-gATTY

HDRHSHDP ON

UNLOCKING VALUE THROUGH e-COMMERCE
a. SUPPORTING AGRI-HORTI SECTOR THROUGH e- -RaMAM.

THUHEE T AT % ERE H 31 3T, 2018 i ' S-hIAE o AIEAT § Y AL TF $-ThH & A0 9 Hiu-anrart & sl §edi’ ' 7 W Th R H e
fora, STRT AT SR T ST Hll, ot oy <a | g sifafyr o w9 § 3ufeerd gu o)
MSTC conducted a Workshop on “Unlocking value through e-Commerce & supporting Agri-Horti sector through e-RakKAM” on 31st August, 2018 in Imphal, Manipur,
where the Hon’ble Union Steel Minister of State, Shri Vishnu Deo Sai was the Chief Guest.
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Launch of the e-portal developed by MSTC in association with APEDA for sale of organic produce, by Shri Radha Mohan Singh, Hon’ble Minister of Agriculture,
Gouvt. of India, in presence of Hon’ble Chief Minister of Sikkim and Agriculture Minister, Govt. of UP at Organic World Congress 2017.
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Pursuantto Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the Company is supposed to have a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. Being a Govt. of India
Company, the nomination/appointment of Director is made by
the Govt. of India.

In compliance of Section 135(1) of the Act, read with Rule 5 of
the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, Company has
constituted CSR Committee of the Board.

Constitution of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee as
provided under Section 178(5) of the Act, do not apply to the
Company as number of shareholders is below one thousand.
However, the Share Transfer Committee is in place.

i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Shri G. R. Aloria,
Independent Director, as Chairman, Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan,
Independent Director and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt.
nominee Director as members.

The Audit Committee complies with the guidelines issued by
DPE on Corporate Governance relating to Audit Committee.

The Terms of Reference of Audit Committee covers all matters
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia includes
the following:

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process
and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and
credible;

;. JMSTC
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2. Reviewing with management the quarterly and annual
financial statements alongwith related party transactions,
if any, before submission to the Board;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions
ofthe Company with related parties;

5. Reviewing with the management and statutory and
internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial
statements and auditor's report thereon;

7. Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management
policies.

Attendance of the Directors in the Audit Committee Meetings

of MSTC Ltd. heldinthe F.Y.2017-18.

Meeting Meeting Shri G.R. Dr.T.V. Dr. Promodita

No. Date Aloria Muralivallabhan Sathish
45 31.10.2017 P P P
46 27.02.2018 P P A

P —present, A—absentand X —notin office

feAie 18.05.2018 i Y& Wiwd, STifeen TR ¥ s1eet Ud way vk ot
|
CMD meeting Chief Secretary, Govt. of Odisha on 18.05.2018.

e 30.10.2017 & 04.11.2017 T TSI Fhal STTEhdl e # e,
T Tehdl SIRRT, FrUIerh] T HH=TE! i SUfefa § THueers & 4t T
a1, T arel weioareh g S (YRRl ) <Rl STHTERT |

Unveiling of Brochure by Shri A. K. Sinha, Independent External Monitor of

MSTC in the presence of Directors, CVO, executives and employees at
Vigilance Awareness Week celebrated w.e.f. 30.10.2017 to 04.11.2017.
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ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Pursuantto Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the Company is supposed to have a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. Being a Govt. of India
Company, the nomination/appointment of Director is made by
the Govt. of India. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee constitutes of Shri G. R. Aloria, Independent
Director, as Chairman, Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan, Independent
Director and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt. nominee Director as
members.

The Committee functions as per DPE guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued in May 2010 and recommends PRP to
whole time employees including Directors. This complies with
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

Being a Government of India Company nomination/
appointment is made by the Government of India.
Remuneration of the employees is as per DPE, Government of
India guidelines.

Attendance of the Directors in the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee Meetings of MSTC Ltd. held in
the F.Y. 2017-18.

Meeting  Meeting ShriG.R. Dr.T.V. Dr. Promodita

No. Date Aloria Muralivallabhan Sathish
1" 30.10.2017 P P P
12 27.02.2018 P P A

P —present, A—absentand X —notin office

iii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

In compliance of Section 135(1) read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, the Company had
constituted the CSR Committee of the Board with Dr. T. V.
Muralivallabhan, Independent Director as Chairman, Shri A.
K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt.
nominee Director as members.

Attendance of the Directors in the CSR Committee Meetings
of MSTC Ltd. held in the F.Y.2017-18.

Meeting Meeting Dr.T.V. Shri Dr. Promodita Shri  Shri

No. Date Muralivallabhan A. K.  Sathish ~ Suraj B.B.

Basu Bhan Singh
Upto
14.06.17

16 05.05.2017 X P X P

17 12.10.2017 P P P X X

18 30.10.2017 P P P X X

19 27.12.2017 P P P X X

20 22.03.2018 P P A X X

P — present, A— absent and X — not in office
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iv) Share Transfer Committee

Constitution of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee as
provided under Section 178(5) of the Act, do not apply to the
Company as the number of shareholders are below one
thousand. However, the Share Transfer Committee is in place
with Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Smt. Bhanu
Kumar, Director (Commercial) as members.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to all the
Committees constituted by the Board.

Code of Conduct

A Code of Conduct for all Board members and designated
senior Management of MSTC Ltd. have been laid down in
accordance with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance by
DPE. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the
Company www.mstcindia.co.in. All the Board members and
designated senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration signed by
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to this effect is enclosed at
the end of this report.

sifem i afifer | St & fem, fafyr, Tom oit weg=h o1 faeror femgar &

The details of day, date, venue and timings of the last three Annual General Meetings held are as follows:

YR 3k EIE] fem si fafar LS p) i gu faemm
T .

General Venue Day and date Time No. of special

Meeting resolutions passed

52 =t afiien

HERT §3% 2251, 3= SR 9 a9 U, RIAs-700 020 21fqaw=R, 2017 geeafdar 11.00 &=

52nd Annual 225C, Acharya Jagadish Chandra Bose Road, 21st September, 2017 11.00AM -~

General Meeting Kolkata-700 020 Thursday

51 =f anfiien 2251, 3T=mE SRR =% a9 TS, Fhiash-700 020 28fawr, 2016 JHaR 11.00 ==t

HIER 93

51st Annual 225C, Acharya Jagadish Chandra Bose Road, 28thSeptember, 2016,

General Meeting  Kolkata-700 020 Wednesday 1.00AM 1

50 ot afties 2255, 37 SR 9% a9 U, HIAR-700 020  14fqaw), 2015 9F&R 11.00 51

HIER 43

50th Annual 225C, Acharya Jagadish Chandra Bose Road, 14t September, 2015 11.00AM -

General Meeting  Kolkata-700 020

Monday
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53 Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company
will be held on 26" September, 2018 at 11.00 A.M. at the
registered office of the Company at 225 C, Acharya Jagadish
Chandra Bose Road, Kolkata-700 020.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The Company has appointed M/s. C. B. Management
Services (P) Ltd. as its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for
all matters relating to shares both in physical as well in
dematerialised mode. However, documents relating to shares
are also received at the Company's registered office at 225-C,
A.J.C.Bose Road, Kolkata-700020.

Share Transfer System

The transfer of shares in physical form is processed and
completed by M/s. C B Management Services (P) Ltd. within a
period of 15 days from the date of receipt thereof, provided all
the documents are in order. In case of shares in electronic
form, the transfers are processed by the NSDL/CDSL through
respective depository participants.

There were no complaints pending ason 31.03.18.
Corporate Identity Number (CIN):

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies
(RoC) in the State of West Bengal, India. The Corporate
Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is U27320WB1964G01026211.

Demat ISIN Number of Equity Shares for NSDL and CDSL :

The Company’s shares are dematerialized with NSDL and
CDSL. The ISIN no. for NSDL and CDSL is INE255X01014.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has separate Risk Management Policy for
Marketing and e-Commerce, approved by the Board of
Directors, which are reviewed from time to time by the Board.

Fraud Prevention Policy

The Company has a Fraud Prevention Policy approved by the
Board of Directors which is reviewed from time to time by the
Board. The policy is available at the Company website.

Whistle Blower Scheme

The Company has a Whistle Blower Scheme approved by the
Board of Directors which is reviewed from time to time by the
Board. The scheme is available atthe Company website.

Citizen’s Charter

The Company has a Citizen’s Charter approved by the Board
of Directors which is reviewed from time to time by the Board.
The charteris available at the Company website.

Disclosures as per Corporate Governance Guidelines

1. There is no materially significant related party transaction
that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company.
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Installation of Tubewell by MSTC at a primary school in Howrah, West Bengal

under CSR initiative 2017-18.

2. No non-compliance by the Company has been
observed/reported. No statutory authority has issued any
strictures or levied penalty or any matter related to any
guidelines issued by the Government during last three
years.

3. The Company has formulated a whistle blower scheme in
line with Government guidelines duly approved by Board.
No person has been denied personal access to Audit
Committee Minutes and Company has protected whistle
blower from adverse personal action.

4. The Corporate Governance guidelines have been
complied with and a separate Compliance Report on
Corporate Governance is placed as Annexure to Board’s
Report.

5. All Presidential guidelines have been complied with by the
Company for the year and also during last 3 years.

6. No items of expenditure have been debited in books of
accounts, which are not for the purpose of business.

7. No expenses are incurred which are personal in nature for
the Board of Directors and top Management.

8. The Administrative expenses are 27% of the Total
expenses.

9. The financial results are available in the website of the
Company i.e. www.mstcindia.co.in. From time to time they
are also published in corporate advertisements.

Address for Correspondence:
Company Secretary

MSTC Limited

225-C,AJC Bose Road
Kolkata-700020

Tel.No.:(033) 2287-9627
Fax:(033)2287-8547

o - o

THTEEH! 7 HOHAR T8e 2017-18 & siarta qd fagargy, ufeem st & ga¥
Tiiet & fef Tt w6t fr-geen faferear Ja1 weH w3 ¥ Hiered Afedwe 39 %
foru forr droor o1 et fopam

MSTC funded Mobile Medical Van to render free medical service to poor
patients in remote villages of East Midnapore, West Bengal under CSR
initiative 2017-18.
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MSTC Limited Kolkata has been conferred with the "Ispat Rajbhasa Special
Award" by Ministry of Steel, Govt. Indian for excellent work in Hindi Language.
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MSTC has been conferred the "Kolkata Best Employer Brand Awards 2017"
by World HRD Congress.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Company’s Business

MSTC has two core business segments namely e-commerce
& trading. MSTC plays a very important role as a service
provider in e-commerce and is a market leader in this sector. It
has the distinction of serving majority of Central/PSUs/State
Govt. Departments and a few Private Institutions for providing
transparent, fair & seamless e-Commerce services to its
clients.

Of late, MSTC has forayed into Recycling Sector and Joint
Venture formation with Mahindra Intertrade Limited is a step in
thatdirections.

A. E-Commerce Business

MSTC has become a major standalone e-commerce service
provider in the country. MSTC is attempting new and diverse
lines of business such as tea, sago, gorgon nut (makhana),
black-pepper, pineapple, hill-grass in agri-products, tendu
leaves, timber, sal seed in forest products, human hair, fly-ash
etc. Apart from this MSTC has also undertaken the e-auction
of land, apartment, banks’ NPAs and also assets under DRT
etc.

E-auction of sand Mining blocks in UP and exim-products of
IOCL have been the signature events in the recent past.
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Selling Agency Business

For a long period of time now, MSTC is acting as the selling
agent of a large number of government departments/PSUs for
disposal of scrap, surplus stores, old Plant & Machinery, e-
waste, hazardous items, obsolete items, etc. MSTC’s
processes enable the sellers to achieve their annual revenue
generation target from such disposal activities. MSTC offers
complete package of services from preparation of the auction
catalogue to the issuance of delivery order.

E-Sales

Starting with sale of coal through e-auction way back in 2004,
MSTC has been developing different modules of e-auction to
cater to the various needs of different sellers of items. Besides
coal, MSTC is selling other minerals like manganese ore, iron
ore, lignite, chrome ore etc. and various other products, raw
pet coke, pet coke, human hair etc. MSTC is a nominated
agency for all major mineral blocks and minor mineral blocks in
few states.

E-Procurement

In e-procurement, MSTC provides e-Tender and e-Reverse
auction services backed by mandatory STQC certificate for
quality requirements. Although, MSTC made a modest
beginning in FY 2013-14, it has made a significant growth in
the subsequent years and is poised for exponential growth in
future. The system complies with the guidelines framed by
STQC for quality and security checks.

E-Solutions

During 2017-18, MSTC has delivered certain key e-bidding
packages for various Ministries of Government of India. The
DEEP portal became fully operational for medium term PPA
and PPAs worth more than one lakh MW was settled through
this portal. MSTC completed the balance transaction under
DDUGJY scheme for bulk procurement of transformers,
conductors and cables for various DISCOMs all over the
country. During the last fiscal, MSTC introduced the e-bidding
platform for tariff based competitive bidding for selection of
inter-state transmission service provider. MSTC also
successfully developed and executed the bidding for
discovered small oil & gas fields for Ministry of Petroleum &
Natural Gas.

MSTC developed specialized portal services for a flagship
scheme of Govt. Of India as Ude Desh ka Aam Naagrik
(UDAN) which has brought laurels for the Govt. in Civil Aviation
Sector.

a. EXIM Portal for Petroleum Industry

The main problem faced by the petroleum companies is the
lack of a well-functioning market-determined price discovery
system. In the traditional mode of export & import of products,
the competition is not getting generated and therefore the fair
market price is not discovered. This results in the draining out
of financial resources of the petroleum companies.
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For better price discovery, IOCL has appointed MSTC Limited
for developing online platform for their Export & Import
activities. The export module consists of the e-tendering and
forward auction. The bidders first submit their tender price,
which is opened by IOCL and subsequently the forward
auction is triggered for further improvement in price. Likewise
inthe import the e-tendering is followed by e-reverse auction.

This export and import module, which is first of its kind in India,
is a niche product developed in collaboration of IOCL, for the
petroleum industries designed & developed by MSTC. The
entire process of this online platform for Export & Import of
petroleum products is very complex and the same takes care
of every aspect of the export & import. This platform has been
designed to handle export & import of various petroleum
products like HSD, gasoline, benzene, bitumen, Naphtha, etc.

b. e-RaKAM (e-Rastriya Kishan Agri Mandi) Portal

MSTC Ltd has launched a nationwide electronic portal —
eRAKAM for trading in the agriculture produces. The online
trading platform which primarily deals in food grains,
vegetables, fruits, spices and all agriculture related
commodities and connected farmers directly with consumers,
has launched forward trading in pineapple, ginger among a
number of other such commodities to make the platform
successful. Various agricultural produces like pineapple,
ginger, pulses, litchi, etc. have been auctioned successfully
through this portal.

c. Online Draw System for selection of LPG Dealership

Online Draw System is the process to select the applicants out
of the eligible applicants, in secured and transparent manner,
without any human intervention. The current system, online
applications are requested from the interested candidate and
then from these candidates, eligible candidates are allowed to
take part in the draw. This software is used in events to
conduct online draws and display the names of the winners on
the screen. The system is easy to use and ready for more
complex draws. The application is developed with random
number generation algorithm for conducting on-line
computerized draw of lots (Online Computerized Draw
System) by selecting only one eligible candidate at each time
out of the total eligible applicants. Shuffling will occur for the
names of the applicants along with their details in random
order at the press of a button. Visualization of the shuffling
process for display on the screenis there.

MSTC has developed e-procurement services providing end-
to-end solution to NTPL for their purchases of coal. In addition,
MSTC has developed and implemented e-reverse auction
portal for imported Thermal Coal which has made import of
coal easy, hassle free and economical. NTPL has utilized the
system for procurement of 2.4 million tons of coal and
immensely benefited by reducing their cost of material. Taking
a cue from this, other clients have also sought for the similar
services of MSTC.
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E-Commerce business constitutes about 89% (91% in 2016-
17) of the total volume of business of the Company during FY
2017-18 and has the potential to grow exponentially. It
contributed 65% (74% in 2016-17) of the total operational
income.

B. Trading Business

In trading business, which constituted 11% (9% in 2016-17) of
the total volume of business during FY 2017-18, MSTC acts as
a facilitator for procurement of raw material for secondary steel
producers and petrochemical industry on behalf of buyers and
charge mark-up on percentage basis.

This business contributed 35% (26% in 2016-17) of the total
operational income of the Company.

The trading division is engaged in import as well as domestic
sourcing of bulk industrial raw material for actual users as well
as traders. This division looks after sourcing, purchase and
sale of industrial raw materials like Heavy Melting Scrap, Low
Ash Metallurgical Coke, HR Coil, Naptha, Crude Oil, Coking
Coal, Steam Coal etc. on behalf of various industries. Though
its activities are confined to mainly Trade Financing at the
moment, MSTC aspires to become a full-fledged Trading
House in the near future.

The business module followed by MSTC involves entering into
an Agreement with the Organisation (Customer) specifying
the commodities/raw materials which MSTC will import or
procure from indigenous sources. Security Deposit is
collected from the Customer. The Service Charge collected is
a percentage of the actual procurement value. On signing the
agreement, the Customer indents its requirements and the
actual sourcing is done. The material thus procured either by
way of import or indigenous mode is pledged back to MSTC
and is keptin the custody of a third party custodian. Thereafter,
the Customer lifts the material on cash and carry basis after
due authorization by MSTC to the custodian.

MSTC has also developed another scheme under which
procurement is done backed by BG from the Customer.
Customers who have sanctioned BG limits can use the same
to procure raw materials / commodities for their projects or for
trading. In this model, MOA is signed with the Customer after
collecting SD. Procurement is done on behalf of the
Customers backed by 110% BG opened on any Scheduled
Bank. The payment is released to the Supplier by way of
LC/RTGS in facilitator mode for import or domestic
procurement. The material is directly shipped to the customer
thereby eliminating the need for storage which results in
saving on account of warehouse and custodian charges.

Trading division has contributed significantly to the top line as
well as the bottom line. The Service charge earned from this
segmentwas 10,540 lakh during the year.
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Import of Thermal Coal

This line of business was started in order to meet the demand
forimported thermal coal by the various power utilities in India.
MSTC has been supplying imported thermal coal to such
buyers on door delivery basis. MSTC participates in the
tenders floated by the buyers for supply of imported thermal
coal through its business associates on back-to-back basis.
The business associates are empanelled through an open
tender by MSTC. MSTC has successfully supplied 5.61 lakhs
MT of imported thermal coal valued at ¥ 27,215 lakh this year
against 21.2 lakh MT valued at ¥ 77,260 lakh in the previous
year.

The demand for imported thermal coal has shrunk in recent
times due to increased domestic production. This has resulted
in reduction in the quantity of Coal imported during the year.
Since MSTC’s markup is based on percentage basis of the
price of imported coal, there was reduction in the service
charge income due to the fall in the quantum of imports.

The total performance of Trading Division during FY 2017-18
stands at39,35,181 lakh.

C. Recycling:

MSTC’s foray into recycling sector has formed a Joint Venture
Company “Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd.” with
Mahindra Intertrade Ltd., now known as Mahindra Accello to
set up the first Auto Shredding Plant in India, for which input
raw materials like condemned automobiles, white goods, etc.
are required.

A collection and dismantling centre with state of the art
technology has been set up in Greater Noida as a supply
feedstock for the main auto shredding plant. Foundation work
for the shearer cum baler in the plant is nearing completion.
Power connection of Noida Power Company Ltd. is going on.
Vehicles are already procured from individual customers,
OEMs, Government auctions and institutions and dismantled
in plant. Certificate of Destruction has been issued to the
customer for all the vehicles. Deregistration process has
started for these vehicles.

MSTC is also conducting auctions for scrap goods generated
in the collection centre.

Diversification of Growth and future developments

MSTC in association with the Ministry of Road Transport and
Highways, Ministry of Heavy Industries, Society of Indian
Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM) and other such bodies has
taken up for enactment of a Law for incentivizing compulsory
scrapping of End of Life Vehicles as existing in other
developed and developing countries. In the near future, Govt.
of Indiais coming up with a policy in this regard.

Future Growth and Development

MSTC has developed its e- shopping portal namely -“M3”
MSTC Metal Mandi a virtual market place providing B2B &
B2C facility for sale and purchase of Metal products.
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“M3” portal provides an unique facility to Sellers and Buyers of
metallic products and raw materials to carry out their day to
day business in a hassle free and transparent digital platform
on 24x7 basis. Several Road shows and buyer-seller meets
have been organized by MSTC in association with
organizations like AlIFA, MRAI and BAl etc. in different parts of
the country to give wide publicity to the portal.

The “M3” portal provides sellers a wider exposure thereby
enabling them to enlarge their market place and the buyers get
a platform to shop in an open, competitive and fully
transparent digital environment to get the best price. The M3
portal provides a one stop shop for both sellers and buyers.
Registration of Sellers and Buyers on the portal is
continuously going on and the same is being offered totally
free of costas an early bird incentive.

In addition to the fixed price sale model, as per requirement of
RINL, an additional feature namely: “Enquiry Based System”
has been incorporated on the portal to obtain quotations from
prospective buyers. The same has also been extended to
various other sellers like Essar Steel India Limited, SAIL etc.

Transactions have already started taking place on the portal
and products like High Carbon Ferro Chrome, High Carbon
Ferro Manganese, MS Channel, MS Billet, ISHB, and Ferro
Silicon have already been sold through “M3” portal and the
business transacted through the portal has crossed ¥ 130
crore mark during the financial year.

Future Outlook

1. North East Region is rich in agri and forest produce such as
ginger, pineapple, black pepper, cardamom, amla, orange,
kismis, orchid, etc. But the growers do not have any market
access for their produces and the logistic support, which
renders them hapless for their minimal remuneration.

Looking at the vast potential of North Eastern Region, MSTC
has embarked upon developing eco system, bringing all the
enabling partners such as North Eastern Regional Agricultural
Marketing Corporation Ltd (NERAMAC) as an aggregator,
Central Rail side Ware housing Corporation (CRWC), for
logistic support.

This eco system will not only improve the financial status of the
growers but also prevent the crops from colossal wastage and
make available niche products to the rest of the country. This
collaborative effort may play an important role as envisaged in
the Government policy for the development of the North East
Region.

2. MSTC is spearheading the initiatives of framing a recycling
policy for India which will pave the path of converting presently
an unorganized sector into an environmentally sensitive
recycling sector.

Going forward a proposal for setting up of an e-Waste
recycling Plant is also a business opportunity that MSTC is
looking into. Efforts are on to explore the possibility of inclusion
of e-Waste recycling plant with the proposed Auto Shredding
Plant which can also extract & recover precious metals
available in the e-Waste.
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MSTC is increasing the e-commerce Business exponentially
to exploit the available potential with a focus on e-auction of
mining blocks (both coal & non-coal), minerals, agri & forest
produce and e-procurement. MSTC has plans to launch e-
shopping malls for handicrafts, apparels, painting, etc. in
various States to promote Cottage Industries.

3. MSTC e-procurement focuses on private customers for all
types of business particularly E-commerce.

Some of the major opportunities MSTC is pursuing:

1. MSTC is working with NTPC & CRWC for evacuating the
abundant fly ash lying with some of the Power plants
where demand in the vicinity is very scanty. The fly ash
from these Power plants will be transported in a specially
designed wagons to the Cement plants which may buy fly
ash at much higher rates (achieved in e-auction
conducted by MSTC) to meet its requirement of raw
material to make cement.

2. The recent initiative of the Government for sale of mineral
blocks, both major and minor, through e-auction has also
opened window of opportunity for MSTC and it has signed
agreement with most of the State Governments which
may yield positive results to the revenue of MSTC.

3. MSTC is making efforts to resurrect the dwindling trading
business by ramping up the 110% Bank Guarantee based
procurement business model. Besides this, MSTC is
gearing up to take up e-commerce enabled trading
business which will be less risky business than the existing
trading business model. It will jack up the turnover of the
Company significantly due to pure trading business.

4. MSTC has signed an agreement with NAFED to sell the
food grain lying with various godowns in the country
through e-auction. Procurement of the same is also within
the ambit of agreement through e-reverse auction.

5. E-procurementis another potential area in which MSTC is
making a rapid stride to grab the business. MSTC has
introduced multi broker facility to make much deeper dent
in the e-procurement domain of business.

6. Govt. of Rajasthan has appointed MSTC for e-Auction of
Royalty Collection Contract, Excess Royalty Collection
Contract (ERCC), Prospective License-cum-Mining
Lease (PL cum ML) and Mining Lease for minor minerals.

7. Govt. of India has engaged MSTC forimplementation of its
various flagship Innovative schemes through its e-
Commerce portal, some are already implemented and
some are upcoming. One such scheme is disinvestment of
CPSE through e-commerce route and is being
spearheaded by DIPAM.

8. MSTC has successfully conducted e-auction of coal
linkages for unregulated sector such as cement, steel,
sponge iron, etc. The e-auction of coal linkage is on the
anvil under Shakti scheme by Ministry of Coal.

9. The successful portals for exim products for IOCL may be
extended to other OMC’s both public and private.
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Cautionary Statement

Statements under “Management Discussion and Analysis” are
on Company’s projections and estimates. Actual results may
materially differ from such projections and depend on
economic condition and industry demand in the relevant
domestic and international market. Government regulations
including fiscal regulations and other incidental factors may
also affect the projections and estimates.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PARAMETERS WITH
RESPECT TO OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE

Performance
A) Agency Business
This year the total volume of Agency Business stands at

A 8 AT %! AT (3 A H) % 36,39,015 lakh, against * 32,71,682 lakh in 2016-17.
2017-18 201617 Break-up for the year 2017-18 vis-a-vis 2016-17 is as follows:
et 4.06,683 3,08,892 Business Segment Volume of Business (X in lakh)
201718 2016-17
ESCEDl 15,51,469 14,12,712 )
Scrap Disposal 4,06,683 3,08,892
Hreret 3 - Frert 995,887  10,16,623 e-Sale 1551469  14,12,712
it 7 ohi € Feret 6,84,976  5,33,455 Coal e-auction 9,95887  10,16,623
Fd(F) : 36,39,015 32,71,682 Iron ore e-auction 6,84,976 5,33,455
S ST W (T A ) Total (A): 36,39,015 32,71,682
2017-18 2016-17 Business Segment Volume of Business (X in lakh)
Shu o et 19,58,152  17,21,604 201718 201817
Sale of Scrap 19,58,152 17,21,604
R (! 9.95887  10,16,623 Sale of Coal 9,95887  10,16,623
e st 6,84,976 5,33,455 Iron ore 6,84,976 5,33,455
FA(H) : 36,39,015 32,71,682 Total (A): 36,39,015 32,71,682
) 3-HRE
— e S (3 e ) B) E.-Procurement . .
Business Segment Volume of Business (3 in lakh)
201718 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
HIIhe 36,26,896  14,04,149 e-Procurement 36,26,896  14,04,149
Fa(E): 36,26,896  14,04,149 Total (B): 36,26,896  14,04,149
FA(F+WE) : 72,65,911 46,75,831 Total (A+B): 72,65,911 46,75,831
) TR
C) Trading

TG 99 AR fgumT & foaeT w1 Fa uferZ 9,35,181 @@ © STafdh
% 2016-17 # I8 AR 4,59,765 TG off | a9 2016-17 Fi o1 |
=4 2017-18 1 faaRur i fear s w1 e :

EECIREE] e 7 (T A H)

2017-18 2016-17
strenfad gt 2,25,300 1,92,243
T At 7,09,881 2,67,522
FA (M) : 9,35,181 4,59,765
TR (F+ @+ ) : 82,01,092  51,35,596

The performance of the Trading Division shows a total volume
of business of ¥ 9,35,181 lakh, against ¥ 4,59,765 lakh in
2016-17. Break-up for the year 2017-18 vis-a-vis 2016-17 is
as follows:

Business Segment Volume of Business (X in lakh)

2017-18 2016-17
Imported materials 2,25,300 1,92,243
Indigenous materials 7,09,881 2,67,522
Total (C): 9,35,181 4,59,765
Grand Total (A+B+C): 82,01,092 51,35,596
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Risks and Concerns
Agency Business

The Selling Agency business has inherent risk since principal
can any time decide to do the selling job themselves. Of late,
principals are resorting to tendering and small players are
quoting very less rate of service charge owing to their less
investment in infrastructure and nil obligations towards CVC
guidelines and IT Act, 2000. However, because of quality and
transparency, MSTC has retained most of the business in this
segment.

Being a PSU, MSTC has to follow all the guidelines issued by
CVC, regulation of IT Act 2000 and other audit requirements
of STQC for which, MSTC has to invest huge amount towards
Systems infrastructure, whereas, the private players are not
under any such obligation. Therefore, unless Government
Departments and PSUs insist upon fulfillment of criteria in line
with CVC guidelines by the service providers in the tender
documents, it would be increasingly difficult for MSTC to get
orders, since private players, having scanty infrastructure, can
afford to quote very low service charge.

Trading Business (Import & Export)

This segment mainly functions as sourcing of raw materials for
industries either through import or domestically. The materials
remain pledged to MSTC and delivery is given to the
customers on payment basis. There is an inherent risk of not
lifting material as per schedule by the customers mainly due to
change in their production schedule and volatility in the
market. However, the risk is substantially reduced for sourcing
materials against receipt of Bank Guarantee for 110% of value
from the customers.

MSTC is pursuing e-commerce enabled trading business
which has minimum risk involved as compared to existing
trading business model.

Risks, Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

Risk Management Policy in MSTC for trading was introduced
in the year 2008-09. The policy has been last revised on
05.04.2018. MSTC makes it certain that the internal control
system functions within the risk appetite of the Company and
is being fine-tuned to include more safeguards for being more
effective.

Risk Management Policy for another segment of business i.e.
e-commerce has also been introduced in 2015-16 to have
necessary safeguards in this business too.

M/s. M.C. Bhandari & Co., Chartered Accountants was
assigned with the Internal Audit function of the Company for
the year and their reports are put up to the management at
regular intervals and summarized statement of important
issues are placed before the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee analyses the functions of the internal control
system and recommendations of the committee are put up to
the Board and those are implemented as per the
considerations of the Board. Audit Committee also considers
various financial statements for risk analysis and control.
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Some of the pictures of plant operations of Collection & Dismantling Center

(at Noida, UP) of MMRPL, a Joint Venture Company formed by MSTC for

setting up Auto Shredding Plant for organised recycling and shredding of End
of Life vehicles and white goods.

Conservation of Energy and Resources

MSTC works primarily in the field of procurement of scrap
materials, especially ferrous scraps from different consumers
and trading of those scraps for recycling. Thus, MSTC works
for the conservation of the natural resources, reduction in
pollutants, conservation of energy by recycling ferrous scraps
into a re-useable form. MSTC is in a way recycling Company
that consolidates facilities and auctions scrap of various types
for reuse after processing by its buyers.

Information on development of HR, Industrial Relations and
Corporate Social Responsibility is mentioned in the Directors’
Report.

The Auto Shredding Plant being planned by MSTC will be first
of its kind in India, will promote Secondary Steel making in
India using IF and EAF routes. These processes consume
less energy and pollute less than primary process of utilizing
BFs and Convertors etc.

The productivity under this route is also much higher than the
conventional methods.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
%OZ

(B. B. Singh)
Chairman-cum-Managing Director

Shahi litchi
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Shhok- et iy st popekar cultovor growen in Mot Bibar.
Phcrkinired, Uturashsred i Uity Pecters.
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TH GHH H 2 @ E
Shahi Litchi e-auctioned by MSTC being sold at one of the Spencer’s outlet at
Kolkata.
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CMD’S CERTIFICATION

| declare that the Model Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior
Management issued by the Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises was adopted by the Board of Directors of the company in its 229" meeting held on
27-06-08 and all the Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct for the current year.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

W

(B.B.Singh)

Chairman-cum-Managing Director
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City off :
CS SAUMAYO J YOTI SEAL 49A, Nirmal Chandra Street, Kolkata
Phone : 9038065836 Regd. off:
8100909418 324, Bunokalitala Chinsurha

Hooghly-712101. W. B.
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HRUARE SMES R e : U27320WB1964G01026211

aiferea gt - 2. 50,00,00,000/-
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T : HICThIT
feiaR : 27/07/2018 U9TeR P aferea
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City off :
CS SAUMAYO J YOTI SEAL 49A, Nirmal Chandra Street, Kolkata
Phone : 9038065836 Regd. off :
8100909418 324, Bunokalitala Chinsurha

Hooghly-712101. W. B.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER : U27320WB1964G 01026211

Authorized Capital :¥ 50,00,00,000/-

To,

The Members of

MSTC Ltd.

225/C,AJ C Bose Road
Kolkata - 700020

| have examined all the relevant records of MSTC Ltd. for the year ended 315t March, 2018 for the
purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guidelines 2010 on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises. | have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination
was limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance.

On the basis of my examination of the records produced and the explanations and information
furnished, | certify that the Company has maintained proper records and complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated In DPE Guidelines 2010 on Corporate Governance for Central
Public Sector Enterprises for the financial year ending 31tMarch, 2018

Place : Kolkata SAUMAYO JYOTI SEAL

Date : 27/07/2018 Practicing Company Secretary
C.P.No.: 11169

email : seal.saumayo@gmail.com




o AMSTC

it LIMITED

AT N st I e o v Fonarasd

IS E. TAS-9

e -

arftfer e 1 T 31 | 2018 1 g fasie o
[ et erfafrem, 2013 1 9RT 92(3) W ot (WeieH we wenad) e, 2014 % fg 12(1) % 9@ |

I T ositer T o1 faaer :

i) ot 3TE uT

i) eI @t AR

iii) SO =T AT

iv) SO BT SOT /3T Sont

v) TSTigha ST = Ul Ue Trqeh faraor

vi) I I8 s Hur § / e
vii) TR Td TR TSie, afe g R, 1 AW, IaT Ud weeh
oo

Form No. MGT-9

U27320WB1964G01026211
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- : rta@cbmsl.com

Annexure - Il

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on 315t March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)

. REGISTRATIONAND OTHERDETAILS

i) CIN:-

i) Registration Date

iii) Name of the Company

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company

v) Address of the registered office and contact details

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No:-

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

Rules, 2014]

U27320WB1964G01026211

09/09/1964

MSTC Limited

Company limited by shares/ Government Company
225/C, Acharya Jagadish Chandra Bose Road,
Kolkata - 700020

West Bengal

NO

C B Management Services (P) Limited
CIN: U74140WB1994PTC062959

P-22, Bondel Road,
Kolkata — 700019

Telephone No: 40116700
Fax: 40116739

e-mail: ta@cbmsl.com
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Il SOt 6t v STk fafafiat
T % el SHTEA & 10 % A 3TFe1h 1 ST heaTel it et nfafafert s = fearmn e .-
%. 9. A ] / Qs IS / ST HY F FA
T A1 o feraor TASRH IS AR FT %
1 THH! MR K] 14.61
2 ferqur K] 85.39

lNl. fe=rn, Te&es T TEI shafEl o1 s

%. 9. HUHT BT A T g T / Shuer IEREEWASEED RIGRIRI AR
wEArtt &M % o

1. T TRy fm fafres U27102CT1989G0I005468 BEECH 100 2(87)

2. Tfesr THuEe framsfae weae fafies U37100MH2016PTC288535 g 3™ 50 2(6)

IV. IR IO A &t TG (A 3Tt o Ui o STTER gfee! Tax goft o1 farsier )

i) SR PR
SIITHRT a9 & e § i SR a9 o 3id H wifka SRt ¥ % IR
T goft Eaksrel Eaksrel % TR
e ofifaen FA  FAIR T ofifqes FA  FA IR
1 % 1 %

&, ey

(1) W=

(%) AT / THETE 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(@) FHET THR 0 15812800 15812800  89.8455 0 31625600 31625600 89.8455  0.0000
(TT) T TR 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(=) frepm fmm 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(%) ¥ / fodta deam 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
SRR 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
39-3 () (1) 0 15812800 15812800  89.8455 0 31625600 31625600 89.8455  0.0000
(2) foreit

() TAARSTE - SAfHRRTT 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(®) &= - AR 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
() free fm 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(%) S / fadia deam 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(%) = 3 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
3T (F) (2) 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000 0.00
THIR ® FHA

AT (&) =

(F)(1)+(F)(2) 0 15812800 15812800  89.8455 0 31625600 31625600  89.8455 0.0000
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Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products / services Product/ service of the company
Agency Business NA 14.61
2 Marketing NA 85.39

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of shares  Applicable
No. OF THE COMPANY SUBSIDIARY/ held Section
ASSOCIATE
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited U27102CT1989G0I005468  Subsidiary 100 2(87)
2. Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt Ltd U37100MH2016PTC288535  Joint Venture 50 2(6)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Number of shares held at the Number of shares held at the % change
Shareholder beginning of the year end of the year during
the year

Demat Physical Total % oftotal Demat Physical Total % of total

shares shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

(a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(b) Central Government 0 15812800 15812800  89.8455 0 31625600 31625600 89.8455 0.0000
(c ) State Government(s) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(d) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(e) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(f) Any Other 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
Sub Total(A)(1) 0 15812800 15812800 89.8455 0 31625600 31625600 89.8455 0.0000
(2) Foreign

(a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(c )Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
Sub Total(A)(2) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00

Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 0 15812800 15812800 89.8455 0 31625600 31625600  89.8455 0.0000
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BRreien] o o AR H e S o o ofd | e SRl BRI
=t gt & HE & HE % TR
e ofifaen FAa  FATR e sfifas FA  FA WK
F % F %
@, s
1. G¥H
(F) T[T HeH 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(@) ¥ / faedta geem 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(1) FHHT THR 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
() T WHR 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(%) SR Hftea hem 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
() SR wefEi 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(D) THITEAE 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(31 foseht R Ffea gm0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
@) = (ffdm) = 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
39 - 9 (@) (1) 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000 0.0000
2. IR-Gem
(%) T
(i) et 0 559875 559875  3.1811 39217 1022775 1061992  3.0170  -0.1641
(ii) TSR 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(@) AfF™
(i) AT IR
%. 1 Tg e A IR
it enfid T @ 0 383585 383585 21795 226500 380952 607452  1.7257  -0.4537
(i) AT IR
%. 1 a@ ¥ 31fek AffHe IR
Yot e Y w® € 0 839740 839740  4.7713 583280 1146076 1729356  4.9129  0.1417
(m =7 (e =)
(ORUEREENIREENED 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(i) T= IR wEA 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000
(iii) Strameht Safsrrt 0 4000 4000  0.0227 15600 8000 23600  0.0670  0.0443
(iv) fereren fereror wah wiwaqwr fafr 0 0 0  0.0000 152000 0 152000  0.4318  0.4318
39 - A (@) (2) 0 1787200 1787200 10.1545 1016597 2557803 3574400 10.1545  0.0000
S eI TR
(@) = (@)(1)+(@)(2) 0 1787200 1787200 10.1545 1016597 2557803 3574400 10.1545  0.0000
(1) SHER T TEEIR ’g
CIRICE AN TERE 0 0 0  0.0000 0 0 0  0.0000  0.0000

(@) FE AT (F)+(T@)+() 0 17600000 17600000 100.0000 1016597 34183403 35200000 100.0000 0.0000




o AMSTC

Tz LIMITED

LA FETR R UTEN ) pasTo 1T, o e Frivqes]

Category of Number of shares held at the Number of shares held at the % change
Shareholder beginning of the year end of the year during
the year

Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total

shares shares

B. Public shareholding
1. Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(b) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(c ) Central Government 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(d) State Government(s) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(9) Flls 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(i) Other (specify) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
Sub-Total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
2. Non-institutions
(a) Bodies Corporate
(i) Indian 0 559875 559875 3.1811 39217 1022775 1061992 3.0170  -0.1641
(i) Overseas 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital up to T 1 lakh 0 383585 383585 2.1795 226500 380952 607452 1.7257  -0.4537

(ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of
3 1 lakh. 0 839740 839740 47713 583280 1146076 1729356 4.9129 0.1417

(c) Others (specify)

(i) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(ii) Trust & Foundations 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
(iii) Non-Resident Individuals 0 4000 4000 0.0227 15600 8000 23600 0.0670 0.0443
(iv) Investor Education &

Protection Fund 0 0 0 0.0000 152000 0 152000 0.4318 0.4318
Sub-Total (B)(2) 0 1787200 1787200 10.1545 1016597 2557803 3574400 10.1545 0.0000

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 0 1787200 1787200 10.1545 1016597 2557803 3574400 10.1545 0.0000

C. Shares held by
Custodians for GDRs &
ADRs 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 0 17600000 17600000 100.0000 1016597 34183403 35200000 100.0000 0.0000
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(ii) i @ St

%.9. VIR & T TY H AR QI 99 &% 3fd N Ieenfar a9 ¥ <R
A HHETEF  FANH W w HUHF  FAWR F o IRt
wen A  wiafasiia e  ga e wfafysia T %

H % I 5 H % i e oRed
% %

1 IR % Ugufa 15812600 89.85 I 31625200 89.85 = =
2 Mg A 40 0 T 80 0 T =
3 #Ta s et 40 0 T 80 0 T =
4 gl fEse 40 0 T 80 0 T =
5 #Huwag:® 40 0 = 80 0 = =
6 4t ggd AR I * 40 0 = 80 0 T T
T 15812800 89.85 I 31625600 89.85 = g

* A & qpufd & Amifehd & 9 H

(iii) T 6t Srerenfiar # wftedw (Foar ffde R, afg wi afteds 77 2) -

oo & T § eRemRar o % SR derel Srwenfiar

%. WifeEr A feoforat IR/, wEd @ HUA H I H HT H
g | TG i e FA I Rarcy I T D]
e w1 % 1 %
1. 000003 R % TFUfd a9 &% e H 01/04/2017 15812600 44.92 15812600 44.92
gig 14/07/2017 15812600 44.92 31625200 89.84
o & ofq & 31/03/2018 31625200 89.84
2. 000010 df &t f&g o & e # 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
gig 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
a9 & oiq # 31/03/2018 80 0.00
3. ©000002 TFTY a9 &% ey H 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
gig 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
ad & oiq | 31/03/2018 80 0.00
4. 3000003 HId FHAR TA ELE it 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
EIEA 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
a9 & oiq # 31/03/2018 80 0.00
5 TH000040 T 9H ¥ &% e H 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
gfs 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
ad & ofq # 31/03/2018 80 0.00
6. 21000016 TH % Trurdt e & TRy H 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
EIEA 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00

a9 & Fid | 31/03/2018 80 0.00
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S|  Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end % change
No. of the year end of the year shareholding
No.of % of total % of Shares No. of % of total % of Shares  the year
Shares shares Pledged / Shares shares Pledged / shares

ofthe  encumbered of the encumbered

company tototal company to total

shares shares
1 President of India 15812600 89.85 NIL 31625200 89.85 NIL NIL
2 Shri Suraj Bhan * 40 0 NIL 80 0 NIL NIL
3 Shri SK. Tripathi * 40 0 NIL 80 0 NIL NIL
4 ShriB. B. Singh * 40 0 NIL 80 0 NIL NIL
5 ShriA.K.Basu* 40 0 NIL 80 0 NIL NIL
6  Shri Subrata Kumar Ray * 40 0 NIL 80 0 NIL NIL
Total 15812800 89.85 NIL 31625600 89.85 NIL NIL

* As nominee of President of India

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

Shareholding at the beginning  Cumulative Shareholding

of the year during the year
Sl Folio No. Name Remarks Sharehold No. of % of total % of Shares % of Total
No. ing/ Trans Shares Shares of  Shares Shares of
action The The
Date Company Company
1. P000003  Presidentof India At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 15812600 4492 15812600 44.92
Increase 14/07/2017 15812600 4492 31625200 89.84
At the end of the year 31/03/2018 31625200 89.84
2. B000010  B.B.Singh At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
Increase 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2018 80 0.00
3. C000002  A.K.Basu At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
Increase 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2018 80 0.00
4, R000003  Subrata Kumar Roy At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
Increase 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2018 80 0.00
5. 8000040  SurajBhan At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
Increase 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2018 80 0.00
6. T000016  ShriS.K. Tripathi At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40 0.00 40 0.00
Increase 14/07/2017 40 0.00 80 0.00

At the end of the year 31/03/2018 80 0.00
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(iv) 3 % 50 FeRURHT 1 FRear &1 wew (FRwes, Tied T e iR TSer % uRe! & S7amr) :

o % Ue § e o o SR gl SR

% wifean Bt feoforat TeRefar /Wl T HUAT Rl T HT

9§ A L e T IRt itz B s R
arE = % T %

1. W& 000036 e e o o Uy H 01/04/2017 160000 0.45 160000 0.45

A gfear for. fs 14/07/2017 160000 0.45 160000 0.91

a9 & ofq | 31/03/2018 160000 0.91

2. 21000008 ool fafes ad & uRer H 01/04/2017 120000 0.34 120000 0.34

fg 14/07/2017 120000 0.34 240000 0.68

99 % Ad | 31/03/2018 240000 0.68

3. 000001 S ¥ oed fafiee ad & uRew # 01/04/2017 96000 0.27 96000 0.27

fg 14/07/2017 96000 0.27 192000 0.55

o & ofq | 31/03/2018 192000 0.55

4. 3000001 ST ST 9 & U H 01/04/2017 45600 0.13 45600 0.13

fg 14/07/2017 45600 0.13 91200 0.26

FHH 02/02/2018 0.25 2500 0.01

99 % Aq | 31/03/2018 2500 0.01

5. 000001 HT TR e, e o Uy H 01/04/2017 40000 0.11 40000 0.11

gfg 14/07/2017 40000 0.11 80000 0.23

a9 & oiq | 31/03/2018 80000 0.23

6. 21000005 e gred fafies o & uRe | 01/04/2017 40000 0.11 40000 0.11

3fg 14/07/2017 40000 0.11 80000 0.23

o & ofd | 31/03/2018 80000 0.23

7. TA000003 Aot WEeT SheTe A O YRR H 01/04/2017 36800 0.10 36800 0.10

R 3fg 14/07/2017 36800 0.10 73600 0.21

o & i | 31/03/2018 73600 0.21

8. 000006 ot gF< T a9 &% gRE H 01/04/2017 32000 0.09 32000 0.09

gfg 14/07/2017 32000 0.09 64000 0.18

FHt 22/09/2017 64000 0.18 0 0.00

a9 & oiq | 31/03/2018 0 0.00

9. 000015 ST FEREA o & are H 01/04/2017 31700 0.09 31700 0.09

et 11/08/2017 31700 0.09 0 0.00

o & ofq | 31/03/2018 0 0.00

10. TH000030 Aot weg IHt a9 % URET | 01/04/2017 25800 0.07 25800 0.07

fg 14/07/2017 25800 0.07 51600 0.15

99 % A | 31/03/2018 51600 0.15

11, UTSAg6165TT  3ferar Sret a9 &% e H 01/04/2017 0 0.00 0 0.00

fg 02/02/2018 88700 0.25 88700 0.25

a9 & oiq | 31/03/2018 88700 0.25

12. UTAISTIR0563T Hehe Wad o & e # 01/04/2017 0 0.00 0 0.00

3fg 29/09/2017 64000 0.18 64000 0.18

o & ofq | 31/03/2018 64000 0.18

13. EETdH3515T ST HHREH % &% g H 01/04/2017 0 0.00 0 0.00

gfs 12/05/2017 31700 0.09 31700 0.09

Ifs 18/18/2017 31700 0.09 63400 0.18

ELERC R 31/03/2018 63400 0.18
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding

of the year during the year
Sl Folio No. Name Remarks Sharehold No. of % of total % of Shares % of Total
No. ing/ Trans Shares Shares of  Shares Shares of
action The The
Date Company Company
1. S000036 Steel Authority At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 160000 0.45 160000 0.45
of India Limited Increase 14/07/2017 160000 0.45 160000 0.91
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 160000 0.91
2. 7000008 Texmaco Limited At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 120000 0.34 120000 0.34
Increase 14/07/2017 120000 0.34 240000 0.68
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 240000 0.68
3. J000001 J. K. Traders Ltd. At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 96000 0.27 96000 0.27
Increase 14/07/2017 96000 0.27 192000 0.55
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 192000 0.55
4. U000001 Anasuya Udani At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 45600 0.13 45600 0.13
Increase 14/07/2017 45600 0.13 91200 0.26
Decrease 02/02/2018 0.25 2500 0.01
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 2500 0.01
5. C000001 Canara Workshop At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40000 0.11 40000 0.11
Ltd. Increase 14/07/2017 40000 0.1 80000 0.23
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 80000 0.23
6. T000005 Tata Motors Ltd. At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 40000 0.1 40000 0.1
Increase 14/07/2017 40000 0.1 80000 0.23
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 80000 0.23
7. N000003 Mrs. Saida Ikbal At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 36800 0.10 36800 0.10
Nathani Increase 14/07/2017 36800 0.10 73600 0.21
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 73600 0.21
8. K000006 Shri Mukund At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 32000 0.09 32000 0.09
Khaitan Increase 14/07/2017 32000 0.09 64000 0.18
Decrease 22/09/2017 64000 0.18 0 0.00
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 0 0.00
9. C000001 G. Kumaresan At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 31700 0.09 31700 0.09
Decrease 11/08/2017 31700 0.09 0 0.00
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 0 0.00
10. S000030 Mrs. Kalpana At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 25800 0.07 25800 0.07
Sharma Increase 14/07/2017 25800 0.07 51600 0.15
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 51600 0.15
11. AAGPU6165N  Ishita Todi At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 0 0.00 0 0.00
Increase 02/02/2018 88700 0.25 88700 0.25
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 88700 0.25
12. ANZPK0563A Mukund Khaitan At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 0 0.00 0 0.00
Increase 29/09/2017 64000 0.18 64000 0.18
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 64000 0.18
13. ABVPK3515A G Kumaresan At the begining of the year 01/04/2017 0 0.00 0 0.00
Increase 12/05/2017 31700 0.09 31700 0.09
Increase 18/18/2017 31700 0.09 63400 0.18
at the end of the year 31/03/2018 63400 0.18
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SI Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
1. For Directors and KMP No. of % of total shares No.of % of total shares
Shares  of the company Shares of the company
At the beginning of the year 200 0 200 0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during

the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease

(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

Bonus issue on 14/07/2017 200 0 200 0

At the End of the year 400 0 400 0

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

( in lakh)

Sl. Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
No. excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
1. Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 44473 24362 0 68835
i)  Interest due but not paid 0 10 0 10
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 7889 0 7889

Total (i+ii+iii ) 44473 32261 0 76734
2. Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

i) Addition 17329 0 0 17329

ii) Reduction 0 17892 0 17892

Net Change 17329 (17892) 0 (563)
3. Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 61802 14362 0 76164

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 7 0 7

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total ( i+ii+iii ) 61802 14369 0 76171

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(X in lakh)
Sl.  Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager: Name of MD/WTD/ Manager: Name of MD/WTD/ Manager: Total
No. Remuneration Shri B. B. Singh, Chairman  Shri A. K. Basu, Smt. Bhanu Kumar, Amount
cum Managing Director Director (Finance) Director (Commercial)
Wef 12.10.17

1 Gross salary 51 44 19 114
2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL
5 Others, please specify:

Company’s contribution to CPF 10 10 9 29

Total (A) 61 54 28 143

Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl.  Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Name of Director Total Amount
No. Shri G.R. Aloria Dr.T.V.Muralivallabhan  (InRs.)
1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending board / committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify 1,05,000 1,65,000 2,70,000
Total (1) 1,05,000 1,65,000 2,70,000
2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board / committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total (2) NIL NIL NIL
Total (B)=(1+2) 1,05,000 1,65,000 2,70,000

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/WTD/MANAGER

(X in lakh)
Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company Secretary CFO Total
1 Gross salary 0 30 0 30
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify:
Company’s Contribution to CPF 0 1 0 1
Total 0 31 0 31
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL
Type Section of Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal
the Companies Act Description Punishment/ Compounding [RD/NCLT/ made, if any
fees imposed COURT] (give Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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Annexure - IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. Briefoutline of the Company’s CSR Policy:

(A) Company has formulated a CSR and Sustainable Development Policy in line with the Companies Act, 2013 which has been
recommended by duly constituted CSR Committee of the Board and approved by the Board. The policy is available at
Company’s website www.mstcindia.co.in. The policy has been revised in 2018 which has been duly approved by the Board in
its 280" meeting held on 05.04.2018.

(B) The vision of the Policy is blending responsible business with inclusive growth and Sustainable Development for protecting
environment, conserving resources and improving human health and education.

(C) Board shall constitute a CSR Committee with an Independent Director as Chairman. Nodal officers shall implement the
decisions taken by the Committee. Company Secretary shall be secretary to the Committee.

(D) The Committee shall recommend budget, the projects to be taken up, and the method of implementation. The Committee and
the Board shall ensure that at least 2% of the average Profit Before Tax (PBT) of preceding 3 years is the budget for the current
year.

(E) Activities shall include all activities covered under Annexure to the CSR Policy of the Company which includes inter alia, items
as provided under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE guidelines. Additionally, any Govt. guidelines/
instructions shall be considered by the Committee/Board.

(F) MSTC shall also encourage collaborative projects with other PSUs, Govt. agencies, NGOs, if required, on the basis of merit of
the project.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) guidelines, a Board level CSR
Committee was Constituted with Shri Suraj Bhan, Nominee Director, as Chairman, Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Shri B. B.
Singh, Director (Commercial) as members. Shri Bhan was replaced by Dr. Promodita Sathish, who was appointed as Chairman of
the CSR Committee with the existing members. On the appointment of Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan, Independent Director, the
committee was reconstituted with Dr. Muralivallabhan as Chairman and Dr. Promodita Sathish and ShriA. K. Basu as members. This
committee oversees the CSR activities of the Company as per Company’s CSR policy. Designated officers of the Company
implement the decisions taken by the Committee.

3. Average Profit Before Tax (PBT) of the Company for last three Financial Years (2014-15,2015-16, 2016-17):
3 106.58 Crore.

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure budget for FY 2017-18 (two percent of the above amount):
3214.00 Lakh.
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5. Details of CSR expenditure during the Financial Year 2017-18 :
(a) Totalamountspentforthe financial year:¥215.39 Lakh (100.65 % of budget)

(b)  Amountunspent, ifany : Nil

(c) Mannerinwhich the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SI. CSR projector  Sector in which Projects Amount outlay Cumulative ~Amount spent Amount spent :

No. activity identified the project is covered or programs (budget) project expenditure on the projects Direct or through

1.Local area or other or program wise up to the or programs implementing
2. Specify the State (3 Lakh) reporting Sub heads : agency
& district where period (1) Direct expenditure
projects or programs (% Lakh) on projects or
were undertaken programs
(2) Overheads

1 Installation of Drinking Water South 24 Parganas,  4.61 4.61 Direct - 4.61 Lakh Subhamay Samity
Tube Wells at 2 West Bengal Overheads — Nil (NGO)

FPS Schools

2 Reconstruction of Education South 24 Parganas,  9.91 9.91 Direct - 9.91 Lakh Egaragram Social
Nalbagh F.P. West Bengal Overheads - Nil Welfare Society
School (NGO)

3 Renovationofa  Education Kakdwip, South 4.85 4.85 Direct - 4.85 Lakh Shibkalinagar Palli
Govt. aided Sishu 24 Parganas, Overheads - Nil Unnayan Samity
Siksha Kendra West Bengal (NGO)

FPS

4 Construction of  Education West Midnapore, 6.49 6.49 Direct — 6.49 Lakh Chaplin Club
School Building West Bengal Overheads - Nil (NGO)
for the poor and
marginalised
children

5  Forpurchase of  Education West Midnapore, 5.00 5.00 Direct — 5.00 Lakh Nimbark Math
10 nos of Braille West Bengal Overheads - Nil Seva Samiti Trust
Computers (NGO)

6  Constructionof  Education Howrah, 8.00 8.00 Direct — 8.00 Lakh Rajapur Seva
ground floor of West Bengal Overheads - Nil Niketan
additional school (NGO)
building for
mentally
challenged

7 Constructionof ~ Education South 24 Parganas,  9.00 9.00 Direct - 9.00 Lakh Harindanga
ground floor and West Bengal Overheads - Nil Ramkrishna
first floor building Vivekananda
of primary school Sangha (NGO)

8  Completion of Education South 24 Parganas,  9.78 9.78 Direct — 9.78 Lakh Vivekananda
half constructed West Bengal Overheads - Nil Siksha Niketan
class room with Trust (NGO)
roof construction
for Higher

Secondary School
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SI. CSR projector  Sector in which Projects Amount outlay Cumulative = Amount spent Amount spent :

No. activity identified the project is covered or programs (budget) project expenditure on the projects Direct or through

1.Local area or other or program wise up to the or programs implementing
2. Specify the State (3 Lakh) reporting Sub heads : agency
& district where period (1) Direct expenditure
projects or programs (X Lakh) on projects or
were undertaken programs
(2) Overheads

9  Renovation of Education Bankura, 9.68 9.68 Direct — 9.68 Lakh Chhachanpur
“Chhachanpur West Bengal Overheads - Nil Adibasi Mahila
Adibasi Prathamik Vikas Samity
Vidyalaya” under (CAMVS) (NGO)
Chatna Block

10 TLM & Resource Education Hooghly, 5.00 5.00 Direct — 5.00 Lakh Dankuni Ashwash
Room equipment West Bengal Overheads - Nil Insitute for the
for Disabled Child Disabled (NGO)

11 Construction ofa  Education Krishnapur, Burdwan, 4.98 4.98 Direct — 4.98 Lakh Swami
portion of ground West Bengal Overheads - Nil Debananda Mission
floor of two storied (NGO)
school building

12 Purchaseofan  Healthcare East Midnapore, 9.84 9.84 Direct — 9.84 Lakh Barabari Srikrishna
Ambulance for West Bengal Overheads - Nil Seva Sangha
patients of the (NGO)

local area

13 Installation of Drinking Water South 24 Parganas,  4.43 4.43 Direct — 4.43 Lakh Akshaynagar
deep tube wells at West Bengal Overheads - Nil Pallisri Sangha
free primary (NGO)
schools at
Kakdwip Block

14 Installation of Drinking Water South 24 Parganas,  2.15 2.15 Direct - 2.15 Lakh Boral Sarodapara
Deep Tubewell at West Bengal Overheads - Nil Matri-O-Sishu
school Kalyan Samsad

(NGO)

15 Establishment of a Shelter Home East Midnapore, 10.00 10.00 Direct — 10.00 Lakh ~ Contai Sri
home of services West Bengal Overheads - Nil Ramakrishna
for Elder Citizens Sarada Ashram

(NGO)

16 Construction of ~ Education Howrah, 10.00 10.00 Direct — 10.00 Lakh  Interreligious Centre
orphan school West Bengal Overheads - Nil of Development
building (NGO)

17 Installation of Drinking Water West Midnapore, 5.86 5.86 Direct - 5.86 Lakh Midnapore West
Deep Tubewells West Bengal Overheads - Nil Sister Nivedita
at schools at Welfare Society
Jangalmahal (NGO)

18 Installation of Drinking Water Bankura, 9.20 9.20 Direct — 9.20 Lakh Bahara Sidhapara
deep tube wells West Bengal Overheads - Nil Adibasi Mahila
at 4 schools Samity

(NGO)
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Terert & < =y s Faee - I et Har afafa
T T G (TFtret)
28 =g faean @l e e TR, 10.00 10.00 el - 10.00 g T et
% for femfomar CIPREN| AeREE - A Afeaa o=
T =R AT e o d)
=t o1 i (Tsha)




THafirz

AT FTRE R UTEN G s

o AMSTC

LIMITED

1A G, o i Frivpetas]

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SI. CSR projector  Sector in which Projects Amount outlay Cumulative  Amount spent Amount spent :

No. activity identified the project is covered or programs (budget) project expenditure on the projects Direct or through

1.Local area or other or program wise up to the or programs implementing
2. Specify the State (3 Lakh) reporting Sub heads : agency
& district where period (1) Direct expenditure
projects or programs (X Lakh) on projects or
were undertaken programs
(2) Overheads

19 Installation of Drinking Water Howrah, 8.60 8.60 Direct — 8.60 Lakh Balichak
deep tube wells West Bengal Overheads - Nil Yoga-Byayam
at 4 schools Mandir (NGO)

20 |Installation of Drinking Water Bankura, 2.50 2.50 Direct - 2.50 Lakh Khayeraboni Gram
Deep Tubewell West Bengal Overheads - Nil Unnayan Samity
at school (NGO)

21 Construction of “ll Healthcare West Midnapore, 9.99 9.99 Direct — 9.99 Lakh Nivedita Gramin
Baby Care Centre” West Bengal Overheads - Nil Karma Mandir

(NGO)

22 Installation of Drinking Water East Singhbhum, 3.99 3.99 Direct — 3.99 Lakh Bagh-e-Azizi
Deep Bore-wells Jharkhand Overheads - Nil Mahila Sanstha
at2 Govt. (NGO)
accredited schools

23 Installation of Drinking Water East Singhbhum, 3.99 3.99 Direct - 3.99 Lakh Bajrang Parishad
Deep Bore-wells Jharkhand Overheads - Nil Seva Sadan
at 2 Govt. (NGO)
certified schools

24 Installation of Drinking Water Jamshedpur, 3.95 3.95 Direct — 3.95 Lakh Jharkhand Jyoti
Deep Bore-wells Jharkhand Overheads - Nil (NGO)
at 2 Gowt.
endorsed schools

25 Installation of Drinking Water East Singhbhum, 3.99 3.99 Direct - 3.99 Lakh Rural Outright
Deep Bore-wells Jharkhand Overheads — Nil Development
at 2 Gowt. Society
recognised schools (NGO)

26 Installation of Drinking Water East Singhbhum, 6.13 6.13 Direct - 6.13 Lakh TEMSECA
Deep Bore-well at Jharkhand Overheads - Nil (NGO)

3 Govt. sanctioned
schools

27 Installation of Drinking Water South 24 Parganas,  9.48 9.48 Direct - 9.48 Lakh Indrapur Dwipanchal
Deep Tubewells West Bengal Overheads - Nil Adarsha Seva
at 4 free Primary Samity (NGO)
Schools

28 Construction of  Healthcare Nellore, 10.00 10.00 Direct - 10.00 Lakh ~ Vasantha Lakshmi
physio & neuro Andhra Pradesh Overheads - Nil Charitable Trust
development & Research Centre
block for multiple (NGO)

disabled
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SI. CSR projector  Sector in which Projects Amount outlay Cumulative ~ Amount spent Amount spent :

No. activity identified the project is covered or programs (budget) project expenditure on the projects Direct or through

1.Local area or other or program wise up to the or programs implementing
2. Specify the State (3 Lakh) reporting Sub heads : agency
& district where period (1) Direct expenditure
projects or programs (X Lakh) on projects or
were undertaken programs
(2) Overheads

29  Apparatus and Education Jhargram, 4.99 4.99 Direct —4.99 Lakh Ramakrishna
equipments for West Bengal Overheads - Nil Mission Ashrama
science laboratory (NGO)
for Ekalavya
Model school

30 Library cum Education Pala, Kottayam, 5.00 5.00 Direct — 5.00 Lakh Ramkrishna Math
seminar Hall for Kerala Overheads - Nil (NGO)
poor children
and youth

31 Construction of  Freedom Fighters’ Lucknow, 9.00 9.00 Direct - 9.00 Lakh Rural Engineering
Community Hall in Development Uttar Pradesh Overheads - Nil Department
honour of (Govt. of UP)
freedom fighter (Implementing

Agency)

32 T Skill Skill Development Kolkata, 5.00 5.00 Direct - 5.00 Lakh Sinthee Sikha
Development West Bengal Overheads - Nil Welfare Society
Programme for (NGO)
youth
TOTAL 215.39 215.39

6. Itis stated herewith that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR Objective and Policy
of the Company.

W

B. B. Singh

Chairman-cum-Managing Director

%

T. V. Muralivallabhan
Chairman, CSR Committee
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Annexure -V
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH,2018

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members
MSTC Ltd.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provision and the
adherence to good corporate practices by MSTC Limited (Hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provides me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the MSTC Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representative during the conduct of secretarial audit and as per the
explanations given to me and the representation made by the management, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March,
2018 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board process and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made herein after :

I have examined books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available
to me ane maintained by the MSTC Limited for the financial year ended on 31tMarch,2018 according to
the applicable provision of :

i. The Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act) and the rules made there under, as applicable
ii. The Securities Contract (Regulation)Act, 1956 ((SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depository Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed there under;

NOTAPPLICABLE

email : seal.saumayo@gmail.com
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iv. fodeft g1 weem erfufram, 1999 siR faveht weer faw,
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules
and regulations made there under the extent of Foreign
Director investment, Overseas direct Investment and External
Commercial borrowing;

NOT APPLICABLE

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribe under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI
Act’)
a) The Securities and Exchanges Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

NOT APPLICABLE

b. The Securities and Exchanges Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 1992;

NOT APPLICABLE

c. The Securities and Exchanges Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2009; and

NOT APPLICABLE

vi. Other laws applicable to the Company as per the
representations made by the Management.

| have also examined compliance with applicable clauses
of the following:

I. Secretarial Standards of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India with respect to Board and General
Meeting are yet to be specified under the Act by the
Institute.

ii. The Listing agreements entered into by the Company with
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

NOT APPLICABLE

During the period under review and as per the explanations
and clarification given to me and the representation made by
management, the Company has generally complied with the
provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc.
mentioned above. However, with respect to filling of forms
to Registrar of Companies, some forms were filed after
the due dates.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provision of the Act. Adequate notice was
given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to
schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications in the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
paticipation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meeting, as represented by the
management, were taken unanimously.

| further report as per the explanation given to me and the
representation made by the management and relied upon by

me there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, no such specific
events / actions having a major bearing in the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above,
have taken place.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is
Annexure Aand forms an integral part of this report

Annexure A
To,
The Members,
MSTC Limited
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of
the management and my duty is to express an opinion on
these secretatial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and process as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the process
and practices, | followed, provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

3. Ihave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books of accounts of the Company.

4. Whatever requited, | have obtained the management
representative about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to
the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy of
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

: el
IR '§|

CS SAUMAYO JYOTI SEAL

FCS:9766
C.P.No. 11169

Place : Kolkata
Date : 27/07/2018
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31 |, 2018 =1 TEE foxia a¥ ¥ wHuEE fa. % Hetdn ety faxia faere w wifafus draradesht &t
feoafordi/staeiiel W WeieH & STare

Management Replies to Comments/Observations of the Statutory Auditors on the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statement of MSTC Ltd. for the financial year ending on 315t March, 2018

QRIS Hel/ TR

Qualified Opinion/ Observation

IR 9T H 1T ol Wt < 34 Td 3Tafd o forg fad wadiey
e frew fa. ¥ 19544.01 TG 1 SIhran AT AfHet &7 7a
e a9 | eAferss &1 gkl © | TAUd, shad THT % e W 6
ToTeT § SO ST ® We ST faversr % ST ER e @
it HIRHT T IS T 97 9o T 6230 TG SIS | W A
SeTeh Y@ T8 | aYCard Y6 Jed < 6230 T T s
T e ot | 9Te1 A foamem Fof ol 2l o STTHR STaM i 3 9
%1 T 1 faAie 01.12.2017 1 foFT 7T STAT faweior & SR,
STfReTaR o ~ATIE H T84 o FIaeIg el g% 6543 & Hod o
Sy T U WA STHHd €9 9 337 et 71T 9 | SFgRT 3 ot o
foreg Hidfie Taica Retfeg TI8T & i ¥g TrETers! §
Teh TS SR o 1 et O 9 % 10 @ ot wfasfa s R
e foiiar o 2018-19 % SR Wl R 641 G i +ff TGl g8
B 1@mr-a2 #% 1500 @@ U 95 T 2 1T 6 SR 5
F % ferT T 17393.01 A it 37X AT ot R <t STt =few
off | 3TehT UTaeH | fory ST & weaasy a9 2017-18 & foaw 3
17393.01 O Ty § Afeer T Mo § w9 S0 T4 © -
WeuaH $e ey foxdi faeror &t femfor &t feommit . 9.4 (F)
@ |

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 19544.01 lakh due from M/s
SPS Rolling Mills Ltd. for procurement and supply of
materials to the party which is now more than five years
old. Thus with the passage of time, quality of materials has
deteriorated and as per the volumetric analysis the net
realizable value of pledge raw materials comes to ¥ 6230
lakhs. The party has defaulted in making the payment as
per the terms of the Arbitration Award. As per the
volumetric analysis done on 01.12.2017, pledged stock
worth ¥ 6543 lakh was unauthorisedly lifted by the party
inspite of the same being under the jurisdiction of a
Custodian. The creditors have filed an applicationin NCLT
for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
against the Company. The Company has security deposit
of ¥ 10 lakh and has also recovered ¥ 641 lakh from the
party during the financial year 2018-19. An amount of
1,500 lakh have been provided for in the books of
accounts. The Company should have provided a further
amount of ¥ 17393.01 lakh against this debt during the
year. Non-provision of the same has resulted in

overstatement of profit and understatement of provision for
the year 2017-18 by T 17393.01 lakh — Refer Note
no.9.4(a) of notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial

&L % TS
Management’s Replies

THTHSH 7 At o fog Reiiege drheea &t Fgfa o wre
=T Afed Fe1 T 29736 TG 1 a1 SRR fhar § | THuaeiEt s
LGl % sk g T T TeTer SFeR & w9 H faan g |
FHUt & fore Refeem @ o1t TAEeerel grRy erHifed foar
ST TR 8 | 39 foramrei= <@ gk 1500 o1 &1 aed ik e
Hrayr 3@ % 9 W @ Ud diery it % w0 § afedt §
THHTETI

MSTC has filed a total claim of ¥ 29736 lakh including
interest with the Resolution Professional appointed for the
Company. MSTC has been treated as an operational
creditor secured by pledge of goods. Resolution Plan is yet
to be approved by NCLT for the Company. Pending this, an
adhoc amount of ¥ 1500 lakh has been provided in the
books as Bad and Doubtful Advances as a measure of
abundant precaution.
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IR 9= § ARt & %9 U6 STTYfd 3 H6d HiTeane ©id e
TR fat. F % 22124.13 @ i Sk TR 90fae § 1 shad w9
% 1Y Wl <t T 7 efforar o € foed agett A ger v
3T T 1 feiek 03.05.2018 w1 Henfera e1amd fawersor &t fdrd
% STER, ARE & AT F T WA & FEeg el gr
F(per e T a4 T Wik 1 F YT 3HHH €9 § 327 foran
T 1 | 91T % AR e H STATd faweryor wHuaete gr
ToRa ST TR o7 | 3TATE, T e H Sk 1@ Wik o < 108 TG &
T e wHfery ¥ wAEiTerdt § aeeri g SRR fwu T
Teanferare & Ae 3 e o STTIR, THUERE! § Tl &
3T sATear e ReiTeg T WThSet o THeT 3T9AT STal <5 fehaT |
AT F T T 40 A T AfAfa S R e 9 % <R e
SR T 9206 TG i AT 1 WS Hi &, 5180k fawg Faa T
9088 TG 1 3¢ T g2 | AUt 3 STTAT fargervo & SR,
S T Wik A Y§ agel 9o % 2313.81 @ 1 9 ok SR
HUHAT ¥ T 3000 @ T TEH foram € | 21aus, 9t ol aaqE ad
% SR 39 01 % few T 19084.13 @@ &t IR TR weM At
off | 30 gt &1 W T fRy ST % FRo 99 2017-18 § 3
19804.13 @@ oy H 21 Td waee | 9 g9t T ¥ -
TreueH e ud ot faeror &1 fewford =t feumfi €. 9.4 (@)
T Hed e |

Trade receivables include ¥ 22124.13 lakh due from M/s
Concast Steel & Power Ltd. for procurement and supply of
materials. With the passage of time, quality of materials
has deteriorated resulting in lower realizable value. As per
the report of volumetric analysis conducted on 03.05.2018,
part of pledged stock at Bankura unit was unauthorisedly
lifted by the party inspite of the same being under the
jurisdiction of a Custodian. Volumetric analysis at
Jharsuguda unit of the party could not be performed by
MSTC.Thus the book value of ¥108 lakh of the pledged
stock in this unit is doubtful. Pursuant to admission of
case of insolvency filed by creditors in NCLT, MSTC has
filed its claim before Insolvency Resolution Professional
under NCLT. The Company has a security deposit of ¥ 40
lakh and during the year procured materials on behalf of
the party for ¥ 9206 lakh against which they realized only
9088 lakh. As per the volumetric analysis of the materials,
the net realizable value of the pledged stock is ¥ 2313.81
lakh. The Company has made a provision of ¥ 3000 lakh
during the year. The Company therefore should have
provided a further amount of ¥ 19084.13 lakh against this
debt during the current year. This non-provision of the

shortfall has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2017-18 by
T 19804.13 lakh — Refer Note No.9.4(b) of notes to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statement

TeE % ST
Management’s Replies
e OISR §RT SRR &1 TE Ueh Al W St & faeg
T E UUE FeRel e, 2016 % 1 Hrdanfeat g& & T ¥
T A o ST STy YTt € | THUEEE ¥ TEuere! gr
Frge R AR o T &1 §8d % 30071 &1 3 e
TR fFAT

T RTeeH @M % 27efiA TXfad Jee oo & &9 |
THUESH I fow ST & Feifed foweeg «ff fReeem dreesa
o =y fera T 2, Hiifen THeEdtEt & e aegeii % due F w U
wfaufa =t € | qenf, fstiegem @ W sifay fofa omy/srgHe
R faamrei= feufa 1 @ gu T aer U™ & dR W, BE
T dfery it & fore afeai # agef s e w3 3,000 <
EIERIEAER IR IES

Proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 has started against the Company on a petition filed
by an Operational Creditor and presently order of
moratorium is in force. MSTC has filed its claim of ¥ 30071
Lakh including interest with the Resolution Professional
appointed by NCLT.

Matter regarding treating MSTC as a secured operational
creditor under the proposed Resolution Plan has also been
taken up with Resolution Professional as MSTC has a
security interest in the form of pledge of goods. However,
pending finalization/ approval of the Resolution Plan, a
provision of ¥ 3000 lakh has been made on adhoc basis in
the books for Bad and Doubtful Advances as a measure of
abundant precaution.
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o Trames sevgeRard (SusTet)

M)  fretated s aiEuiE & e T SO R am A TS |
! bl el &l 14
R YT/ T A ot § Ui
Tkl stk (T T3 i fafer =) 105
S = (qo 9= o1 fafar=hn) %97.07 4@

Other Regulatory Requirement (CARO)

Ic)  The title deeds of the following immovable properties are
not held in the name of the Company.

Total No. of cases 14

Whether leasehold/freehold Freehold

Gross Block (as at Balance Sheetdate) T 105lakh

Net Block (as at Balance Sheet date) 97.07 lakh

VI 7ot T E wd B T e ST TISie 3 SR, Ut
Teurdr e ey faxdty faawer &t feoafort # feuqoft €. 20 (F)
& 20 (@) T affd STTER i h SISHT o F Tl o A

o 78 %1 & (@ Taggr At ¢ |

EECOE L] Y =
HEREECICIRic -G T 138 @@ -

e Ire 9% 7 14362 W@ T 7889 @@

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to banks except for the loans as
mentioned in Note No.20(a) and 20(b) to the notes of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statement and detailed here

under:

Name of Bank Principal Interest
Indian Overseas Bank T 138 lakh -

Standard Chartered Bank 14362 lakh < 7889 lakh

31 e STrevaear we-1 (ST E-F)

Pt1 el & W hiE YUl Tfie arelt yff & € ud vege uft %
ety H U o U TIY Ul AR O | Y, hiershar | 3
e T g # 11 Wie o faw § St o 99 T8 AR oo
T

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 1(Annexure A)

Pt1  The Company does not have any freehold land and in
respect of leasehold land the Company has a clear lease
deed. Howeverin respect of 3 flats in Kolkata and 11 flats in
Mumbai, the Company does not have clear title deeds.

Teige % STare
Management’s Replies
HaTet wht TS UREuaEt T e 3 are T AR § | agd e
TRl ST & o HIT, ST & & SR Gaiferd HImeiid qeie et
STTEh 9 | qord ot 3 gag | 11 H ¥ 10 REufaEt v et
H3HY 1 yfdufa & Gaier 8§ 1fershr o O W fhan 81919 3
ittt o fery tfeshR o=t o6t O i o T S |

Company holds clear title over all the assets in question.
Due to very old in nature the relevant papers could not be
shown during audit. Company has since retrieved title
deeds in respect of 10 properties in Mumbai out of 11 and
1 property in Kolkata out of 3. Efforts are on to retrieve title
deeds for the remaining 3 properties.

ST & Al faemuedi= € wd @i w1 feofor ot feoof €. 20 4§
T ®T Y R TR U g |

Both the matters are subjudice and have been adequately
disclosed in Note No.20 of the Notes on Accounts.

FHUA A q@ G e 7 11 9§ 10 gl wd whiesar § 3 HH 1
gfEdfa & derer 7 e oo O W foar & 1 9 3 ufeufaei
o S1frehe oot Tl el T AT ST R |

Company has since retrieved title deeds in respect of 10
properties in Mumbai out of 11 and 1 property in Kolkata
out of 3. Efforts are on to retrieve title deeds for the
remaining 3 properties.
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3 frame sTevaehd U 3 (B) (STTAH-T)

Pt(a)

SO o UT T8k i e, SR0T & e Ta fashi o foTd B0
st <Rl TTOT ¥ IS SUER SAides fEisr gt T € S
ot § Sifqq WU w1 T TP HfEdar wenfud fee fomm
TTES T Tl {d T ToTelt TROMT < Hehel € | ST 6 agelt &
e Tmeeht o AT g fafafert W eiidiies = i § |

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 3(g) (Annexure C)

Pt(a)

The Company did not have an appropriate internal control
system for customer acceptance, credit evaluation and
establishing credit limits for sales, which could potentially
result in the Company recognizing revenue without
establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.
The internal control over follow up with the customers for
recovery of dues is inadequate.

EEEEREACEIC
Management’s Replies

ST Tl i o1 Seree § S 3 9| o TIe-Hel UTeeh =7,
U1 oo Td ATeeh o foTe 01 ST Tenfud i =g feenfee
UM A & TS THF-T0 TR THhT FHIE T EGraor off i STt
¥ 1 ST AT, Teh Hrehfe Bgere off € S HfeT ufterert ®
e vq fafds fremt ud vgfaat 6t g <ar € ud forgd faque
TRTeH § TS 37T T8 © | T & Wit % 110% T o faw S
TR RISl G hael T ATEeh! o T e Hae P& Hid
T ST 7 fewice Sifad i Seorea w9 § Ufea fomar €1 @y
2, FUt Tehe Ud g’ Higd % SIAd UTeehi o Ty - o
T AT F TR S |

HET 1 T HHA T o fQ Ureeni o wrer Farfie swrefare 7y
T T3 Al ¢ | Rt off Tk o HeT He W ST WSt ST
% U ST 1 3R Ueh T STl € | BIF o A1eAT | STe! o1
TR T © Ue emmafy & faue W Fewen/aeaet 1 fgem & fag
TTET o WA= ST ST ST © | 37 ATl o Tre-H1e FeH1 A
TR o o6t el © Forers S, e, Jeht Te 39 T THar
foreereoT gurten o ¥ 1 39 fowe § wifees i geara werer & e
ISTT ST S 1

There is a Risk Management Policy in place which inter
alia provides guidelines for customer selection, credit
evaluation and establishing credit limits for customers etc.
and the same is also reviewed and modified from time to
time. Moreover, there is a Marketing Manual which
describes the set of rules and procedures for handling day-
to-day operations and which covers other relevant aspects
of Marketing operations. Besides, Company has insulated
default risk significantly by introducing trading business
with new customers only by accepting Bank Guarantee for
110% of value of materials. Simultaneously, Company is
gradually closing business with customers under the
‘Cashand Carry’ model.

There is a system of regular follow up with customers for
timely realization of dues. Reminders are sent in case of
occurrence of any default and further procurements are
stopped. Follow up is also done over phone and
representatives from the parties are called to meet
directors/CMD at periodical intervals. Month wise reports
are generated inter alia showing transactions, realizations,
outstanding and age wise analysis thereof. Monthly
reports are sent to Ministry of Steel in this regard
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1= framaeh STavashad (HiusTRai)

Pt(b) Ut GRI 379 USRI i 3T T o Tl T8 hodl TR & Seh
T T T R e stfurerss & fee 6 W@ Wi & gea i
SO % U IS SUYH e R gunedt wE ¥, forees
TeTeTE Y TISTH & T ST €9 § 33T S & |

Other Regulatory Requirement (CARO)

Pt(b) The Company did not have an appropriate internal control
system with regard to pledged stock of raw materials
procured by the Company on behalf of its customers and
kept under the control of the custodian appointed by the
Company resulting in unauthorized liftment of the
materials from the godowns.

Teige % STare
Management’s Replies

St 3 Wit Hrge H sereh T TS | o ST o A IR ST
eI ST T wRT fre e, st feifsra foran € | wmgfer frmrt
i a7 g SfRe wifds i ¥ T ST A
e TATeH AT SITd & | HaT H el 16 o SIR0T a1 + 81T o
T ITeh! STTE Te2al 1ot 915 AoResiaT hiaieH fa., T Tideas
1 T & | S5k TeiTe, STafeeh Sfarel I da 9eT shi Sire Toiet
BRI ek o Hifeh TeaTT v U TUIeH § Ud 3 gee fra s @
T 1N, SR THIUM 3 heTe ey Sea hiE ot T, A R, T ga
T I YA FIA GU THRT AL FoRal STl 8, 7=aem I
fopu meeh o foreg qRa gfere & fRrenrerd o1 e STl € |

Company had engaged its own subsidiary company Ferro
Scrap Nigam Ltd. as custodian of pledged materials in all
the sites. The custodian used to send weekly/ monthly
stock movement report vis-a-vis physical stock, to ensure
proper monitoring. Due to deficiency of service, Company
has very recently replaced them with Central Railside
Warehousing Corporation Ltd., a CPSE. Further, thereis a
system of physical verification of stock through third party
inspection agency at periodic intervals and same is being
strengthened. However, shortages, if any, arising out of the
said verification are immediately addressed by recovering
the same wherever feasible else police complaints are
lodged immediately againstthe defaulting customer.

F T P Hew 3 SR A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A

dlodl- T
EIC IR
B.B. Singh

FAY-Te- WY Favh
Chairman and Managing Director
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31 71, 2018 =1 T feretar o ¥ THCES fa. % wifrd S wuw faxta faawo W wifafs Samderet St
feoafori/staeiei W WeieH & STare

Management Replies to Comments/Observations of the Statutory Auditors on the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statement of MSTC Ltd. for the financial year ending on 315t March, 2018

RIS Hel/ ST TR

Qualified Opinion/ Observation

BIfeeTT ot & WHel B, STIR 9T H Ul i |l o g ud
3mafd o fo fed Taded Tfe faew fa. €T 19544.01 /@
T ST TS A & T 37a1 U o & <3ferch &1 gt § | 37,
S T % T W kT o | afforr Teft § we STgArd
ToreeTooT o STIR Seeh e shod! | 1 Y§ agel ard g
% 6230 T ST AT | 91T A siereh TEit TS Wit & aeetiara Is
eI % 6230 TG T T § 5k i € 1 91t A fearem fof =6t
IIat o STIHR T A § 9 1 € | f&Aieh 01.12.2017 =1 fu
T ST foreeryor & STHR, et % e 3 @+ & ameh[s
et §RIT 6543 TG oo o ¥ T U I SHI4Hd 9 9 33T
forT T & | SRR A et o faEg iR sico Retfeqe
T YE F o7 TTHTe § U ST SR foha 8 1 ot &
TG 10 o 1 wfaufd star € ud fasita o 2018-19 % <A
e AT 641 @ T ft T g8 © | @rar-ae § % 1500 7
T IR 1 T8 ¥ 1 % S 39 R0k fAu R 17393.01 Ara
s uf¥r ot grr <F ST =fe o | sHeRt waEE 7 fRu S %
ey Y 2017-18 & faw 17393.01 @@ @4 § 31fees wa
WEHE § %A g T ¥ - SAikd I wuy faxdi faawe @t
feoafort =t feoft €. 8.4 (%) & |

In respect of Holding Company,Trade Receivables
includes ¥ 19544.01 lakh due from M/s SPS Rolling Mills
Ltd. for procurement and supply of materials to the party
which is now more than five years old. Thus with the
passage of time, quality of materials has deteriorated and
as per the volumetric analysis the net realizable value of
pledge raw materials comes to ¥ 6230 lakh. The party has
defaulted in making the payment as per the terms of the
Arbitration Award. As per the volumetric analysis done on
01.12.2017, pledged stock worth ¥ 6543 lakh was
unauthorisedly lifted by the party inspite of the same being
under the jurisdiction of a Custodian. The creditors have
filed an application in NCLT for initiation of Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process against the Company. The
Company has security deposit of ¥ 10 lakh and has also
recovered ¥ 641 lakh from the party during the financial

year 2018-19. An amount of ¥ 1,500 lakh have been
provided for in the books of accounts. The Company

should have provided a further amount of ¥ 17393.01 lakh
against this debt during the year. Non-provision of the
same has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2017-18 by
¥ 17393.01 lakh — Refer Note no.8.4(a) of notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statement.

TEEA % ST
Management’s Replies

THTEEHT Teh B ot = ot 3 fery fstiee drReme &t
frafea & w1 =1 Tfed Fe1 T 29736 @@ 1 @1 IRR fwRar T
THTHSH ol TEG1 & 4 GRS Teh T=Te1 o o €9
 foran o 71 o % fau fefegem @i el et grr
SIS o ST aTeht € | 38 faamnefi S guk 1500 @ i
Tl YT ot Sraret ST 3 4 I TR v wiere i o '
i afed # gt T |

MSTC, the Holding Company, has filed a total claim of
% 29736 lakh including interest with the Resolution
Professional appointed for the Company. MSTC has been
treated as an operational creditor secured by pledge of
goods. Resolution Plan is yet to be approved by NCLT for
the Company. Pending this, an adhoc amount of ¥ 1500
lakh has been provided in the books as Bad and Doubtful
Advances as a measure of abundant precaution.
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FifeSn st & wmer H, SR W § 9t 3 % T Sfd 7y
THY HiThre T TS TR fd. § % 22124.13 1@ it TR
Tfer et € | Siad Tee o 9rer A st Joren # &fiorr o ¥
T St A god &9 o7 © | ik 03.05.2018 w1 g=nfad
STt fareeraor st U o STHR, S1fvRer & =amaes & o1EH
@ % wIes[e W gRT St gfe # sueh W@ Wi B 5 A
ST €9 | 33T foram T o | Il < SRGTeT gfe # STArdt
forgeroor THUEEE g & foRal ST Weht o | 3Tqwd, 39 gfe §
Sk T Wi % 3 108 AW H 981 7o Wiy ¥ | Teiueet §
TFERT BT SRR FoRT T feaferare & el o Siad & ST,
THTHSH 7 TTHTE o 31efiA sica et Refiede HItherel o
THey STYT <A &t foralT § | 30T o 91 % 40 T o i st
T UE I & A I B SIRY T 9206 TR kY A T @S FH
2, e faeg Faa T 9088 oIRd 1 3¢ Iuell &1 | Gt %

AT forvetaor o TR, sUsh W Wi o Yo THal qod I
2313.81 A T | T & S ST 7 T 3000 A T Frare fapan
¥ | ST, SO BT IAAE T o SR 39 0 % few T 19084.13
G i SR T TS HET off | 39 T 1 Wiae 7 fhe ST &
HROTAY 2017-18 HT 19804.13 @ AT | ik Uel Wi &
9 A T ® - wufehd T uw faxia faewer it feuqolt w5t
feot 6. 8.4(@) &1 Hed el

In respect of Holding Company, Trade receivables include
¥ 22124.13 lakh due from M/s Concast Steel & Power Ltd.
for procurement and supply of materials. With the
passage of time, quality of materials has deteriorated
resulting in lower realizable value. As per the report of
volumetric analysis conducted on 03.05.2018, part of
pledged stock at Bankura unit was unauthorisedly lifted by
the party inspite of the same being under the jurisdiction of
a Custodian. Volumetric analysis at Jharsuguda unit of the
party could not be performed by MSTC.Thus the book
value of ¥ 108 lakh of the pledged stock in this unit is
doubtful. Pursuantto admission of case of insolvency filed
by creditors in NCLT, MSTC has filed its claim before
Insolvency Resolution Professional under NCLT. The
Company has a security deposit of ¥ 40 lakh and during the
year procured materials on behalf of the party for ¥ 9206
lakh against which they realized only ¥ 9088 lakh. As per
the volumetric analysis of the materials, the net realizable
value of the pledged stock is¥2313.81 lakh. The Company
has made a provision of ¥ 3000 lakh during the year. The
Company therefore should have provided a further amount
0f¥ 19084.13 lakh against this debt during the current year.
This non-provision of the shortfall has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision for
the year 2017-18 by I 19804.13 lakh — Refer Note
No.8.4(b) of notes to the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statement

TS % e
Management’s Replies
T TFER g SRR i T8 U ATtaehl W ol & fassg
e E Td TR TS, 2016 % i shrefanfedt & i T &
TE daH ¥ AfEerT SR U ¥ | THUESE gifeet st 3

e g gE Ry WrheHd & O I §Ed
30071 9@ &1 & SRR feaT 2 |

T RTegeH WM & STeiA TXfad Jee oFer o €9 §
THTHAE w1 ot e driReee & e fern w €, i
THUHSH! & U FEgit o S & €9 § Hfayd T 1 qenfy,
FeieeH i ot fHofey/ergHTe wifed 21 % o qaf dreremt
U o AR R, B e iere it & fore aifeai # agef sarR
% 3,000 G T AEEH AT T e |

Proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 has started against the company on a petition filed by
an Operational Creditor and presently order of moratorium
is in force. MSTC , the holding company has filed its claim
of ¥ 30071 Lakh including interest with the Resolution
Professional appointed by NCLT.

Matter regarding treating MSTC as a secured operational
creditor under the proposed Resolution Plan has also been
taken up with Resolution Professional as MSTC has a
security interest in the form of pledge of goods. However,
pending finalization/ approval of the Resolution Plan, a
provision of ¥ 3000 lakh has been made on adhoc basis in
the books for Bad and Doubtful Advances as a measure of
abundant precaution.
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31 e sTrevaeRar w1 (ST H-5)

Pt1 SfeST®o FAmAH :
ST & I HE qOT Tt aelt i TE € T veeed 4t &
Teter # Ut o U9 ST gl AR T § | T, shicthiar 7 3
Tore e Garg H 11 TIe & foma # ot o e Tam e oot -1
7

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 1(Annexure A)

Pt1 InCase of Holding Company:
The Company does not have any freehold land and in
respect of leasehold land the Company has a clear lease
deed. Howeverinrespect of 3 flats in Kolkata and 11 flats in
Mumbai, the Company does not have clear title deeds.

7 T STasaehal (ST h-9)

Pt(a) ifcST St % I UTeeh ot T, 01 o Yedih Td fash! &
foTT St TSt ot T S IS SUGH AT =0 Joredt
Tl &I ot § 3ifaw Hue i gen Suge gifemar T e
o TTea it Tt o Huret aftome € Eehar © 1 el 5t
et % foru Treehl 2 T g Tt W st fEm
AR |

Other Regulatory Requirement (Annexure B)

Pt(a) The Holding Company did not have an appropriate internal
control system for customer acceptance, credit evaluation
and establishing credit limits for sales, which could
potentially result in the Company recognizing revenue
without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate
collection. The internal control over follow up with the
customers for recovery of dues is inadequate.

TEE % TS
Management’s Replies

AfeSTHat I T A G # 11 7§ 10 vfufadi v Hicrward 3
9 1 gfufa & gy # eIfaswR o g ur fRer €1 9w 3
Rt o fer SR o U i T e S |

The holding Company has since retrieved title deeds in
respect of 10 properties in Mumbai out of 11 and 1
property in Kolkata out of 3. Efforts are on to retrieve title
deeds for the remaining 3 properties.

et ot % At H, SifEm werer fifq S e € 5 o=
AT < TT-E1Y qTeeh =9, 0 Jodichd Td UT8hi o faag o0
e Tfyq T &g feenfser ueM &Yt § Td ava-uea W
ThHT GeteT e TR ot 1 A 7 | SR STATET, Teh i
Hgere off § 1 AT wfimrert % deem ¥ fAfde fat @
et i e ST & e e faaue were 9 9 o TR R
Ter & | o 110% e o fg S TR Wi i gU e
T UTEehT o AT FET HTER Y hd FU I A Fewhice siifan
I ST ®Y O e foman & 1 e &, et e u e’
Tl o ST Teehi o BTl - R a8 g L@ |

FHRMET I AT THT T % fIC TMEHRi F T agudia Fafhd
FEATE ¥ T oF Hafed €1 fRet off 9% &l U v W
SN o1 S € T 3T T 6l ek T STl € | I o ATemd
¥ dgWid w1 w@ fFA I ¥ w@ smafud s W
TR atumet & fae o fere wiet o ufafaferd & qamrsrar g |
ST STl o -1 TR FdiE o 1 STt § e o,
YA, T TE I W THI-IR faera gutar T ¥ | 59 fowa H
TR e SouTe Hatrer™ o 9 St ST & |

In Case of Holding Company,there is a Risk Management
Policy in place which inter alia provides guidelines for
customer selection, credit evaluation and establishing
credit limits for customers etc. and the same is also
reviewed and modified from time to time. Moreover, there
is a Marketing Manual which describes the set of rules and
procedures for handling day-to-day operations and which
covers other relevant aspects of Marketing operations.
Besides, Company has insulated default risk significantly
by introducing trading business with new customers only
by accepting Bank Guarantee for 110% of value of
materials. Simultaneously, Company is gradually closing
business with customers under the ‘Cash and Carry’
model.
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There is a system of regular follow up with customers for
timely realization of dues. Reminders are sent in case of
occurrence of any default and further procurements are
stopped. Follow up is also done over phone and
representatives from the parties are called to meet
directors/CMD at periodical intervals. Month wise reports
are generated inter alia showing transactions, realizations,
outstanding and age wise analysis thereof. Monthly
reports are sent to Ministry of Steel in this regard

Aot ot 3 it Tree H seen T T Wi W A % 9
T O Herdeh ot T SR fm far. @ fEifsa e 2
sfirers T TR gRe w01 3q o @i % g
AT/ AT i e fae 97d 9| a1 § & W& &
FHRU HUAT 7 A & H IR e ed 1 AES TA@RET
Huiee fot., T ddaE w1 fomr ¥ 59 ST, et
STRTE T TG e k1 ST Uot et g1 ek o Hifdeh Temee &g Tk
T & Te 38 Ygg oA ST a1 € | Jenfy, Se SO % thereaey
I 1S oft Y, AfG T, R G T ST TS HIA G SR
QU Tohall STl &, 317 <ok Foh UTeh % foreg qiel gfer &
TorehTard ot AT A 7 |

Pt(b) Ft BT T TR %1 3R & T H E T WA ¥ e
T T ST gRT e Afiersh o Free # T Wi o dag |
BT T o ITH RIS SR ST T gomett et €, freeh
e E T TS & Tt SHeehd €9 & SST SA  |

The Holding Company did not have an appropriate internal
control system with regard to pledged stock of raw
materials procured by the Company on behalf of its
customers and kept under the control of the custodian
appointed by the Company resulting in unauthorized
liftment of the materials from the godowns.

The Holding Company had engaged its own subsidiary
company Ferro Scrap Nigam Ltd. as custodian of pledged
materials in all the sites. The custodian used to send
weekly/ monthly stock movement report vis-a-vis physical
stock, to ensure proper monitoring. Due to deficiency of
service, Company has very recently replaced them with
Central Railside Warehousing Corporation Ltd., a CPSE.
Further, there is a system of physical verification of stock
through third party inspection agency at periodic intervals
and same is being strengthened. However, shortages, if
any, arising out of the said verification are immediately
addressed by recovering the same wherever feasible else
police complaints are lodged immediately against the
defaulting customer.

Fa Td FRw Head AR A
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
A
Alodle T

s fog
B.B. Singh

FeAE-He- WY Fravrh
Chairman and Managing Director
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HuadE fafies % et % ufa

HerdH $e Ty foda faerfort w fdrd

B THTERE fafiee (YHu) % Herdn i ved o
forarcor =t o witen w6t € 1o feie 31 A, 2018 & 3TER
qo 1o, 39 fafy o1 gura o < faw @y e =i 6 foer
(3T AIE AT HA), sfaadt H ufada 1 foeror wd Tehg
yare foeror qun weerul awied Hfifadl w1 wni e o=
HATHF ol (TG WLeraH 38 e fadita faawm)
AR

Weua {e ued faxia faarfirt & fag e o o

T 1 TR Hed 37 WetaH € wuy faxite faerfori 1
TIR 0 & Gey | ot sIfufad, 2013 #T ¥R 134 (5)
(afufTam) & e amet & foe SRR &< sifufrem =i awr
133 & 3idid, THoh ST U (IR Tra@ieh A ) W,
2015 % Ty ufad feffia YR oraie aHehi (38 TUH) 99d
AT H WA W&ok oiaich fagidl o ST ot o foreta
fegrfa, 1= fawre oo wfeq foxi fsareq, eng ware aun sfaaet
¥ uRad o w8l T freIe v W R § 1 39 St |
fufag o TEYEl % SHER YA o@ied sifaerdl
LT A € S HuAr w Gutat a6t feweta &g wd
srarefea oY a1 afafadaret st ek 3T ar o & ferg,
S @i ATl o =d- Ta WA o folg, qeh Td TR
T S T T fadenyut ¥, Td v stiaften ot frismn
F FRET TIR HH, HEAFGIT @ W@ & fou, @i
SAfeTEl o1 HEIehaT Td ST GHTeed i o foe ol €99
Tafed 9, Yeudd € wuy fodia faawot = Tar = @
A A o I T 9, ST OE we fouer gvF wegd e § T
fifde Tod FEEl I §, W% 9 Sedst 9 9% 6
FROTE |

SECIRNE R IR

AR TR TART TG & STHR T 3 W eleH 58 Uiy
forfter faawolt oX oTot T < B 1 7 StfufEe o wEeEi,
A R T AGIIRIETT AFehi IR faweraegsit 1 e @ g,
1= srferferm & et oiv Sue qed o fradi o siarfa on
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of MSTC LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements of MSTC LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
‘Standalone IndAS financial statements’).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
ofthe Actand the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i) Trade Receivablesincludes ¥ 19544.01 lakh due from M/s
SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd for procurement and supply of
materials to the party which is now more than five years
old. Thus with the passage of time, quality of materials has
deteriorated and as per the volumetric analysis the net
realizable value of pledged raw materials comes to ¥ 6230
lakh. The party has defaulted in making the payment as
per the terms of the Arbitration award. As per the
volumetric analysis done on 01.12.2017, pledged stock
worth ¥ 6543 lakh was unauthorisedly lifted by the party
inspite of the same being under the jurisdiction of a
Custodian. The creditors have filed an application in NCLT
for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
against the Company. The Company has security deposit
of T 10 lakh and has also recovered ¥ 641 lakh from the
party during the financial year 2018-19. An amount of
1500 lakh have been provided for in the books of
accounts. The Company should have provided a further
amount of ¥ 17393.01 lakh against this debt during the
year. Non-provision of the same has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for the year 2017-18 by ¥ 17393.01 lakh - Refer Note no.

4 (a) of notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

i) Trade Receivables includes¥22124.13 lakh due from M/S
Concast Steel & Power Ltd. for procurement and supply of
materials. With the passage of time, quality of materials
has deteriorated resulting in lower realisable value. As per
the report of volumetric analysis conducted on
03.05.2018, part of pledged stock at Bankura unit was
unauthorisedly lifted by the party inspite of the same being
under the jurisdiction of a Custodian. Volumetric analysis
at Jharsuguda unit of the party could not be performed by
MSTC. Thus the book value of ¥ 108 lakh of the
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pledged stock in this unit is doubtful. Pursuant to
admission of a case of insolvency filed by creditors in
NCLT, MSTC has filed its claim before Insolvency
Resolution Professional under NCLT. The Company has a
security deposit of ¥ 40 lakh and during the year procured
materials on behalf of the party for ¥ 9206 lakh against
which they realized only ¥ 9088 lakh. As per the volumetric
analysis of the materials, the net realizable value of the
pledged stock is ¥ 2313.81 lakh. The Company has made
a provision of ¥ 3000 lakh during the year. The Company
therefore should have provided a further amount of
T 19084.13 lakh against this debt during the current year.
This non-provision of the shortfall has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for the year 2017-18 by ¥ 19084.13 lakh - Refer Note no.
9.4 (b) of notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in paragraph (i) and (ii) of Basis for Qualified
Opinion, the overall effect of which is overstatement of profit
and understatement of provision by I 36477.14 lakh, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 315t March 2018, and its profit, other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity
forthe year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matters
We draw attention to the following matters:

i) Reference is invited to Note no. 9.4 (c) of notes to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements wherein it is
stated that Trade Receivables include ¥11484.29 lakh due
from M/s Jai Balaji Industries Ltd for procurement and
supply of materials which are more than three years old.
The party is making payment as per the Arbitration award
and in the current year only ¥ 482 lakh have been adjusted
against outstanding opening receivable of ¥ 11937 lakh.
Since as per the Volumetric Analysis Report by an
independent valuer, the net realizable value of the pledged
stock is higher at ¥ 14185.21 lakh (Previous year: ¥ 6870
lakh), no provision has been considered necessary by the
Managementinthe currentyear.

i) Reference is invited to Note no. 9.4 (d) of notes to the
Standalone Ind AS financial Statements wherein it is
stated that Trade Receivables include ¥ 2831.52 lakh due
from M/s Global Coke Ltd for procurement and supply of
materials which are more than three years old. In view of
the expected liquidation of dues by way of consumption of
pledged materials and also net realizable value of the
pledged stock is higher at ¥ 5311 lakh (Previous year :
% 1250 lakh) as per the Volumetric Analysis Report by an
independent valuer, no provision has been considered
necessary by the Managementin the current year.
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iii) Reference is invited to Note no. 42 of notes to the
Standalone Ind AS financial Statements relating to
pending confirmation/reconciliation of balances of Trade
Receivables and Trade Payables and its consequential
impact that may arise on reconciliation.

iv) The Company had appointed four Independent Directors,
two on 06.09.2017 and the remaining two on 09.03.2018.
Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year.
In absence of the Independent Directors, no Audit
Committee meetings could be held before September
2017.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the
year ended 318t March, 2017 included in the Standalone Ind
AS financial statements are based on the previously issued
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by
the predecessor auditor, M/s Ray & Co., whose report dated
07" August, 2017 for the year ended 31t March, 2017
expressed a modified opinion on those standalone financial
statements.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’'s Report in terms of the directions of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) under
Section 143(5) of the Act, and on the basis of our
examination of the books and records of the Company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
principles in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A,
statement on the matters specified in the directions of
CAG.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said order.

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that :

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account.
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. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS

financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

. The matters described in the Basis for Qualified

Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may not
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company.

As per notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June,
2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, Section 164(2) of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial

control over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate reportin Annexure C.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note no. 34 of
notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

i. The Company did not have any such long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 304138E

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kolkata Partner
Date : 27.07.2018 Membership No. 057170
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WA AEraRiee St a1 e s
ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(TAfeAifRa ART RdE & “ o1 T Te ek staeasharstt a¢ fare” 3ive & sTg=os 1 § Hafa)

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date)
T o RIS o T % SMHR T TS T & T8 STHHRT ST I o TR a1 i, 2013 i 9RT 143 i 3T ¥R 5 & ST IR &
T e HeTcETiEe: gRTSTR feenfader & qed g fagar i € -

Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under sub section 5 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,

based on the verification of records of the Company and according to information and explanations given to us, we report as under :

% E.
Sl. No.
1.

@ : 27.07.2018

Frew

Direction
AT ST ok T HEST: Ul T Td Ugre Y % faw e
stfushr/agT SAfyeR o 72 afe =, @ Fun oof w@nfre @
e qfH o &Rl o aR § Far, T ar 5 1S sifeeRry 9gt
SR T TR T |
Whether the company has clear title/lease deeds for
freehold and leasehold respectively? If not please state the

area of freehold and leasehold land for which title/lease
deeds are not available.

TS §. 057170

A@rIE & e
Auditor’s Reply

U o T R TS Qo Tt YA A T vgrge T T,
SHT % I Teh T8 g7 SRR T3 § | BTelifeh shictshtdl § 3 TS
T HaE 11 Wi o Hae §, Sl o I I T8 TRt o &t
7

The Company does not have any freehold land and in
respect of leasehold land, the Company has a clear lease

deed. However, in respect of 3 flats in Kolkata and 11 flats
in Mumbai, the Company does not have clear title deeds.

2. TATHIE HO/ Fsl /AT A R YL / T W ST HT DTS THATE, TS, qag grT ey wedre A % STHR WA % SR
afe &, 3Heh o S witmferd aier s | % 859.39 T % 3T K01 shl &I WA H STaAT 71T 9T U HruAy
Whether there are any cases of waiver/write off of < ST o= < STIQY < STEN W 45081.10 TG 6 WA <1
debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons there for and 1 9 @I | STa T o, T g sedanfeat @ ifafyea we
amountinvolved. for werfire s e e &, 579 ek o 5 famrer  wiefiens e &

Fraer =t <=t =& feran |

Bad Debt amounting to ¥ 859.39 lakh was written off during
the year based on the Resolution plan finalized by NCLT,
Mumbai and Claims receivable of ¥ 45081.10 lakh was
written off during the year based on the order of the
Arbitrator under PMA whereby proceedings have been
adjourned sine die, till disposal of CBI case is filed in this
regard.

3. FNE e S U Ul g HieTg = s WL AT 3 Wik | e 78 3 I B e U g oft U T A fehet 3
SURR / SIS o &9 H A Hl <1 T = Taware fran g | ST & STRR / TS & T FH B B Haf e T g
Whether proper records are maintained for inventories 7l
lying with third parties & assets' recelved as giftgrant(s) There were no inventories lying with third parties and the
from Government or other authorities. . .

Company has not received any assets as gift/grant from
Government or any other authorities.
Fd I, . SR TS F.
e @ For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
ST 3041383 Chartered Accountants
w FRN 304138E
et o g Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
T : HISTHET TERR Place: Kolkata Partner

Date : 27.07.2018 Membership No. 057170
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of
even date)

i. (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Company has physically verified its fixed assets
during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of the following immovable properties
are not held in the name of the Company:

Total No. of Cases 14

Whether leasehold/freehold Freehold
Gross Block (as at Balance Sheet date) 105 lakh
Net Block (as at Balance Sheet date) 97.07 lakh

i. The Company does not hold any inventory as at the year
end. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or
unsecured, to companies, Limited Liability Partnerships,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause 3(iii) [(a), (b) and (c)] of the Order are not applicable
tothe Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loan, provided any
guarantee/ security and hence Section 185 of the Act is not
applicable. The investment made by the Company is in
compliance of section 186 of the Act.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Therefore, the provision of clause 3(v) of
the orderis not applicable on the Company.

vi. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act. Therefore, the provision of clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable on the Company.

vii. (@) The Company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and
service tax, cess and any other statutory dues as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 315t March 2018
for a period of more than six months from the date of
becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the particulars of dues of income-tax, sales-tax, value
added tax, custom duty, service tax, etc as at 31%
March 2018 which have not been deposited on account
of adispute, are as follows:
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2005-06 370 | S T erdiere feogmet (weiedl) favmardem
2006-07 076 | Sew ¢ srdtere feogmar (wodieet) favmardem
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T Tt T FehmEn TR 2094.52
8 | wieryes erfufem 1962 i ek faam grr g 1995-96 240.00 | EHHT ek S, T8
2001-02 203.81 | S=u =, FHITRIT
2012-13 1542.49 | HETEAT, SRR
2013-14 8355 | HiETHILS, ek
S HHT ek ST Ui 2069.85
9 | fou sifufem 1994 (Far=) | FaTHTAT 2002-05 73.02 | == —=mETeE, foeet
2005-07 1490.10 | EHETEITS, Hrewehia
2003-05 22,02 | TieT ST, ShicTehTal
EYRSEIETTEIRIRNN 1585.14
10| TRt sTfHfem 1961 STIHRT T 2002-03 51.56 | S=a =TT, ShIcTeRTdl
2004-05 1.06 | et eTdicd, iRl
2006-07 11.64 | TreTEet eTdied, iRl
2008-09 67.62 | STIHT eTdiel fegAe, hierehrar
2011-12 21.34 | aTftet STRIER, HrerRTaT
201213 275.73 | ST ST, ShIcTahIdl
2013-14 100.05 | 3TreT ST, ThIcTehTaT
2014-15 176.75 | oTdie STe, RIeTehral
ENEIREREETRIRUN 705.75
e HY THTAT AR 6455.26
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Sl. | Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Period to which | Amount | Forum where dispute is pending
No. the amount (% in Lakh)
relates (F.Y)
1 | UP VAT Act 2008 Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2001-02 1.93 | High Court Allahabad
2004-05 1.67 | Commercial Tax Tribunal Bench, Ghaziabad.
2 | J&K Sales Tax Act 1962 Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2009-10 1.50 | Commercial taxes Circle, Jammu
2010-11 0.66 | Commercial taxes Circle, Jammu
3 | WB VAT Act 2003 Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2009-10 332.75 | Appellate Revision Board, Kolkata
2012-13 314.42 | Commissioner, Kolkata
4 | AP VAT Act 2005 Claim by Sales Tax Authority 1998-99 22.53 | Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal (STAT),
Visakhapatnam
1999-00 44.42 | Assessing Authority i.e Commercial Tax Officer /
Surya Bagh Circle, Visakhapatnam
2004-05 9.08 | Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal (STAT),
Visakhapatnam
2005-06 3.70 | Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal (STAT),
Visakhapatnam
2006-07 0.76 | Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal (STAT) ,
Visakhapatnam
2008-13 79.35 | High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad
2007-08 27.46 | High Court. Andhra Pradesh
5 | Central Sales Tax Act (CST) | Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2009-10 249.00 | Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal (STAT),
Visakhapatnam
201112 82.32 | Appellate Deputy Commissioner (Appeals),
Vijayawada
2015-16 14.28 | Appellate Deputy Commissioner (Appeals),
Vijayawada
Orissa Sales Tax Act Claim by Sales Tax Authority 1986-87 269.00 | High Court, Orissa
Gujarat VAT Act 2003 Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2002-03 52.25 | Pre-Audit Dept. Ahmedabad
2003-04 369.45 | Pre-Audit Dept. Ahnmedabad
2004-05 217.99 | Appeal filed in Tribunal against DC (Appeal Order)
Total of Sales Tax Dues 2094.52
8 | CustomsAct 1962 Claim by Custom Department 1995-96 240.00 | Commissioner Customs, Chennai
2001-02 203.81 | HighCourt, Calcutta
2012-13 1542.49 | CESTAT, Bangalore
2013-14 83.55 | CESTAT, Bangalore
Total of Custom Dues 2069.85
9 | FinanceAct 1994 (Service Tax) | Service Tax Demand 2002-05 73.02 | High Court, Delhi
2005-07 1490.10 | CESTAT, Kolkata
2003-05 22.02 | CommissionerAppeals, Kolkata
Total of Service Tax Dues 1585.14
10{ Income TaxAct 1961 Income Tax Demand 2002-03 51.56 | High Court, Calcutta
2004-05 1.06 | CITAppeals, Kolkata
2006-07 11.64 | CITAppeals, Kolkata
2008-09 67.62 | Income taxAppellate Tribunal, Kolkata
2011-12 21.34 | CommissionerAppeals, Kolkata
2012-13 275.73 | CommissionerAppeals, Kolkata
2013-14 100.05 | CommissionerAppeals, Kolkata
2014-15 176.75 | CommissionerAppeals, Kolkata
Total of Income Tax Dues 705.75
TOTALTAXDUES 6455.26
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viii. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to banks except for the loans as
mentioned in Note No. 20(a) and 20(b) of the notes to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements and detailed here
under:

Name of Bank Principal Interest
Indian Overseas Bank T 138 lakh -
Standard Chartered Bank T 14362 lakh ¥ 7889 lakh

The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from
financial institutions or government and has not issued
any debentures.

ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer/further public offer (including debt
instruments)/term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

X. During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us,
we report that no fraud on the Company or no fraud by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the management.

xi. The managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiii. All the transactions with related parties are in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv. No money was raised through preferential allotment/
private placements of shares or fully/partly convertible
debentures during the year and hence, the provision of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xv. According to the information & explanation given to us and
the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them as referred
to in Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv)
ofthe Orderis not applicable

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under

section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 304138E

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 057170

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27.07.2018
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT

AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3(g) under “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of MSTC LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31stMarch,
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
thatdate.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act and Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with the
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
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internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(a) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(b) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

(c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our audit, the following material weakness have
been identified as at 315t March 2018:-
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(a) The Company did not have an appropriate internal control
system for customer acceptance, credit evaluation and
establishing credit limits for sales, which could potentially
result in the Company recognizing revenue without
establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.
The internal control over follow up with the customers for
recovery of dues is inadequate.

(b) The Company did not have an appropriate internal control
system with regard to pledged stock of raw materials
procured by the Company on behalf of its customers and
kept under the control of the Custodian appointed by the
Company resulting in unauthorized liftment of the
materials from the godowns.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material
weaknesses described above on the achievements of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained,
in all material aspects, adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31stMarch 2018, based on the internal financial control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 304138E

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 057170

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27.07.2018
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Tl fafies, Sictehar & 31 ArE, 2018 S YA
TS & Tferd forita fereror wx shot sifufm, 2013
T URT 129 (4) % 91 9fSd ORI 143 (6) (@) & 3awa
Frreisten ol weT erETaiereh i fewfurat

Hut etfufrm, 2013 (sAfufrm) S siafa fafafds foxda fdd &
ST T TRET % STIER 31 7€ 2018 %1 THIG gC ¥ o forg
AU fafiee w1 aafed faia faawor Goam e St o TeeE
T ST ¢ | ST st &y 129(4) o @rer ufed &Ry 139(7)
ST R o T 1Y vt erariers grT fged T o wifafies
ol Wieeh AfUfEm w1 " 143(10) & o1 fafruifia e
HHGUE! oh STTHR T oIl T o STHR I ST ST i 9T
129(4) % e gfed €RT 143 % sidia 3 faxier faawo W faar uwe
F % forw STRerE €1 9% S o wdie fe fediew 27 e,
2018 % STTIR 3k GRT okl T S T 2 |

9, WA % fries iR e erarRiers & 7R § 31 ArE, 2018 &
T 9% % o wuEerEt fafiee & wfed faxdia faawoi =t
aifufrg & u/T 129 (4) % T ufed & 143(6) (F) & siafa
ST oI TRI&TT T e (ol © | B9 39 qRIE i T a9
o wruE fafiee T sHen! weras Sut R B frm fafree
o foriier framoTl ot STuRe o Te ot § | 38eh ST, sttt &6t
HRT 139(5) 3R 143(6)(F), T ST9 Hu Al THTHI
Tramsfactt wegae fafges W faoft &= =t Feen g9 & &R Jeanfas
wETRieE w ffa % fau o ow S % S aErian
e o foTu @ & & | e freise Td weT oragdieren 3 St
T wiiereh ot Tfer et ot € oI A1 & 59 SOt Rl qXek o T
T ST fohan € | Wifafes aan e & HRIERT S S 9@
TR g STTYF T T T € T 1 T 7 IR gea: wifafts
T TieThi Wa HUHT ok HIHRT ohi TSATS 3R F9 @i Afierat
i e IR e S S |

TRY ST o TR o SR qC R G H i3 off Hecrgul e 76l
s %, v fom erfufag o6t ey 143 (6) (W) % 1efi= wifafees orar
Ttereh FTATe T RIS feuquft steram Qe we foran T ok |

ORa o o d et et
AR Y

(gt <)
arforfoeren e uRie & et e it

T : iR T T, @ Ie N - |

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ
WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
MSTC LIMITED, KOLKATA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st
MARCH 2018

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of MSTC
Limited for the year ended 315t March 2018 in accordance with
the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditors
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(7) read with section 129(4) of the Act are
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 27t July 2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
have conducted a supplementary audit of the consolidated
financial statements of MSTC Limited for the year ended 315t
March, 2018 under Section 143(6)(a) read with section 129(4)
of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of MSTC Limited and its subsidiary
company Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited for the year ended on
that date. Further, section 139(5) and 143(6)(a) of the Act
are not applicable to its Joint Venture Company Mahindra
MSTC Recycling Private Limited being private entity for
appointment of their Statutory Auditor nor for conduct of
supplementary audit. Accordingly, Comptroller & Auditor
General of India has neither appointed the Statutory
Auditors nor conducted the supplementary audit of this
company. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the
statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the
statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant
has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any
comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors’ Report
under section 143 (6) (b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Suparna Deb)
Director General of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-I,
Kolkata

Place : Kolkata
Date :14.09.2018
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Weua gad 7 : 31 7 2018
faaxa

Notes
afteafaat ASSETS feofore
1. ] - Hisper wiEdfaat (1) Non-current assets
() Fufa, e 3iiT Suso (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2
(@) wfa & dsfira et (b) Capital Work in Progress 2
() o wafwat (c) Intangible assets 2
(=) ot dfeai (d) Financial assets
(i) frawr (i) Investments
() @R o # (a) In Subsidiary 3
(@) dg= 3usm # (b) In Joint Venture 3
(i) o= faita dufaat (i) Other financial assets 4
(&) TR # gufa (e) Non-Current tax assets 5
(=) reafTa = |ufd (T5) (f) Deferred tax assets (net) 6
(®) o= T Hisger wfteafaat (g) Other non current assets 7
T R-Hivger wieafmt Total non- current assets
2. e wfwafaat (2) Current assets
(=) geiedt (wrerg=h) (a) Inventories 8
(@) focitar waf=i (b) Financial assets
(i) oA gy (i) Trade receivables 9
(i) TR ST FoRE THRE (i) Cash and cash equivalents 10
(i) o= e AT (iii) Other Bank Balances "
(iv) et fadtr dufaat (iv) Other financial assets 12
() =1 HisaT Hafwwat (c) Other current assets 13
F Hisar Fafa Total current assets
F gREgtaEr TOTAL ASSETS
st wd o EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) sferet (1) Equity
(=) =t oo osft (a) Equity Share Capital 14
(@) 1= st (b) Other equity 15
Fa sferet Total equity
(2) TrR-iispRT T (2) Non-current liabilities
(=) foreftar Szram (a) Financial liabilities
() =R (i) Trade payables 16
(i) o= fa<ia <Fan (i) Other financial liabilities 17
(@) vmae (b) Provisions 18
() 3= T HisgT (c) Other non-current liabilities 19
Fo TR Hisgar o Total non- current liabilities
(2) wisger S (3) Current liabilities
() foirar <zam (a) Financial liabilities
(O (i) Borrowings 20
(i) =R (i) Trade payables 21
(iii) 1= ferefter S (iiiy Other financial liabilities 22
(@) o= i 3o (b) Other current liabilities 23
T HISIaT S Total current liabilities
T S Total liabilities
Fa sfaaet wa SFa TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Tor feoforat sart aafeifend fdrd % @R faxi@  The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
e & s1fi= feam =T ST | In terms of our report of even date.

TIRI wHfEHifRa fdle % STTER  In terms of our report of even date

Fd €. F. TR TS &, For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
TS ST Chartered Accountants
THARTA : 304138E FRN : 304138E

T RS FHR AT CA Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
TERR Partner

THH. ;057170 M. No : 057170

Dated : 27.07.2018

feiar 1 27.07.2018
T Place : Kolkata

(s, fie) (B.B Singh)
AT TE-TS T CHAIRMAN-CUM-
IBMETA - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN- 03212787

. e

& HeTa e, fod T8 ST CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

(R K Chaudhuri)

(% @@ & Amount in ¥ lakh)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2018

As at 315t Mar 2018

309
648
90
1,047

1,581
1,060
573
1,713
29,721
1,039
36,734

3,84,221
17,574
33,010
3,942
477
4,39,224

4,75,958

3,520
52,756
56,276

26

94
1,664
737
2,521

76,164
2,55,237
84,174
1,586
4,17,161
4,19,682
4,75,958

F THTHER fafaes

(T %, 99)
e fo

ERTETA- 03102901

ool

As at 315t Mar 2017

357

143
500

1,681
310
652
459

31,078
392
34,972

7,074

3,61,887
7,178
37,680
6,252
843
4,20,914
4,55,886

1,760
49,941
51,701

26
68
1,281
568
1,943

68,835
2,52,630
79,795
982
4,02,242
4,04,185
4,55,886

For MSTC LIMITED

(A. K. Basu)
DIRECTOR FINANCE
DIN- 03102901

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
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31 T 2018 i T T8 % fAC AN T A HT LT faawo
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the period 315t March 2018

ferercor Particulars ferooft R et ad
Note Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
RIEGEIRE ASSETS
| ofterem @ e | Revenue from operations 24 1,94,627 1,42,869
Il = e Il Other Income 25 51,323 6,883
Il et Teteer (1 +11) Il Total Revenue (I +1I) 2,45,950 1,49,752
IV == IV EXPENSES
() ARG TS St ISR (a) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 26 1,47,896 1,24,247
(@) R TEgsit & wiw | agard (b) Changes in stock of finished goods,
% Wl SR ST A work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 7,074 (5545)
(1) HHER feaemy | == (c) Employee benefit expense 27 8,740 5,006
(=) fatm == (d) Finance costs 28 6,729 6,699
(¥) g™ Ta aiEiee == (e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 145 142
(3) 3= = (f) Other expenses 29 64,207 9,542
AR Total Expenses 2,34,791 1,40,091
V&g e (- 1V) V' Profit before tax (lll- V) 11,159 9,661
VI == VI Tax Expense 36
(F) I HT (a) Current tax 2,225 3,388
(@) reAfia wT (b) Deferred tax 1,271 (270)
FA B =TT Total tax expense 3,496 3,118
VIl = & faw @ (V- V) VIl Profit for the year (V- VI) 7,663 6,543
VIl 3= =amaen 3 VIl Other comprehensive income
(%) =% S A A W % fAT gHertisnor (a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
TR @ ST T G A9 &1 fohalr Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 40 (119) (916)
(@) IR T T H (b) Income tax on above (86) 317
(205) (599)
IX o % e @ samew s (VIE+ V) IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII) 7,458 5,944
X i sfeadt e ol (Sifed 7o % 10 va) X Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 10 each): 37
(=) ofaw (T 4.) (a) Basic (inR) 22 19
(@) TEeges (R 4.) (b) Diluted (inR) 22 19

Her fewforat gart gaferifea fdid % egar fadfm  The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.

forawor % safy= fewy AT S | In terms of our report of even date.
TR IR ﬁ'@f’c‘ % 3TTER  In terms of our report of even date 1 THUEAE fafiee For  MSTC LIMITED
Fd €. F. TR TS &, For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
TS AETITe Chartered Accountants
THSIRTA : 304138E FRN : 304138E
T RS FHR G CA Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala (sft.&. fog) (B.B Singh) (T%. 99) (A. K. Basu)
HERR Partner ST -Te- T IR CHAIRMAN-CUM- fagwres for DIRECTOR FINANCE
T . 1 057170 M. No : 057170 SIBMETA - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR ITMETA- 03102901 DIN- 03102901
DIN- 03212787
feiar 1 27.07.2018 Dated : 27.07.2018 . =gl ) (R K Chaudhuri) (37 %{‘ ) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
T Place : Kolkata T HEWEH, fo TS @@l CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER ot COMPANY SECRETARY

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS




o AMSTC

Tz LIMITED

LA FETR R UTEN ) pasTo 1T, o e Frivqes]

(@@ d Amount in T lakh)
31 w= 2018 &1 A 9 % faQ sfaeet # aRady &1 Leua faerm
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 315t March 2018

ferercar Particulars . stifrd e (%) SgSieel
Nos. Face Value ) (3 Lakhs)
& 3fFt R T 10 TAH ST, A Equity shares of ¥10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
FAEhTEsS Te Yol wew
3w Tl 31 A=, 2016 A Balance as at March 31, 2016 88,00,000 10 880
T WAL 111 o ST H SR Bonus Shares issued in the ratio 1:1 88,00,000 10 880
W5 R 1 31, 2017 07 Balance as at April 01, 2017 1,76,00,000 10 1,760
A IR 1:1 % ST H SR Bonus Shares issued in the ratio1:1 1,76,00,000 10 1,760
Y Wi 31 A, 2018 &1 Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,52,00,000 10 3,520
o I faet B. Other Equity
T Tfaeia s FA
STTETOT
General Retained Total
Reserve Earnings
Y f¥r 31 A, 2016 w1 Balance as at March 31, 2016 46,730 2171 48,901
o % Profit for the year 6,543 6,543
oY ¥G T IS T Other Comprehensive Income for the year (599) (599)
T AR B o (F) Transfer to General Reserve/(From)
g s Retained Earning 203 (203) -
sifaw @iy fa<itar o 15-16 Final Dividend FY 15-16 (1,804) (1,804)
e ST R e fowor oY i 9§ 15-16  Dividend Distribution Tax on Final Dividend FY 15-16 (361) (361)
ot ad 16-17 o faq efafe ameis Interim Dividend for FY 16-17 (1,672) (1,672)
START AT TR AT faRor o T 9 16-17  Dividend Distribution Tax on Interim Dividend FY 16-17 (187) (187)
FE R SR AT Issue of Bonus Shares (880) (880)
W5 TR 1 31, 2017 Balance as at April 01, 2017 46,933 3,008 49,941
9 o T Profit for the year 7,663 7,663
L) Tq 3T AT T4 Other Comprehensive Income for the year (205) (205)
T SRR H Ty (F) Transfer to General Reserve/(From)
gfaemia o= Retained Earning 2,683 (2,683) -
siaf fefage fa<iar ad 16-17 Final Dividend FY 16-17 (2,499) (2,499)
e e T e fowr Y faiim a9 16-17  Dividend Distribution Tax on Final Dividend FY 16-17 (384) (384)
AT SR T AR R S Issue of Bonus Shares (1,760) (1,760)
T 99 31 AT, 2018 Balance as at March 31, 2018 49,616 3,140 52,756
e feofort ot Tufemifwa R & oTER The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
forefer feraror o stfv= feedy Wit STt | In terms of our report of even date.
TIRI wHfEHifRa fdle % STTER  In terms of our report of even date Fd THUESE fafaes  For  MSTC LIMITED
Fd €. F. TR TS &, For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
TR ST Chartered Accountants
THARTT : 304138E FRN : 304138E
%mﬁm TR o) ¢ i @%ﬁa&}f—gs——)m frRw® éﬁggﬁ?ﬁ-}cum- %aﬁ?% éﬁiEKé?g;ugmANCE
THH. 1 057170 M. No : 057170 SIS - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR SeTETA- 03102901 DIN- 03102901
DIN- 03212787
fertiar © 27.07.2018 Dated : 27.07.2018 S, =gl ) (R K Chaudhuri) (w1 g_;arr ™)  (Ajay Kumar Rai)
M Place : Kolkata T HeTa Y, fod T8 ST CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER et COMPANY SECRETARY

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS
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31 1 2018 ! THT 99 & AT The e H LSTAH HT foero
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 315t March 2018

faeror Particulars As at As at
31st Mar 2018 31st Mar 2017
&, ufareH nfafafe=t @ e yare A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
a9 & foau &2 9 9d @y Profit Before Tax for the year 11,159 9,661
TAERH Adjustments for:
TR / e = Depreciation /Amortisation Expenses 145 142
AT H AT Dividend Income 617) (888)
T G AT Interest Income (1,891) (3,535)
ot T Finance Cost 6,729 6,699
wufd, T3 T 3R i fasht  wf Loss on sale of Property Plant and Equipments 2 -
AT el 18 T WaeH TRifhd fRT T Provision no Longer Required Written Back (45,952) (2,418)
G RO 5 @ S Bad Debt Witten Off 45,941 2,418
e wd diery afim & fau waeme Provision for Bad and Doubtful Advances 13,881 3,122
AT TR Y TE Liability written Back (2,817) -
wHrEe goit aiee & qe afeEre Operating profit before Working Capital changes 26,580 15,201
fEre Tufd Te SIfae § aieda &g THEs Adjustments for changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities
gfeEata dufd § (3fg) /& &g e Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
EIRNIRR IR RG] Movement in working capital:
IR U 31 Wi | (gfg) /e (Increase)/decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (33,751) (87,274)
a7 ufcermtaat § (gfg) /et (Increase)/decrease in Other Assets (281) 462
= | (Jf5) /e (Increase)/ decrease in Inventories 7,074 (5,545)
qfiETeH St § gfg/(FHT) &g SRS Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
IR SFTaH e 31 fasia <o # gfg/ () Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables & Others Financial Liabilities 9,832 32,286
1= <o ¥ gfg/ () Increase/ (decrease) in Other Liabilities 773 (463)
wraHH § gig/(FHh) Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions 264 365
TR & e S Gy Cash generated from Operations 10,491 (44,968)
TeIE BT A (YS AT Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (3,480) (4,041)
S T Net cash from Operating Activities 7,011 (49,009)
@) T wfafafert @ T v B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
wufy, T Td TR W Wi (T5) Proceeds of Property Plant and Equipment (Net) (695) (207)
et st 7 faasr Investment In Fixed Deposits 4,670 26,411
T T # e Investment in Joint Venture (750) (310)
ISR Interest received 1,828 3,687
AT T Dividend Income 617 888
Trarer wTeieT § 6 TR Net cash used in Investing Activities 5,670 30,469
() foxita Friwa 9 THg yaw C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Sreafiarel Ut o wift/ (i) Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (151) 12,170
AT YT Interest Paid (6,731) (6,689)
RICINRCUGIE] Dividend Paid (2,499) (3,476)
A T T Tax on Dividends (384) (548)
foira Friway # =aed ¥§ 6 Net cash used in Financing Activities (9,765) 1,457
HE TS Tohe THHE (H+E+T) H 5 I/ (F) Net increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents(A+B+C) 2,916 (17,083)
Y F URE | T TS Thg & THHRET Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year (5,738) 11,345
Y % S7d B hg T ThS & THR Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year (2,822) (5,738)
SF 2 : (1) FIh | I i afeate <wid & Note : (1) Figures in brackets indicate outflows.
(2) TThe Te e THGe™ QU arel faawer (2) Statement Showing Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at 315t Mar 2018 As at 315t Mar 2017
Zin lakh Tin lakh
a9 & fd T Tg T THS THERE Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year 17,574 7178
T : I % Hd H SRR doid Less : Over Draft Balances at the end of the year (20,396) (12,916)
a8 & o7 § Y§ ThS TH ThS THBE Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year (2,822) (5,738)
TIRI wHfEHifRa fdle % STTER  In terms of our report of even date Fd THUEAE fafdes  For  MSTC LIMITED
Fd . . TR TE . For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
TR ST Chartered Accountants
THARTT : 304138E FRN : 304138E
e it EREREIN CA Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala . fog B.B Singh . A.K.Basu
HERR e Partner : : (;ZJ’I&T—W—)W iR éHAlRMAgN-)CUM- %Waé?)f l(JlRECTOR lleANCE
THH. 1 057170 M. No : 057170 SISAETA - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR <ISAETH- 03102901 DIN- 03102901
DIN- 03212787
A 1 27.07.2018 Dated : 27.07.2018 CF. < (R K Chaudhuri) (A FARTT)  (Ajay Kumar Rai)
T Place : Kolkata T HRIE Y, a9 Ud @@l CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER ST EE;R COMPANY SECRETARY

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS
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31 W, 2018 & W 99 ¥F WeudH foxia faewor #t
feoaforat
1.%) TERISTHSR

TTE ! fafies weh H-Re 9oft-1| o, 9 fader, 1964 =i syt
arfufer, 1956 % siaria Tifed g8 off | ot saraifier Tfafaf, -
FAE 3R T X -1 Sy, afeRe er, @i, St i am
ST IS T UM il €, T SR A & o SUshAT 37K
T faemtt o T | ot 6t g fafafy < Seres vt § et
I TTE B, 7T S TR e | E-hiad fedier $-emdt & arem
Y Bhy, AR Jer, @i, ST & a7 Sl & e w8
fifquer =t §= | wfga § - T T, s, T/ foeet
TRFR, TSR &1 & SUhH T Sfea 3iaet Hiqee fol., i
fergeam Weiferam widfvem far. anfe | froem =t wfo & wiver & - £-
SR, 3-3e, 3-ad siaem enfe | @ &, THuwSE e sfean
far., fomt Hrerhieed fa. smfe & Rier ot €- i widt § |1 38
AT THIEETE $- TRk Tarem of weM il ¢ | 2fen fedsm
ST/ faTd el B SATIR 31 AT 2i1eh SEifiTeh shed! QHirE) &
RIS YT € | I TR Seit i 3l & fore siefies set
T e gt AT ThY, A U HedAfS el shieh, TR Fa1ad,
S ST, A, T e, T HIA S F ST &I, Ha T
et oh1 Sl § | HIFAV/EEATd AN, da1 &, T i elfHeaaret
forega shufat snf sifam e €1
1.9) T o @i T : TFeh ST fohq 1T w_g T+t ek Tereit
BLGRS
Fmfire Aot oot (THET) 3 €S TUE 115-TTeeh! o |1 Sfaer 9
TorEs stfergfed foren € we feAie 28.03.2018 =1 a9 g uud §
Fo geieH fregar € |
(%) S TTH 115 - Tewh! o Aoy WfeeT & To7e ; 78 $5 uud 11 fmfor

wferer, g5 uH 18 TeTed Wd Haiferd sqreaii gied adar TsTed

AT ARSI o T 9 AR T |
(@) THF S8 TH H WIeA :

(i) Teuwm21 - foxeh g et # uftad= & auE

(i) TTTTH40 -FrEmrdufa

(i) STWH12 -AAHT

(iv) $STTH28 - TEart ve Tger serd 7 fo, 3T

(v) SSUTH 112 - e ¥ fedi ol wehes

T $€ T 115 o foawga Uue o e ot ufshan 8 § | o
AT FTE % G WG SMehRe # T TE ¢ 5 T ok fadda
feraroit W g2 wud 115 o SIuENT A eriferd €, faara sae for g wug
115 T TR0 § U i TSTE Wpia & T9F T hIE Seer@Ha
IR STafad TR 7 |

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

1.A.General Information

MSTC Limited a Miniratha Category-ll Company was

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 9th

September, 1964. The Company undertakes trading activities,

e-commerce and also disposal of ferrous and non-ferrous

scrap, surplus stores, minerals, agri and forest produces etc.
mostly from Public Sector Undertakings and Govt.

Departments. The core activity of the Company has been

divided into two Operational Divisions, i.e. e-Commerce and

Trading. The e-Commerce division undertakes disposal of

Scrap, surplus stores, minerals, agri and forest produces

through e-Auction. The list of Principals includes Ministry of

Defence, PMO, Govt. of NCT/Delhi, PSUs like Indian Oil

Corporation Ltd., Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd, State

Electricity Boards, Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd, Hindustan

Petroleum Corporation Ltd. etc. The mode of disposal

includes e-auction, e-tender, e-reverse auction etc. Besides,

MSTC also e-auctions coal from Coal India Ltd, Singareni

Coalfields Ltd etc.Apart from these MSTC also provides e-

procurement solution. The trading division handles

import/export and domestic trade of mainly bulk industrial raw
material. It looks after sourcing, purchase and sales of
industrial raw materials like Heavy Melting Scrap, Low Ash

Metallurgical Coke, HR Coil, Crude Oil, Naptha, Coking Coal,

Steam Coal etc. for supply to Indian industries. The end

customers are Coal/Steel Industries, Oil sector, State owned

Power Companies etc.

1.B. Recent Accounting Developments: Standards issued

but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 115-

Revenue from Contract with Customers and certain

amendment to existing Ind ASs, on 28.03.2018 as narrated

below:

(a) Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: This
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including Ind AS 11 Construction Contract, Ind AS 18
Revenue and related interpretations.

(b) Amendmentto existing Ind AS:
(i) Ind AS 21- The effect of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates
(i) IndAS40- InvestmentProperty.
(iii) IndAS 12-Income Taxes
(iv) Ind AS 28- Investment in Associates and Joint
Ventures,and
(v) IndAS 112-Disclosure of Interests in other entities
The Company is in the process of assessing the detailed
impact of Ind AS 115. Presently, the Company is not able to
reasonably estimate the impact that application of Ind AS 115
is expected to have on its financial statements, except that
adoption of Ind AS 115 is not expected to significantly change
the timing of the Company’s revenue recognition.
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The above changes as notified shall be applicable to the
Company w.e.f from 01.04.2018. The Company intends to
adopt the standard using the modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 15t April 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

1.C Significant Accounting Policies
1.C.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period by Ind ASs. The financial
statements of the Company have been preapared to comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind ASs’), including the
rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act2013.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

Functional Currency and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (%)
which is the Company's functional currency for all its
operations. All financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (%) has been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise stated.

Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current/ non-current classification. All assets
and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as
per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind
AS 1-—‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of accounts in accordance with Ind ASs
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
accounts and reported amounts of income and expenses
during the period.
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Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the
accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and
the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the
Company’s accounting policies arise in relation to property,
plant and equipment, current asset provisions, deferred tax,
retirement benefits. The detailed accounting policies,
including underlying judgments and methods of estimations
for each of these items are discussed below. All of these key
factors are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
estimates are revised and any future periods affected.

1.C.2 Foreign Currency Translation

In preparing the financial statements of the Company,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Exchange
differences arising on retranslation on non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in statement of profit and loss
for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the
customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange
gain/loss are notrecognised in the books of the Company.

1.C.3(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an
asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and its cost can be
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the
costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and
equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance
costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss as incurred. When a replacement
occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
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The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Included in property, plant and equipment are loose plant and
tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related
to their expected useful lives and estimated scrap value and
also spares, against which impairment provisions are made
where necessary to cover slow moving and obsolete items.

1.C.3(b) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line
basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment to their
residual value. These charges are commenced from the date
the assets are available for their intended use and are spread
over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated
useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is
provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
stillinuse.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only
when the assets are ready for theirintended use.

Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant
and equipment, net of their residual values, over their useful
life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property,
plantand equipment are:

Type of Asset Estimated Useful life (Years)
Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Furnitures and Fixtures 10
Partition and Cubicles 10
Building 60
Air Conditioners 10
Computers 3
Servers 6

1.C.3(c) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Further, the management estimates that the intangible assets
are having zero carrying cost at the end of its useful life i.e.
zeroresidual value.
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1.C.4Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the carrying amount of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication, the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. Animpairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years. Areversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

1.C.5Investmentin Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

Investment in subsidiaries and Joint venture are carried at
cost. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are
recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

1.C.6 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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a) Financial assets
I Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Il.  Financial assets measured at fair value through Other
comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially
at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, the interest income, losses & reversals, and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Ill. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial
instruments whose credit risk has not significantly increased
since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months
expected creditlosses is recognised.
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Derecognition offinancial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained
interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralised borrowing of the proceeds
received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of directissue costs.

Financial Liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include Trade and other
payables and borrowings including bank overdrafts are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Balance Sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

1.C.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at
bank, and bank overdraft which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.
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1.C.8 Inventories

Stock in trade including material-in-transit is valued at cost or
estimated netrealisable value whicheveris less.

1.C.9 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised on accrual basis except in the

following items which are accounted on actual realization

since realisibility of such items is uncertain in accordance with

the provisions of the accounting standards:

i) Decrees pending for execution/contested dues and
interest thereon, if any.

ii) Interest on overdue recoverables where realisability is
uncertain.

ii) Liquidated damages on suppliers or contractors.

iv) Refund of Income-Tax/Sales Tax/VAT and interest
thereon.

v) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive
paymentis established

Sales

i) High sea sales are booked on the basis of date of issuance
of high sea sale letter. As regards value, sales are booked
either at contracted forward exchange rates, if booked, or
provisionally on the basis of FEDAI spot exchange rates
prevailing on the last date of the financial year, where
forward cover was not taken, which includes C&F / CIF
price, usuance interest followed by final adjustment on due
date of payment in subsequent financial year.

i) Incase of indigenous material, sales are accounted for on
the basis of date of transport documents and as regards
value, based on the value of invoices. In case of sale on
door delivery basis sales are booked on sales invoice
dates.

ii) In case of export, sales are accounted for on the basis of
date of shipment. As  regards value, sales are booked
either at contracted forward exchange rates, if booked, or
at the FEDAI rate on the date of shipment as per custom
clearance document, followed by final adjustment on
actual realisation of export proceeds.

Service Charges

Remuneration for transaction in Marketing Department
through facilitator mode and for conducting
sales/procurement on behalf of Principals, by way of auctions,
tenders, or any other means, are accounted for as service
charges.

(a) Service charges are accounted for as income at
contracted rates on:

i. Tender/Auction sale on behalf of Public Sector
Undertakings, Defence and other Government
Departments on issuance of sale orders / delivery
orders.
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ii. On satisfactory completion of e-sales.

In respect of (i) & (ii), service charges are accounted for
on bid price of auction with adjustments, if any, on the
basis of actual delivery by the Principals, in case
service charges are payable on percentage basis.

iii. Onoccurrence of event, in case of service contract on
eventbasis.

iv. In case of e-Procurement Service charges are booked,
where service charges are collectable from the
Principal, on completion of event.

(b) E-Procurement transaction fees collected from bidders
are accounted on successful conduct of event.

(c) Service charges accrued in respect of purchase as
facilitator are accounted for at the contracted rate on the
basis of date of bill of lading / railway receipt / lorry receipt
as the case may be. For imported materials, value is
ascertained either at forward cover rate or at FEDAI spot
rate prevailing on the last date of the Financial Year. Final
adjustment is made on actual payment. In case of
indigenous materials, value is ascertained on the basis of
actual payment at contracted rate.

E-Auction Registration

E-auction Registration fees collected from buyers is
considered as income of the current year if the validity of
registration is upto one year. In case of life long registration,
the amount so collected is distributed in five years equally.

Purchases

(i) Imported materials are accounted for as purchase on the
basis of date of bill of lading. As regards value, purchase
are booked on the basis of actual remittance and where
such remittance are outstanding at the close of the year, on
the basis of contracted forward exchange rates, if booked,
or FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on the last date of
the financial year, in case forward cover is not taken, as the
case may be. Purchase value includes material value
freight, insurance etc. and usance interest followed by final
adjustments on actual payment in subsequent financial
year.

(ii) In case of indigenous materials, purchases are booked on
the basis of transport documents and as regards value,
based on the value of invoices.

1.C.10 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for theirintended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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1.C.11 Employee Benefits
(a) Shortterm benefits

Short term employee benefits are accounted for at their
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered by the employees are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Leave encashment

The liabilities for earned leave and commuted leave are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render related service.
They are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made inrespect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The benefits are discounted using the market yield at the end
of the reporting period that have terms of approximating to the
terms of related obligations. Remeasurement as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.The facility is
funded through LIC of India.

(c) Post-employment obligation
Defined Contribution Plan-Provident Fund

Provident Fund is administered by a Trust recognised by
Income Tax Authorities and contribution to this Fund is
charged to revenue. Pensioner’s Benefits are secured through
Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995.

Defined Benefit Plan-
(a) Service Gratuity

The liabilities or assets recognised in the Balance Sheet in
respect of defined gratuity plan is the present value of the
defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefits
obligations are calculated annually by actuaries using
projected unit credit method. The present value of defined
benefits obligations is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that are
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discounted
rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.
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Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
resulting from amendments and curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. The Gratuity
obligation is funded through Group Gratuity Life Assurance
Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India and is
administered through a separate irrevocable trust created by
the Company for this purpose.

(b) Post Retirement medical benefit

The Company provides post retirement healthcare benefits to
its retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to the
retirement age and the completion of minimum service period.
The expected cost of these benefits is accrued over the period
of employment using the same accounting methodology as
used for defined benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The
fund is administered through a separate trust created for this
purpose.

1.C.12 Taxation
Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
(i) Currenttax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax for the year as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted in the country where the
Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

(i) Deferredtax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is
written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatiitis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that
they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and there
are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

1.C.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

Provisions are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits which can be
reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When appropriate,
provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an
entity’s actions whereby an established pattern of past
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities; and as a result, the entity has
created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current estimate of management.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is
probable.

1.C.14 SegmentReporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public
business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures. The Company undertakes
trading activities, and also acts as e-commerce service
provider. Based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in
Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates Company’s performance and allocates resources
on an analysis of various performance indicators by operating
segments. In terms of above the Company has identified
Marketing and e-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable
Business Segments. Revenue and identifiable operating
expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on
items that are individually identifiable to that segment. Rest of
the items of revenue and expenses,which cannot be
specifically allocated under specific segments are separately
disclosed as unallocated.
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1.C.15 Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions and
Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results
of operations during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful economic lives and impairment of other assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
(PPE) and intangible asset is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and
other economic factors (such as known technological
advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE and intangibles at
the end of each reporting date and any changes could affect
the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment
for possible impairment if there are events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property,
plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's
business plans and changes in regulatory environment are
taken into consideration.

(i) Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may
arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the
Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be
probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute
can be made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not
expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the
Company’s financial position or profitability.
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(iii) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company's liability towards defined
benefit obligation to employees is made through independent
actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other
comprehensive income. Such valuation depend on
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand factors in the employment market.

(iv) Fair Value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Company engages third party
valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

(v) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax
losses and unused tax credit

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is
based on an assessment of the probability of the Company's
future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in
assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.
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2 a. Property, Plant and Equipment

Amount in ¥ lakhs

Particulars Freehold Office  Office Air ~ Furniture Office EDP  Leasehold  Vehicles Total
Buildings Equipment Conditioner and Partition & Equipments Improvements Tangible
fixtures  Cubicles Assets
Gross Block as at March 31, 2016 105 17 37 119 105 189 0 10 582
Additions 0 1 4 10 8 38 0 " 72
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 1 21
Gross Block as at April 01, 2017 105 18 41 129 13 207 0 20 633
Additions 0 0 5 5 40 50
Disposals 0 0 0 0 20 5 25
Gross Block as at March 31, 2018 105 18 46 134 93 242 0 20 658
Depreciation as at March 31, 2016 2 2 12 47 46 46 0 1 156
Charge for the year 3 4 9 31 22 71 0 2 142
Disposals 0 0 0 0 21 0 1 22
Depreciation as at April 01, 2017 5 6 21 78 68 96 0 2 276
Charge for the year 3 3 5 12 3 63 3 92
Disposals 0 0 15 4 19
Depreciation as at March 31, 2018 8 9 26 90 56 155 0 5 349
Net book value as at March 31, 2016 103 15 25 72 59 143 0 9 426
Net book value as at March 31, 2017 100 12 20 51 45 M 0 18 357
Net book value as at March 31, 2018 97 9 20 44 37 87 0 15 309
2 b. Capital Work in Progress
Costas  Addition Deletion Cost as at Depreciation Addition  Adjustment Depreciation ~ Net Book
at April atMarch  as at April asatMarch  Value as
01,2016 31,2017 01,2016 31,2017  at March
31,2017
Capital WIP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Costas  Addition Deletion  Cost as Depreciation Addition  Adjustment Depreciation ~ Net Book
at April atMarch  as at April asatMarch  Value as
01,2017 31,2018 01,2017 31,2018  at March
31,2018
Capital WIP 0 648 0 648 0 0 0 0 648
Total 0 648 0 648 0 0 0 0 648
Amount represents advance payment made to NBCC(India) Limited towards construction of New Office Building at Newtown,Kolkata.
2 c. Intangible assets
Costas  Addition Deletion ~ Cost as Depreciation Addition  Adjustment Depreciation ~ Net Book
at April atMarch  as at April asatMarch  Value as
01,2016 31,2017 01,2016 31,2017 at March
31,2017
Software Licence 0 143 0 143 0 0 0 0 143
Total 0 143 0 143 0 0 0 0 143
Costas  Addition Deletion ~ Cost as Depreciation Addition  Adjustment Depreciation ~ Net Book
at April atMarch  as at April asatMarch  Value as
01,2017 31,2018 01,2017 31,2018  at March
31,2018
Trade Mark 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Software Licence 143 0 0 143 0 0 0 53 90
Total 143 0 0 143 0 0 0 53 90
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3. Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares, fully paid up-carried at cost.
Amount (X in lakhs)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount (% in lakhs)
2018 2017 2018 2017
a) Investment in Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (Face Value ¥ 10/- each) 3,20,00,000 3,20,00,000 1,581 1,581
b) Investment in 50:50 Joint Venture Company
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (Face Value ¥ 10/- each) | 1,06,00,000 31,00,000 1,060 310
Notes :

1) During the financial year 2016-17, FSNL, the wholly owned subsidiary company has issued bonus shares aggregating to
3,00,00,000 shares of% 10/- each, in two tranches.

2) During F.Y. 2016-17 MSTC Limited and Mahindra Intertrade Ltd have formed a 50:50 Joint Venture Company named Mahindra
MSTC Recycling Private Ltd on 16th December 2016 for setting up of Auto shredding plant.

3) During F. Y. 2017-18 MSTC Limited have invested ¥ 7,50,00,000 towards equity contribution in Mahindra MSTC Recycling
Private Limited.

4 . Other Financial Assets (Non Current)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Security deposits 86 101
(b) Other loans and advances Loans to employees 480 543
(c) Interest accrued on loans to employees 3 4

(d) Balance with scheduled banks in deposit accounts
Term Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 4 4
Total 573 652

4.1 The term deposits are pledged with banks against over draft facility and margin for guarantee.

5. Non-Current Tax Assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Advance payment of Taxes 60,699 57,220
Less: Provision for Taxation 58,986 56,761

Total 1,713 459
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6 . Deferred Tax Assests (Net)
Amount in ¥ lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) Through Profit or Loss
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets:
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property,
Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets -

Others 9)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities (9) 14

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property,

Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets 7 -
Allowances for doubtful debts / advances 18,573 29,494
Disallowances under Section 40(a)(i), 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 1,644 1,281
Unabsorbed Business loss 7050

MAT credit Entitlement 2225

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 29,499 30,775
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 29,490 30,761

(b) Through Other Comprehensive Income

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 231 317
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 231 317
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 29,721 31,078

7 . Other Assets (Non Current)

Particulars As at As at
Unsecured, Considered Good March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Advance with public bodies Sales Tax 296 308
(b) Prepaid Lease Payments Cost* 723 -
(c) Other loans and advances
(i) Prepaid expenses 4 8
(i) Others 1 11
(d) Post Retirement benefit assets - 65
(e) Advance for Building Construction 15 -
Total 1,039 392

* Amount paid towards acquisition of Leasehold Land from WBHIDCO.

8 . Inventories

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Stock in transit - 7,074

Total - 7,074
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Particulars

As at

March 31, 2018
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March 31, 2017

Trade receivables
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(a) Secured considered good 3,49,739 3,15,842

(b) Unsecured, considered good 34,482 46,045

(c) Unsecured, considered doubtful 53,150 40,140
Less: Allowance for Doubtful trade receivables 53,150 40,140
Total 3,84,221 3,61,887

Notes:

9.1: Trade Receivables

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding
six months from the date they are due for payment:

Secured, Considered good 85,900 44,137
Unsecured, Considered good 30,761 42,941
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 53,150 40,140
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 53,150 40,140
Total 1,16,661 87,078

Trade Receivables outstanding for a period less than
six months from the date they are due for payment:

Secured, Considered good 2,63,839 2,71,705
Unsecured, Considered good 3,721 3,104

2,67,560 2,74,809
Total 3,84,221 3,61,887.00

9.2: Trade Receivables include an amount of ¥ 14782 lakh on account of export of gold jewellery during 2008-09. The said
receivables were purchased by Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) under a Receivable Purchase Agreement . As per the said
agreement, SCB would purchase the bills raised by MSTC on foreign buyers and pay 95% of the amount to MSTC and
foreign buyers would be paying against the bills directlyto SCB on respective due dates of the bills. The said export
transactions were also insured by SCB with ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company. On non receipt of proceeds from
the foreign buyers, SCB claimed the amount from the insurance company. The Insurance company repudiated the claim of
SCB. Thereafter SCB converted the receivables into debtand filed a case in Debt Recovery Tribunal, Mumbai. MSTC has
been contesting the case in DRT and other forums against the said claim of SCB. SCB has also filed a suit against the
insurance company for the said amount of unrealized dues which is yet to be disposed off. Pending disposal of the cases,
MSTC has been showing the amount as receivables without adjusting the same against the amount paid by SCBto MSTC
against purchase of the said receivables(export bills) which is being shown in books separately as Borrowing( Current)
vide Note No. 20.

9.3: Trade receivables are generally secured either by way of stocks pledged by the customers with the Company or Bank
Gurantees or by liability where there is back to back arrangement with the associate suppliers. In case there is a significant
depletion inrealizable value of such pledged stock against the book value of the corresponding receivables, the differential
amount has been shown under ‘Unsecured’.

9.4(a): Trade Receivables includes ¥ 19544 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 19544 lakh) due from M/s SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd. for
procurement and supply of materials to the party up to October, 2012, almost five and half years ago. As per the volumetric
analysis conducted by independent inspection agency, the net realizable value of pledged raw materials comes to ¥ 6230
lakh. The party has defaulted in making the payment as per the terms of the Arbitration award. The financial creditors have
filed an application in NCLT for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against the Company.The Company
has security deposit of ¥ 10 lakh and has also recovered ¥ 641 lakh from the party during the financial year 2018-19. MSTC
has filed its claim with the Resolution Professional (RP). MSTC’s claim has been admitted by the Committee of Creditors as
a secured operational creditor. An ad-hoc provision of ¥ 1500 lakh have been created in the books of accounts.
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9.4(b): Trade Receivables includes I 22124 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 22006 lakh) due from M/S Concast Steel & Power Ltd. for
procurement and supply of materials. As per the volumetric analysis carried out by independent inspection agency, the net
realizable value of the pledged stock is ¥ 2313.81 lakh. Volumetric assessment at Jharsuguda unit of the party could not be
performed by MSTC. Pursuant to admission of a case of insolvency filed by financial creditors in NCLT, MSTC has filed its
claim before Insolvency Resolution Professional under NCLT. The Company has a security deposit of ¥ 40 lakh and during
the year, procured materials on behalf of the party for ¥ 9206 lakh and realization was ¥ 9088 lakh. An ad-hoc provision of
% 3000 lakh have been created in the books of accounts.

9.4(c): Trade Receivable includes X 11484 lakh (Previous year: ¥ 11937 lakh) due from M/s Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. Entire amount
of outstanding is overdue for a period of more than three years. As per the settiement terms, MSTC will procure raw
materials for the party against advance payment only. Out of the advance payment, 10 % will be adjusted against old
receivables and for balance 90% fresh procurement will be made by MSTC. Out of the fresh procurement, 50% of material is
being issued and balance 50% is kept as pledged stock. Thus against 90% of payment received, 50% of material is issued
against fresh stock and balance 50% is issued against old stock, thereby replacing the old materials with the new one. In the
process the quality of the security has improved significantly. As a result, net realizable value of the pledged stock has
increased from3 6870 lakh ason 31.03.2017 to¥ 14185 lakh as on 31.03.2018 (as per the Volumetric Analysis carried out
by independent inspection agency), which is much higher than the outstanding balance. In view of this and also due to
improved market condition, no provision was considered necessary to be made in the current year.

9.4(d): Trade Receivables include ¥ 2831 lakh (Previous year: ¥ 3031 lakh) due from M/s Global Coke Ltd (GCL) for procurement and
supply of materials which are more than three years old. Entire amount of outstanding is overdue for more than three years.
The party has been referred to NCLT and the Company has filed its claim before Resolution Professional. The party, with the
approval of Committee of Creditors, has recently started their Sindhudurg plant on job work basis. The party is also looking
for a strategic investor for its Jamnagar plant to start on job work basis where the Company’s pledged materials are lying. Itis
expected that the entire dues of the Company will be liquidated by way of consumption of pledged materials once this plant
becomes operational. Further, the quality of security in the form of stock lying has improved significantly due to prevailing
improved market condition, that resulted in increase in net realizable value from< 1250 lakh as on 31.03.2017 to¥ 5311 lakh
ason 31.03.2018 (as per the Volumetric Analysis carried out by independent inspection agency), which is much higher than
the outstanding balance. An amount of ¥ 1030 lakh has already been provided for upto 315t March, 2017. In view of this and
also due to improved market condition of the material in stock, no provision was considered necessary to be made in the
currentyear.

9.5: Trade Receivables include ¥ 293979 lakh, against business done in facilitator mode (net of provision) (P.Y 2016-17
3275490 lakh)

10.Cashand Cash Equivalents
Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Cashinhand 1 1
(b) Balances with banks:
In Current Account 17,573 7177
Total 17,574 7,178

11 . Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Earmarked Balances with banks:

(i) In Unclaimed dividend account 99 86
(i) Deposits with original maturity of more than

3 months but less than 12 months 32,911 37,594
Total 33,010 37,680

11.1 The above deposits include ¥ 31,828 lakh pledged with banks against over draft facility (P.Y2016-17 ¥ 36,117 lakh).and margin
against guarantee¥ 955 lakh (P.Y 2016-173 953 lakh).
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12. Other Financial Assets (Current)

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Security deposits 3,525 5,131
(b) Other loans and advances
(i) Loans to employees 62 74
(i) Advances to employees 17 18
(iii) Receivable from third party 54 978
(iv) Claims Receivable - 45,081
(v) Other Advances 185 14
(c) Interest accrued on
(iy Term deposits 98 36
(i) Loans to employees 1 1
3,942 51,333
Less: Allowance for bad & doubtful other financial assets - 45,081
Other financial assets 3,942 6,252
Classification of other financial assets (Current):
Unsecured, considered good 3,942 6,252
Doubtful - 45,081
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful financial assets - 45,081
Total 3,942 6,252
13 . Other Assets (Current)
Particulars As at As at

(Unsecured, considered good)

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(a) Advance with public bodies

GST, Service Tax & Sales Tax 372 29
(b) Prepaid Lease Payments 7 -
(c) Otherloans and advances
(i) Advances to employees 60 78
(i) Prepaid expenses 5 28
(iii) Others 33 708
Total 477 843
14 . Share Capital
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Authorised:
5,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 5,000 5,000
Total 5,000 5,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up :
352,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 3,520 1,760
Total 3,520 1,760
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14(a)(i) Statement of Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Security deposits 3,525 5,131
(b) Other loans and advances
(i) Loans to employees 62 74
(i) Advances to employees 17 18
(iii) Receivable from third party 54 978
(iv) Claims Receivable - 45,081
(v) Other Advances 185 14

(c) Interest accrued on

14(a)(i) Statement of Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number Face Amount Number Face Amount
Value (%) (% Lakhs) Value }) (¥ Lakhs)
Opening Shares Outstanding 1,76,00,000 10 1,760 88,00,000 10 880
Add:
Issue of Bonus Shares 1,76,00,000 10 1,760 88,00,000 10 880
Closing Shares Outstanding 3,52,00,000 10 3,520 1,76,00,000 10 1,760

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.

14(a)(ii)The Company has only one class of ordinary shares ('Equity Shares') having a par value of¥10 each. Each holder of ordinary
shares ('Equity Shareholders') is entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus, if any, in the

eventof winding up.

14(a)(iii) 66,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2012-13 in the ratio of 3:1
14(a)(iv) 88,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2016-17 in the ratio of 1:1

14(a)(v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of share holding

Name of the Shareholder

As at 315t March 2018

As at 315t March 2017

No. of shares held % of holding No. of shares held % of holding
President of India 31625600 89.85% 15812800 89.85%
15 . Other Equity
Amount in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(1) General Reserve

Opening balance 46,933 46,730
Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings 2,683 203
Closing Balance 49,616 46,933
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Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

(2) Retained Earnings

Opening balance 3,008 2,171
Add: Profit for the year 7,663 6,543
Other Comprehensive income for the year (205) (599)
Less: Final Dividend: FY 15-16 - (1,804)
Less: Interim Dividend FY 2016-17 - (1,672)
Less: Final Dividend: FY 16-17 (2,499) -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 15-16 (on final dividend) - (361)
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 16-17 (on interim dividend) - (187)
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 16-17 (on final dividend) (384) -
Less: Issue of Bonus Shares (1,760) (880)
Less: Transfer to General Reserve (2,683) (203)
Closing Balance 3,140 3,008
Total Other Equity(1+2) 52,756 49,941
16 . Trade payables (Non Current)
Amount in % lakh

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Creditors for supplies and services
- Dues to micro and small enterprises

- Others 26 26
Total 26 26
17 . Other financial liabilities (Non Current)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Liability under EFBS Scheme

- Interest accrued and due on borrowings 94 68
Total 94 68
18 . Provisions (Non Current)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(a) Provision for Post Retirement Medical Scheme 636 1,023
(b) Provision for Leave Encashment 342 258
(c) Provision for Gratuity 686 -

Total 1,664 1,281
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19 . Other liabilities (Non Current)
Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Advance from customers 577 408
(b) Others 160 160
Total 737 568

20 - Borrowings (Current)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

A. Secured Borrowings
Repayable on Demand

From Banks

(i) Working Capital Demand Loans# 41,406 31,557

(ii) Overdraft against lien on FDR* 20,396 12,916
Total Secured Borrowings 61,802 44,473

B. Unsecured Borrowings
Repayable on Demand

From Banks 14,362 24,362
Total Unsecured Borrowings 14,362 24,362
Total(A+B) 76,164 68,835

a) Loan from Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) amounting to 138 lakh (lying since 19.9.2011)This amount represents legal fees paid
by the bank in defending their claims to which the Company has lodged its protest with the Bank. MSTC has filed a case in
Hon'ble High Court of Calcutta against I0B for ¥ 3,656 lakh (which includes ¥ 2,798 lakh towards debit of LC value & 858 lakh
as debit towards legal expenses).

b) The above amount represents ¥ 14,362 Lakh on account of payment by Standard Chartered Bank(SCB) to MSTC towards
purchase of exports bills for gold jewllery during 2008-09, under a Receivable Purchase Agreement. Under the said agreement
SCB would be paying 95% of the value of export bills to MSTC and foreign buyers would be paying for the bill directly to SCB on
respective due dates of the bills. The same transactions were covered by SCB through an insurance policy with ICICI Lombard
General Insurance Company. On non-receipt of proceeds from foreign buyers, SCB submitted claims with the insurance
company.The Insurance company repudiated the claim of SCB. There after, SCB converted the receivables into loan, claimed
the amount from MSTC and filed a case in DRT, Mumbai in 2012. Subsequently SCB also filed a suit in Bombay High Court
against the insurance company which is yet to be disposed off. MSTC has been contesting the claim of SCB in DRT and other
forums. Pending disposal of the cases, MSTC has shown the amount simultaneously as Borrowing and Receivables under
Note No. 9 for better presentation. Appropriate disclosure has been made as contingent liabilities for the interest claimed by
SCB on the above mentioned amount of claimas perInd AS 37.

# Secured against Current Assets.

* Secured by lien on FDR current year ¥ 31,828 lakh, preivious year ¥ 36,117 lakh.

21 .Trade payables (Current)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Creditors for supplies and services
- Dues to micro and small enterprises - -

- Others 2,50,976 2,50,534
- Accrued wages and salaries* 4,261 2,096
Total 2,55,237 2,52,630

*Includes % 1,582 lakh (previous year 2016-17 ¥ 1,322 lakh) towards provision for pension benefit of employees,pending approval
ofthe scheme and< 1,077 lakh (previous years I 270 lakh) towards wage revision of the employees due from 01.01.2017.
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afer @ 3 H
22 . 31 foxita ST (=e])
e 31 @, 2018 31 ©r, 2017
& SIER & STIER
(%) =T
(I) SUR W IS UIgyd & < 7 10
(i) SUR W AT WY TR T Tl 7,889 7,889
(@) <ERfeEd e 99 86
(M) T RIRE % faw eer
(1) gRfer s feguEE 37,486 59,223
(i) vt | W ufi 38,463 12,444
(iii) SURETTY % SFaEd ST 132 74
(iv) SUBSTTH ST TR & S < 31 22
(v) &= 67 47
T 84,174 79,795
23 . 37 T (A1)
fearor 31 =T, 2018 31 =, 2017
& TIER & STIER
(%) denfer 2T
() FR R Td e 0 251
(i) eT H U Shuwt < 770 196
(iii) BT W HT FHdl TS AT 498 298
(@) w9 fm 318 237
Fd 1,586 982
24 . eI | T
feremor ECLinich RGERICL]
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
() gt ot fasht 1,56,524 1,19,550
(@) e quR 27,563 20,280
() ST T ST 10,540 3,039
FA 1,94,627 1,42,869

(®) a9 % IR, -t UsTientor sred T 608 @ i T (et av T 346 TR ) U i T8 | 49 99 & Fot 9Ug § ¥ T 487 @ &t MY
(frsat 9 T 276 @@) AIRE! # Tt 71 ¥ 51 qguiid =R a6t # faafia =i st ifew gefed gefeor siteq s1 % faw a1 fediw

31.03.2018 & 19, Hfaa sifaafia 93 895 o (frsat a¥ T 645 @) ¥ 1979 A fres fag dsfientor ueh o ek & fa 3o 7, st adae
9 o S T o E H femmea # faar g |

(@) 3T TTeH o7 B UTeehi S AR a1ed < 9,673 A i wnfier 7 | (et a3 2,424 o)
() HATYHR TS AT 3T TR Eq WHL Feret 3 1,806 7 (fraat a3 2,129 @) T
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Amount in ¥ lakh

22 . Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) Interest payable

(i) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 7 10

(i) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7,889 7,889

(b) Unclaimed dividends 99 86
(c) Creditors for other liabilities

(i) Security deposits/EMD 37,486 59,223

(ii) Deposits received from customers 38,463 12,444

(iii) Deposit under EFBS 132 74

(iv) Payable under EFBS Deposit schemes 31 22

(v) Others 67 47

Total 84,174 79,795

23 . Other Liabilities (Current)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Statutory Dues
(iy Sales tax and VAT payable 0 251
(i) Service Tax & GST payable 770 196
(i) Tax deducted and collected at source 498 298
(b) Advance from customers 318 237
Total 1,586 982
24 . Revenue from operations
Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Sale of Goods 1,56,524 1,19,550
(b) Service Charges 27,563 20,280
(c) Other Operating Revenues 10,540 3,039
Total 1,94,627 1,42,869

(@)

(b)

During the year, an amount of ¥ 608 lakh (previous year ¥ 346 lakh) was collected towards E-auction Registration. Out of total
collection of current year, an amount of ¥ 487 lakh (previous year ¥ 276 lakh) has been kept in liabilities to be distributed in
subsequent four years, since related registration is valid for life long. Accumulated undistributed balance standing as on
31.03.2018 is ¥ 895 lakh (previous year ¥ 645 lakh). Balance amount for which registration is valid upto one year is accounted
foras income during the current year.

Other Operating Revenues also include Interest from customersI 9,673 lakh (previous yr.3 2,424 lakh).

Tax deducted at source on Service Charge and Interestincome amounts to¥ 1,806 lakh (previous year¥ 2,129 lakh).
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fer e T |
25. 3 T
forarar ECLiEicL] FCERICL]
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(%) = T
(1) THSSR WA 1,891 3,535
(2) wHHA A WIS 39 41
(@) e ST
weTfsRrett # fore fraet & 617 888
(T) TR SeT gRifeRd i T 2,817 0
() TEH ST STERIE T 1@, 981 YALiehd foha T 45,952 2,418
(&) fafay ama 7 1
FA 51,323 6,883
e ST R ST 9 9 W H w189 oa (et a9 T 345 @) ©
26 . Wih-31-3€ & A
feraor ECLiEkCL eferctt ot
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
WIFH-A-2T H T 1,47,896 1,24,247
A 1,47,896 1,24,247
27 . HHAR W =T
feraror EcLiEkcr eferett ot
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(F) o TE T 7,102 4,377
(@) wfosr e s fafeat & sivem 1,170 289
(M) AR FHeATor = 468 340
Fd 8,740 5,006

(I) HICTRIAT o T Sod IR & 3T & STUIe H, S9rd 316 o SRR, e sheanal ol Ja- SeeH e
01.04.1999 ¥ et T3T o7 | 3T FE T 1,574 A § 1 39 & wnfed €1

(1) et 29/03/2018 T TTIS AT TH.3T. 1420 (F) & AR IUSH i Ioadq HH1 i T 10 TG 9 T I 20 A fohar 72
%139 IfEdq & Sed T 702 1@ ki IS T forTa Aar onTd & €9 § Tenfd < TE 7

28. o @rTa
feraror ECLiskcL RGERIiCL]
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
ISP
(I)srent | STeqehTicTeh SURT T =T 1,926 4,935
(ii) TMERT T ST feRa AT =S 4,803 1,758
(iii) SuwSTTR ST AR F @ WSS - 6

£ 6,729 6,699
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Amount in ¥ lakh

25 . Other income

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Interestincome
(1) Interest on FDR 1,891 3,535
(2) Interest on Employee Advances 39 41

(b) Dividend Income

From investment in subsidiaries 617 888

(c) Liability written back 2,817 0
(d) Provision no longer required written back 45,952 2,418
(e) Miscellaneous income 7 1
Total 51,323 6,883

Tax deducted at source from interest on bank deposits amounted to ¥ 189 lakh (previous year ¥ 345 lakh).

26 . Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,47,896 1,24,247

Total 1,47,896 1,24,247

27 . Employee Benefit Expense

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Salaries and Wages 7,102 4,377
(b) Contribution to Provident and other funds 1,170 289
(c) Staff welfare expenses 468 340
Total 8,740 5,006

(I) In pursuant to Ministry of Steel's Order , complying the directive of Honble High Court of Kolkata, pay correction of Executive
employees was effected w.e.f. 01.04.1999. The impact of this is ¥ 1,574 lakhs which is included in the above.

(I1) As per Gazette Notification S.O 1420(E) dated 29/03/2018 the ceiling of Gratuity has been enhanced from ¥ 10 lakhs to ¥ 20
Lakhs. ¥ 702 lakhs towards the impact of this charge has been recognised as Past Service Cost.

28 . Finance costs
Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Interest expense
(i) Interest on Short term borrowings from Banks 1,926 4,935
(ii) Interest Paid to Customers 4,803 1,758
(iii) Interest on account of EFBS Deposits - 6
Total 6,729 6,699
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afer e T |
29 . I I
feraror ECLiEiCh qefareft o
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
() T TS TEREE 258 191
(@) 3 = 150 271
(M) o gen 2 2
(=) o 366 343
(3) W 198 596
(¥) S Yok 1,799 1,069
(®) am= = 348 327
&) faceft =mn == 8 11
(70) Ml ST Yok 123 122
(F) 3 & THAT 110 183
(2) wfdreror 48 15
(3) fiewei &1 S Joh 3 2
(3) wifafter orar wiess & mgs
(i) < gdeT gon 6 6
(i) T @ Wi Yok 1 1
(iii) FeR = 6 4
13 11
(@) wisaE =" 57 5
(1) 2oiE, TSt Ue Jefmy 48 49
(@ fostett 119 119
(9) TR TS TrEd S 33 45
(]) wHRSH 22 20
(9) RE Yok 38 44
(G IREEIE] 89 164
(W) H = 138 173
(%) TS Y[eh 87 86
(@) ofiafen SEaiaT Yok
(9) e 9 (e TETaiers)
(W) =T e = 28
() WEEIR, T T ufeR 5
() Tt wrTfoTeR ifaea (feomft €.41 <9) 215 80
(@) e fafosy == 53 51
(F7T) @0 T 92 H STl T 45,941 2,418
() EE ud dfery it & faw aw 13,881 3,122
(%) fafay == 14 12
() wre frwmn 7 -

EX 64,207 9,542
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Amount in ¥ lakh

29 . Other expenses

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Repairs and Maintainance 258 191
(b) EDP Expenses 150 271
(c) Insurance charges 2 2
(d) Rent 366 343
(e) Rates and taxes 198 596
(f) Bank Charges 1,799 1,069
(g) Travelling Expenses 348 327
(h) Foreign Travelling Expenses 8 11
(i) Car Hire Charges 123 122
(i) Meeting and Conference 110 183
(k) Training 48 15
(I) Directors' Sitting Fees 3 2
(m) Statutory Auditor's Remuneration
(i) Audit Fees 6 6
(i) Tax Audit Fees
(iii) Out-of-Pocket Expenses 6 4
13 11
(n) Stock Yard Expenses 57 5
(o) Telex, Postage and Telegram 48 49
(p) Electricity 119 119
(q) Printing and Stationery 33 45
(r) Entertainment 22 20
(s) Telephone Charges 38 44
(t) Advertisement 89 164
(u) Legal Expenses 138 173
(v) Consultancy Charges 87 86
(w) Internal Audit fees 2 2
(x) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Internal Auditor) 4 4
(y) Staff Recruitment Expenses 28
(z) Newspaper, Books and Periodicals 5 3
(aa) Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No- 41) 215 80
(ab) Auction Tender Expenses 53 51
(ac) Bad Debts Written off 45,941 2,418
(ad) Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Advances 13,881 3,122
(ae) Miscellaneous Expenses 14 12
(af) Plot Rent 7 -

Total 64,207 9,542
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feouit 30 : 31 W, 2018 w1 TATT 99 o fow URfyer wies, 4, fara 1 sifam wis o1 faeror
Note 30 : STATEMENT OF OPENING STOCK, PURCHASES, SALES AND CLOSING STOCK FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST

MARCH, 2018
(forra =) (W ‘000 TH) (X @@ #)
(Previous Year) / (Qty ‘000 MT) / (Amount¥ in lakh
ST ot faaR FEATH Rleh ExI fasha Fifaq wiw
Description of materials Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
=T e AT e AT e T e
Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value
=a1 d Crude Oil 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 (1170) (34620)  (1170) (34974) 0 0
Ik /I Coke / Coal 104 7074 2533 137306 2637 145847 0 0
(40) (1529) (2291) (89552)  (2227) (84292)  (104) (7074)
IS99 TS 2ga9 Pipes & Tubes 0 0 31 7574 31 7622 0 0
(0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0)
g 3T9%h Iron Ore 0 0 63 3027 63 3072 0 0
() (0) ©) ©) ©) ) (0) ()
147907 156541
(124172) (119266)
SIS : Add : sifqw faer w9RIH Final Bill Ad). (1) (17)
(51) (284)
SIS : Add : 3 UIe T Other Direct Expenses 0 0
(24) (0)
[ : Total : 147896 156524
(124247) (119550)
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feoquft 31 : feoft €. 30 % sraman, wU T gHewal (wlafaer) % w1 § F g T faawer 3 STqEn amdt @6 off s R €

Note 31 : In addition to Note no. 30, the Company have also purchased materials as facilitator as per details below:

(fardad) (A1 000 THET) (R a@H)
(Previous Year) / (Qty ‘000 MT)/ (Amount X in lakh)

it 61 faaRo e Tle oI ST | W9R
Description of materials Qty Purchase Value Service Charges Earned
TF AR =iga H R Coil 10 4766 45
(1 (313) 3)

ik / I Coke / Coal 1650 132223 1847
(1052) (77891) (1603)

foeted Billets 25 7797 77
(53) (12785) (139)

= Naptha 109 33972 378
(267) (79880) (873)

e 319%h / o< Iron Ore / Pellete 12222 317029 3848
(3884) (49076) (819)

ST 379k Manganese Ore 55 6633 66
(3) (546) (9)

SIS DRI 318 12531 168
(25) (3709) (56)

faferer wmfiEt Misc Items 1625 21543 295
(116) (42639) (477)

Jeadt a” TMT Bar 290 127258 1194
(85) (32756) (309)

%1 3K Chrome Ore 23 2550 25
(127) (9272) (114)

< Channel 0 0 0
(63) (21865) (206)

faga 3a=RTT Electrical Equipment 0 162547 1475
(0) (4786) (74)

%o Total 16327 828849 9418
(5676) (335518) (4682)
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feuqoft 32 : € UL 108 & IR WHe-ar fdqifd
Note 32 : Segmental Reporting as per INDAS 108:
(T @@ #) (Amount  in lakh)
S TTH 108 & STTER, THUT = TIh (T Td $- TG T 379 51 WertHeh T A a6 o 9 § fafed fmar g

Interms of INDAS 108 the Company has identified Marketing and E-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable Business Segments.

feremar faqum 3w T (eFfea) Fa
Particulars Marketing E-Commerce Others (unallocated) Total
Fo1 UsTed Total Revenue 226275 19006 669 245950
(132610) (16188) (954) (149752)

%l I Total expenses 223320 256 11215 234791
(131991) (332) (7768) (140091)

RO (@TH/RH(-) T IE) Result (Profit/Loss(-) before Tax) 2955 18750 (10546) 11159
(619) (15856) (-6814)  (9661)

Y T Tax expenses 3496
(3118)

srafy & ferw ema/erta (-) Profit/ Loss(-) for the period 7663
(6543)

FHU % EEE | Y uREutaal U et s fRE oft i v e o we | fafea 71 fe mn €, wifw 3 gt % g st ufada
T 7T T T R | AfeT yee ot faverd & o aftdufat wd St | eiferd T o wehed SHeRRAr I T ¥ |
Assets and liabilities used in the Company's business are not identified to any of the reportable segments,as these are used

interchangably between the segments. Hence the Management believes, that it is currently not practicable to provide segment
disclosure related to assets and liabilities.

Y@ UEHI % 9N H o1 Information about major customers
T % TTE o 10 Tfwra a1 S i AR At Thdt ael Weeh o 19 SFed § I Tered 1 feg e

The revenues from tranactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the entity's revenues are
given below:-

(@@ #) (Amount in ¥ lakh)

7@ e (10% & iy ToTea W@ ot T8h)

Major Customer (Customer having more than 10% revenue) 2017-18 2016-17
%ol T Total Revenue 148901 89524
& ki ©. No. of Customers 3 3
Pl TETET T % % of Total Revenue 77 62
3I1E ©e Product Segment Marketing Marketing

(%. @@ #) (Amount in ¥ lakh)
33 (&%) fewtgmd=m:

(a) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency :

faaw Particulars 2017-18 2016 - 2017
WMHI 1 3T Import of Goods 225300 192243
I @ Ud 317 Travelling Expenses & other 3 8
%d Total 225303 192251

33 (@) focut gz & o ¢
(b) Earnings in Foreign Currency :
et Particulars 201718 2016 - 2017

$-fremet UsfEA e E auction Registration fees 1 1
Fa Total 1 1
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(T@m@#) Amount in T lakhs
34. e FMAET To ufdegard Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Taeror 31 T, 2018 31 @, 2017
% STTEAR ¥ STIER
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

() ThfEAe: SFIRAT Contingent Liabilities
oIkt =Y W& T Yo Sales Tax & Customs 4164 4784
& A Money Suits 14522 16729
g=e Arbitration 30 44
3T X Income Tax 706 529
aT F Service Tax 1585 1596
Fd Total 21007 23682
(@) wfaergard Commitments
fereror 31 #r4, 2018 31 #r4, 2017
& AR % AR
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
= 2T IR § T HrEerd Wa ot fEior
Construction of New Office Building at New Town Kolkata 2651 -
Fa Total 2651 -

35.98H, ©Y wd gegH 9 Micro Small And Medium Enterprises

36.

THTHURS 1 <F T (feoaoft §. 22 # yere fohT S8R ) T8 3ushl &1 Fafed HHT aeh § | S0 3 SHT=Iaa THUEHS Sehiedl ol -1 a9 |
T fera & U =t o S ST o fere wfdat & e Qe Tel € | e Yan ve o 3T (THUHTRS ) STRw 2012 % fo wresife wa

ifa s feenfet mT e I @ R

The amount due to MSME (as disclosed in note no 22) is to the extent such undertakings have been identified. The Company
has normally made payment to MSME units in due time and there are no claim from the parties for interest or overdue payment.
The Company is following the guidelines of Public Procurement Policy for Micro & Small Enterprises (MSMEs) Order 2012.

X T Tax Expenses

(1) @ =1 71f1 § 31 KT & A= Income Tax Recognised in Profit or Loss

Toreror

Particulars

31 #r4, 2018

& STTAR
As at
March 31, 2018

31 ¥4, 2017

& AR
As at
March 31, 2017

(1) =reg X Current tax

- 99 % feT For the year 2,225 3,329

- 99 % @l & faT For earlier years - 59

2,225 3,388

(2) eTefiTd T Deferred tax 1,271 (270)
=TS T4 H FA SR A i A=A

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 3,496 3,118
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(X om@ #)
() o F AU 3 X = H A (N6) F @R § AR S R S g @
fereor 31 7T, 2018 31 7, 2017
& ITER & STERX

% & faw T qd @y 11,159 9,661
3T Y =4 i AT 34.608 % T (2016-17: 34.608 %) 3,862 3,344
ST R TUTE S R 1 & Freicor § sem g @ ® (7202) 21
3T T TS ST 9 o § (214) (306)
ST SaE g 7,050

3,496 3,059
& 3t & 1] L h G H THARESE - 59
= o § W FA AT = 3,496 3,118

3I7a % e # 9 2017-18 TH 2016-17 % U Ty &Y ST IRATT T A o STaa T A el W 9Ra § e deenst g <
34.608% ! FHIFHA T TTT (30% o |1 SAHHT 12% i T H T a1 9N 3 % i ) | fociiar aw 2017-18 i STEfTd T 70T 6
fom, faet=r o 2018-19 FHaTH 34.944% T 3T T T (30% o T 12% ATHHR T 4% i S e 99w w1 foafed fran T 2
forfrar o 2017-18 o ferg wemet XX € 31.329% (faftaad 2016-17 7q 31.272%) |

T B T Heagi a6 $el € 20178 T ht ST AT 7 | qenfy, et 3 9 T 2225 T ot T SAaR] & foeeh fore st & o
ST 3Tehel Tt § ST 6! o fAIw 319 W 3 3 o g shfee o o1 1fershm © 1 St Bt oren & o evreramer oyt & warfed aney o grmsir =1
e STIHIG, BT Rl &AfTYRA L, afeeh T A A1 U ST | TSR, STRAfiTd T aREafaai i SR e 91, e 319 Td THEt
ez sfuepr & fau A= T 7

() AT R H agaa

faao 31 W€, 2017 a8 & fag 31 wr<, 2018
* ITER AR (3hfe2) ¥ ITER

AT A1 g % e |

ST R STt

T, T T SR TR et gt 14.00 (5.00) 9.00

FA 14.00 (5.00) 9.00

amreyfitg Y aREafaat

T, T T SR SR et gREafEr - 7.00 7.00

3T 9 o 9Ed a9 1,281.00 363.00 1,644.00

dfery o wd 1w & fore o 13,892.00 4,681.00 18,573.00

wfqry ore g9 & fog 9 15,602.00 (15,602.00) -

ST Sad =i - 7,050.00 7,050.00

THEE shfee sAfesr o - 2,225.00 2,225.00

S MR T (TR ) /it 30,775.00 (1,276.00) 29,499.00

T SR T (AR /ARt 30,761.00 (1,271.00) 29,490.00

T SIS 3T o AeAH o

smreafita %X aftEataar

R ST ST 1 G A9 317.00 (86.00) 231.00

T AT T (e Aty 31,078.00 (1,357.00) 29,721.00
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(Amount in T lakh)
() The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit (loss) as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Profit before tax for the year 11,159 9,661
Income tax expense calculated at 34.608 % (2016-17: 34.608 %) 3,862 3,344
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (7202) 21
Effect of income that is exempt from tax (214) (306)
Carry Forward of Business Loss 7,050 -

3,496 3,059
Adjustment in respect of current tax of prior years - 59
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 3,496 3,118

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2016-17 in the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 34.608% (30% plus
surcharge @ 12% and education cess @ 3 %) payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian Tax Law.
For Deferred Tax calculation of financial year 2017-18, Income Tax rate of 34.944% (30% plus surcharge @ 12% and education
cess @ 4 %) pertaining to financial year 2018-19 has been considered.The effective tax rate for F.Y. 2017-18 is 31.329% (For
P.Y.2016-17 is 31.272%).

There is carry forward of business loss and depreciation agrregating to ¥ 20178 lakh. However the Company has a MAT liability
of ¥ 2225 lakh for which Company is entitled to credit in next asseessment years against tax payable on income for those
years.The Company feels that it will earn sufficient profit in coming years,not only to offset the carry forward loss but also will
have taxable profit. Accordingly deferred tax assets has beenrecognised for carry forward of business loss,depreciation and
MAT credit entitlement.

(lll) Movement in Deferred Tax

Particulars As at Charge/ (credit) As at
March 31, 2017 for the Year March 31, 2018

Through Profit or Loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 14.00 (5.00) 9.00
Total 14.00 (5.00) 9.00
Deferred Tax Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets - 7.00 7.00
Provison against other expenses 1,281.00 363.00 1,644.00
Allowance for Doubtful Debts & Advances 13,892.00 4,681.00 18,573.00
Allowance for Doubtful Claims Receivable 15,602.00 (15,602.00) -
Unabsorbed business loss - 7,050.00 7,050.00
MAT Credit Entitlement - 2,225.00 2,225.00
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 30,775.00 (1,276.00) 29,499.00
Total Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 30,761.00 (1,271.00) 29,490.00

Through Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Assets

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 317.00 (86.00) 231.00
Gross Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 31,078.00 (1,357.00) 29,721.00
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Amount in ¥ lakhs
37 . Earnings Per Share

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit for the year 7,663 6,543
Profit attributable to Shareholders 7,663 6,543
Weighted average No. of Shares for Basic EPS™ 3,52,00,000 3,52,00,000
Nominal value of Ordinary Shares () 10.00 10.00
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (X Per Share) 22 19

* Restated due to issue of bonus share during 2017-18 in the ratio of 1:1
38 . Disclosures on Financial Instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information
on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in notes to the standalone financial statements.

(1) Categories of Financial Instruments

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at the year
end. The Fair value is equivalent to the Carrying value.

Financial assets As at As at Measured at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

< In lakh < In lakh
Trade Receivables 3,84,221 3,61,887 Amortised cost
Other Financial Assets 4,515 6,904 Amortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,574 7,178 Amortised cost
Other Bank Balances 33,010 37,680 Amortised cost
Investments 2641 1,891 Amortised cost
Total Financial Assets 4,41,961 4,15,540
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 76,164 68835 Amortised cost
Trade Payables 2,55,263 252656 Amortised cost
Other Financial Liabilities 84,268 79862 Amortised cost
Total Financial Liabilities 415695 401354

(2) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company is able to continue as going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.The Company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

(3) Financial Risk Management objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets , monitors and manages the fianancial risks relating to the operations of the Company. These
risks include market risk (like- currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with
policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or
trade in financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

(a) Market Risk

The Company's activities exposes it ,primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates . On acase to
case basis, the Company entersinto Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk.
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(i) Interest Rate Risk Management

At presentcompany has converted maximum of its loan to MCLR based, hence the rate is firm for a contract period usually for
ayear. Further Interest on Overdraft facility is linked with interest of Fixed deposits, which are usually firm for one year.

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk Management

The foreign currency exposure of the Company is due to import liabilities. Transactions are on back to back basis with
customers . The gain and loss if any is passed on to the customers. Some times forward cover is taken to hedge the related
foreign currency exposure in terms of discussion with the customers.Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are to be borne
by the customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange gain/loss are not recognized in the books of the Company.

(b) CreditRisk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in fianacial loss to the
Company . The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties , where appropriate, as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company only transact with entities that are rated by agencies
where available and if not available , the company uses other publicly available financial information and its own past records to
rate its major customers. The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored and the
aggregated value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the Senior Management Committee.

(c) Liquidity Risk Management
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows,and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liablities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual undiscounted cash obligations of financial liabilities including
estimated interest payments as at 315tMarch 2018.

Financial Liabilities As at March 31, 2018
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
(% In lakh) (% In lakh) (T In lakh) (% In lakh) (T In lakh)
Borrowings 76,164 76,164 76,164 - -
Trade payables 2,55,263 2,55,263 2,565,237 26 -
Other financial liabilities 84,268 84,295 84,175 83 37
Total 4,15,695 4,15,722 4,15,576 109 37
Financial Liabilities As at March 31, 2017
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
(X In lakh) (X In lakh) (X In lakh) (X In lakh) (X In lakh)
Borrowings 68,835 68,835 68,835 - -
Trade payables 2,52,656 2,52,656 2,52,630 26 -
Other financial liabilities 79,862 79,886 79,794 61 31
Total 4,01,354 4,01,378 4,01,260 87 31

(d) Fair Value Measurement

None of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
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39 . Related Party Transaction
(a) Compensastion to Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration (R in lakhs)

Particulars Nature of related Short Term Post Employment Other Long Total
party / relationship Benefit Benefits Term Benefits

Current Year as at March 3152018

Sri Bambahadur Singh Chairman cum

Managing Director 42 10 9 61
Sri A.K Basu Director (Finance) 40 10 4 54
"Smt Bhanu Kumar
(From -12.10.2017 to 31.03.2018)"  Director (Commercial) 12 9 7 28
Sri S.K Ray Company Secretary 30 1 - 31
Sri Gangaram Aloria Independent Director 1* - -
Sri T V Muralivallabhan Independent Director 2 - - 2

Previous Year as at March 315t 2017

Sri Bambahadur Singh Chairman cum

(From 01.06.2016-31.03.2017) Managing Director 36 3 - 39
Sh. S.K Tripathi Chairman cum

(From 01.04.2016.-31.05.2016) Managing Director 29 1 - 30
Sri A.K Basu Director (Finance) 40 2 - 42
Sri S.K Ray Company Secretary 28 1 - 29
Sri Ajay Kumar Goyal Independent Director 2* - - 2

Note :* It indicate Director's Sitting Fees.

(i) Since the facility of private use of car for limited mileage is provided by the company to the Directors, such facility has
not been considered as benefit/perquisite.

(i) The above includes Performance related pay on actual payment basis.

(b) Transaction with FSNL (100% Subsidiary)

(R in lakh)
Particulars 201718 2016-17
Payment of Custodian Service for the Warehouse Management 230 176
Amount Received for providing E-Auction Service 1 1
(c) Transaction with Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (50:50 Joint Venture)

(X in lakh)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Investment in Joint Venture 750 310
Amount received towards reimbursement of expenditure 8 7

Deposit for Appointment of Director paid 1 -

Deposit for Appointment of Director received back 1 -
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40. Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
Providend Fund
12% of Basic Pay and Dearness Allowance contributed to the Providend Fund Trust by the Company.
Defined Benefits Plans
1. Gratuity:

The Gratuity is payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who
render continious service for a minimum period of 5 years.The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one month's wages last drawn
by the employee for every completed year of service in excess of 30 years in case of non executives only. The maximum amount
of Gratuity payable to employee is ¥ 20 lakh. In case of non executive joining on or before 01.07.2014, the gratuity is celing
less.The Gratuity is funded with LIC of India.The Company contributes in the fund every year as premium on the basis of
demand raised by LIC of India.

2. Post Retirement Medical Benefit:

The Post Retirement Medical Benefit is a medical benefit to the superannuated employees and their spouse. The members will
be covered through Mediclaim Insurance of the Insurance Company. This is available to superannuated employees at any
hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy.In addition to this expenses incurred in domicilliary treatment is also reimbursed
as per prescribed ceiling. The benefits are funded through a separate trust formed for this purpose.The Company provides the
corpus for this. Deficit, if any, is being compensated by the Company.

Investmentrisk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a
relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments. Further,
the overseas plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real
estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the overseas Fund considers it
appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in equity securities and in
real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund.

Interestrisk Adecrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by
anincrease in the return on the plan's debtinvestments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries
of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the
plan's liability.

(a) The company has recognised an amount of ¥ 280 lakh in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year (previous year ¥ 246
lakh ) expenses under defined contribution plans.

Benefit (Contribution to) Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
T in Lakh T in Lakh
Provident Fund 280 246
Total 280 246
(b) The company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows :
Funded
i. Gratuity

ii. Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme
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(c) Details of the Gratuity Plan are as follows :
Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 31t 2018 March, 315t 2017

1. Assumptions

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
b. Estimated rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
c. Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Gratuity
are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

< In lakh % In lakh
a. Current service cost 744 38
b. Service Cost 744 38
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (5) (0)
d. Costrecognized in P&L 739 38
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:
a. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 81 (173)
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (56) 40
c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 25 (133)
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate - 33
e. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 25 (100)
f. (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 25 (100)

3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line item
the standalone statement of profitand loss w.e.fF.Y 2017-18 on the basis of actuarial valuation under IndAS 19.

4. Theremeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

n

5. Movementsin the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

T In lakh T In lakh
a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 1,171 1,297
b. Current Service Cost 41 38
c. Interest Cost on DBO 77 99
d. Past Service Cost- Plan Ammendment 702 -
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (56) 40
e. Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments 81 (173)
f.  Benefits paid from plan asset (119) (130)
g. Closing defined benefit Obligation 1,897 1,171

6. Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

% In lakh % In lakh
a Fair value of the assets at end of prior period 1,236 1,297
b. Interest Income on plan assets 82 99
c. Employer Contributions 12 3
d. Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate - (33)
e. Benefits paid (119) (130)
f.  Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 1,210 1,236
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6. wRefira e & frreftor &g weceryut siwifher sTRomd B2 X Ue sTafar fafemean ArTa wifa & | Tt o somait st womedt T g Rt
Ay i H SreAaTe Heifed TS o AT HTelt uRede % STeR W == afvla gumet farers s fufto frarmn

TETRH 1% IR 1 T8 317, 2018 317, 2017
(% @@ #) (% g #)

s

(i) ThiFd A HaT TS A AT (102) (64)

(ii) =iforea =1 sifaw I 1,795 1,107

E2l

(i) Thishd IHM HaT T A AT 115 73

(ii) <o = sifaw 9w 2,012 1,244

I gig WH 1% IR 1 gama 3199, 2018 31 94, 2017
(Z @@ #) (X @@ #)

afs

(i) Ui IHME HaT U@ A and 49 18

(ii) <rforea & sifam 9 1,946 1,189

HH

(i) Ui SEHE Hal Ud S AnTd (55) (20)

(ii) <o = sifaw 9w 1,842 1,151

7. WA guet faveror aftafira e i # araferss aftard = st wfaffece 721 it < wehar & Fifn S %9 € i aroneit # uftadT -
TER Y e H T, AR H RS TE- eifere & Fehelt € |

(%) o Tt Swia fafereer @rer s 1 forem

fereror T oY & T T Y % T
31T, 2018 319, 2017

1. HRomd

(%) g T (fq ) 7.40% 6.90%

(@) fafeam whifg (uf o) 5.00% 5.00%

2. Yarfrafa Swid fafeean A Femr e st aftenfia s el & gey § wry ik gig % Lewa foeor § whea ufmEl Freman E:

Tz T 9 % ferg T T8 % fere
31 7€, 2018 31 7€, 2017
(X @@ #) (X @@ #)
() =R ST AT 47 45
(@) Har AnTd - .
(1) g5 IR @ Sran / (IREfa) W s e 51 2
() @ 9 g A wied arta 98 47
Y5 R @y Srar / aREafd w g "
(%) Sieltel % HRO swifher (M) / @i 259 880
(=) Sretedr yromstt # ufted % HRO SHifehd (A1) / 7 (108) 140
(®) Fafy % IRA 3= dvifehes (A1) / &4 151 1,020
(37) B2 X9 (31fmw)/ & I gREufaE W) e (57) 4)
(%) SirteTE § wied sHifers (1Y) / 7 94 1,016

(3) 95 afcdufaet W i & fore smeisT - -
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6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate March, 3152018 March, 3152017
< In lakh T In lakh

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (102) (64)

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,795 1,107

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 115 73

(ii) closing balance of obligation 2,012 1,244

Effect of a 1% change in salary escalation rate March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017
T In lakh T In lakh

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 49 18

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,946 1,189

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (55) (20)

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,842 1,151

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

(d) Details of the Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme are as follows :
Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
b. Medical Inflation (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Post
Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme are as follows:

Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

% In lakhs % In lakhs

a. Current service cost 47 45

b. Service Cost

c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 51 2
d. Cost recognized in P&L 98 47
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:

e. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 259 880
f. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (108) 140
g. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 151 1,020
h. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (57) (4)
i. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 94 1,016

j. Adjustments for limit on net assets
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4. 35 IR Ty I K YA 3121 ATk ST H wfmfad ¥
5. qfIford o T 3 I god H Seelrd fEgaR ®

war o % fag T o % e

319, 2018 319, 2017

( @@ #) (X or= #)

(F) 99 & URY # e 1,514 477

(@) FHE Fa arTd 47 45

(3T) =T AT 101 34

(=) forfta emconsti # afad= @ 3ca=1 siHifhe oy ud =i (108) 140

(F) AT THENH § 3 dHifhsd 9 T g 259 880

() U gRT Y oA o3 T ey (90) (62)

(®) sifew aftsfr e <o 1,724 1,514
6. TS TufaEt o 3fed Joa # Sgena ey §

T 9 & fag T =9 & fag

31 @<, 2018 319, 2017

( @@ #) (X =@ #)

() qatafy = 3iq ¥ a6 3faa qoa 491 377

(@) I aREufaE W & e 51 32

CORERIESIRE NG 579 140

(9) e R G 3ifean / () T Ao gt ) e 57 4

() oY HT I (90) (62)

(3) =1 STafy st v W afefE 6 sfaa qe 1,088 491

7. uftsnfira i 3 frerfeor &g Hewl wifas aroTd g @ Td sTifia fafw @ wwifa ¥ ) wft o aromstt Y Tomh T gu
Trafén srafy & o # sreqare Heifed aRonstt % FLrEETa Tt aidaT % STTER A= afvld gt faversor s fufvor famar @ #

WA 1% TRad & 99 3179, 2018 317, 2017
(% =@ ) (X = #)

Ifs

(i) THIFd adqH a1 TS =T AT (186) (171)

(i) < = sifaT o 1,539 1,343

e}

(i) THIFHd IAHME HaT TE A AN 228 212

(i) <Tra = ifad oW 1,953 1,726

fafrea Thifa T H 1% IRad= =1 vue 31 @<, 2018 31 9, 2017
(% @r@ ) (X wr@ #)

s

(i) USIHd TAHE el TE ST AR 156 135

(i) <o = sifam 9 1,880 1,649

el

(i) UeHd IEE el Ud SN AR (126) (108)

(i) =iforea = sifqw S 1,598 1,406
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3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line
itemin the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
5. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

% In lakh % In lakh
a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 1,514 477
b. Current Service Cost 47 45
c. Interest Cost 101 34
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (108) 140
e. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 259 880
f.  Benefits paid directly by the Company (90) (62)
g. Closing defined benefit Obligation 1,724 1,514
6. Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

% In lakh % In lakh
a. Fair value of the assets at end of prior period 491 377
b. Interest Income on plan assets 51 32
c. Employer Contributions 579 140
d. Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 57 4
e. Benefits paid (90) (62)
f Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 1,088 491

7. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected medical cost
inflation. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017
T In lakh T In lakh

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (186) 171)

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,539 1,343

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 228 212

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,953 1,726

Effect of a 1% change in medical inflation rate March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017
% In lakh % In lakh

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 156 135

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,880 1,649

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (126) (108)

(ii) closing balance of obligation 1,598 1,406
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2017-18 2016-17
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(2) =& 5« 69 8
(3) I 30 26
Fa 215 80
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41 . Expenditure Incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

(a) Grossamountrequired to be spent by the company during the year-3214 lakh

(b) Inaccordance to section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the company has incurred ¥ 215 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 80 lakh ) as CSR

expenditure.

Particulars g in lakh g in lakh
201718 2016-17

(1) Construction/ Rennovation of assets 116 46
(2) Tube Wells 69 8
(3) Other 30 26
Total 215 80

Above figures are disclosed seperately in Note No. 29(aa)

42 . Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Advances includes balances subject to confirmation/reconcilliation and
consequential adjustment, if any. Reconcilliations are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions,wherever considered

necessary, have been made.

43 . The figures for the corresponding previous years have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them

comparable.

44 . The Board of Directors of the Company in its 2815t Meeting held on 27" July 2018, has proposed a final dividend in respect of
the year ended 315t March 2018, @74% on equity share capital which is ¥ 3520 lakh as on date. The payment of dividend is
subject to approval of shareholders at annual general meeting.If approved it will result in cash outflow of ¥ 3140 lakh inclusive of

dividend distribution tax of¥ 535 lakh.

45. The Finanacial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 27 July 2018.

In terms of our report of even date

For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 304138E

(CA Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala )
Partner
M. No : 057170

Dated : 27.07.2018

Place Kolkata

(B.B Singh)
CHAIRMAN-CUM-
MANAGING DIRECTOR
(DIN- 03212787)

(R K Chaudhuri)
CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER
(FINANCE & ACCOUNTS)

For

MSTC LIMITED

(A K Basu)

DIRECTOR

(FINANCE)
(DIN- 03102901)

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of MSTC LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of MSTC LIMITED (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group”) and jointly controlled entity, comprising the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including the other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of the jointly
controlled entity are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Holding Company has an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, are sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i. In respect of the Holding Company, Trade Receivables
includes ¥ 19544.01 lakh due from M/s SPS Steel Rolling
Mills Ltd. for procurement and supply of materials to the
party which is now more than five years old. Thus with the
passage of time, quality of materials has deteriorated and
as per the volumetric analysis the net realizable value of
pledged raw materials comes to ¥ 6230 lakh. The party
has defaulted in making the payment as per the terms of
the Arbitration award. As per the volumetric analysis done
on 01.12.2017, pledged stock worth ¥ 6543 lakh was
unauthorisedly lifted by the party in spite of the same being
under the jurisdiction of a custodian. The creditors have
filed an application in NCLT for initiation of Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process against the Company. The
Company has security deposit of ¥ 10 lakh and has also
recovered T 641 lakhs from the party during the financial
year 2018-19. An amount of ¥ 1500 lakh have been
provided for in the books of accounts. The Company
should have provided a further amount of¥ 17393.01 lakh
against this debt during the year. Non-provision of the
same has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2017-18 by
% 17393.01 lakh - Refer Note no. 8.4 (a) of notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

ii. In respect of the Holding Company, Trade Receivables
includes ¥ 22124.13 lakh due from M/s Concast Steel &
Power Ltd. for procurement and supply of materials. With
the passage of time, quality of materials has deteriorated
resulting in lower realisable value. As per the report of
volumetric analysis conducted on 03.05.2018, part of
pledged stock at Bankura unit was unauthorisedly lifted by
the party in spite of the same being under the jurisdiction of
a custodian. Volumetric analysis at Jharsuguda unit of the
party could not be performed by MSTC. Thus the book
value of¥ 108 lakh of the pledged stock in this unitis
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3 ¥ T 9206 WG i TR i 3 feran € fores forg sheer
%9088 W@ U BT § | AT o STATH! foreeioor o 79N,
ST T Wik 1 G Tl AT Jea < 2313.81 A § |1 T A
o & SR T 3000 ORE T WEHM A & 1 o g St
A I % SR 9 HOT % U T 19084.13 TG i AR oft
TS U o ST o | 39 S S - § 99 2017-
18 T 19084.13 TG it T GRI AT ek giian 71w § ud
TauH w8 e 7§ - gufea s wuw faxig faawer
feofordi &t feorofi €. 8.4 (@) 3@ |
Qe fa=m

TR foar @ U9 gAr) Hataw SRt 2R g feu T e &

ST, T HeTae Ud Hge €9 9 FRifa s o gk fodts faewor

T ST oI TieTehi ki 4TS ol fad=mT & SR W Areanne fa=m

% foru euR % e (i) @@ (i) ¥ afvfa faweasg & wvmEl &

BIgH, T 07 791 T 36477.14 G o1 31f¥reh ey fe@m g

A UEHH T 8, 3 THfehd 58 Tud foxig faeror eifufray =)

STUETT T STTER T STUTTT STHRRT <o & Te R H SIHaT S

iR fagidl ot STEYar # 319, 2018 &I frufd &1 g e

T &9 9 Feifa ween & wmvet s wafed frafa e 39 9’k &

T Y & ToTT SHeR THfehd <Y, o771 <19 o719, $Heh T ehd Tehe

TaTE Ud sfaet H wfehd aftad o we vd 3 v Tega R | |

HEEA T THE

7 frferfad ol o e sefia wea § -

%) TR $ Ty faia foawo #i fewford =t feooft €. 8.4 (1)
o1 Heef TRl fohan ST €, STt =g afvla € foF @ifeen ot &
IR YT § TRt o o3 TF ST &g HOd 579 aTerstt SR
1. T T 11484.29 TRa ot kT T INTHA TS 1= o F aferes
TR 191t e i 3 STER T R T & ue adaE 9
T Hae T 482 G 1 THRISH T 11937 TR I/ & YR
T o fera femam o ¥ | Uk Tad qedishes i ST fageror
AR & R, JfF duw W wiw @ S agel ard god
Z 14185.21 @ (fuzel o9 T 6870 <@) & @Y M T,
STATE, IAHM oY H JeE gRI hig WA STavash el e 121
7

@) gHferd 3 wud faxita faawor =it fewfor st feofi €. 8.4 (=) =i
T} TRl fera ST €, STel @8 afvia € f difee o %
IR U H WA % 563 W& AT o fore e Terae e o,
¥ ¥ 2831.52 TG T Fehra TR wfHe & S <A o | efees
AT ¥ | ek Tt WA Skt @ g ST o STAfE et
% AR Td T a7 Jodichsh N1 1A fageror frd &
STIHR sS4k T Wk &l Y5 a9all 4 ea % 5311 @@ (frsa
a9 : T 1250 @) % Hohaol A T o HRO, SdH o |
Tt GRT TS AT ST Fal THen e |

) BifeeT Ot % SR Ui T SATIR <A AT RET o wfad
TR A TE 3% A9 SR § Hefad hfed €8
wuH foita faeror =it feumfori ot feooft 6. 44 1 ggef stefia
T ST & S A WS S geha ¥ |

doubtful. Pursuant to admission of a case of insolvency
filed by creditors in NCLT, MSTC has filed its claim before
Insolvency Resolution Professional under NCLT. The
Company has a security deposit of ¥ 40 lakh and during
the year procured materials on behalf of the party for Rs.
9206 lakhs against which they realized only ¥ 9088 lakh.
As per the volumetric analysis of the materials, the net
realizable value of the pledged stock is ¥ 2313.81 lakh.
The Company has made a provision of ¥ 3000 lakh during
the year. The Company therefore should have provided a
further amount of¥ 19,084.13 lakh against this debt during
the current year. This non-provision of the shortfall has
resulted in overstatement of profit and understatement of
provision for the year 2017-18 by ¥ 19084.13 lakh - Refer
Note no. 8.4 (b) of notes to the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.
Qualified Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of
the subsidiary and jointly controlled entity, except for the
effects of the matter described in paragraph (i) and (ii) of Basis
for Qualified Opinion, the overall effect of which is
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision by
X 36477.14 1akh, the aforesaid Consolidated IndAS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and jointly
controlled entity as at 315 March, 2018 and their consolidated
profit including other comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in
equity forthe yearended on that date.

Emphasis of matters
We draw attention to the following matters:

a) Reference is invited to Note no. 8.4 (c) of notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements wherein it is
stated that Trade Receivables of the Holding Company
include ¥ 11484.29 lakh due from M/s Jai Balaji Industries
Ltd. for procurement and supply of materials which are
more than three years old. The party is making payment as
per the Arbitration award and in the current year only ¥ 482
lakh have been adjusted against outstanding opening
receivable of ¥ 11937 lakh. Since as per the Volumetric
Analysis Report by an independent valuer, the net
realizable value of the pledged stock is higher at
3 14185.21 lakh (Previous year: ¥ 6870 lakh), no provision
has been considered necessary by the management in
the currentyear.

b) Reference is invited to Note no. 8.4 (d) of notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements wherein it is
stated that Trade Receivables of the Holding Company
include ¥ 2831.52 lakh due from M/s Global Coke Ltd. for
procurement and supply of materials which are more than
three years old. In view of the expected liquidation of dues
by way of consumption of pledged materials and also net
realizable value of the pledged stock is higher at ¥ 5311
lakh (Previous year: ¥ 1250 lakh) as per the Volumetric
Analysis Report by an independent valuer, no provision
has been considered necessary by the management in
the currentyear.

c) Reference is invited to Note no. 44 of notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements relating to
pending confirmation/ reconciliation of balances of Trade
Receivables and Trade Payables of the Holding Company
and its consequential adjustment that may arise on
reconciliation.
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forareor 31 W19, 2018 % Ted T 36066 TG FI Ft Turd, I
fafer 61 T A & et ¥ 34030 1@ 1 et T8 e 3 1834
A 1 Y[§ The YaTE e Il &, ST foh Tiifend S wud fa<dia
foeor # faafaa 2 | wfea 3o Taw foxita faawor # wifea 3
o o foeror # faafad & 179r 31 91, 2018 =1 aHre a9
% ToT0 Uk ek Sl o Geer | T 683 TG o A1 i 9 T
T &9 9 fefd een & d@eay # T 132 @ & 7 6 oiw
IfHer B, FoTeent oram wRial g1 §RT el i 78 © | 9 58 U fadia
ferercor wel o1 foreita ST ot Siamaia 31= eien wiateni g1 ki
TE & W& foitar faemor st forfter = ud oran wierent st e
e GRT &6 WeH i T § | IR $8 Wud fadia faemor w guwt
T, TRl doh TeTaeh sl SR T &9 9 Fefad ween & geia &
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d) The Holding Company had appointed four Independent
Directors, two on 06.09.2017 and the remaining two on
09.03.2018. Two Audit Committee meetings were held
during the year. In absence of the Independent Directors,
no Audit Committee meetings could be held before
September 2017 by the Holding Company.

e) In the case of the subsidiary Company, the valuation
method of non-moving inventories adopted by the
Company is notin accordance with Ind AS 2 on valuation of
inventories- Refer Note no. 4.8 of notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the subsidiary
Company.

f) In the case of the subsidiary company, Note no. 37 to the
financial statements of the subsidiary Company describes
the impact of the past service cost resulting from the
increase in gratuity ceiling limit (from 10 lakh INR to 20 lakh
INR, as per Gazette Notification No. S.O 1420 (E), Dt.
29/03/2018) on the amount of defined benefit obligation of
% 1788.62 lakh, which is debited to profit & loss account.

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Other Matters

(i) The comparative financial information of the Company for
the year ended 31t March, 2017 included in the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements are based on the
previously issued statutory financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor
auditor, M/s Ray & Co., whose report for the year ended
318t March, 2017 dated 7 August, 2017 expressed a
modified opinion on those Consolidated financial
statements.

(ii) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements and other
financial information of one wholly owned subsidiary,
whose Ind AS financial statements reflect total assets of
% 36066 lakh as at 31t March 2018, total revenue of
¥ 34030 lakh and net cash flows of ¥ 1834 lakh for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS
financial statements also include the share of profit of
% 683 lakhs in respect of one subsidiary and share of loss
of ¥ 132 lakh in respect of jointly controlled entity for the
year ended 31st March, 2018 as considered in the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements which have not
been audited by us. These Ind AS financial statements and
other financial information has been audited by other
auditors, and the financial statements, other financial
information and auditors’ reports have been furnished to
us by the management. Our opinion on the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary and jointly controlled entity and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and jointly
controlled entity, is based solely on the reports of such
other auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the
other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Reportin terms of the directions of the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (CAG) under Section 143(5) of
the Act, and on the basis of our examination of the books
and records of the company carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted principles in India and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure A, statement on the matters specified in the
directions of CAG.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that :
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and

Gatad SRR SR fovam & STTaR gaRl orargdien & forg
ST off |

(@) R T H, 51 o 3 afedt i gurt i o Uit 21 &,
T STYIHER e gRT Ao orar-afedt 1 wewae faa
TR

(1) T8 R & Heifyd wafed gorq- oo, Fafehd o T aif faeror
(T =TI AT 9Ha), 3fearet § Uiad= ot TH e foetor ue
TR ATE T TR foator ore afest o gEma ¢ |

(7)) AR T H, SwE gHfeRd s Ued faxir faaor sifufrem =t
YR 133 TF HO (WA o 7eek) fem, 2015,
Hoifed STHER a7 Gafua femt % stta fafafdy oraiea
Th! HT AT HIA & |

(%) TR T 1, IR A= § AT uret T & o emem 8
Sftfq fowar areqatt o1 we % e W A1 Hfage gara T oft
TS HHATE |

(=) T ATt HTer, TR SR SR TR STTeg=T §. ST, T
3. 463(T) e 05.06.2015 & TIAR o Afafem
2013 % 9T 164(2) T WA T T |

(®) TE wi foxira Raifén o stiafien foxitar frisrmi 1 wirear wa
TG FrE0l o gered dadt geEeRtiar o e ST
“g" # TRl gue U <@, S foe vwa # fmfha ot we
TEh! TEES HUT I o qieren e W e ® 1wy
Frreifora ween 1 e1iafies foxdter femor st aafer we & fresmn
Sl FETeT FHTeRIT 9 R oht sTraaehdl & Fa 1@ T
7

(1) ot (ereradien we eraradiereni ) frammeet, 2014 & fr2m 11
% STHR Sr@raiersh shi Rare § wnfhe & Sierelt o7 fom
&Gl o Tl #, T T H SR gHRT Feian SRl e g

. In our opinion,

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law

have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

. The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion

paragraph above, in our opinion, may not have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

. As per notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5" June, 2015

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Group.

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial

control over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure B which is based on the
Auditor’'s Reports of the Company and its subsidiary
incorporated in India. The jointly controlled entity has
been exempted from the requirement of reporting on
adequacy of internal financial control and the operating
effectiveness of such control.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the

Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

< T AT & AR :
A - . i. The Group and its jointly controlled entity have
i. ST T 7o HafRd $e Ted o foere § et fei disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its

f&aﬁwwﬁﬁwﬁﬁ;qmﬁmm%— Tferd e financial position in its Consolidated Ind AS financial
B e T statements — Refer Note no. 35 of notes to the
N R . .Eﬁ . aﬁ w35 | X . Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
ii. E T TR HIH ’\:|a| 3'5 T o W e Hferarat ii. The Group and its jointly controlled entity did not have
T H1E et Hfaen @ €, e fau www @ @

any such long-term contracts including derivative

‘lﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬂT{:ﬁ it ot | contracts  for which there were any material
.. . foreseeable losses.
ii. Frerereh forer wel wiveror ffer & e g ki Ui sfafia ferg iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
SHA R T E required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group.

FIAF FRNTSH For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

S A Chartered Accounants

THARTT 3041383 FRN 304138E

T % g Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

T : SRRl HEER Place: Kolkata Partner

Date : 27.07.2018 Membership No. 057170

| §. 057170

g : 27.07.2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(TmfeHifRa TRt Rure & “ st it wa foramen strearvasharsti o i " v o oT=es 1 9 §afvd)
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)
HU % TS & AT F SR T T &6 & T8 THHR SR TIHT01 % STTHR st i, 2013 St 9RT 143 w1 ST 9RT 5 % STl TR &
Fra=® Td AR gRISTRT e & aed &1 e ue i © :

Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under sub section 5 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, based on the verification of records of the Company and according to information and explanations given to us, we

reportas under:

ELE fgw AT & o ST
Sl. No. Direction Auditor’s Reply
1. A HTA kO shEST: qof Tafie e ugrge i % faw w1 AfeST ot F A H :

Afyerr/Ter AfFR 7 T2 Afc T, @ Foar gl @i ud
eI Y o &e o 9§ aard, TR IR # h1g SAfeRry g
PR T T |

Whether the company has clear title/lease deeds for
freehold and leasehold respectively? If not please state the
area of freehold and leasehold land for which title/lease
deeds are notavailable.

IR 0T/ ol / ST ST bt B / T8 T ST ol g HITA €,
A 2T, 38k SRT ST Afmferd afer s |
Whether there are any cases of waiver/write off of

debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons therefor and
amountinvolved.

1 G e ok AT Ul g2 HIeR s TS TR A1 = Terehiai &
ST / STIEH & T 8 U Fufaat o1 ggfed W@ fFa g |
Whether proper records are maintained for inventories

lying with third parties & assets received as gift/grant(s)
from Government or other authorities.

SO o T <hTE qUT T YA e e UE gerged fa s HeuH,
HUT o I Ueh TIF UgT STfeRR T € | Bctifeh shicteldl § 3 TS
Td HaE 11 Wi & Har §, Ul o I s TF AHRT 75
7

TR AT o HHAH ¢

U % I 33 T o TR U2 W THUSTEUA-dreEdt § SIfdd
T TR f e AR T A S A TR

In case of Holding Company :

The Company does not have any freehold land and in
respect of leasehold land, the Company has clear lease
deed. However, in respect of 3 flats in Kolkata and 11 flats
in Mumbai, the Company does not have clear title deeds.

In case of Subsidiary Company:

The Company is having a leasehold land acquired from
SAIL-BSP on perpetual lease of 33 years whose title deed
is verified.

RIfeET U & Ao 4 :

THHTE, HaE g1 FAfEE Tdre A1 % SR W ad &k SR
T 859.39 T o 37T 0T o a1 @I H STl T o Ud 1A,
% ST foraTer 3 SRR o SR T 45081.10 €@ & WA T
I G2 @I T ST T o, T8 57 shrefarted ol SIff=rd e &
Teru worfite o e man €, STer ok o =9 oo o wfieliers qrel
FIer 1 551 78l fhan T |

e HI 6 A |

ST = RIS 0/t /T 31T 1 e e & /A WS} |

In case of Holding Company :

Bad Debt amounting to ¥ 859.39 lakh was written off during
the year based on the Resolution plan finalized by NCLT,
Mumbai and Claims Receivable of ¥ 45081.10 lakh was
written off during the year based on the order of the
Arbitrator under PMA whereby proceedings have been
adjourned sine die, till disposal of CBI case is filed in this
regard.

In case of Subsidiary Company:

The Company had not waived/written off any debts/loan/
interest etc.

BT shaT ST TeTaeh sl Q1 o WIFel H, T 987 o TE g
TTTE= 81 TS g8 off Td TLhr A1 fohelt o1 siferehil & 3T /
ST o & H U 1 IS T AT T ge ¢ |

In case of both holding and subsidiary company, there
were no inventories lying with third parties and the
Companies have not received any assets as gift/grant from
Government or any other authorities.
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Ted R § frmifard ot 2, a6t forftar fedifén e stiafias fadta fresmor
T TG THUESHT fafaes & TRfed 38 wed faxia faemor s
FH CIETORTeTT & - T 1 ¢ |

srrafien ferdter feisror o forg werem =t et

AR TG erararel e (e feoft) grrsd fasfta faifénm
stiaftes faia fre=mil s orarien W TRy feooft # s stiafis
Frrieror < SAfrard weqgstl oX forem shtd gu STiafien i < sTaR W)
TR foriter fi=roT oh1 TToT Te 1T T@HT wRd | Ffhd o598
frewrer dea = frRRt €1 3 it 4, sifufrem & st
STATTHR AT STidiieh faxiia fe=mi ) S Tar &, wrfad
A T FATT TG ST HAHT Rt i o qre wfed s9e SIa9q &
SHAES Td <& T ol Gifad e o fore nvret 9 & yenferd 9,
Toh! uREafE w1 fewrta, drarafedt ok g &1 fare ud
ST T T T TR AT MR |

ERCIRNE ARSI

BOR] TRETIRIeT o STER W oty REifeT @ 9z & eiiaftw foda
FrefsTot 6 aR ¥ T S hel SHRI SRR © | T STfafar ot
143(10) % 27 fasrifia eraradierT amehi wd fadia fafén & an &
st Tt Fremlt =01 orEn when W emRw feoh (4 erRw
feoqult ") & STER sHidfe fada fe=mit st eraroRten i v g
T TR SRETTe i 7, ST 8 WA HAE SrRaTTe e gRT S
fohT T €1 & AT e SRy feoqolt # sriferd ® T ww Aifawes
ST BT UTT Y Te T STTYATE U1 i o foTT Sr@raiet i
AT ud fsare ¢ ok =/ e o & fore vt sifafien fadar
o= Rt TeTaAT ot TE ot W STRfard g8 off i wn & Fredmor wmeft
Afifaes weqetl # wudt w9 | Henfad 91

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report of even date to the members of MSTC Limited on
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year
ended 315t March 2018).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of MSTC Limited for the year ended 315t
March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of MSTC LIMITED (“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary company (the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and
jointly controlled entity, which is a Company incorporated in
India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Group incorporated in
India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act and Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with the
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material aspects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

o MSTC
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Qualified Opinion

According to the information & explanations given to us and
based on our audit, the following material weaknesses have
been identified as at 315t March 2018:-

a) The Holding Company did not have an appropriate internal
control system for customer acceptance, credit evaluation
and establishing credit limits for sales, which could
potentially result in the Company recognizing revenue
without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate
collection. The internal control over follow up with the
customers for recovery of dues is inadequate.

b) The Holding Company did not have an appropriate internal
control system with regard to pledged stock of raw
materials procured by the Company on behalf of its
customers and kept under the control of the custodian
appointed by the Company resulting in unauthorized
liftment of the materials from the godowns.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material
weaknesses described above on the achievements of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Group, has maintained in
all material aspects, adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 315t March 2018, based on the internal financial control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to one
subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of
that subsidiary Company incorporated in India.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accounants
FRN 304138E

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 057170

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27.07.2018
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF MSTC LIMITED, KOLKATA FOR THE
YEARENDED 31st MARCH 2018

The preparation of financial statements of MSTC Limited for
the year ended 315t March 2018 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The Statutory Auditor appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on
these financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 27th July 2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of MSTC Limited for the year ended 315t March,
2018 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily
to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel
and a selective examination of some of the accounting
records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant
has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any
comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors’ Report
under section 143 (6) (b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place : Kolkata (SuparnaDeb)

Date : 14.09.2018 Director General of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-l,
Kolkata
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31 9= 2018 & SO WAfRa q@a 9 Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2018
foramor feoqoit 31 @<l & STIER 2018 31 A % WX 2017
Notes As at 31st Mar 2018 As at 31st Mar 2017
afeEfaar ASSETS
1. TR - e ufwufat (1) Non-current assets
() ufa, e SiT SueRo (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 6,771 6,419
(@) wifa ¥ dsfira et (b) Capital Work in Progress 2 1,044 218
() o wafwat (c) Intangible assets 2 133 164
7,948 6,801
(=) ot ot (d) Financial assets
(i) fw (i) Investments
T TR H In Joint Venture 42 880 263
(i) =ATIR =T (iiy Trade receivables 15 44 5
(iii) 1= feefter Hafaat (iii) Other financial assets 3 5,556 692
(%) TR # Hufq () Non-Current tax assets 4 3,490 1,517
(=) smeafiTa =< |ufd (T5) (f) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 30,383 31,705
(®) o= T Hisper ufteafaat (g) Other non-current assets 5 1,040 393
S TR-iisqer witeafat Total non- current assets 49,341 41,376
(2) e wfteafat (2) Current assets
(=) <ot (wrerg=h) (a) Inventories 7 416 7,439
(@) focita wafai (b) Financial assets
() = (i) Trade receivables 8 3,98,153 3,74,088
(i) ToRg ST FRE TR (i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 17,586 9,024
(i) 1= e AT (iii) Other Bank Balances 10 37,894 47,217
(iv) ot foretr Safaan (iv) Other financial assets 11 5177 6,962
() @7 v wufaat (c) Other current assets 12 1,436 1,718
. 4,60,662 4,46,448
farent o fotu W@ ST o &9 H afiepa Sutaar Assets classified as held for sale 25 259 264
T Hispar Fafa Total current assets 4,60,921 446,712
o et TOTAL ASSETS 5,10,262 4,88,088
Ffearet e o EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) sferet (1) Equity
() st S dsht (a) Equity share capital 13 3,520 1,760
(@) = st (b) Other equity 14 69,573 66,950
Fa st Total equity 73,093 68,710
(2) TS T (2) Non-current liabilities
(=) forcftar <zam (a) Financial liabilities
() =R (i) Trade payables 16 26 26
(i) o= faxia <aa (i) Other financial liabilities 17 % 68
(@) vrae (b) Provisions 18 8,933 6,529
() 1= ) Hiege S (c) Other non-current liabilities 19 737 568
T IR wieqar e Total non- current liabilities 9,790 7,191
(3) wisgar <= (3) Current liabilities
(=) forcfar <zrm (a) Financial liabilities
(OE (i) Borrowings 20 76,618 68,835
(i) = (i) Trade payables 21 2,60,382 2,55,968
(i) 7= fortrer e (ii) Other financial liabilties 2 85,569 81,053
(@) o= ST Saar (b) Other current liabilities 24 2,658 1,644
(M) wrEE (c) Provisions 23 2,127 4,680
. 4,27,354 4,12,180
ferent o foTu T@ ST o 9 H afieha < Liabilities classified as held for sale 25 25 7
S HiSTaT < Total current liabilities 4,27,379 4,12,187
A QA Total liabilities 4,37,169 4,19,378
T gfet T I TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,10,262 4,388,088

wer femforat o foamor & e fee At s

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.

TIRI FHfeAifRd fr & $Er In terms of our report of even date.

. Fd THUEAE fafdes  For MSTC LIMITED
Fd S, . TR TS . For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
T AT Chartered Accountants
THSRTA : 304138E FRN : 304138E
e T FHR gAgaren CA Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala (sh=h. fog) (B.B. Singh) (T%. 99) (A. K. Basu)
RIEEGS Partner S -TR-TEY CHAIRMAN-CUM- g o DIRECTOR FINANCE
TH . 057170 M. No : 057170 ISMETA - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR SISMETA- 03102901 DIN- 03102901

DIN- 03212787

feAieh & 27.07.2018 Dated : 27.07.2018 (TR, =) ) (R. K. Chaudhuri) (ewTa @ ) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
T : RICHT Place : Kolkata TH HEvEY, fod Ud @@r  CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER — sat COMPANY SECRETARY

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS
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Tam@®  Amount in T lakhs

31 9= 2018 ! A< 9% & faQ @y & i w1 Rt faeo
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the period 315t March 2018

Taaror feoquit A Y qefercit ot
Particulars Note Currentyear Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
afteafaat ASSETS
| oferem 9 = | Revenue from operations 26 2,26,540 1,73,922
I = Il Other Income 27 52,775 7,767
Il et T (1 +11) Il Total Revenue (I +1I) 2,79,315 1,81,689
IV === IV EXPENSES
(%) AR AT i WIS/ (a) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade/Operational
e eghaed T T Consumables & Spares 28 1,51,928 1,28,261
(@) TR TEgsit & wiw | aga, (b) Changes in stock of finished goods,
w7 Wl SR ST A work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 7074 (5,545)
(1) HHER feaemy | == (c) Employee benefit expense 29 21,149 14,915
(=) focita == (d) Finance costs 30 6,736 6,772
(¥) qeap™ Td uRee == (e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 1,239 1,213
(3) ==Y (f) Other expenses 31 79,343 23,673
V pa=d V  Total Expenses 2,67,469 1,69,289
VI srqenfee #g 3R T gd @ (11- V) VI Profit before exceptional items and tax (1l - V) 11,846 12,400
VIl sroafee w1 VIl Exceptional ltems 32 - 5
VI SRt ST o /R % SR T VIII Profit before share of profit/(loss) of Joint
& gd @ (VI - VI Ventures and tax (VI - VII) 11,846 12,395
IX Soge Sewi & /R & S IX Share of profit/(loss) of Joint Ventures (131) (47)
X & F g @ (VI +1X) X Profit before tax (VI + IX) 11,715 12,348
Xl &®t=g Xl Tax Expense
() M H (a) Current tax 37 2,758 4,510
(@) srefia (b) Deferred tax 1235 (146)
FA T T Total tax expense 3,993 4,364
XIl o & faw @msr (X - XI) XII' Profit for the period (X - XI) 7,722 7,984
Xl 3= =9k 31 XllI Other comprehensive income
(&) (i) =g it @ = g & A (i) ltems that will not be reclassifed to profit or loss 41 (308) (878)
qAeTeRo e1 fefa srar
(il) SoRIeR T 3T HT (i) Income tax on above (21) 304
(@) Gga T % T SATIH 3T & 7 B Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Joint Venture ) 0
(331) (574)
XIV stafy 3 fere st samas o= (X + XI)  XIV Total comprehensive income for the period (XII + XIlI) 7,391 7,410
XV ufa sfemet IR owia (sifera gea %.10 w): XV Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 10 each): 38
(%) afe=w (T H.) (a) Basic (in%) 22 23
(@) sEeges (R H.) (b) Diluted (in T) 22 23

Terr femforf feiar famor & sifu=r e o st The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
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Ta@H  Amount in T lakhs
31 919 2018 ! TA< I & forg sfemet # afterd= 1 wnfera foemo
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

foazor A sifra e ) T ama#
Particulars Nos Face Value (}) Amount
(X Lakhs)
& 3l I g A Equity Share Capital
9 T 31 A, 2016 Y Balance as at March 31, 2016 88,00,000 10 880
I IR 1:1 % STguTd H SR Bonus Shares issued in the ratio:1 88,00,000 10 880
9y ¥ 31 |, 2017 7 Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,76,00,000 10 1,760
T WAL 111 o ST H SR Bonus Shares issued in the ratio®:1 1,76,00,000 10 1,760
3 Thn 31 A<, 2018 H Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,52,00,000 10 3,520
g 3 it B. Other Equity
s TmE wfaenRa Fa
STTRTOT STTRTIT A
Capital General Retained Total
Reserve Reserve Earnings
9y ¥ 31 |, 2016 Y Balance as at March 31, 2016 3,416 59,037 2172 64,625
o % e Profit for the year - 7,984 7,984
oY ¥ T AIH T Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (574) (574)
T ARFeTT B iy (F) ufqeniia Transfer to General Reserve/(From) Retained Earning 1,489 (1,489) -
weTd: Sifaq e fode o 15-16 Less:Final Dividend FY 15-16 - (1,804)  (1,804)
T 37T TR 9 i faaeer & Less:Dividend Distribution Tax on Final
foita ad 15-16 Dividend FY 15-16 - (368) (368)
2Tt foxita o 16-17 & fau ofafm ensiwr  Less:Interim Dividend FY 16-17 - (1,672) (1,672)
TG AR AT I T faawor Less:Dividend Distribution Tax on Interim
ferit = 16-17 Dividend FY 16-17 - (361) (361)
FTT: SE A SR BT Less:Issue of Bonus Shares - (880) (880)
3w Tl 31 7=, 2017 Balance as at March 31, 2017 3,416 60,526 3,008 66,950
o o oy Profit for the year - 7,722 7,722
Y ¥ 3T AT 3T Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (331) (331)
WERT AR H sfawon/ (&) wfaenfia s Transfer to General Reserve/(From) Retained Earning 4,251 (4,251) -
Herd: sifaw @i fa<ia o 16-17 Less:Final Dividend FY 16-17 - (2,499) (2,499)
werd: sifaw e fordta o 16-17 o Less:Dividend Distribution Tax on Final
siafey emvie foa ad 17-18 W Dividend FY 16-17 & Interim Dividend FY 17-18 - (509) (509)
TG S AT o ST foham ST Less:Issue of Bonus Shares (1,760) - (1,760)
¥y ¥ 31 A, 2018 =i Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,416 63,017 3,140 69,573
o feofort faxta faewor & sifi= feed ot st The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
TN TEfeHifrd e % Tgar | In terms of our report of even date.
Fd THUEAE fafdes  For  MSTC LIMITED
Fd S, . TR TS . For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
TS @ Chartered Accountants
THIRT : 304138E FRN : 304138E
I~ B - "R
T, 1 057170 M. No : 057170 SSTET - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR ESTETH- 03102901 DIN- 03102901
DIN- 03212787
ferah © 27.07.2018 Dated : 27.07.2018 (3R iﬁgﬁ) (R. K. Chaudhuri) (s % ) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
: Place : Kolkata @ TEIYe e, fa9 Td @ CHIEF GENERALMANAGER st COMPANY SECRETARY
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31 A= 2018 I HTE 94 & fAU Tohe Jarg 1 gufewa faaor
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 315t March 2018

foaror Particulars 31 7 2018 % STIER 31 W= 2018 & TR
As at 31%t Mar 2018 As at 315t Mar 2017

. IR HEHATT | Tehe TaTE A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
9 & foag Profit for the year 11,715 12,348
TR Adjustments for:
TR-Tieper Hufaat 1 geree / e Depreciation / Amortisation of non-current assets 1,239 1,213
Tl s TS YT & e W /() Loss/(Gain) on disposal of Property Plant and Equipment (5) 57
o @rma Finance Cost 6,736 6,772
Y G B H i ST ST Interest Income recognised in profit & loss (2,673) (4,401)
AL TE 1@ 7T WEe §gT Wi § Sret T Provision no Longer Required Written Back (47,182) (2,978)
TS O el @i § STl T Bad Debt Witten Off 45,941 2,418
Ty U Hfery iR & faw maems Provision for Bad and Doubtful Advances/Debts 13,881 3,122
AT AR Y T Liability written Back (2,817) -
el it afted & g aR=rer @ Operating profit before Working Capital changes 26,835 18,551
feTe Hufal we gadst § gitedd % fore s Adjustments for changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities
=T At H glg/wHHt o fog FHmsH Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
el it H HOR Movement in working capital:
R TS 37 Wi | (ghg) et (Increase)/decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (36,416) (82,954)
= ufcgafaat # (gfg) /aH (Increase)/decrease in Other Assets (360) 237
=S (TrergE) # (3fg)/a (Increase)/ decrease in Inventories 7,023 (5,522)
e gaarstt # (gfg) /a0 % fou gmmEe: Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
IR 39 W &1 fa<dia <oraedt § (i) et Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables & Others Financial Liabilities 8,959 31,404
= <Farstt # (gfg) /e Increase/ (decrease) in Other Liabilities 1,201 (502)
EeH § () Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions (457) (467)
e | T &t gy Cash generated from Operations 6,785 (39,253)
TeAE BT A (S AT Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (4,666) (5,328)
TR S Herdl ¥ IS ThS Net cash from Operating Activities 2,119 (44,581)
@) frem wEwam 9§ e 6E B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
wufd, T3 vd 3T & fAu e Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment (2,629) (1,938)
Tufd, a7 T YR o F9em & wif Proceeds from disposal of Property Plant & Equipment 248 447
Tt s & frar Investment In Fixed Deposits 9,323 27,896
T T # e Investment in Joint Venture 617) (263)
BRI Interest received 2,082 4217
frrarer Tifafafertl # gs T (V) Net cash (used) in Investing Activities 8,407 30,359
) forita FrefwaTd @ THg YaE C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
o7y foenet Sur & mft Proceeds from Short term borrowings 303 12,171
AT YITaH Interest Paid (6,739) (6,762)
I ST Dividend Paid (2,499) (3,476)
ATHIR I T HT Tax on Dividends Paid (509) (729)
ot sl § W Us The Net cash used in Financing Activities (9,444) 1,204
e T Tohg TR T S gfg/(FH) (F+T+T) Net increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents(A+B+C) 1,082 (13,018)
I % AR H RS Td ohe THHRE Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year (3,892) 9,126
o % 31 # Ae UH Tohe GRS Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year (2.810) (3.892)
feuquft: (1) g & it i afeate <oid § 1 Note: (1) Figures in brackets indicate outflows.
(2) THT TS ThS TR SRR feror (2) Statement Showing Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at 315t Mar 2018 As at 315t Mar 2017
Tin lakh T in lakh
Y & i § T Ta A THRE Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year 17,586.00 9,024
e ;a9 o oiq 7 SRR Soid Less : Over Draft Balances at the end of the year 20,396.00 12,916
e % 37d H Y[G ThS T Thg THHRE Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year (2,810.00) (3,892)
F9 THUEe fafi®e  For MSTC LIMITED
Fd S, . TR TS . For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
TS @ Chartered Accountants
THARTA : 304138E FRN : 304138E
%‘:pfm FAETET Pty - Jhnlmyeta gxﬁ—ﬁ%ﬁrﬂ e éﬁ)ﬁhﬂﬁﬂf&um. %3;&1%)[ éﬁéé(éTBg;ulleANCE
TH . 1 057170 M. No : 057170 SISTRTA - 03212787 MANAGING DIRECTOR SISTETA- 03102901 DIN- 03102901
DIN- 03212787
oA : 27.07.2018 Dated : 27.07.2018 (3. a‘}ﬂ'ﬁ) (R. K. Chaudhuri) (3T ) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
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31 AT, 2018 1 THTG 99 ¥q THfRa o faaor st feoaforat
1.%) AHFISTFRT

THuEdHE fafies, T e 9oit-| et 9 fadsr, 1964 &1 St
SIfyfTem, 1956 < idia ifed g2 off | huet st Tifafafet, -
i 3R e ST -t Ty, Stfesy Wer, @i, iy v o
SeUTEH fE o FUeM Ll 8, ST ATt Wrasieh &1 & SUhHAT 3
TR Tt 3 € | ot ot e Tifafafy < geres vt § faenfa
I TE §, ST 3-hiAd A FET | -1 fedior S o arerd
U Ty, REIY Wer, @i, FiT 31 o7 Sl 1 faem s § 1
wert (fifaaer) st g 7 wnfher § e v, demed, T/ et
TR, TS -eh & o STshA 24T Sfea e SraRyE o, offae
T SR T R fot,, T o A, W SR f fafie,
fegwar Wiferam shidfeH a1, enfg | fraem =t vsfa # wfrea 2 -
e, €-faferr, <ot st ofe | w1 &, TowEdE e Sfea
fa., fom wiehiced fa. anfe F wrger oFf $-emdt w3t € 1389
ST THUHSET - UIRIHE THIEE o WeH il § | SR T4
3TrTa/faia Ue HEaa oeh ST et WHiE! o se] SATIR
IRTE YT € | I TR Seit skt 3gfd & forg efenfie w=at
TS ST, AT, R RIct, T It G F ST &, H3 T
forsnt 07 @t ¥ | FIFA/ET SN, da &, T5T 1 Wifceare
Torga shufat anfg sifar e €1

T I Ul TSI Uk TR o, B SRy T fafiee
(THTHTATS) ¥ T 28 W, 1979 Wi fifha g€ off | TwuHTATe
ST ST H el Td SR ST ST % SR Sed= W Ud gt
Y THY AT I U h T THERTO T 1 Bt § 1 F Uesh
STEAYFHAT & TR AL Tl | hT Ic@H Td gatTe, T a1 | =i
TfeET 97T T Ue oite U 3eurd STarsry, fet o afteaer st ufsharehior
Td ThT & W@ & fau fafym derd vem i § 1 TheHeTTa
T G, =i W, Wit et oY Te Yo S B 7T fhu st
T R TR, T ) e e 35 & o e
YAl T | 998 TooT hEAIEHE (Yoh el ) Td T o el o Ueh Td I
STETE bt off grl © 1 3 e wref T g | e T o HEre w
Fregee o off HEYR G € | ThTETATd e dard off wee
FTA B - (%) THEEIH fafiees & wesh! 1 Tiem eE & fau
SRR Far wd (W) WA TE WR/SRY, W TE ST
A e 3 fer et S |

1.9) T % WG foehrd : "k ST Ry 7Y wRg 3reft ook wmelt
T gT

Frmifia Ao T (THET) 3 3 TOH 115-UT8ehi o Ty dieer 9
ToTea sAfugfed foman & wd oA 28.03.2018 1 909 T Tuy #
T HeE fFreER E

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEARENDED 31stMARCH, 2018

1.A.General Information

MSTC Limited, a Mini Ratna Category-l Company, was
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 9"
September, 1964. The Company undertakes trading activities,
e-commerce and also disposal of ferrous and non-ferrous
scrap, surplus stores, minerals, agri and forest produces etc.
mostly from Public Sector Undertakings and Govt.
Departments. The core activity of the Company has been
divided into two Operational Divisions, i.e. e-Commerce and
Trading. The e-Commerce division undertakes disposal of
Scrap, surplus stores, minerals, agri and forest produces
through e-Auction. The list of Principals includes Ministry of
Defence, PMO, Govt. of NCT/Delhi, PSUs like Indian Oil
Corporation Ltd, Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd, State
Electricity Boards, Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd, Hindustan
Petroleum Corporation Ltd. etc. The mode of disposal
includes e-auction, e-tender, e-reverse auction etc. Besides,
MSTC also e-auctions coal from Coal India Ltd, Singareni
Coalfields Ltd etc. Apart from these MSTC also provides e-
procurement solution. The trading division handles
import/export and domestic trade of mainly bulk industrial raw
material. It looks after sourcing, purchase and sales of
industrial raw materials like Heavy Melting Scrap, Low Ash
Metallurgical Coke, HR Coil, Crude Oil, Naptha, Coking Coal,
Steam Coal etc. for supply to Indian industries. The end
customers are Coal/Steel Industries, Oil sector, State owned
Power Companies etc.

It is having a wholly owned subsidiary company, Ferro Scrap
Nigam Limited (FSNL), which was incorporated on 28" March
1979. FSNL undertakes the job of recovery and processing of
scrap from slag and refuse generated during iron and steel
making at Steel Plants. They offer specialised services for Dig
and Haul of Blast Furnaces and Steel Melting Shop Slag at
slag yards, processing of iron and steel skulls, Mill rejects and
Maintenance scrap as per customer’s requirement. FSNL also
offers scarfing of slabs, crushing and screening of LC slag to
be used in sinter plant, blast furnace, steel melting shop and
rail ballast. It removes sludge and ash deposit from sludge
compartments and ash ponds. They also handle and
neutralise Acid Sludge in open Hearth Muck Dump. FSNL is
also providing (a) Custodian service for warehouse
management to the clients of MSTC Limited and (b) Valuation
services for plant and machinery/scrap, movable and
immovable material/ properties.

1.B. Recent Accounting Developments: Standards issued
but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 115-
Revenue from Contract with Customers and certain

amendment to existing Ind ASs, on 28.03.2018 as narrated
below:
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() S TTH 115 - TTeehi o A1 Hfee & TTed : 78 32 T 11 fmfor
Tfeer, $< Ty 18 T Ud Heifed SAesti Tfed adqur Joed
TT=TAT AATGHH o T 0 AR T |

(T@) T S TH H G

(i) Teuwm21 - foreh geredl # uftad s awE

(i) STCH12 -JFHT

(iii) STTTH40 -FremTHufa

(iv) TSUTH 28 - T Ud Hga et # e, 37

(v) TSTTE 12 - T Gt § fecit 1 wehe
TUE < TTT 115 & &g Toa % qedih it Uichar § € | SAe H,
T TS o foRT T SToheT § HaTH a1 ¢ il foh 58k faia faaroi
RIS TTH 115  STIHN & o704 €, faama o fr e wma 115
SRR & T T ToTed T & G0 § e Seoi@-a fiad
sTafaa TR €1

e STFER 3uge IREd faie® 01.04.2018 | HHg W AR & |
T T Ja-HHTe ZFRT0T T SHIHTEA hd U A h ST i
To1 TN &, THeR! AT § fof 3 Sftiienton 3 St wefra il fien 1
3T 2018 =0t fearfa =61 wfaenfia e & wrern < STt ud safameht
I Q30T a1 [ohall ST |

1.77) et eraiehe fiferat
1.77) 1 (F) TR & TER

foretar faawor 1 $o Fufa AR eI & evare & @y Ufderas
AN T & TEd qA TR T 7, T $e-uuw g vere it
sTafy o st o Sfed ye A S sTifa € | e o ot ferawor
R oT@ieh Aehi (‘S Uud’) AR & st sifuf=@m 2013 %
Geiferd wreret o stavia gied femt & STare &g dar fRa U |
P T 7 R S P TR S 3 e e e &
1 719 Taf T IR Te il o = U Hafeed oie # <l ol
A T o TeT T Rl ST €, 7ot € 36 hi9d o1 Teel €9
Y T T ThAT € A1 FeRE Yedich qeheiish o FET § STTHM TRIET T
a1 7| foret wfteiafa =1 faa & Sfaa qoa & oo #, T
g o1 e i fasiuaredl 1 eam # TEdl €, 3R 9eR &%
Ffqefrt 3 3 fasroanei &1 A i aria § afieafa = e & 3o
frufor# faan g |

FTF A8 GAT T FLgaianToT GaT

fererer FeraRor e T (%) # S fop o &, i o e 3 |
TETeH! o fT sHent Hriares® 081 © | IRaE 9 (F) ¥ wega a4
fordtar g froheam org # qof wfer # < 7 %, afg o oo
T

(a) Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers : This
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including Ind AS 11 Construction Contract, Ind AS 18
Revenue and related interpretations.

(b) Amendmentto existing Ind AS:

(i) Ind AS 21- The effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

(ii) Ind AS 12-Income Taxes
(iii) Ind AS 40- Investment Property

(iv) Ind AS 28- Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures,
and

(v) IndAS 112- Disclosure of Interests in other entities

The Group is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of
Ind AS 115. Presently, the Group is not able to reasonably
estimate the impact that application of Ind AS 115 is expected
to have on its financial statements, except that adoption of Ind
AS 115 is not expected to significantly change the timing of the
Group’s revenue recognition.

The above changes as notified shall be applicable to the
Group w.e.f from 01.04.2018. The Group intends to adopt the
standard using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 15! April 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

1.C Significant Accounting Policies
1.C.1(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period by Ind ASs. The financial
statements of the Group have been preapared to comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind ASs’), including the
rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act2013.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

Functional Currency and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (%)
which is the Group's functional currency for all its operations.
All financial information presented in Indian Rupees (%) has
beenrounded to the nearestlakh, unless otherwise stated.
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T =k - Uik v et % st ud T S T
TAGed § 3! A o o9 o1 §HA § | FE A 379 T o o6 €9
T aRE HE fafea feran s |

srefia o aREufal T6 SAQIiEl 1 R-de] gREataEl S
Il & T H aficha fham T g |

STFHI T HEeT YUl =1 7 37T

3T TE & SER @il w1 dart % fa wevm w6 ufigutaEt o
It =t R =t T8 Wi, oram i R w1 STk feres HafaEl e
Il 1 Tehe ool Td 3Tafy o SR 3119 Ta =44 i Rure i &
TS T STTHM TS Tkl T STUfeIa € |

SrEdfae TRETT 39k STAM | =1 & wehd ¥ 1 3TAM & fore wed
TEUl qeh-iiehi shT e Saieh Hifaait § afofe foam T € | oot
@i el 3K T 1 r@iehd Aifaal sl ar] S H A1 STk
STffe=raar & Ae@qul S Hafa, HAe SR 3T, aeH aREafa
I, ST T, Yafgfa @y & Gee § Scq=1 81d & 1 39 &
% A % fo efafifed o iR st =t faferll afea fomga
e Hifeat = ==t i T € 1 3 Tt Heeryul swRent i wEte fRa
SR X Y A § | SRET STHAT o feTe Feier 39 stafy # wr=rdt o
% o7t s1gmm weitem for o € SR fordt off wiass =t srafy i
yAIfIa g |

1.71.1 (@) Go& & fagia

TAfRa ot foeror wauad fa. (“at’’) SR Rt TR

o R TR e o, e wge e wfes waumd foae e,

for. @ deifera € | aofeRa faxia faawo frefafad smar w tar fee T

g:

. AT TR 3R TerIh At o faxite faavr Ser-u 9w ufyr e
3T A I HYU ¥ § T A% UREUra, e,
i, 3T, = Wa Fohel MaTe S8 Hel ol Sied g 3 o @
SR R G fhan e |

@, -9 AT § S AN A1 eI S afEafaat S foh Ao
& Hufd, T 3 SR H T €, Tl quiaan gl faan T g |

. TS eI Sl ohi Sl o Tl shui o 7% Ta Tcieh Teiad
ST H HeT S o e ol o8 T ol ATHEE (HH) LT |

Currentand Non-Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. All assets and
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per
the Group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set outin
the schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 —
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of accounts in accordance with Ind ASs
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
accounts and reported amounts of income and expenses
during the period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the
accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and
the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the
Group’s accounting policies arise in relation to property, plant
and equipment, current asset provisions, deferred tax,
retirement benefits. The detailed accounting policies,
including underlying judgments and methods of estimations
for each of these items are discussed below. All of these key
factors are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
estimates are revised and any future periods affected.

1.C.1(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to MSTC Ltd (‘the
Company’) and its subsidiary company Ferro Scrap Nigam
Ltd. and joint venture Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt Ltd. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
following basis:

A. The financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary has been combined on a line by line basis by
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

B. Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and
property, plantand equipment, are eliminated in full.

C. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s
investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary.
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frarer o eTgER sfoaet fafy & siavia @ o faarmn g1

gforere fafy
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1.71.2 ot e E i
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v feqifén srafy & siq ¥, faeh gsredt # qewafifa wifss wai 1
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Heredt # Heaafita, 3fea qea W R-Hifses 78 36 fafy = yefad 0
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T IO e AT S |

D. The difference between the proceeds from disposal of
investment in subsidiary and the carrying amount of its
assets less liabilities as on the date of disposal is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss being the profit or loss on disposal of investment in
subsidiary.

E. Non Controlling Interest's share of profit / loss of
consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and
adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive
at the net income attributable to shareholders of the
Company.

F. Non Controlling Interest's share of net assets of
consolidated subsidiary is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separate from liabilities and
the equity of the Company’s shareholders.

G. Investmentin Joint Venture has been accounted under the
equity method as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures.

Equity method

Under the equity method, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of other
comprehensive income of the investee. Dividends from joint
venture are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
ofthe investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other
entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and
its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interestin these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments is
tested forimpairment in accordance with the policy.

1.C.2 Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of the Group,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not translated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Exchange
differences arising on retranslation on non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in statement of profit and loss
for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the
customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange
gain/loss are not recognised in the books of the Group.

1.C.3 (a) Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an
asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the
costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and
equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance
costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss as incurred. When a replacement
occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the
asset toits working condition and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Included in property, plant and equipment are loose plant and
tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related
to their expected useful lives and estimated scrap value and
also spares, against which impairment provisions are made
where necessary to cover slow moving and obsolete items.

Capital work-in-progress is valued at cost and includes
equipment in transit and the cost of fixed assets that are not
ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

“Assets classified as held for sale” is under “Non-current
Asset” at their carrying amount, will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction, rather than through continuing use
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell, except for asset such as Deferred Tax Asset, Assets
arising from employee benefits, Financial Assets which are
specifically excempt from this requirement. Further, where the
management expects that any part of said assets is likely to be
disposed off within one year on the Balance Sheet date, the
same are classified as current assets.
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“Assets classified as held for sale” is classified under “Non-
current Asset” at their net written down value since these
assets have already been retired from normal continuing
operations and is held only for sale/ auction.

“Assets classified as held for sale” are presented separately
from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities
classified as held for sale are presented separately from the
otherliabilities in the balance sheet.

1.C.3(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line
basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment to their
residual value. These charges are commenced from the date
the assets are available for their intended use and are spread
over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated
useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is
provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
stillin use.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant
and equipment, net of their residual values, over their useful
life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property,
plantand equipment are:

Estimated
Useful life (Years)

Type of Asset

Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Partition and Cubicles 10
Building 60
Air Conditioners 10
Computers 3
Servers 6
Plant and Machinery used

for hot slag handling 5
Dozer 7
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum 7
Cranes 15
Magnetic Separators 15
All assets under “Plant and Machinery”

except assets mentioned above 9.19
Assets with value less than

Rupees Five Thousand 100 %
Solar Plant 10
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1.C.3 (c) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Computer software is amortised over its estimated useful life
of 6 years (without any residual value) on a straight line basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Further, the management estimates that the intangible assets
are having zero carrying cost at the end of its useful life i.e.
zeroresidual value.

1.C.4Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the carrying amount of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication, the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amountis the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years. Areversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

1.C.5Investmentin Subsidiaries and Joint venture

Investment in subsidiary and Joint venture are carried at cost.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
ofthe investment is assessed and written down immediately to
its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiary and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.C.6 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

a) Financial assets
|. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Il.  Financial assets measured at fair value through Other
comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially
at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, the interest income, losses & reversals, and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Ill. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value
through profit or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial
instruments whose credit risk has not significantly increased
since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months
expected creditlosses is recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in
the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralised borrowing of the proceeds
received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of directissue costs.

Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include Trade and other
payables and borrowings including bank overdrafts are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Balance Sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.
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1.C.7 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash,
cash at bank, and bank overdraft, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes, in value. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

1.C.8Inventories

Stock in trade including material-in-transit is valued at cost or
estimated netrealisable value whicheveris less.

In case of subsidiary:

(i) Inventories other than non-moving inventories are valued
at cost or estimated net realizable value, whichever is
less. The cost includes purchase cost and other direct
expenses but exclude excise duty on such goods where
the compay is eligible to take cenvat credit in accordance
with rule 3(1) of the Cenvat Credit Rules 2004.

(i) The inventory items, which have not moved for more than
three years, are considered as non-moving inventories.
Non-moving inventories are valued at cost reduced by ten
percent of cost every year from the year 2001-02.

(iii) The scrapped/redundant store items are valued at cost or
estimated netrealizable value, whicheveris lower.

1.C.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on accrual basis except in the
following items which are accounted on actual realization
since realisibility of such items is uncertain in accordance with
the provisions of the accounting standards:

i) Decrees pending for execution/contested dues and
interest thereon, if any.

i) Interest on overdue recoverables where realisability is
uncertain.

iii) Liquidated damages on suppliers or contractors.

iv) Refund of Income-Tax/Sales Tax/VAT and interest
thereon.

v) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive
paymentis established

SALES

i) High sea sales are booked on the basis of date of
issuance of high sea sale letter. As regards value, sales
are booked either at contracted forward exchange rates, if
booked, or provisionally on the basis of FEDAI spot
exchange rates prevailing on the last date of the financial
year, where forward cover was not taken, which includes
C&F / CIF price, usuance interest followed by final
adjustment on due date of payment in subsequent
financial year.
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ii) Incase of indigenous material, sales are accounted for on
the basis of date of transport documents and as regards
value, based on the value of invoices. In case of sale on
door delivery basis sales are booked on sales invoice
dates.

ii) In case of export, sales are accounted for on the basis of
date of shipment. As regards value, sales are booked
either at contracted forward exchange rates, if booked, or
at the FEDAI rate on the date of shipment as per custom
clearance document, followed by final adjustment on
actual realisation of export proceeds.

SERVICE CHARGES

Remuneration for transaction in Marketing Department
through facilitator mode and for conducting sales/
procurement on behalf of Principals, by way of auctions,
tenders, or any other means, are accounted for as service
charges.

(a) Service charges are accounted for as income at
contracted rates on:

i. Tender/Auction sale on behalf of Public Sector
Undertakings, Defence and other Government
Departments on issuance of sale orders / delivery
orders.

ii. On satisfactory completion of e-sales.

Inrespect of (i) & (ii), service charges are accounted for
on bid price of auction with adjustments, if any, on the
basis of actual delivery by the Principals, in case
service charges are payable on percentage basis.

iii. On occurrence of event, in case of service contract on
eventbasis.

iv. Incase of e-Procurement Service charges are booked,
where service charges are collectable from the
Principal, on completion of event.

(b) e-Procurement transaction fees collected from bidders are
accounted on successful conduct of event.

(c) Service charges accrued in respect of purchase as
facilitator are accounted for at the contracted rate on the
basis of date of bill of lading / railway receipt / lorry receipt
as the case may be. For imported materials, value is
ascertained either at forward cover rate or at FEDAI spot
rate prevailing on the last date of the Financial Year. Final
adjustment is made on actual payment. In case of
indigenous materials, value is ascertained on the basis of
actual payment at contracted rate.

(d) In case of subsidiary, service charges represent the
income earned for processing of scrap and other items,
custodian services for warehouse management and
service related to valuation of assets done by the company
at the rates agreed with/offered to the respective Steel
Plants and other parties.
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E-AUCTION REGISTRATION

E-auction Registration fees collected from buyers is
considered as income of the current year if the validity of
registration is upto one year. In case of life long registration,
the amount so collected is distributed in five years equally.

PURCHASES

(i) Imported materials are accounted for as purchase on the
basis of date of bill of lading. As regards value, purchases
are booked on the basis of actual remittance and where
such remittance are outstanding at the close of the year,
on the basis of contracted forward exchange rates, if
booked, or FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on the
last date of the financial year, in case forward cover is not
taken, as the case may be. Purchase value includes
material value, freight, insurance etc. and usuance
interest followed by final adjustments on actual paymentin
subsequent financial year.

(ii) In case of indigenous materials, purchases are booked on
the basis of transport documents and as regards value,
based on the value of invoices.

1.C.10 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

1.C.11 Employee benefits
(a) Shortterm benefits

Short term employee benefits are accounted for at their
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered by the employees and are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Leave encashment

The liabilities for earned leave and commuted leave are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 month after the end of
the period in which the employees render related service.
They are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made inrespect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The benefits are discounted using the market yield at the end
of the reporting period that have terms of approximating to the
terms of related obligations. Remeasurement as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.The facility is
funded through LIC of india.
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(c) Post-employmentobligation
Defined Contribution Plan- Provident Fund

Provident Fund is administered by a Trust recognised by
Income Tax Authorities and contribution to this Fund is
charged to revenue. Pensioner’s Benefits are secured through
Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995.

Defined Benefit Plan-
(a) Service Gratuity

The liabilities or assets recognised in the Balance Sheet in
respect of defined gratuity plan is the present value of the
defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefits
obligations are calculated annually by actuaries using
projected unit credit method. The present value of defined
benefits obligations is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that are
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discounted
rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profitand loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
resulting from amendments and curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. The Gratuity
obligation is funded through Group Gratuity Life Assurance
Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India and is
administered through a separate irrevocable trust created by
the Group for this purpose.

b. PostRetirement medical benefit

The Group provides post retirement healthcare benefits to
their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to the
retirement age and the completion of minimum service period.
The expected cost of these benefits is accrued over the period
of employment using the same accounting methodology as
used for defined benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The
fund is administered through a separate trust created for this
purpose.

1.C.12 Taxation
Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
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(i) Currenttax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax for the year as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted in the country where the
Group operates by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written
down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to
the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that
they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and there
are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

1.C.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

Provisions are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits which can be
reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When appropriate,
provisions are measured on a discounted basis.
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Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an
entity’s actions whereby an established pattern of past
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities; and as a result, the entity has
created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
thatit will discharge those responsibilities.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current estimate of management.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

1.C.14 Segmentreporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public
business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures. The Group undertakes
trading activities, and also acts as e-commerce service
provider. Based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in
Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates Group’s performance and allocates resources on
an analysis of various performance indicators by operating
segments. In terms of above the Group has identified
Marketing and e-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable
Business Segments. Revenue and identifiable operating
expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on
items that are individually identifiable to that segment. Rest of
the items of revenue and expenses,which cannot be
specifically allocated under specific segments, are separately
disclosed as unallocated.

1.C.15 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results
of operations during the reporting period end. Although these
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful economiclives and impairment of other assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
(PPE) and intangible asset is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and
other economic factors (such as known technological
advances).
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The Group reviews the useful life of PPE and intangibles at the
end of each reporting date and any changes could affect the
depreciation rates prospectively.

The Group also reviews its property, plant and equipment for
possible impairment if there are events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property,
plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits, such as the Group's business
plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into
consideration.

(i) Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may
arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the
Group. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable
and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be
made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings, the Group does not expect
them to have a materially adverse impact on the Group’s
financial position or profitability.

(iii) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Group's liability towards defined benefit
obligation to employees is made through independent
actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other
comprehensive income. Such valuation depend on
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand factors in the employment market.

(iv) Fair Value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

(v) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax
losses and unused tax credit

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is
based on an assessment of the probability of the Group's
future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in
assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.
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2 a. Property, Plant and Equipment

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars Freehold Office  Office Air Furniture Office EDP  Plantand Vehicles Total
Buildings Equipment Conditioner and Partition & Equipments Equipment Tangible
fixtures  Cubicles Assets
Gross Block as at March 31, 2016 384 109 37 150 105 189 6,149 159 7,282
Additions 10 4 4 21 8 38 1,374 91 1,550
Disposals - - - - - 20 90 4 114
Gross Block as at March 31, 2017 394 13 41 171 113 207 7,433 246 8,718
Additions 18 31 5 16 - 40 1,404 46 1,560
Disposals - - - - 20 5 23 1 49
Gross Block as at March 31, 2018 412 144 46 187 93 242 8,814 291 10,229
Depreciation as at March 31, 2016 21 25 12 50 46 46 907 20 1,127
Charge for the year 28 24 9 36 22 71 994 26 1,210
Disposals - - - - - 21 15 2 38
Depreciation as at March 31, 2017 49 49 21 86 68 96 1,886 44 2,299
Charge for the year 32 23 5 17 3 63 1,008 32 1,183
Disposals - - - - 15 4 5 24
Depreciation as at March 31, 2018 81 72 26 103 56 155 2,889 76 3,458
Net book value as at March 31, 2016 363 84 25 100 59 143 5,242 139 6,155
Net book value as at March 31, 2017 345 64 20 85 45 111 5,547 202 6,419
Net book value as at March 31, 2018 331 72 20 84 37 87 5,925 215 6,771
2 b. Capital Work in Progress
Costas  Addition Deletion Cost as atDepriciation Addition Adjustment Depriciation Net Book
at April at March as at April as at March Value as
01,2016 31,2017 01,2016 31,2017 at March
31,2017
Capital WIP 414 232 428 218 0 0 0 0 218
Total 414 232 428 218 0 0 0 0 218
Costas  Addition Deletion  Cost asDepriciation Addition Adjustment Depriciation Net Book
at April at March as at April as at March Value as
01,2017 31,2018 01,2017 31,2018 at March
31,2018
Capital WIP 218 1,044 218 1,044 0 0 0 0 1,044
Total 218 1,044 218 1,044 0 0 0 0 1,044
Amount includes advance payment made to NBCC(India) Limited towards construction of New Office Building at Newtown,Kolkata.
2 c. Intangible assets
Costas  Addition Deletion  Cost asDepriciation ~ Addition Adjustment Depriciation Net Book
at April at March as at April as at March Value as
01,2016 31,2017 01,2016 31,2017 at March
31,2017
Computer Software 14 147 0 161 3 3 0 6 155
Intangible Assests under Development 0 9 0 9 0 0 0 0 9
Total 14 156 0 170 3 3 0 6 164
Costas  Addition Deletion  Cost asDepriciation Addition Adjustment Depriciation Net Book
at April at March as at April as at March Value as
01,2017 31,2018 01,2017 31,2018 at March
31,2018
Computer Software 161 5 0 166 6 56 0 62 104
Intangible Assests under Development 9 20 0 29 0 0 0 0 29
Total 170 25 0 195 6 56 0 62 133
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3. Other financial assets (Non Current)

Amount (% in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Security deposits 109 123
(b) Other loans and advances
Loans to employees 487 558
(c) Interest accrued on loans to employees 6 6
(d) Term Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 4,954 5
Other financial assets 5,556 692

3.1 Theterm deposits are pledged with banks against over draft facility and margin for guarantee.
3.2 Incase of subsidiary, the 3(d) depositincludes X 1980 lakh (PY 2016-17 ¥ 5821.63 lakh) pledged with Indian Bank, Andhra Bank

and Bank of Baroda against Bank Guarantee & Overdraft facility.

4 .Non-Currenttax assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Advance payment of Taxes 67,821 63,155
Less: Provision for Taxation 64,331 61,638
Net 3,490 1,517
Non-Current tax assets 3,490 1,517
5.0Other assets (Non Current)
Particulars As at As at

(Unsecured, considered good)

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

a) Advance with public bodies

(a) Customs, Excise, Sales Tax ,Port Trusts etc. 296 308
(b) Prepaid Lease Payment Cost 723 -
(c) Other loans and advances

(a) Prepaid expenses 5 9

(b) Others 11
(d) Post Retirement benefit assets - 65
(e) Advance for Building Construction 15 -

Total Other assets 1,040 393

5.1 Amount paid towards acquisition of Leasehold Land from WBHIDCO.

5.2 The land on which the plant and building of the subsidiary company are situated at Rourkela, Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro Vizag,
Durgapur & Duburi are neither freehold nor leasehold. The group has acquired right of free use from landholders as a part of
service agreement. The group has however, acquired leasehold land from SAIL - BSP on perpetual lease of 33 years w.e.f. 29t
December, 1988 on which the Registered Office Building of the subsidiary company has been constructed.




o AMSTC

it LIMITED

AT N st I e o v Fonarasd

6 . seyfita T aREufaEt (frae) Tfer (oma T #)
fereror 31 74, 2018 31 74, 2017
% TIER % TIER
STt T (IeTfiar) afeatar
ST T TSI BT TS HIA A FF T BT AT
Hufd, T Td U AR o gREufEl & 98 god Td Y 9 & o R W (269) (208)
o= 9) (8)
ST HT AT T TS HEA 1A TSl T HT JAS (278) (216)
ST Y aftEafxEt 1 TS HIA A TR BT B AN
afaqfia sraufeafa, STem (IeEd) o o FH=rd ey & forg waem 822 699
wfery smoyefis % fag o 18,588 29,509
STERT ST 1961 T €T 40(F)(i), 43(@) & 3iala STElHia 1,644 1,281
Hufd, T3 T& ITRIU & T W TG AT A & o 3T W 7 0
TS hfge AfHer o 2,225 0
gfg <@ W foshdl &I < @ & fore wraem 81 77
TAT Y W A & Tow wraeme 13 13
aifqgfia W w0 & foae graem 0 25
ST e Bl 7,050 0
3T IE T o HEAT § 231 317
SreAfiTa T TREfAE! 6T TS HIA AT TS h1 H YA 30,661 31,921
ST &Y (AT ) /affaat (gs) 30,383 31,705
7 . e
fereror 31 7= 2018 31 @, 2017
% STIER % STIER
(%) TFTES Vi - 7,074
(@) T SR T9d ©IE e TR el 324 252
(M) TR-T WG H =i 163 211
(%) sToaferd HasE 1 ©ih - 23
(%) € wd T - ydtea fraes 26 4
(=) AT 4 wH - Al gHEeT -
(D) ARTEs aEqd 1 1
(S1) HEU To e |RAT 6 i 10 g
(%) ¥ AFE
(1) TR-Ta T % Wik & forg 94 120
(2) =rd Td T % faw - TteRd faem 14 -
(3) srvafera Ao & fag - 15

EX 416 7,439




6 . Deferred Tax Assests (Net)

THafirz

AT FTRE R UTEN G s

o MSTC

LIMITED

1A G, o i Frivpetas]

Amount in T lakh

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets:

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property,

Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets (269) (208)
Others 9) (8)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities (278) (216)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for compensated absences, gratuity and other employee benefits 822 699
Allowance for doubtful debts / advances 18,588 29,509
Disallowances under Section 40(a)(i), 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 1,644 1,281
On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property,
Plant and Equipment 7 0
MAT credit Entitlement 2,225 0
Provision for claim payable to vendor against escalation claim 81 77
Provision for Interest on Service tax 13 13
Provision for Demand on Compensation 0 25
Unabsorbed business losses 7,050 0
Through Other Comprehensive Income 231 317
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 30,661 31,921
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 30,383 31,705
7 . Inventories
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Stock in transit - 7,074
(b) Stores and Spare parts including loose tools 324 252
(c) Stock of Non-Moving inventory 163 211
(d) Stock of Obsolete Inventory - 23
(e) Stores and Spares - Awaiting Disposal 26 4
(f) Inventory Shortage-Pending Adjustment - -
(g) Goods in Transit 1 1
(h) Stock of Printing & Stationary 10 9
(i) Less: Provision
(1) for stock of non-moving inventory 94 120
(2) for stores & spares - awaiting disposal 14 -
(3) for obsolete inventory - 15
Total 416 7,439
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8 . Trade receivables (Current) Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade receivables

(a) Secured, considered good 3,49,738 3,15,842
(b) Unsecured, considered good 48,415 58,246
(c) Unsecured, considered doubtful 53,162 40,152
Less: Allowance for Doubtful trade receivables (expected credit loss allowance) 53,162 40,152
Total 3,98,153 3,74,088

8.1 Trade Receivables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment

Secured, Considered good 85,900 44 137
Unsecured, Considered good 32,446 44,509
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 53,162 40,152
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 53,162 40,152
1,18,346 88,646
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, Considered good 2,63,839 2,71,705
Unsecured, Considered good 15,968 13,737
2,79,807 2,85,442
Total 3,98,153 3,74,088

8.2 Trade Receivables include an amount of 14782 lakhs on account of export of gold jewellery during 2008-09. The said
receivables were purchased by Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) under a Receivable Purchase Agreement . As per the said
agreement, SCB would purchase the bills raised by MSTC on foreign buyers and pay 95% of the amount to MSTC and
foreign buyers would be paying against the bills directlyto SCB on respective due dates of the bills. The said export
transactions were also insured by SCB with ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company. On non receipt of proceeds from
the foreign buyers, SCB claimed the amount from the insurance company. The Insurance company repudiated the claim of
SCB. Thereafter SCB converted the receivables into debtand filed a case in Debt Recovery Tribunal, Mumbai. MSTC has
been contesting the case in DRT and other forums against the said claim of SCB. SCB has also filed a suit against the
insurance company for the said amount of unrealized dues which is yet to be disposed off. Pending disposal of the cases,
MSTC has been showing the amount as receivables without adjusting the same against the amount paid by SCBto MSTC
against purchase of the said receivables(export bills) which is being shown in books separately as Borrowing( Current)
vide Note No. 20.

8.3: Trade receivables are generally secured either by way of stocks pledged by the customers with the Company or Bank
Gurantees or by liability where there is back to back arrangement with the associate suppliers. In case there is a significant
depletion inrealizable value of such pledged stock against the book value of the corresponding receivables, the differential
amount has been shown under ‘Unsecured’.

8.4(a): Trade Receivables includes ¥ 19544 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 19544 lakh) due from M/s SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd. for
procurement and supply of materials to the party up to October, 2012, almost five and half years ago. As per the volumetric
analysis conducted by independent inspection agency, the net realizable value of pledged raw materials comes to ¥ 6230
lakh. The party has defaulted in making the payment as per the terms of the Arbitration award. The financial creditors have
filed an application in NCLT for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against the Company.The Company
has security deposit of ¥ 10 lakh and has also recovered ¥ 641 lakh from the party during the financial year 2018-19. MSTC
has filed its claim with the Resolution Professional (RP). MSTC'’s claim has been admitted by the Committee of Creditors as
a secured operational creditor. An ad-hoc provision of ¥ 1500 lakh have been created in the books of accounts.
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8.4(T): AN U H WA o o Ta SATYf o foTT T i<k il TUe Ier fat. | T 22124 &r@ (fraat a9 ¥ 22006 A1) i Fehr Ui
wfee § | T ST TeiEt o mre § fefed st favera % 1R, st T Wi o ageiard god € 2313.81 A ¥ 1 W &
TR G § STTATH STkl THUES T gRY foutfed Tt fohan ST Tkt o | Teiuerdt # foxia oert gy gst foht e feanferare & oot
Y TR & STTHR THTESH! 7 TTHUER! & T2 sica-4t RTea e Srhere o Tuet e foha § | ot & e % 40 &g ot ufasfa
STHT © TE a9 o I 91 i 3§ ¥ 9206 T ! | W7 %1 7T Ta % 9088 @ i a¥ei g8 ff 13 3000 T ol daef W orar
afeat H v ferar T ® |

8.4(T): SATIR A= # T 572 et SeieT f. & T 11484 g (Tt o T 11937 o) it ST TR nfiet € | sTehrer skt St flr o= ot
T 21y T & fore s1faee § | weiar vl & T8N, THUESE haet I srdH & fawg et o fore sheedt |rmft ured s | i
A H , T 9 o fAT 10% 1 THIES foRal SITe we 99 90% o1 THUHET 51T R § o7 fohan stram | fre § fre e shar # 9,
50% TTHIT STRT ot ST & & T 9 50% <1k T Wik o €9 § W S § 1 39 URR U ST % 90% o foeg, 50% arft 7u sk &
B9 50% T ieh & a6 STRI 1 STl € | 38 Feh T ST bl 78 St & Seelt ST | 39 Aishar H TR i Toran § Seora-ia Gar
TR S | IR, s T Tl o1 5 agel A1 gea farien 31.03.2017 % S{ER T 6870 @@ & 9ga 31.03.2018 H1314185
ARG T T S (T A Uit g frsafed STgATd foreeron o STE), St o e 9 it gern # aget ik € 1 56 Ao siv e
TSR ot Sga Feerfl o o, SeraT o H h1g HTareiT fohall ST STrereeieh el Seei T o |

8.4(%): IR U § WA o A T SMYfd & fore 79+ Teiraat shie fot. (Seiea) & ¥ 2831 @@ (st o : ¥ 3031 @1@) st Shan Ui
et & S i o & stferes QR § | SR v gl ufen o= ot 9 stfres o fere sifaca & 1 arel i wAEert o o S forar wen € v
ST+ AT WIEReIet o O 7T STa &t fohall § | 9121 o SFQRT okl |IH( o STIRIGH o 1o B1et &1 H e STHR W 71 fygH e
3% oo € | 91t 31us ST o o e shreiifaes feeren ot aeiren e T, aifes ffde el 1o o2 58 e ferarn i e, STet shaeit aht
Sereh Tt ATl Ul g8 ¥ | 9 ST Rl STt © fof 218 Tl Weh o S # ST U S ek T ST oht WO gRT ST i Sl ST e 6
TS BT T | S5k ST, T8 U Tieh ST oh1 GR& [urerdl | oIsTR okl Freiferd S=id feerfd o RoT Seer@-1 Gur o1 &, Sed vs
el A4 ged 31.03.2017 % T 1250 @ ¥ sgeh 31.03.2018 i 3 5311 TG Tgd 1 § (¥ ST Wi gR fsifee stgamdy
TorveToT 3 STHER) S o ST 319 & wgd 21fere § 131030 A 1 TR veel € 31 91+ 2017 9 % feru wraem foan 7 € 1 38k 7o
Te ik H TSt AT i 3T et FEf o 0T acam o | s WA fohar ST STa9eeh el SHei 747 7 |

8.5: MR WA H YHeRor Aremm § R T sawE & fau (W srewt) 3 293979 @ i ufYr wite © (frse ad 2016-17 #

T 275490 @@) |
e 3 |
9. 1< T Tehe THITT
fereror 31 @<, 2018 31 @€, 2017
% AR & ITEX
(%) TAH TS 3 2
(@) %" 9w
<] @ H 17,583 9,022
FA 17,586 9,024
10 . TS TH TS T o STATST e AT
foreror 31 @<, 2018 31 @€, 2017
% STER % STER
¥ % T e I
(i) <ERfeq aryre @ § 99 86
(i) 3 WM ¥ Iy R 12 W W FH 1 ol TR & e ST 37,795 39,774
Fat 37,894 39,860

10.1  Sufara ST AT # sifreRgrae gfaen & fog S # sus W 3 31,828 @ (st o 2016-17 H 3 36,117 @@) TE MRS & fawg it
%955 @rg (fU=et 99 2016-17 H3 953 @) A E |

10.2 TEEE HUAT & TH H U ST Al § feam o, 1w S ud Sk i ISi & U ok MR e SRR giaun & fowg dusw
Tf3r T 3844.09 or@ (Tt a1 2016-17 3 2.32 @) WA T
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8.4(b): Trade Receivables includes ¥ 22124 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 22006 lakh) due from M/s Concast Steel & Power Ltd. for
procurement and supply of materials. As per the volumetric analysis carried out by independent inspection agency, the net
realizable value of the pledged stock is ¥ 2313.81 lakh. Volumetric assessment at Jharsuguda unit of the party could not be
performed by MSTC. Pursuant to admission of a case of insolvency filed by financial creditors in NCLT, MSTC has filed its
claim before Insolvency Resolution Professional under NCLT. The Company has a security deposit of ¥ 40 lakh and during
the year, procured materials on behalf of the party for . 9206 lakhs and realization was ¥ 9088 lakh. An ad-hoc provision of
%3000 lakhs have been created in the books of accounts.

8.4(c): Trade Receivable includes X 11484 lakh (Previous year: ¥ 11937 lakh) due from M/s Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. Entire amount
of outstanding is overdue for a period of more than three years. As per the settlement terms, MSTC will procure raw
materials for the party against advance payment only. Out of the advance payment, 10 % will be adjusted against old
receivables and for balance 90% fresh procurement will be made by MSTC. Out of the fresh procurement, 50% of material is
being issued and balance 50% is kept as pledged stock. Thus against 90% of payment received, 50% of material is issued
against fresh stock and balance 50% is issued against old stock, thereby replacing the old materials with the new one. In the
process the quality of the security has improved significantly. As a result, net realizable value of the pledged stock has
increased from3 6870 lakh ason 31.03.2017 to¥ 14185 lakh as on 31.03.2018 (as per the Volumetric Analysis carried out
by independent inspection agency), which is much higher than the outstanding balance. In view of this and also due to
improved market condition, no provision was considered necessary to be made in the current year.

8.4(d): Trade Receivables include ¥ 2831 lakh (Previous year: ¥ 3031 lakh) due from M/s Global Coke Ltd. (GCL) for procurement
and supply of materials which are more than three years old. Entire amount of outstanding is overdue for more than three
years. The party has been referred to NCLT and the Company has filed its claim before Resolution Professional. The party,
with the approval of Committee of Creditors, has recently started their Sindhudurg plant on job work basis. The party is also
looking for a strategic investor for its Jamnagar plant to start on job work basis where the Company’s pledged materials are
lying. Itis expected that the entire dues of the Company will be liquidated by way of consumption of pledged materials once
this plant becomes operational. Further, the quality of security in the form of stock lying has improved significantly due to
prevailing improved market condition, that resulted in increase in net realizable value from ¥ 1250 lakh as on 31.03.2017 to
¥ 5311 lakh as on 31.03.2018 (as per the Volumetric Analysis carried out by independent inspection agency), which is much
higher than the outstanding balance. An amount of ¥ 1030 lakh has already been provided for upto 315t March, 2017. In view
of this and also due to improved market condition of the material in stock, no provision was considered necessary to be
made in the current year.

8.5: Trade Receivables include ¥ 293979 lakh, against business done in facilitator mode(net of provision) (P.Y2016-17 % 275490
lakh')

Amount in ¥ lakh
9.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Cashin hand 3 2
(b) Balances with banks
In Current Account 17,583 9,022
Total 17,586 9,024

10 . Bank balances other than Cash & Cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) Earmarked Balances with banks

(i) In Unclaimed dividend account 99 86
(i) Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 37,795 39,774
Total 37,894 39,860

10.1 The above deposits include ¥ 31828 lakh pledged with banks against over draft facility (P.Y. 2016-17 ¥ 36117 lakh). Margin
against GuaranteeI 955 lakh (P.Y.2016-173 953 lakhs).

10.2 In case of subsidiary, the above deposits includes ¥ 3844.09 lakh (PY 2016-17 ¥ 2.32 lakh) pledged with Indian Bank, Andhra
Bank and Bank of Baroda against Bank Guarantee and Overdraft facility.
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11 . 31 fadta wfeafar (am)) RUNEICRE:]
foazor 31 w14, 2018 31 ¥4, 2017
¥ STTEAR ¥ STIER
(%) gfea s 3,526 5,136
(@) o %0 @ AW
(1) wHH=RET 1 wor 69 81
(2) ==l w1 Afim 54 55
(3) fashanstl / ShaR / R 981 & WA 54 978
(4) <T@ I - 45,081
(3) =7 Afim 185 14
(M frerE W UIgyd SIS
(1) T s 1,288 697
(2) HH=IRAT T T 1 1
5177 52,043
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1= foreta afitiafxat 5177 6,962
a1 foxita et (Jme]) o1 aiieRor @
ST, 7= AT TR 5177 6,962
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T : WYE Ud Hfery ot ufgufa & fag o - 45,081
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12 . 3= wRgafEr (=)
foaaxur 31 #r<, 2018 31 w4, 2017
% AR % AR
() TESTeR R % T A
(1) ©TH1 Yok, 3cU1E Yosh, fash! &Y, 01 o amfq 1,061 481
(@) T & TeT I 7 0
(R AR b
(%) HH=ET T T 144 153
(@) 9aqe wHeR (Foe 7 e 6 sieem) 45
(M) eAqfiierdl Td e werarst wi M 52 51
(%) o e = 139 149
(3) = 33 840
FA 3 uREafaEr 1,436 1,719
371 fEafeEl 1 S o
[fard sTest | T 84 74
ST =1 |H=T T 1,352 1,645
1,436 1,719
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Amountin¥lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) Security deposits 3,526 5,136
(b) Other loans and advances

(1) Loans to employees 69 81

(2) Advances to employees 54 55

(3) Receivable from vendors / contractors / third party 54 978

(4) Claims Receivable - 45,081

(3) Other Advances 185 14
(c) Interest accrued on

(1) Term deposits 1,288 697

(2) Loans to employees 1 1

5177 52,043
Less: Allowances for bad & doubtful other financial assets - 45,081
Other financial assets 5,177 6,962
Classification of other financial assets (Current):
Unsecured, considered good 5177 6,962
Doubtful - 45,081
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful financial assets - 45,081
5,177 6,962

12 .Other assets (Current)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(a) Advance with public bodies

(1) Customs, Excise, Sales Tax ,Port Trusts etc. 1,061 481
(b) Prepaid Lease Payments Cost 7 0
(c) Other loans and advances
(a) Advances to employees 144 153
(b) Ex-employees (employer's PF contribution) - 45
(c) Advances to suppliers and service providers 52 51
(d) Prepaid expenses 139 149
(e) Others 33 840
Total Other assets 1,436 1,719
Classification of other assets :
Secured, considered good 84 74
Unsecured, considered good 1,352 1,645
Doubtful - -
1,436 1,719
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13 - 3R Sft ufer @ T
faax 31 w4, 2018 31w, 2017
% TER & IER
IR
Z 10 &% % 5,00,00,000 WM 32X 5,000 5,000
5,000 5,000
it eifvieT wd o e
T 10 ¥ & 3,52,00,000 TR IR 3,520 1,760
3,520 1,760
13()(i) TR IR & AR 1 faaror
ferercor 31 7, 2018 & STER 31 ¥4, 2017 % 3TER
T () (X @) T () (X @)
IRfYe IR ST 1,76,00,000 10 1,760  88,00,000 10 880
e
T IR SR BT 1,76,00,000 10 1,760  88,00,000 10 880
3ifam IR TR 3,52,00,000 10 3,520 1,76,00,000 10 1,760

st Rl @ TR eifeeR, st wa wfasier |

13()(ii) HIT F T HaA TH AU F T R (U efEae IR § e wed 3 10 TS § 1 MR SRR % Tds ek (U sfaaet
IR ") Teh aTe Ufd $IaR oh1 AU & Te arisn o U TR # 9t o o 1feren) €, afe g <1 feafa ser et €1

13(a)(jii) Tt o 2012-13 % <R 3:1 % U H 66,00,000 S9H 2R SR fop 7w 1
forit=r e 2016-17 % < 1:1 % 219G | 88,00,000 sH=E =R SR fFw 7 €1
13()(iv) : 5% Ao IR T aTel TEER i foex

AR T AH 31 979 2018 % 3TTER 31 A< 2017 ¥ STHER
o 9ol B H. SRt & % o QeRi Bt W, St & %
R & At 31625600 89.85% 15812800 89.85%
14 . 317 sfaat T A T H
foazor 31 A=t 2018 319 2017
% AR & STER
oft eRfeara
Ry I 3,416 3,416
SIS : wfenfia o & R
sifa 9w 3,416 3,416
I ARfera fafy
Ry I 60,526 59,037
SIS : afaenfia s & SfaRor 4,299 1,489
sifaw 9w 64,825 60,526
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13 - Share Capital

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Authorised:
5,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 5,000 5,000
5,000 5,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up :
3,52,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 3,520 1,760
3,520 1,760

13(a)(i) Statement of Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number Face Amount Number Face Amount
Value () (X Lakhs) Value () (% Lakhs)
Opening Shares Outstanding 1,76,00,000 10 1,760 88,00,000 10 880
Add:
Issue of Bonus Shares 1,76,00,000 10 1,760 88,00,000 10 880
Closing Shares Outstanding 3,52,00,000 10 3,520 1,76,00,000 10 1,760

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.

13(a)(ii) : The Company has only one class of ordinary shares ('Equity Shares') having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each holder of
ordinary shares ('Equity Shareholders') is entitled to one vote per share and is entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus, if any,

in the event of winding up.

13(a)(iii) : 66,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y. 2012-13 in the ratio of 3:1
88,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y. 2016-17 in the ratio of 1:1
13(a)(iv) : Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of share holding

Name of the Shareholder As at 315t March 2018 As at 315t March 2017
No. of shares held % of holding No. of shares held % of holding
President of India 31625600 89.85% 15812800 89.85%
Amount in ¥ lakh
14 .Other Equity
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Capital Reserve

Opening balance 3,416 3,416

Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings - -

Closing Balance 3,416 3,416
General Reserve

Opening balance 60,526 59,037

Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings 4,299 1,489

Closing Balance 64,825 60,526
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Amount in ¥ lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Retained Earnings

Opening balance 3,008 2,172
Add: Profit for the year 7,722 7,984
Other Comprehensive income for the year (331) (574)
Less: Final Dividend: FY 15-16 - 1,804
Less: Final Dividend: FY 16-17 2,499 -
Less: Interim Dividend FY 16-17 - 1,672
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 15-16 (on final) - 368
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 16-17 (on final) 385 -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 16-17 (on interim) - 361
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 17-18 (on interim) 124 -
Less: Issue of Bonus Shares 1,760 880
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 4,299 1,489
Closing Balance 1,332 3,008
Total Other Equity 69,573 66,950
15 . Trade Receivables (Non Current)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good

44

Total Trade Receivables

44

16 .Trade payables (Non Current)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Creditors for supplies and services

- Dues to micro and small enterprises

- Others 26 26
Total trade payables 26 26
17 . Other financial liabilities (Non Current)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Liability under EFBS Scheme 94 68

Total other financial liabilities 94 68
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18. WraE (R =) fer ama % H
ferercor 31 w4, 2018 31 @, 2017
% AR & FIARX
(%) =R @ o fore mraem
(1) afeenfe ome <o
(i) HER TRER ey Fer 612 496
(i) IuEH (IgE) 2,856 401
(2) Herfeta @4 SR
(i) Sarfrgfa suia fafer ara 2,429 2,767
(i) Tanfafa Swia fafear @ # sfem 167 222
(iii) HHEATY SR AT AT 36 38
(3) T HHET AT
(i) STTRTRT TR TTH 2,551 2,334
(i) T FET % AR 2 2
(@) 3= grEaem=
afefa < o fere faskar =1 3 g@n 280 269
Tl AT 8,933 6,529
19 . 37 it (R =)
feraor 31 7, 2018 31 7, 2017
% IIER ¥ IIER
(i) et § efm 577 408
(i) == 160 160
FA T AT 737 568
20. SUR (31)
fereror 31 @<, 2018 31 @€, 2017
& AR & ITAR
%, gEa 38R
Sept WA W T A
(i) FrraTET gST AT BT # 41,860 31,557
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el G SUR 62,256 44,473
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TR W T I
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Tl ST IUR 14,362 24,362
FA IUR 76,618 68,835




18 -

Provisions (Non Current)

o MSTC

it LIMITED

AT N st I e o v Fonarasd

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

(@)

Provision for employee benefits
(1) Defined benefit Obligations

(iy Employees Family Benefit Scheme 612 496
(ii) Gratuity 2,856 401
(2) Retirement Benefit Obligations
(i) Post Retirement Medical Benefit 2,429 2,767
(ii) Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit 167 222
(i) Employees Settlement Benefit Scheme 36 38
(3) Other employee benefits
(i) Leave Encashment Benefit 2,551 2,334
(i) Long Service Awards 2 2
(b) Other Provisions
Claim Payable to vendor for escalation claim 280 269
Total Provisions 8,933 6,529
19 . Other liabilities (Non Current)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(i) Advance from customers 577 408
(i)  Others 160 160
Total Other liabilities 737 568
20. Borrowings (Current)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

A. Secured Borrowings
Repayable on Demand from Banks
(i) Working Capital Demand Loans# 41,860 31,557
(i) Overdraft against lien on FDR* 20,396 12,916
Total Secured Borrowings 62,256 44,473
B. Unsecured Borrowings
Repayable on Demand
From Banks 14,362 24,362
Total Unsecured Borrowings 14,362 24,362
Total Borrowings 76,618 68,835
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%) Efea sliaweist de (emEaiiat) §T 138 @ I (19.9.2011 T USTFSN) I AT Soh GRI 70 ST okt Hferaql # 1T fohe T T+t Yeeh
T TR A & T T ST 7 ok W ek foliy g TR ¥ | woeEEiE | séetet 3 faws ¥ 3,656 g % fAIT wHeteh % WA ST
e H U e <R fRa ® (e Tord gea & /U aea 2,798 |G e i o1 J1ed 01 €9 H T 858 7 IfHA §)

@) SRIF TR T H ST % dad 2008-09 T S | % et & fae frafd ot & % e R e 9 §o (TaEiet) gr1 wHeEdEt w
A fRT T T 14,362 TG T T AT © | 3o ST o Siaid, Tatet faid faeii & qod ST 95% Td THUERE Sl it ud fagsft
TIRR foret 1 e faet st Heifaa fraa fafert 60 e vediet 6 & |3 e STEHISTEHIeTE Arare STe STad Sy o §1el Teh o
Hife o ATz O wEEE gR R W@ T 9 | gt wiier! @ wriarfe s iR-it o weitet = S s o e grer S fRa | S s
TS & ST T TR ST | 6 TTHTd, THES 7 U Rl 07 H S fohan e THuEE 9 ufer & fere gren foran siwad 2012 1 Seme,
g T Teh WA SR R | aguia CEdte = S o o fareg s S=a =marerd § Ueh Gehan off <o feran & forment froery gmm sneft 9 @ |
THUHEH SISTRE Te 3771 =ATAfHehtol H THHTs 3 ST a1 A < T8 © | HIHe! o afaid (92T i S §U THUHEH! + Saa a0 g
feuqolt . 9 o il SR Td Wt o &9 H Ueh W1 U 61 ST e | $8 UL 37 F TTER ST el ¥ I Tt gRI <ra fohe 7¢ =0t &
T, TR fosh STt & 9§ STie Tehed fru e g |

# =] uREufaat & foeg gefaa

* THEISTR FaHH a8 T e gr gefad T 31,828 &g, fysen a % 36,117 @@

21 . SR 3F (1))
a3 #
fereror 31 @<, 2018 31 @€, 2017
& ITAR & ITIER

3afd we Farsd o fo FeR

- &7 TS T ITH! I TR - -

e 2,54,731 2,53,031

- TIgd T A T 5,651 2,937
Fel AR 2,60,382 2,55,968

T HHART Y9 AT, AT o qed Afad STIHIGH 7 a8 am9a % 1,582 @@ (fusa a9 2016-17 T 1,322 @@) Ta 01.01.2017 97
FHHIRET o FeIgd FeireA aa 3 1,077 @@ (frad a3 270 @) wmfae |

22 . 3= fodta IRt (9) Tfer o T #
fereror 31 @<, 2018 31 @€, 2017
% STER % STER
(F) I
(i) YR W AW WRYd R <F & 7,889 7,889
(i) SHR W &I WEYd Td <F 7 10
(@) <ErfEd e 99 86
(M) T A F forg FeR
(1) gefera st afvgeae 38,881 60,480
(2) WTEehi | AT STHT R 38,463 12,444
(3) TuWSTE & SFaTd ST 132 74
(4) TuwheiTg STET FISt % efatd 2 31 22
(5) 1= 67 47

Tl o7 fata St 85,569 81,052
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a) Loanfrom Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) amounting to ¥138 lakh: (lying since 19.9.2011)This amount represents legal fees paid
by the bank in defending their claims to which the Company has lodged its protest with the Bank. MSTC has filed a case in
Hon'ble High Court of Calcutta against IOB for ¥ 3656 lakh (which includes ¥ 2798 lakh towards debit of LC value &% 858 lakh
as debit towards legal expenses).

b) The above amount represents ¥14362 Lakh on account of payment by Standard Chartered Bank(SCB) to MSTC towards
purchase of exports bills for gold jewellery during 2008-09, under a Receivable Purchase Agreement. Under the said
agreement SCB would be paying 95% of the value of export bills to MSTC and foreign buyers would be paying for the bill directly
to SCB on respective due dates of the bills. The same transactions were covered by SCB through an insurance policy with
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company. On non-receipt of proceeds from foreign buyers, SCB submitted claims with the
insurance company.The Insurance company repudiated the claim of SCB. There after, SCB converted the receivables into
loan, claimed the amount from MSTC and filed a case in DRT, Mumbai in 2012. Subsequently SCB also filed a suit in Bombay
High Court against the insurance company which is yet to be disposed off. MSTC has been contesting the claim of SCB in DRT
and other forums. Pending disposal of the cases, MSTC has shown the amount simultaneously as Borrowing and Receivables
under Note No 9 for better presentation. Appropriate disclosure has been made as contingent liabilities for the interest claimed
by SCB on the above mentioned amount of claim as per Ind AS 37."

# Secured against CurrentAssets .

* Secured by lien on FDR currentyear 31828 lakh, preivious year¥ 36117 lakh.

Amount in ¥ lakh
21 . Trade payables (Current)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Creditors for supplies and services
- Dues to micro and small enterprises - -

- Others 2,54,731 2,53,031
- Accrued wages and salaries* 5,651 2,937
Total trade payables 2,60,382 2,55,968

*Includes %1582 lakh (previous year 2016-17 ¥ 1322 lakh) towards provision for pension benefit of employees, pending approval of
the scheme andX 1077 lakh (prev year %270 lakh) towards wage revision of the employees due from 01.01.2017.

22 . Other financial liabilities (Current)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) Interest payable

(i) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7,889 7,889
(i)  Interest accrued and due on borrowings 7 10
(b) Unclaimed dividends 99 86
(c) Creditors for other liabilities
(1) Security deposits/EMD 38,881 60,480
(2) Deposits received from customers 38,463 12,444
(3) Deposit under EFBS 132 74
(4) Payable under EFBS Deposit schemes 31 22
(5) Others 67 47

Total other financial liabilities 85,569 81,052
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23 . @Y (IR)) qfer ema X |
oo 31 @<, 2018 31 w1, 2017
& AN & ITER
(%) FHHER A9 & A wrae=
(1) ftenfea ey etfae
() U TRER A1y FeT 155 112
(2) Garfgfa @y <t
(i) Tenfgfa Swia fafear ey 57 50
(i) Gartrgta swia fafear ey & svem
(iii) TR S AT AT
(3) T HH= oy
(i) TR ThSHIO AT 142 94
(i) T T % TR 1 2
(iii) oI HeEA 943 3,552
(iv) TR-wruershi ot < sifafiaa TareM omia AT 65 75
(v) wr-frered SEfya oA 142 270
(vi) TR AT 443 291
(@) T T 169 226
e 2,127 4,680
“HERIE ST o WA H, 3T W | THeeTE g SR R T gEEAT g, Wi Shfe wihe 2
24 . 3 ITRITET (1))
faaxur 31 A, 2018 31 @€, 2017
& AR & AR
(i) denfaw eI
(%) okt =X ud e 251
(@) 9a1 T TE SwEel o 1,360 600
(M) B T F FIAA T THET 770 387
(®) wfaer ffy oo o 208 139
SER 2 30
(i) TmEeRt & I 318 237
FA T AT 2,658 1,644
25 . feshl & forg W@ ST % &9 § aefiepa aREatat
foraror 31 =<, 2018 31 @, 2017
& AR & AR
() Hufd, T Td TR 259 264
(@) faent = ferg enfiq aftEafa & arer Geifea et 25 7

(1) st % fore T@ <7 & &9 7 Ffiha uREai S TRifehd Hoa W =] afeafaet ! 3 siaria arfiera i 78 &, Fifer 3 ufgafaar sma s
e W Teet € T & gh! § Ud haet fashl/Aer % foe e g2 € | sueh ST, ST Wee STueT i § foh s uftwataat w5 e oft
T garo o fafer & ek o & Sie Terad frveran St gRiferd fharstram, 38 =1 ufieufa & €9 # avfishd fharsiar e |

(2) foshar grRy ST A T, skt o foe W ST % w9 # affera ity 1 wifas qoa wmit o €l 3t s ask fasht & fore wet ufigufa &
T TR FETH AR |




23 . Provisions (Current)

THafirz

AT FTRE R UTEN G s
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LIMITED
1A G, o i Frivpetas]

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

(a) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Defined benefit Obligations

(i) Employee Family Benefit Scheme 155 112
(2) Retirement Benefit Obligations
(i) Post Retirement Medical Benefit 57 50
(i)  Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit
(i) Employees Settlement Benefit Scheme
(3) Other employee benefits
(i) Leave Encashment Benefit 142 94
(i) Long Service Awards 1 2
(i)  Wage Revision 943 3,552
(iv) Additional Resource Generation Scheme payable to Non-executives 65 75
(v) Prerformance Related Pay 142 270
(vi) Pension Scheme 443 291
(b) Other Provisions* 169 226
Total Provisions 2,127 4,680
* Other Provisions includes accident claim, demand raised by MVI, etc. in case of subsidiary company.
24 . Other liabilities (Current)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(iy Statutory Dues

(a) Sales tax and VAT payable - 251
(b) Service Tax & GST payable 1,360 600
(c) Tax deducted and collected at source 770 387
(d) Provident Fund and Pension 208 139
(e) Others 2 30
(i)  Advance from customers 318 237
Total Other liabilities 2,658 1,644
25 . Assets classified as held for sale
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 259 264
(b) Liabilities associated with asset held for sale 25 7

(1) Asset classified as held for sale is classified under "Current Assets" at their written down value since these assets have already
been retired from normal continuing operations and is held only for sale / auction. Further, where management expects that any
part of the said assets is likely to be disposed off/ written off within one year of the Balance Sheet date, the same are classified as
currentassets.

(2) The material value of asset classified as held for sale deposited by the vendor has been covered under liabilities associated with
asset held for sale till the lifting of material.
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26 . T W T ufrara I H

foraor ECLiEicr] RGERIiCL]

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(%) orgati o okt 1,56,524 1,19,550

(@) a1 99R 27,562 20,280

() 3T T TR 10,540 3,039

() ThY TS 37 TSI T AfShATRTT 31,710 30,860

(3) ISy YeieH % fory rfueror Jard 183 157
(=) wiEufaat o qeareh § Hafed ge 21 36
T | A T 2,26,540 1,73,922

() T SR, E-ATerH Gl aed T 608 TG ht M (et a9 3. 346 TR ) Uehad i T | ST 99 o et T8 § 9 T 487 1@ &1 Tfer
(Trzet ad ¥ 276 @M@ eIl § Tt 78 § S aguiid =R aut § faaftd st st sifs defea defteo staq s) & fog 3y 21 feais
31.03.2018 % TER, Hid sifadiia 9w 895 o (fusel a9 645 @) ¥ |99 ¥ f57aeh fore Uefiertor weh o aek o feaq e ], i o=
a9 o SR T & E Y H femmea H faan g |

(@) 1= Ve o7 B UTeeh § A a1ed < 9,673 A« wnfier & | (frset a3 2,424 o)

(TT) T YR T =T ST TR ETT WA herdi T 1,806 o (frsar a3 2,129 @) § |

27 . 3 I

feraror ECLIEiCL] gt o

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

() &= T

(1) TFRSRR W& 2,673 4,401

(2) wHAR Al W 39 2,712 41 4,442
(@) TR gRifeRd i T 2,817 -
() TEEE S SAERTe TE @, TR foRar T 47,182 2,978
() Ta-STHTEEl it fasht 0 18
(%) Rttt st fash! o g 5 6
(%) A el T ot SRt 20 20
(®) fafay s 39 303

FE 3T I 52,775 7,767
27.1 ¥ ST W AN F Hd W F wmerdt T 189 @@ (fumat o 3 345 @r@) R
28 . WIh-§-3S H /I

feraror ECLIEiCL] gt o

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(F) WIH-3-3S HTHA 1,47,896 1,24,247
(@) G ==y 41 43
(1) SifeeT Td wEifeet= 362 470
(%) dfek=d 149 151
(¥) <5 ud g 2,334 2,106
(@) Ve ud TR e 1,032 1,141
(®) <&, fogq, e 114 103

A 1,51,928 1,28,261
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Amount in T lakhs

26 . Revenue from operations

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Sale of Goods 1,56,524 1,19,550
(b) Service Charges 27,562 20,280
(c) Other Operating Revenues 10,540 3,039
(d) Processing of scrap & other items 31,710 30,860
(e) Custodian Services for Warehouse Management 183 157
(f) Service related to valuation of assets 21 36
Total Revenue from Operations 2,26,540 1,73,922

(a) During the year, an amount of ¥ 608 lakh (previous year I 346 lakh) was collected towards E-auction Registration. Out of total
collection of current year, an amount of ¥ 487 lakh (previous year ¥ 276 lakh) has been kept in liabilities to be distributed in
subsequent four years, since related registration is valid for life long. Accumulated undistributed balance standing as on
31.03.2018 is ¥ 895 lakh (previous yearX 645 lakh). Balance amount for which registration is valid upto one year is accounted
foras income during the current year.

(b) OtherOperating Revenues also include Interest from customersI 9673 lakh (previous yr. ¥ 2424 lakh).
(c) Taxdeducted at source on Service Charge and Interestincome amounts to ¥ 1806 lakhs (previous year ¥ 2,129 lakh).

27 . Other income

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(a) Interestincome

(1) Interest on FDR 2,673 4,401

(2) Interest on Employee Advances 39 2,712 41 4,442
(b) Liability written back 2,817 -
(c) Provision no longer required written back 47,182 2,978
(d) Sale of Sub-assemblies 0 18
(e) Profit on Sale of Assets 5 6
(f) Liquidated damages and other recoveries 20 20
(g) Miscellaneous income 39 303

Total Other Income 52,775 7,767

27.1 Tax deducted at source from interest on bank deposits amounted to ¥ 189 lakh (previous year ¥ 345 lakh).

28 . Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars Current year Previous year

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,47,896 1,24,247
(b) Lancing Tubes 41 43
(c) Oxygen & Acetylene 362 470
(d) Lubricants 149 151
(e) Diesel & Gasolene 2,334 2,106
(f) Stores & Spare Parts 1,032 1,141
(g) Water, Power, Fuel 114 103

Total 1,51,928 1,28,261
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29 . FHER Y =T fyr rg T H
Taeror EnCIERCL] bGERICL]
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
() oI T HTE, S 15,346 12,212
(@) wfosr e s= fafei # sivem
(1) wfasr fafy 4,005 1,105
() HHER e 1,798 1,598
FA HHAR T =TI 21,149 14,915

(I) IR & AT Sod =TTe o a9 & ST |, SEATd HalTerd & SRR, SHRUTesh SHHaTl &l da- SeneH feis 01.04.1999 &
FTE B3 o1 | SHAI UHTE T 1,574 A & i1 30t H enfoer € |
(1) f&aTe 29/03/2018 T TSI AT TH.3T. 1420 (T) % STHR T2 i Ieaad WA 61 3 10 TR T g T 20 A fohan 7o 139

R % aTed T 702 ST i AT <Rl foTa Sa anTd o ®9 8 Tiehfa <t T § | Terereh ot o Hret § fortd S nTa o F9H T 1789 @
JREd S UM T AT T @i @ra H S A e R |

30 . foaa @
ferem BRIk et oY
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
=T T
(1) STTIfcieh IHRT T ST 1,933 5,008
(2) TTEeh! T YA TohaT T S 4,803 1,758
(3) SuwSTEH ST ARE % @A WA - 6

ENAENASING 6,736 6,772
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Amount in ¥ lakh
29 . Employee Benefit Expense

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 15,346 12,212
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(1) Provident Fund 4,005 1,105
(c) Staff welfare expenses 1,798 1,598
Total Employee Benefit Expense 21,149 14,915

() In pursuant to Ministry of Steel's Order , complying the directive of Hon’ble High Court of Kolkata, pay correction of Executive
employees was effected w.e.f. 01.04.1999. The impact of this is¥ 1574 lakh which is included in the above.

(I As per Gazette Notification S.O 1420(E) dated 29/03/2018 the ceiling of Gratuity has been enhanced from ¥ 10 lakh to ¥ 20
Lakh.% 702 lakh towards the impact of this change has been recognised as Past Service Cost. In case of subsidiary, the impact
of the change has been shown as Past Service Cost of ¥ 1789 lakh and is being recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

30 . Finance costs

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Interest expense

(1) Interest on Short term borrowings 1,933 5,008

(2) Interest Paid to Customers 4,803 1,758

(3) Interest on account of EFBS Deposits - 6

Total finance costs 6,736 6,772
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WEEIEIRGED 104 65
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31 . Other expenses

Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars Current year Previous year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(a) Repairs and Maintainance 985 893
(b) EDP Expenses 150 271
(c) Insurance charges 104 65
(d) Rent 366 343
(e) Rates and taxes 225 648
(f) Bank Charges 1,801 1,072
(g) Travelling Expenses 459 460
(h) Foreign Travelling Expenses 8 11
(i) Car Hire Charges 123 122
(i) Meeting and Conference 110 183
(k) Training 48 15
(I) Directors' Sitting Fees 3 2
(m) Statutory Auditors' Remuneration

(i) Audit Fees 8 8

(i) Tax Audit Fees 1 1

(iii) Out-of-Pocket Expenses 8 17 5 14
(n) Telex, Postage and Telegram 48 49
(o) Electricity 119 119
(p) Printing and Stationery 64 76
(q) Entertainment 22 20
(r) Telephone Charges 55 62
(s) Advertisement 102 178
(t) Legal Expenses 138 173
(u) Consultancy Charges 111 119
(v) Internal Audit fees 2 2
(w) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Internal Auditor) 4 4
(x) Miscellaneous Expenses 239 324
(y) Staff Recruitment Expenses 28 2
(z) Newspaper, Books and Periodicals 5 3
(aa) Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No - 43) 278 147
(ab) Auction Tender Expenses 53 51
(ac) Cost of services through outside agency/Equipment rent 12,670 11,946
(ad) Hiring of manpower for operational activities 540 323
(ae) Security Services 353 206
(af) Expenses for Custodian Services 174 106
(ag) Provision for claim payable 11 11
(ah) Swachh Bharat Cess 16 66
(ai) Expenses for Valuation Services 6 6
(aj) Bad Debts Written off 45,941 2,418
(ak) Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Advances/Debts 13,881 3,122
(al) Stock Yard Expenses 10 0
(am)Freight 67 41
(an) Plot Rent 7 -

Total Other Expenses 79,343 23,673
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32. sYyarfes o
Exceptional ltems U A T H
foeror EntIERCL] g od
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
sifcrgfd 9 | % faw wraee Provision for Demand on Compensation - 5
%l Total - 5
Yl 7Sl F 78 TIBIHTT

Explanation to Exceptional ltems

SR SR SITaTe He i TR A Yerase T fZoqiel (THHIE)) & STeRIgaR Remaend! i < &I & Hae 4 |

The amount of exceptional item shown above is in respect of interest payable to the claimant as per the order of Motor Accident
Claims Tribunal (MACT).

feoqoft 33 (). : 31 A=, 2018 I TET a9 & fow uRfvew Wi, wa, fawa wd ifaq wiss & faawm
Note 33 (a). Statement of Opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock for the year ended 31t March, 2018

(famma &) / (W 000 THeT)/ (R &r@ )
(Previous Year) / (Qty ‘000 MT)/ (Amount ¥ in lakh

RIEDICIRECI] [EA Wi Exi forspar sifm wiw

Description of material Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
RIEl T RiEl] I RiEll I RIEl T
Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value

&= aet Crude Oil - - - - - . - _
- - (1,170) (34,620) (1,170) (34,974) - -

e /@Td Coke / Coal 104 7,074 2,533 1,37,306 2,637  1,45847 - -
(40)  (1,529)  (2,291) (89,552) (2,227)  (84,292) (104)  (7,074)
e Ts 28 Pipes & Tubes - - 31 7,574 31 7,622 - -
ST 37 Iron Ore - - 63 3,027 63 3,072 - -
1,47,907 1,56,541
(1,24,172) (1,19,266)
Sl sife forer TomEeH Td =Ty = (11) (17)
Add : Final Bill Adj. & Other Direct Expenses (75) (284)
1,47,896 1,56,524

(1,24,247) (1,19,550)
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oot 33(@): SIS o ST ST 7 WiafeaeeX (Faehal) & w9 § = feu 7 faawer & s/ar ammit 1 o % fwmar &
Note 33 (b). In addition to above the Company have also purchased material as facilitator as per details below:

(formq &) /(|1 ‘000 WHE)/ (T or@ #)
(Previous Year) / (Qty ‘000 MT) / (Amount X in lakh)

wrt s feraRor EiEl Tlig e Ffia ¥ w9R
Description of material Qty Purchase Value Service Charges Earned
TF AR =iaa H R Coil 10 4,766 45
(1 (313) @)

%I / % Coke / Coal 1,650 1,32,223 1,847
(1,052) (77,891) (1,603)

faered Billets 25 7,797 77
(53) (12,785) (139)

= Naptha 109 33,972 378
(267) (79,880) (873)

g 2%k / Ueie Iron Ore / Pellete 12,222 3,17,029 3,848
(3,884) (49,076) (819)

ST 3195k Manganese Ore 55 6,633 66
©) (546) 9)

<teetE DRI 318 12,531 168
(25) (3,709) (56)

farferer |t Misc Items 1,625 21,543 295
(116) (42,639) (477)

2uwet a8 TMT Bar 290 1,27,258 1,194
(85) (32,756) (309)

I 37T%h Chrome Ore 23 2,550 25
(127) (9,272) (114)

= Channel - - -
(63) (21,865) (206)

faga 39T Electrical Equipment - 1,62,547 1,475
- (4,786) (74)

%d Total 16,327 8,28,849 9,418
(5,676) (3,35,518) (4,682)
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(fora &) (% @ma #)
feuqoit 33(7). ¥ TLH 108 F STTER FTHe-ar aifd
TS UTH 108 % TIHR, THE 7 ATH{T, $-himd Ud Tk Rehek! 3 Trag S o 79 o= mafhes fdre are sraem & & w0 8 fafed fran g 16

IESIRERSHECA T kA

ferarcor Eicacy) 3w = wh et T
(srmafe) T g HE

FA TG 2,26,275 19,006 51 33,983 2,79,315
(1,32,610) (16,188) (66) (32,825) (1,81,689)
Fd = 2,23,320 256 11,299 32,725 2,67,600
(1,31,991) (332) (7,810) (29,208) (1,69,341)
FH A/ (F1H) 2,955 18,750 (11,248) 1,258 11,715
(619) (15,856) (-7,744) (3,617)  (12,348)
T 3,993
(4,364)
T4 % fag (-) et 7,722
(7,984)

g o S | v Uil e St i fhet oft fir g e o we o fafed T foran men €, =it 4 gl % we siar-ufiedy & v
H i fepw e § | safere weiee ot favars & fo uieufe ud Saiiiat @ Hefed T o Tehed AaeRarg 1ei € |

W@ ki & 9N H G

T % T o 10 W =1 21ferek skt T aTeT Tehet ARl Ueeh o W1 oie § W e e few e E

(X ar@ #)
@ U (10% W 3ifereh ToTeat @ aret U8 ) 2017-18 2016-17
T T 1,54,356 1,00,083
ek i G. 3 3
T T A % 68 58
ekt 3 wrag & Repadl 9 Targ &
(T oma #)
34 (&) fasignd=a:
ferao 2017-18 2016 - 2017
AT T ST 2,25,300 1,92,243
REIRCERCEE: D 3 8
FA 2,25,303 1,92,251
34 (@) fossit g & o
feraor 2017-18 2016 - 2017
et dSfer ok 1 1

P 1 1
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Note 33(c). Segmental Reporting as per IndAS 108:

(Previous Year) (Amount X in lakh)

In terms of IndAS 108 the Group has identified Marketing, E-Commerce and Scrap Recovery & Allied Jobs as its three Primary

Reportable Business Segments. There is no Secondary Segment.

Particulars Marketing E-Commerce Others Scrap Recovery Total
& Allied Jobs

(unallocated)

Total revenue 2,26,275 19,006 51 33,983 2,79,315
(1,32,610) (16,188) (66) (32,825) (1,81,689)

Total expenses 2,23,320 256 11,299 32,725 2,67,600
(1,31,991) (332) (7,810) (29,208) (1,69,341)

Profit/(Loss) before Tax) 2,955 18,750 (11,248) 1,258 11,715
(619) (15,856) (-7,744) (3,617) (12,348)

Tax expenses 3,993
(4,364)

Profit/(Loss) for the year 7,722
(7,984)

Assets and liabilities used in the Group's business are not identified to any of the reportable segments,as these are used
interchangably between the segments. Hence the Management believes, that it is currently not practicable to provide segment

disclosure related to assets and liabilities.

Information about major customers

The revenues from tranactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the entity's revenues are

given below:-

(Amount in ¥ lakh)

Major Customer (Customer having more than 10% revenue) 201718 2016-17
Total Revenue 1,54,356 1,00,083
No. of Customers 3 3
% of Total Revenue 68 58

Product Segment

Marketing and Scrap
Recovery & Allied Jobs

Marketing and Scrap

Recovery & Allied Jobs

34 (a) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency :

(Amount in ¥ lakh)

Particulars 201718 2016 - 2017
Import of Goods 2,25,300 1,92,243
Travelling Expenses & others 3 8
Total 2,25,303 1,92,251
34 (b) Earnings in Foreign Currency :
Particulars 201718 2016 - 2017
E auction Registration fees 1 1
Total 1 1
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35 . ST MMM T Hfasrgard (X @@ #)
oo 31 @, 2018 31 W€, 2017
& AN % IIER
() STewfeTs ITaREr
fersh! =T Td T Yok 4,214 4,834
ST A 14,522 16,729
REIC 30 44
3T 706 529
[T 9,562 9,301
HUAT o foEg I/ 0T <k €9 | W@ihd el 60 73
T e TR 14 64
A 29,108 31,574
(@) witegang
1 = T, HIOH | T wEeE T 1 o 2,651
2 3% & gETa i Ot @ W Frare R S
H e T o T (A S 436 199
T 3,087 159

36 . H&H, oY TS HEAH S=H

THTETHE S <F Al (feuqoft 9. 21 § yehe fhu s19ar) T8 Sushyl o6t fafea T e € | hut = SrH=raan THEuRs Sehigal o fad g |
T foha € U &S A1 SAfasa s o fere it € whrE gran et € | o Han ve o e (THUHUAS) SR 2012 % fe |este
ifa o feenf <t H e R W@ |

37. =T
(i) < wa wif faaRor & o KT &t A

TR 31 @, 2018 31 @, 2017
% STTEAR ¥ STIER
(1) =g T
- 99 & fau 2,758 4,451
-4 & a6t & fag - 59
(2) e Y 1,235 (146)

= T4 H FO IR = H A 3,993 4,364
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35. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments (Amount in ¥ lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Contingent Liabilities
Sales Tax & Customs 4,214 4,834
Money Suits 14,522 16,729
Arbitration 30 44
Income Tax 706 529
Service Tax 9,562 9,301
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 60 73
Outstanding Bank Guarantees 14 64
Total 29,108 31,574
(b) Commitments
1 Construction of New Office Building at New Town, Kolkata 2,651 -
2  Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 436 159
Total 3,087 159

36.

37.

Micro Small And Medium Enterprises

The amount due to MSME (as disclosed in note no 21) is to the extent such undertakings have been identified. The company
has normally made payment to MSME units in due time and there are no claim from the parties for interest or overdue payment.
The company is following the guidelines of Public Procurement Policy for Micro & Small Enterprises (MSMEs) Order 2012.

Tax Expenses
(i) Income Tax Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(1) Current Tax

- For the year 2,758 4,451
- For earlier years - 59
(2) Deferred Tax 1,235 (146)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 3,993 4,364




o AMSTC

Tz LIMITED

LA FETR R UTEN ) pasTo 1T, o e Frivqes]

(ii) o % T o R =@ A A () F A@ER H AR ws fma S s @ (X @@ #)
ferarcor 31 @<, 2018 31 914, 2017
% STER % ITER

(1) a9 % fae w2 9 @9 11,846 12,395
(2) T T T FHT AT 34.608 % T (2016-17: 34.608 %) 4,100 4,290
(3) = HT WS S FENT @1 F Feicor # wen 9ra 7w/ T (7177) 82
(4) T 1 99T ST HT D g § 27 (54)
(5) = KT A9E S HLENT A1 F Freicor 7 wem 9 ¥ (7) (13)
(6) ST SaE™ 7 7,050 -
(7) & ot o = Xk oy F FHRSH - 59
3,993 4,364

ST o ™ | o 2017-18 TS 2016-17 % fIT Fa T T AR T I o STaId hL AR AT} T IR § e Seensti gr1 <
34.608% ! F1fad S ST & (30% & TN AHHT 12% il <X W T e 99R 3 % 1 S F) | fofir o 2017-18 w1 SRS T TT0AT
fer, facdiar ad 2018-19 F T § 34.944% T 3T FT T (30% % T 12% 3TFHah T 4% Y X H fran wum) =1 foafaa fran mn g
fofrarad 2017-18 & fau naet T T ® 33.708% (faxiraad 2016-17 7g 35.208%) |

BifegT ot % Tret §, S B T g ared $e € 20178 TG whi 31T T § | qenfy, Bifee ot 3 are ¥ 2225 A i THUS
T & Toreen T Bifeet shoel o UTe STTel STTehele o1 H 37 96! o folt 3179 O 2 o o Toeg shfee UM ol STTHeRI © | Sifeett shust o1
T & foR STTaTeT it H AT S W SR S 7 Shaet ST =1 o aifqqfid shim, afesh T AT @ ured 20 | ST ST, STefia Y
aftEuf i ST e B, eag Te THUE thfee sifter & fau s e 7

(i) STTerfiT o § S

fereror 31 @, 2017 a9 & fag 31 7, 2018
% AR AR () 6 IATHR

IR AT % AT o

STrefiTa T A

Tufe, T T U AR ST ufEufaEt 216 62 278
216 62 278

smreyfitg X afEafaar

wufa, T TE SR 3R - 7 7

T = o AEd AEHH 1,980 486 2,466

wfery =0 W& 1w & o s 13,907 4,681 18,588

Wiy wre <9 o fau s 15,602 (15,602) -

fashar a7 & forg wrarem 13 68 81

ST e i - 7,050 7,050

3= 102 (89) 13

THTE shfee Afesr o - 2,225 2,225

S el Y (IR /et 31,604 (1,174) 30,430

Ft AT H (SR /Rt 31,388 (1,236) 30,152

3T SIS 3 & HeaH A

mrearfita T aftEataar

JRATYT S AT 61 YA 317 (86) 231

Tehe ST T (IR rafkeafs 31,705 (1,322) 30,383
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(ii) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit (loss) as follows:  Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit before tax for the year 11,846 12,395
Income tax expense calculated at 34.608 % (2016-17: 34.608 %) 4,100 4,290
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (7177) 82
Effect of income that is exempt from tax 27 (54)
Effect of expenses that are deductible in determining taxable profit (7) (13)
Carry Forward of Business Loss 7,050 -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of prior years - 59
3,993 4,364

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2016-17 in the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 34.608% (30% plus
surcharge @ 12% and education cess @ 3 %) payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.
For Deferred Tax calculation of financial year 2017-18, income tax rate of 34.944% (30% plus surcharge @ 12% and education
cess @ 4 %) pertaining to financial year 2018-19 has been considered.The effective tax rates for F.Y. 2017-18 is 33.708% (For
P.Y.2016-17 is 35.208%)

There is carry forward of business loss and depreciation agrregating to ¥ 20178 lakh in case of holding company. However the
holding company has a MAT liability of ¥ 2225 lakh for which holding company is entitled to credit in next assessment years
against tax payable on income for those years.The Holding Company feels that it will earn sufficient profit in coming years,not
only to offset the carry forward loss but also will have taxable profit. Accordingly, deferred tax assets has been recognised
for carry forward of business loss,depreciation and MAT credit entitlement.

(iii) Movement in Deferred Tax

Particulars As at Charge/ (credit) As at
March 31, 2017 for the Year March 31, 2018

Through Profit or Loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 216 62 278
216 62 278
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment and Others - 7 7
Provison against other expenses 1,980 486 2,466
Allowances for Doubtful Debts & Advances 13,907 4,681 18,588
Allowances for Doubtful Claims Receivable 15,602 (15,602) -
Provision for Vendor Escalation 13 68 81
Unabsorbed business losses - 7,050 7,050
Others 102 (89) 13
MAT credit entitlement - 2,225 2,225
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 31,604 (1,174) 30,430
Total Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 31,388 (1,236) 30,152

Through Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Assets

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 317 (86) 231
Gross Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 31,705 (1,322) 30,383
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38 . ufd IR o (T ar@ #)
feraor 31 74, 2018 31 74, 2017
% 3ER % 3TER
o o fera @y 7,722.00 7,984.00
YERERhT S SRS AT 7,722.00 7,984.00
T THeE & fau i @i iR oftea €. ¢ 3,52,00,000 3,52,00,000
HH AL T A A () 10.00 10.00
uf SR ger/fufya e (% ufd w=0) 22 23

*3d 2017-18 % I 1:1 & I § I T S I & RO I3 Ry 10|
39 . foxia ST W Tahed

T YT T8 o fo<id ATeH1 o Fec ol STaciieh Tqd hidl ¢ Ta i | 9 Hor oras o S X SAfaie oq1 eH S ¢ |
TEEYUl CI@Teh Tl ok TTeT AI=IT o fere Are, fadta wuf, fader Saar ue sfaaet ae &t ucies 9of o Heie o H79 o 74X e o1 37
= Rl T ST A= S 178 8, o feraror aifena fera feraefurdi o6t feoafordi & wepe fru w81

(1) foxiawE st
Freafafaa aferes o & sia # v Soft 6 fordta afafee v St st srta it v staa Joa w1 afaffie st 7 1 3t Joa st

T F A T |
forfrar afierafaat 31 W4, 2018 3194, 2017 S WIN T
% IIER % AR
( @@ #) R @@ #)
IR 9 3,98,197 3,74,093 TRt A
1= fairar wftgataar 10,733 7,654 TRt A
ehe Ud Tehe THehET 17,586 9,024 RN A
3T S A 37,894 47,217 TRt A
framr 880 263 afeifea T
Fa fasita afteafaar 4,65,290 4,38,251
Euicksciie
IR 76,618 68,835 aftenfera amma
MR 3 2,60,408 2,55,994 Tfifed arTa
a1 forita SaIfcar 86,306 81,621 RN AT
Fa foedta et 4,23,332 4,06,450
(2) Tt e

Tz g Gifeed s & faw 7ot dsft 1 Teem st & o we o oi sfaadt 919 o sTeher o Area § et o e ot sifereran e
FUSTRY & & | e foret oft amedt &0 & Feiifira it strarverhansdi o e 78 €1

(3) foritar sifew weiem % e9a

TR o AN o I SATIR o feTT ATt WeH il 7, Tie] iR g famdia aeii 7o U5 ol 9939, 99 o Hare 9 57s fadasifast
T e AR R T § | g ST 3 AR ey (SH-Er Sy, S USifay o o= gea S ), shfee sifem i aeerarsifad
e € | et oik sufeafa Hamstt & sTurer ot fRaR SR R STiafe o wiemht gRT Twiel ot ST § | 9Yg Teaer & WisHi & forg
e foreiter |reT T foriter wremt # e 76 g1 ¢ ST & AR e |

(&) TERSIREn

g i fdfafera, ger v 9 fagsit gur fafre <t # 2 arer uftad =t o fodte sifemt 1 uefid S § 1 9me & R W, fafma e sifas
T SIS hA o ToTT T wRae faeelt a1 STei sl ST |
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38 . Earnings per Share Amount in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Profit for the year 7,722.00 7,984.00
Profit attributable to Shareholders 7,722.00 7,984.00
Weighted average No. of Shares for Basic EPS* 3,52,00,000 3,52,00,000
Nominal value of Ordinary Shares () 10.00 10.00
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (X Per Share) 22 23

* Restated due to issue of bonus shares during 2017-18 in the ratio of 1:1.
39 . Disclosures on financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional information on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note to the consolidated financial statements.

(1) Categories of Financial Instruments

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at the year
end.Carrying value is equivalent to the fair value.

Financial assets As at As at Measured at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(X In lakh) (X In lakh)
Trade Receivables 3,98,197 3,74,093 Amortised cost
Other Financial Assets 10,733 7,654 Amortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,586 9,024 Amortised cost
Other Bank Balances 37,894 47,217 Amortised cost
Investments 880 263 Amortised cost
Total Financial Assets 4,65,290 4,38,251
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 76,618 68,835 Amortised cost
Trade Payables 2,60,408 2,55,994 Amortised cost
Other Financial Liabilities 86,306 81,621 Amortised cost
Total Financial Liabilities 4,23,332 4,06,450

(2) Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group is able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

(3) Financial risk management objectives
The Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets , monitors and manages the fianancial risks relating to the operations of the Group . These risks include
market risk (like- currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and
exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade in financial
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

(a) MarketRisk

The Group's activities exposes it, primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. On a case to
case basis, the Group enters into Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk.
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(i) =1 X <ifew yeiem

ST H T 370 SRR 0T Sl THEITRSTR & STHR T ufkafdd fhan €, safert <X e1ga erafy & fore o dit o weh o & fae feer £
STTERGTTE Gfere TX ST o AT |Iaf e STHT 36 1T o TN ST g7 €, Sl 3779 A W Uk a1 o e fAfdp 1"

(ii) faceht gs1 shfew weem

T 1 fal o1 THRAUISR ST SIS o HROT ST € | e UTeehi o 919 Teh & &8 Teh o SMER W § | o1y 31 i1 SR &1 o ek

ST SHRTAT ST & | TTEeh! o STl =il ohe Heiferd fogeit YaT TorRadior bl s & foru seft-aheft witare e femn i € | sTet oft faef ger &
IAX-TGTE B, TMEh1 GRT Sk T HHSIT oh STTHR T8 feoRaT T &, faeft a1 e / 31 Rl Tg ot Jaeh! # Ir2ar i T81 ¢ |

(@) wr@ (hfee) sifem wsiem

Q)

e Sifem 35 sifem 1 <2 § fof e HSeture] o1aw ey Hee S o e St faeh uiom sy 9eg ! JHEH 2 e 1 Tgg 3
STet ST &, T B faiia Toam & Sifa 1 8 T3 o Tk GIEE & €9 H Shdol U SIS I o H1ef T8 T shi A S0 8, 99
At T HeMsd § TG L ¢, S STaed THIdE! g 32 fohT MU € X 3R Suersd 78 € Al R ST W@ WIeeh i 1 T o (o
raisfTeh &9 § 3Te foreia STHeRt ST 79 faser RentS o1 STainT haat § | 9 o siifas o7k 36eh ufausi st shfee e v 7o Tt <t &
S e ehTel T SIS oh1 Tk Yoot STHIfed shsexurel # wfid feran i € | shfee TadisR 1 sexurd! ot S gr feif foman
ST & ST g eie |iHfa gRy SHter ot S § 7R 3¢ 1Hifed frarsiar g |

e (fafwatedt) ifad &

g AR Ao ki A arefoss Tehal WaTg s fR ek 31 fadia ufteataat st st 6t uftaeear drmee o1 fiem & 7ar e,
Sferm gfasmd 31T STfard SUR G oHTT T o TRetdl SITEs o Tee il § |

=1 <1 7€ ifereRt 31 W=, 2018 T 31T, 2017 o STIHR STTATT AT 7T Hfed faxia SAIE sl Sfasnmd ge ed T S & ar
H SR T FA |

foreitar <ramd 31 979 2018 % 3TTER
S el T SHNT e 198 @ 1-59% 599§
RN T E & W= Sy
E&Sitck:] S &qlick:] 3 o i S &ylick:] S &ylick:]
JYR 76,618 76,618 76,618
IR 2T 2,60,408 2,60,408 2,60,382 26
1= faiig <gamd 86,306 86,306 86,186 83 37
3,46,714 3,46,714 3,46,568 109 37
forftar Sz 31 W= 2017 & FER
3 R TE JHATA AHhS 189 1-599 594 @
Ryt eI %9 & & Afern
Z org i Toarg | T o i T | E&Slck:
ELCIKY 68,835 68,835 68,835
IR T 2,55,994 2,55,994 2,55,968 26
=1 fasitar Saamd 81,621 81,621 81,529 61 31

3,37,615 3,37,615 3,37,497 87 31
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(i) Interest rate risk management

"At present Group has converted maximum of its loan to MCLR based, hence the rate is firm for a contract period usually for a
year. Further Interest on Overdraft facility is linked with interest of Fixed deposits, which are usually firm for one year."

(ii) Foreign Currency risk management

The foreign currency exposure of the Group is due to import liabilities. Transactions are on back to back basis with customers .
The gain and loss if any is passed on to the customers. Some times forward cover is taken to hedge the related foreign
currency exposure in terms of discussion with the customers.Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the
customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange gain/loss are not recognized in the books of the Group.

(b) Creditrisk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in fianacial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties , where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group only transact with entities that are rated by agencies where available and if
not available , the Group uses other publicly available financial information and its own past records to rate its major customers.
The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored and the aggregated value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties . Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed
and approved by the Senior Management Committee.

(c) Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows,and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liablities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual undiscounted cash obligations of financial liabilities including
estimated interest payments as at 315tMarch 2018 & 315tMarch 2017.

Financial Liabilities As at March 31, 2018
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
T In lakhs T In lakhs T In lakhs T In lakhs T In lakhs
Borrowings 76,618 76,618 76,618 - -
Trade payables 2,60,408 2,60,408 2,60,382 26 -
Other financial liabilities 86,306 86,306 86,186 83 37
3,46,714 3,46,714 3,46,568 109 37
Financial Liabilities As at March 31, 2017
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
% In lakhs % In lakhs % In lakhs % In lakhs T In lakhs
Borrowings 68,835 68,835 68,835 - -
Trade payables 2,55,994 2,55,994 2,55,968 26 -
Other financial liabilities 81,621 81,621 81,529 61 31

3,37,615 3,37,615 3,37,497 87 31
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ot smeRIgY fog AL HE TS

IGENED 42 10 61
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40 . Related Party Transaction
(a) Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration (R in lakhs)

Particulars Nature of related Short Term Post Employment Other Long Total
party / relationship  Benefits Benefits Term Benefits

Current Year as at March 31,2018

"Sri Bambahadur Singh" Chairman cum

Managing Director 42 10 9 61
SriA.K. Basu Director (Finance) 40 10 4 54
Smt Bhanu Kumar
(from 12.10.2017) Director (Commercial) 12 9 7 28
Sri S.K. Ray Company Secretary 30 1 - 31
Sri Gangaram Aloria Independent Director 1* - -
Sri T. V. Muralivallabhan Independent Director 2 2
Sri Rajib Bhattacharya Managing Director 40 8 1 49
Sri Satadal Mitra Chief Financial Officer 31 2 - 33
Sri Ashok Mishra Company Secretary 13 - 1 14

Previous Year as at March 315t March 2017

Sri Bambahadur Singh Chairman cum

(From 01.06.2016-31.03.2017) Managing Director 36 3 - 39
Sri Bambahadur Singh

(From 01.04.2016-31.05.2016) Director (Commercial)

Sh. S.K. Tripathi Chairman cum

(From 01.04.2016.-31.05.2016) Managing Director 29 1 - 30
SriA.K. Basu Director (Finance) 40 2 - 42
Sri S.K. Ray Company Secretary 28 1 - 29
Sri Ajay Kumar Goyal Independent Director 2 - - 2
Sri Rajib Bhattacharya Managing Director 26 - 1 27
Sri Satadal Mitra Chief Financial Officer 21 1 2 24
Sri Ashok Mishra Company Secretary 2 - - 2

Note : * It indicate Directors Sitting Fees.

(a) Since the facility of private use of car for limited mileage is provided by the company to the Directors, such facility has
not been considered as benefit/perquisite.

(b) The above includes Performance related pay on actual payment basis.

(b) Transaction with Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (50:50 Joint Venture)

(X in lakh)
Particulars 201718 2016-17
Investment in Joint Venture 750 310
Amount received towards reimbursement of expenditure 8 7

Deposit for Appointment of Director paid 1 -

Deposit for Appointment of Director received back 1 -
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41 . Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
1. Providend Fund
12% of Basic pay and dearness allowance contributed to the providend fund trust by the Group.
2. Leave Encashment Benefit

In case of subsidiary, it is payable on separation to eligibile employees, shall be limited to 300 days (Earned Leave and Half-Pay
Leave combined), and HPL shall not be commuted as per DPE Guidelines for calculation of 300 days limit. Encashment of
accumulated earned leave is also allowed upto 30 days once in a calender year.

3. Post Retirement Settlement Benefit
In case of subsidiary, itis payable to retiring employees for settlement at their declared home town.
4. Employee Family Benefit Scheme

"In case of subsidiary, monthly payment to disabled separated employees / legal heirs of deceased employees in lieu of
prescribed deposit till the notional date of superannuation of deceased employees."

5.Long Term Service Award

In case of subsidiary, itis payable in kind for rendering minimum 25 years of service and also on superannuation.
Defined Benefits Plans

1. Gratuity:

"The Gratuity is payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who
render continuous service for a minimum period of 5 years and upto 30 years. The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one
month's wages last drawn by the employee for every completed year of service in excess of 30 years. The maximum amount of
Gratuity payable to employee is ¥ 20 lakh.The Gratuity is funded with LIC of India. Till March'18 the Company contributed in the
fund every year as premium on the basis of demand raised by LIC of India which was accounted as Gratuity on the basis of
payment of premium. In addition, the company has done actuarial valuation of Gratuity Fund in accordance with IndAS 19."

2. Post Retirement Medical Benefit:

The Post Retirement Medical Benefit is a medical benefit to the superannuated employees and their spouse. The members will
be covered through Mediclaim Insurance admitted of the Insurance Company. This is available to superannuated employees at
any hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy.In addition to this expenses incurred in domicilliary treatment is also
reimbursed as per prescribed ceiling.The benefits are funded through a separate trust formed for this purpose.The Company
provides the corpus for this. Deficit if any is being compensated by the company.Till F.Y 2015-16, the company used to
contribute to the fund based on own estimates. From F.Y 2016-17, first time actuarial valuation has been done and
accordingly liability has been provided in the books of accounts.

3. Contributory Scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary):

In case of subsidiary, the payment of medical facilities (Domiciliary) to the separated executives as covered under contributary
scheme for post retirement medical facilities (domiciliary) for executives.

Investmentrisk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the planin India, it has a
relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments. Further,
the overseas plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real
estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the overseas Fund considers it
appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in equity securities and in
real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund.

Interestrisk Adecrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by
anincrease in the return on the plan's debtinvestments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability.
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(@) The company has recognised an amount of ¥ 1492 lakh in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year (2016-2017 : 31175
lakh ) as expenses under defined contribution plans.

Benefit (Contribution to) Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(R in Lakh) ( in Lakh)
Provident Fund & others 1,492 1,175
Total 1,492 1,175
(b) The company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows :
i. Funded:
a. Gratuity.

b. Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme.
ii. Unfunded:
a. In case of subsidiary, Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme is unfunded.
Details of the Gratuity Plan are as follows :
Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

. Assumptions
. Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
. Estimated rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
. Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%
In case of subsidiary, rate of escalation in salary (per annum) "Non-Executive-10% Non-Executive-10%
for the first year and 6%  for the first year and 6%
thereafter Executive-10% thereafter Executive-10%
for first year and 5% for first year and 5%
thereafter thereafter

2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit palns under Gratuity
are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

(X In lakh) (% In lakh)

a. Current service cost 2,586 104

b. Service Cost 2,586 104

c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 9 87

d. Costrecognized in P&L 2,595 191
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 386 (166)

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (24) 305

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 362 139

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 340 148
(Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 340 148

a
b
c
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (22) 9
e
f

3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line item in
the standalone statement of profit and loss w.e.f F.Y 2017-18 on the basis of actuarial valuation under IND AS 19.

4. Theremeasurementof the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
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5(a). Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

For the year ended
March, 315t 2018

For the year ended
March, 315t 2017

% In lakh % In lakh
a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 5,931 5,883
b. Current Service Cost 94 104
c. Interest Cost on DBO 390 437
d. Past Service Cost- Plan Ammendment 2,491 -
e. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (24) 305
f.  Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 386 (166)
g. Benefits paid from plan asset (556) (632)
h. Closing defined benefit Obligation 8,712 5,931

5(b). Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

For the year ended
March, 315t 2018

For the year ended
March, 315t 2017

< In lakh % In lakh
a. Fair value of the assets at the end of prior period 5,595 3,647
b. Interest Income on plan assets 381 350
c. Employer Contributions 413 2,239
d. Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 22 (9)
e. Benefits paid (556) (632)
f.  Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 5,855 5,595
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6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions

constant.

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate

March, 3152018

March, 3152017

ZInlakh ZInlakh
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (430) (316)
(ii) closing balance of obligation 8,282 5,616
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 473 350
(ii) closing balance of obligation 9,186 6,281

Effect of a 1% change in salary esclation rate

March, 31512018

March, 315t 2017

T In lakh % In lakh
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 327 66
(ii) closing balance of obligation 9,039 5,998
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (343) (81)
(ii) closing balance of obligation 8,369 5,850

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumptions may be correlated.

8.There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior
years
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(d) Details of the Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme are as follows

Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
b. Medical Inflation (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Post
Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme are as follows:

Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017
% In lakh % In lakh
a. Current service cost 88 102
b. Service Cost - -
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 173 151
d. Costrecognized in P&L 261 253
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:
e. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 343 361
f.  Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (246) 364
g. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 97 725
h. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (57) (4)
i. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 40 721
j. Adjustments for limit on net assets - -
k. (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 40 721

3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense’
line item.

4. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
5. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follow

For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

(X In lakh) (X In lakh)
a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 3,309 2,403
b. Current Service Cost 88 102
c. Interest Cost 223 183
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (246) 363
e. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 344 361
f.  Benefits paid directly by the Company (144) (104)
dg. Closing defined benefit Obligation 3,574 3,308

6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
constant.
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For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

(% In lakh) (X In lakh)
Effect of a 1% change in discount rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (422) (417)
(ii) closing balance of obligation 3,152 2,891
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 519 519
(ii) closing balance of obligation 4,093 3,827
Effect of a 1% change in medical inflation rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 451 445
(ii) closing balance of obligation 4,025 3,753
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (369) (360)
(ii) closing balance of obligation 3,205 2,948

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of
the assumptions may be correlated.

8. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
(e) In case of subsidiary, details of the Contributory Scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary) are as

follows:
Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017
(% In lakh) (% In lakh)
1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% 6.90%
b. Medical Inflation (per annum) Not Applicable Not Applicable
2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under
Contributory Scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary) are as follows:
Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017
(X In lakh) (X In lakh)
a. Current service cost 8.10 7.93
b. Service Cost 8.10 7.93
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 15.52 15.33
d. Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses-other long
term employee benefit plans - -
e. Costrecognized in P&L 23.62 23.26
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:
a. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience (60.94) (12.94)
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (10.82) 22.01
c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (71.76) 9.07
d. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI (71.76) 9.07
e. (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI (71.76) 9.07

3.

4.

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits

expense' line item in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
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Ay % ST § TeAaTel Heiferd HTRumsi o Gemd wurat aferd= o SR TR == aftta gomt forgersor st frafcor frarman |
T T H 1% TR & e 31 A<l 2018 31 74, 2017
R @@ ) ( == )
Ifs
(i) Tehiehd =1e] Hel Uel =11 0T (18.91) (24.24)
(i) <rforea =t sifam 9 (193.38) (251.46)
HH
(i) Tehishd =Te] Hell TE AT AT 22.72 29.15
(i) =rfare = sifaw 9w (151.75) (198.07)
Tafewar Twifa T & 1% afedT &1 a9 31 A< 2018 31 @, 2017
R @@ #) ( @rE H)
Ifs
(i) TohId =] el TS =1 AT W e
(i) <rfaea o sifqw 9w - -
ELil
(i) T =1e] TaT Td A AT T et Y e
(i) =ifaes = sifaw 9w
7. Wwwwmmmﬁmmmmﬁﬁﬂﬁwm%aﬁﬁwﬁmw%ﬁwﬁﬁwﬁaﬁ?
TH-A Y SRS # ST i1 F ST He-Heiferd &1 Tehe € |
8. U favamur R A H wgaa fafiri wa emomed # qe o ol 9 g afteda T ¥ 1
42 . =R frae 1 fqaRo
T |
lENIGCRECIRCI L] T & wen e A I W
= §
2018 2017 2018 2017
50:50 TF ST A H o, STy quia: Wed
Hies THUEEE {emgehierT wrgee fefies
(&ifRd gea 3 10/- TAh) 10600000 3100000 1060 310 &

(1) e ad 2016-17 % <RM, 31T AT wie 1 Tro 7 TAUHSH fafide wd ufésr sexde fafee = Afés vauad o meae
fafeFTHATE 50:50 TIF ST I T H T |
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5. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Description For the year ended For the year ended
March, 315t 2018 March, 315t 2017

(% In lakh) (% In lakh)

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year (227.22) (198.21)
b. Current Service Cost (8.10) (7.93)
c. Interest Cost (15.52) (15.33)
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments - -
e. Benefits paid directly by the Company 4.61 3.32
f.  Amounts recognized in OCI 71.76 (9.07)
g. Closing defined benefit Obligation (174.47) (227.22)

6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions

constant.

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate

March, 315t 2018

March, 315t 2017

(X In lakh) (% In lakh)
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (18.91) (24.24)
(ii) closing balance of obligation (193.38) (251.46)
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 22.72 29.15
(ii) closing balance of obligation (151.75) (198.07)

Effect of a 1% change in medical inflation rate

March, 315t 2018
(% In lakh)

March, 315t 2017
(% In lakh)

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost
(ii) closing balance of obligation

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost
(i) closing balance of obligation

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

8. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Amount in ¥ lakh
42 . Details of Trade Investments
Name of the Body Corporate No. of Shares Amount Whether
stated at Cost
2018 2017 2018 2017
Investement in 50:50 Joint Venture Company, Unquoted, Fully paid up
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited
(Face Value %10/- each) 10600000 3100000 1060 310 Yes

(1) During F.Y. 2016-17 MSTC Limited and Mahindra Intertrade Ltd have formed a 50:50 Joint Venture Company named
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Ltd for setting up of Auto shredding plant.
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(2) fodtrad 2017-18 % SRM, THEEE fafree ¥ ufes wruae oo meae fafree # sfaeet dmmem s € 75000000 i fere
foram® (frserad ¥ 31000000) |
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(2) During F.Y. 2017-18 MSTC Limited have invested ¥ 75000000 towards equity contribution in Mahindra MSTC Recycling
Private Limited. (Previous Year¥31000000)

(3) Upto F.Y. 2017-18, the Joint Venture Company has incurred loss of ¥ 360 lakh. 50% of the loss has been decreased from
the Investmentamount to arrive at¥ 880 lakh.

43. Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

a. In accordance to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, gross amount required to be spent by the group during the
year-T 277 lakh.

b. Thegrouphasincurred¥278lakh (Previous Year 157 lakh)as CSR expenditure.

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Construction/ Rennovation of any asset 129 46
Construction of Toilet Blocks 40 45
Tube Wells 69 8
other 40 58

278 157

Above figures are disclosed separetly in note no 31(aa).

44. Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Advances includes balances subject to confirmation/reconciliation and
consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions,wherever considered
necessary, have been made.

45. The figures for the corresponding previous years have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable.

46. The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its 2815t Meeting held on 27" July 2018, has proposed a final dividend in
respect of year ending 315t March 2018, @74% on equity share capital which is ¥ 3520 lakh as on date.The payment of dividend
is subject to approval of shareholders at annual general meeting.If approved it will result in cash outflow 0f¥3140 lakh inclusive
of dividend distribution tax of ¥ 535 lakh.

47. The Consolidated Finanacial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company on 27t
July 2018.

In terms of our report of even date

For D.K. Chhajer & Co. For MSTC LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 304138E

(CA Niraj K Jhunjhunwala ) (B.B Singh) (A K Basu)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR
M. No : 057170 MANAGING DIRECTOR (FINANCE)

(DIN- 03212787) (DIN- 03102901)
Dated : 27.07.2018 (R K Chaudhuri) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place Kolkata CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY

(FINANCE & ACCOUNTS)
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TS TSN -1 Form AOC-1

(Rt (o) W, 2014 5 fam 5 =1 Jrer ufed e 129 i 39 &7

(3) 35 e ST 35 ) (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read

with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

TEIIRTE A1 Tt huf=t steran Sge Sem & forita faawo it ge
ferdrranait st =i

Statement containing salient features of the financial
statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint
ventures

RIE R HIREL Part A Subsidiaries

(VI TR Sha-Ta1 o Her g ¥ o o < H T ohi ST =160

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with

amountsin¥lakh)

1. §en 1
. 1. Number 1
2. U™ AT I AM T why fm fafee
) 2. Name of the subsidiary Ferro Scrap
3. ORIE 59 ¥ " ol SifErfed Nigam Limited
EIRIE 1979-80 ]
3. The date since when
4. g TEEE U B RO safy 201718 subsidiary was acquired 1979-80
Ffe Bifegt et w1 R 2017-18 4. Reporting period for the 2017-18
rafy ¥ T B | subsidiary concerned,
if different from the holding
5. fasit weme St & Ame | NWEE] company’s reporting period.
‘aﬁaﬁ .I & 5. Reporting currency and Not Applicable
i g1 wd fafa ot Exchange rate as on the last
) date of the relevant Financial
6. VAT TS : % 3200 year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries.
7. oRfad T iR % 15378
6. Share capital 3200
8. ol aiEHfaA : ¥ 36066
7. Reserves and surplus I 15378
9. F A : ¥ 36066 8. Total assets % 36066
10. fe T 9. Total Liabilities % 36066
11. AR T 34030 10. Investments Nil
12. WH‘HEE!“ET‘H 7 1304 11. Turnover < 34030
T E—— % 497 12. Profit before taxation 31304
13. Provision for taxation 3 497
14. U S 4 ¢ % 807
14. Profit after taxation < 807
15, TEATTad ST AN T
15. Proposed Dividend Not Applicable
16. ST st | (ufaer #) 100%

16. Extent of shareholding
(in percentage)

100%




e Sl T e ST W SRS el stfuftad, 2013 # U

AT @ HAT Td S IuH

129(3) % e faaxor
Tt =1 S TfE=T THEE T
BBk it st . fa.
1. ST ol T gerTs & aiE 31.03.2018
2. TEAnT 71 9gad sam e 9’ w6 16.12.2016
TS = srferrfed 3T 9
3. I & Ad H T gRT i T H1 T 10
TEANT T HYH ok U iferd oI
. 106 oM@
T Hed T e S Sum |
ERECH RN T 1060 @@
Bifeen (Fr=es) =t g (wfaera #) 50%
4, TEYU THTE T O TEREREr o R
HEqo! g
5. TRArT/HE U &
FURA | B T H KV
6. TeaH e Wifed qeras ¥ 880 @
% STIER AT & &R
IS qA
7. o9 % fow @ an =i
i. T W faamr fawan T 50% IR
3131 @
i, TR W faamr 72 faman e

TIRI TAfEHifRT fdIe % STTER  In terms of our report of even date

Fd EL. F. TR WS &,
T ST
THSRTA : 304138E

T RS FHR FAgaren

HEER
T, ;057170

fedies © 27.07.2018
T : IR

For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 304138E

CA Niraj K Jhunjhunwala (sft.&. o)

Partner STeey-Te-TaY s
SRET - 03212787

M. No : 057170

Dated : 27.07.2018

(TR, <)
&I HRITE Y,
(foa Wi <)

Place : Kolkata
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Part B Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint
Ventures

Name of Associates or
Joint Ventures

1.
2.

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Date on which the Associate or
Joint Venture was associated or
acquired

Shares of Associates or Joint
Ventures held by the Company
on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in
Associates or Joint Venture

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

Description of how there is
significant influence

Reason why the associate /
joint venture is not consolidated

Mahindra MSTC
Recycling Pvt Ltd

31.03.2018
16.12.2016

Face Value of
T 10/- each

106 lakh

% 1060 lakh
50%

Significance
influence due to
share holding

Not Applicable

Net worth attributable to ¥ 880 lakh
shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet
Profit or Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation 50% share

T 131 lakh
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Fd THEEE fafide For  MSTC LIMITED

(B.B Singh) (v, =9) (AKBasu)
CHAIRMAN-CUM- faewr (fam) DIRECTOR FINANCE
MANAGING DIRECTOR EISTETA- 03102901 DIN- 03102901

DIN- 03212787

(R K Chaudhuri) (51 F9R )
CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER ot Sfaa
(FINANCE & ACCOUNTS)

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
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HIeE FAITT !

e

el ", faere™ e wae, 1 3R feow mianswe fafed drara-462004
(e )

R : (0755) 2552241 / (0755) 2570664

%3 (0755)- 4075720

9@ : mstcbhopal@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 23AACCMO0021E1ZF

fereufa

TTEd fafiee, 14 - 279A, fad 7, TeasR, faedfd- 517501
R © (+91) 08143143879

T-7a  : osdtirupati@mstcindia.co.in

AT

g qat, Fex =i fafeet, ureh Je, Toiaris], @@s - 226001, ST W
I . 0522- 2236396, 4244702, 4240445

9@ : mstclko@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 09AACCMO0021E1Z5

LERECHS

AL @A, G e, et |, Srdi-<ft /1-03 3K 08, ¥ TR,
qgver - 751 007

T : (0674)- 2571699

7a  : mstcbbr@mstcindia.co.in

GST.IN : 21AACCMO0021E1ZJ
foeeraq

T T, S h& 1T AR YoM, el o AT, SegThie,

foea-ag 695014
XA 1 0471-2529137
9@ : mstctvm@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 32AACCMO0021E1ZG
IEEREIS

TaUEEEt fafies, # € 9. 7-130, HUH a9, sSTUETATe SAthi TaeEsT fafeeT,
TRie, fastaarer - 521 137

R . 0866-2581331

9a  : gnjayakumar@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 37AACCMO0021E1Z6

TR
TR fafres, gfa 9. 6 IR 7, el diere, SEnT e, delten, e 1,

T 492006
XA 1 0771-2432481
-9 : msterpr@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 22AACCMO0021E1ZH

RRER

HTR/02, T 7,788 i IR, 3 e s, 7 302015
R 1 0141-2742208

9@ : umesh@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 08AACCMO0021E1Z7

=

THTESH! faftee, duHTAue SAhH THRTes, Taet-2, 44,
TH-834004, TRET

A . 0651-2443396

-9 : msternc@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 20AACCMO0021E1ZL

EE

Wﬁ fefree e T fafee, fada aa, dee-5, Taga-134109
R 1 0172-2584921

-9 : sbanduni@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 06AACCMO0021E1ZB
Teere!

T, rEm-781038

XA : 0361-2221199

9@ : mstcghy@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 18AACCMO0021E1Z6

Field Offices :

Bhopal

1st Floor, Tilhan Sangh Bhawan,1 Arera Hills MPOLIFED Building
Bhopal-462004 (Madhya Pradesh)

Tel. : (0755) 2552241 / (0755) 2570664
Fax . (0755) - 4075720

E-mail : mstcbhopal@mestcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 23AACCMO0021E1ZF

Tirupati

MSTC LIMITED, 14 - 279A, 2nd Floor, Raghavendranagar, Tirupati-
517501

Tel. : (+91) 08143143879
E-mail : osdtirupati@mstcindia.co.in
Lucknow

2nd Floor, Centre Court Building, Park Road, Hazratganj, Lucknow
- 226001, Uttar Pradesh

Tel. 1 0522- 2236396, 4244702, 4240445
E-mail : mstclko@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 09AACCMO0021E1Z5
Bhubaneswar

Toshali Plaza, 3rd Floor, Room No.TP-B/1-03 & 08, Satya Nagar,
Bhubaneswar - 751 007

Tel. . (0674)- 2571699

E-mail : mstcbbr@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 21AACCMO0021E1ZJ
Trivandrum

First Floor, Forest Central Library Building, Kerala Forest Head
Quarters, Vazhuthacaud, Trivandrum 695014

Tel. 1 0471-2529137

E-mail : mstctvm@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 32AACCMO0021E1ZG
Vijayawada

MSTC LIMITED # D. No. 7-130, 1st Floor, BSNL Telephone
Exchange Building, Poranki Vijayawada - 521 137

Tel. : 0866-2581331

E-mail : gnjayakumar@mestcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 37AACCMO0021E1Z6
Raipur

MSTC LIMITED, Hall No 6 & 7, 3rd floor, Udyog Bhawan,
Telibandha, Ring Road 1, Raipur, 492006

Tel. 1 0771-2432481

E-mail : mstcrpr@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 22AACCMO0021E1ZH
Jaipur

CF/02, First Floor, Nehru place Complex, Tonk road Jaipur. PIN:
302015

Tel. 1 0141-2742208

E-mail : umesh@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 08AACCMO0021E1Z7
Ranchi

MSTC Limited, BSNL Telephone Exchange, Sec-2, Dhurwa,
Ranchi-834004, Jharkhand

Tel. 1 0651-2443396

E-mail : mstcrnc@mestcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 20AACCMO0021E1ZL
Chandigarh

MSTC Limited Telephone Exchange Building, 2nd Floor, Sector-5,
Panchkula-134109

Tel. 1 0172-2584921

E-mail : sbanduni@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 06AACCMO0021E1ZB
Guwahati

MSTC LIMITED BSNL Exchange Building, Beltola Basistha Road,
Wireless Guwahati, ASSAM-781038

Tel. 1 0361-2221199

E-mail : mstcghy@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 18AACCMO0021E1Z6

Visit us at : http://www.mstceauction.co.in http://www.mstcindia.co.in
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ST =% 919 S, Shiererar - 700 020.
1 (+91-33) 2290-0964, 2287-7557 / 0568 / 9627

1 (+91-33) 2287 8547, 22874178

] 1 mstcindia@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 19AACCMO0021E1Z4

IH & FEE (3. &, H)

30/31A siia faem fafeet, wed e, 3w et e (F9es & faudd)

% fewed - 110 002

A : 011-23214201, 011-23213945

e : (011) 23216713

39a  : mstecnro@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 07AACCMO0021E1Z9

Sl &t st (. &, 1)

TE 9o, e AT, 7. 5, Hieiawhd g s, 9= - 600 034

R 1 044 28285000

W : (044) 2522 0091

39a  : mstcsro@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 33AACCMO0021E1ZE

e &t e (7 & #)

225-F, TS.H1. 919 e, Fiersm - 700 020

R : (+91-33) 2290-0964,2287-7557/0568/7716/9627/7568
% : (+91-33) 2287-4915

i9a  : mstcero@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 19AACCMO0021E2Z3

et &t wrEeE (1. &, F6)

607-608 ST Hex, AT =rEe, gae - 400 021

EIL 1 (022) 2288 6261 / 2288 5924

337 TN qBars & fau fi o= (Ta), e : 022-22886268

% : (022) 2284 5130

9a  : mstcwro@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 27AACCMO0021E1Z7
wIr@r FET

R

THUEEE fafaes, 19/5 wd 19/6, I aa, HUH @R, HiTuT TS, FER- 52
A : (080) 2225 6367, 2226 0054, 22266417

%3 (080)2225 6367

39a  : mstcbir@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 29AACCMO0021E1Z3

foremamam

ST A, ST TR, TAsTEHE fafegn, shifaen € Irs, fawmam=+ - 530004
W (0891) 274 6948, 270 1066

%am : (0891)274 7053

37a  : mstcvzg@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 37AACCMO0021E1Z6
L

21?=an1t—|ﬁvr sTardite, fadta a1, =@ St & famiia, siee ey s, eteie,
ey -390 020
T : (0265) 2339 672, 2310 629

the 1 (0265) 235 1636
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Registered & Head Office :

225-C, Acharya Jagadish Chandra Bose Road, Kolkata - 700 020.
Tel. : (+91-33) 2290-0964, 2287-7557 / 0568 / 9627

Fax : (+91-33) 2287 8547, 22874178

E-mail : mstcindia@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 19AACCMO0021E1Z4

Northern Regional Office (NRO)

30/31A Jeevan Vikas Building, 1st Floor, Asaf Ali Road (opp.
Hamdard), New Delhi - 110 002

Tel. : 011-23214201, 011-23213945
Fax : (011) 23216713
E-mail : mstcnro@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 07AACCMO0021E1Z9

Southern Regional Office (SRO)

ISPAT Bhavan, 3rd Floor, No.5, Kodambakkam High Road,
Chennai - 600 034

Tel. : 044 28285000
Fax : (044) 2522 0091
E-mail : mstcsro@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 33AACCMO0021E1ZE
Eastern Regional Office (ERO)
225-F, A.J.C Bose Road, Kolkata - 700 020

Tel. : (+91-33) 2290-0964,2287-7557/0568/7716/9627/7568
Fax : (+91-33) 2287-4915
E-mail : mstcero@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 19AACCMO0021E2Z3

Western Regional Office (WRO)

607-608 Raheja Centre, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
Tel. : (022) 2288 6261 / 2288 5924

For e-Auction Registration Enquiry - Ms. Archana (AM),
Tel: 022-22886268

Fax : (022) 2284 5130

E-mail : mstcwro@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 27AACCMO0021E1Z7

Branch Offices :

Bengaluru

MSTC Limited, 19/5 & 19/6, 3rd Floor, Kareem Tower, Cunningham
Road, Bengaluru- 52

Tel. : (080) 2225 6367, 2226 0054, 22266417
Fax : (080) 2225 6367

E-mail : mstcbir@mstcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 29AACCMO0021E1Z3

Visakhapatnam

6th Floor "Jeevan Prakash" LIC Building, Jeevitha Bima Road,
Visakhapatnam - 530004

Tel. : (0891) 274 6948, 270 1066
Fax : (0891) 274 7053

E-mail : mstcvzg@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 37AACCMO0021E1Z6
Vadodara

21,Kamalanjali Apartment, 2nd Floor, Opp.Tube Company, Old
Padra Road, Akota, Vadodara-390 020

Tel. : (0265) 2339 672, 2310 629
Fax : (0265) 235 1636

E-mail : mstcvda@mstcindia.co.in
GSTIN : 24AACCMO0021E1ZD
Hyderabad

MSTC Ltd., No. 5-9-13, 7th Floor, Taramandal Complex, Saifabad,
Between Sahara Manzil And Samrat Complex, Hyderabad,
Telangana 500004

Tel. : (040) 23301039

Fax : (040) - 23301049

E-mail : hyd@mestcindia.co.in

GSTIN : 36AACCMO0021E1Z8




MSTC’s Offices

= New Delhi

= Mumbai

= Kolkata

® Chennai

= Bangalore

= Visakhapatnam
= Vadodara

= Hyderabad

= Bhopal

= Trivandrum
= | ucknow

= Jaipur

= Bhubaneswar
= Raipur

= Guwahati

= Ranchi

= Chandigarh
= Tirupati

Vijayawada

MSTC

LIMITED
(A Gowt. of India Enterprise)

[HIEA HERE Bl J0E)

225C, A.J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata - 700 020, India
Phone : 81-33-2200-0864, 2287-7557 / 0568 / 7716 / 9627 / 7568
website : www.mstcindia.co.in = www.mstcecommerce.com
CIN : U27320WB1964G01026211

Inter Publicity
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